sLE ¢

bmﬁ- Village Of Turtle Lake

b~ w

o * 114 MARTIN AVENUE EAST - POBOX 11 - TURTLE LAKE, WISCONSIN 54889

ﬁ"' ,e PHONE: 715-986-2241 - FAX: 715-986-4252 - www.turtlelakewi.com
co™N

NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Turtle Lake Planning Commission will hold a Meeting on
Monday, December 14, 2020, at 5:00 p.m. at the Village Hall located at 114 Martin Avenue
East. Village Trustees may also be in attendance of the Commission’s meeting but no
motions by the Village Board of Trustees will be made during this meeting. The Planning
Commission will consider the following items:

l. CALL TO ORDER
. ROLL CALL
[l REVIEW OF AGENDA
V. PUBLIC COMMENT
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None.
VI. NEW BUSINESS:
A. Discussion and Possible Recommendation regarding proposed parcel split
of lot 3-15, located at 500 South Pine Street.
B. Presentation and Discussion of the draft text and map updates to the Village
of Turtle Lake Zoning Ordinance.
1. Brief
2. Homework / Future Meeting Dates

Vil.  ADJOURNMENT

Prepared by:
Scott W. Hildebrand
Village Administrator

“The Village with a Vision”
Village of Turtle Lake is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer. Complaints of discrimination should be sent to: USDA Director, Office of Civil Rights, Washington, DC 20250-9410



S 88 v T

m
An innovative leader in responsible planning and development for over 40 years.
coordinate. partner. advocate. serve.

TO: Village of Turtle Lake Plan Commission
FROM: Susan Badtke, Senior Planner
DATE: December 7, 2020

SUBJECT: Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Ordinance (text & map) Update

This memorandum is prepared to provide a summary of the zoning ordinance update process,
overview of the proposed changes, and next steps for adopting (repeal & replace) of the ordinance. |
have also attached a copy of the draft zoning ordinance text and map for review. These items will be
discussed at the December 14, 2020 Plan Commission meeting.

Goals of the Zoning Ordinance (text & map) Update Process:
Zoning is the most common method of land use control used by local governments and is a significant
tool to implement the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. Section 66.1001(3), Wis. Stats., requires that the
zoning ordinance be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

The Village of Turtle Lake adopted the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan 2020-2040 on August
17, 2020. One of the action items within the Plan directs the Village to review and update its land use
regulations to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including following specific policy
recommendations contained on page 111-113 of the Plan.

It is also important to review the Zoning Ordinance to ensure consistency and compliance with many
federal and state legislative changes (signs, telecommunications, substandard parcels, conditional uses,
etc.).

Additionally, the Village’s zoning map was last updated in 2010. Village staff has indicated that there

are difficulties interpreting the colors on the map, as colors used for the residential classifications are
very similar. The zoning map also does not reflect and incorporate any rezoning approvals that have

occurred since 2010.

Ordinance Update Process:

= Comprehensive Plan - changes to the zoning ordinance and map were discussed throughout
this process, including providing a variety of options for new housing types, etc.

= July 6, 2020 Plan Commission meeting — WCWRPC staff met with the Plan Commission to
discuss the zoning ordinance update and presented a list of substantial changes to the Turtle
Lake

= August 17, 2020 — Village adopted the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan 2020-2040

= Since adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, staff has been working to incorporate items as
directed by the Comprehensive Plan as well as the Plan Commission.

=  Tonight’s meeting — discuss the draft ordinance materials and identify any desired changes.

West Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission
800 Wisconsin Street e  Building D2-401 e MailBox9 e Eau Claire, Wl 54703-3606
Phone: 715-836-2918 e Fax: 715-836-2886 e Email: wewrpc@wcwrpc.org



Summary of Updates:

While the Zoning Ordinance was updated (reorganized, updated to comply with state and federal
regulatory changes, and updated to address items of the Comprehensive Plan), it is important to note
that, at the request of the Village Attorney in 2018, we exercised caution to maintain current uses
within the new code/districts. We will discuss the various changes and the proposed draft map and
text at the meeting, but please review and come prepared with any questions and feedback.

Specific Discussion Questions:

Map: (see page 3 of memo)

1.

Would like direction from the Commission on a few specific properties as identified in the
attachment on page 3.

Text: (see page 4-7 of memo)

1.

Discussion on district names — is the Village comfortable moving away from the district
numbering to district lettering to better describe the type of use?

Home occupations — recommending that home occupations be a permitted accessory use with
standards. Current code has them as a conditional use.

Within the R-MF Multi-Family Residential District, proposing to allow for a multi-family dwelling
unit structure to contain up to 8 dwelling units, with anything above that as a conditional use.
Does this fit with the Village?

B-G General Business District does not currently have minimum dimensional standards (min. lot
size of minimum setback requirements). | would recommend establishing some minimum
standards.

Section 13-1-60(b) of the current ordinance — does the Village want to maintain this and allow
other uses within the district of a nonconforming use? | would suggest removing this as it is not
required by state law and works against cleaning up some nonconforming use situations.

Next Steps & Adoption Timeline:

Wisconsin Department of Ag, Trade, and Consumer Protection (DATCP) & Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resource (DNR) are reviewing for compliance with respective statute
requirements [Large livestock facilities in the Intensive Agriculture District & Shoreland &
Shoreland-Wetland Chapters]

Work session with the Plan Commission tonight (December 14, 2020)

Finalized draft ordinance documents

Village Attorney review

Notice of public hearing on ordinance repealing and recreating zoning ordinance text & map
Public hearing, Plan Commission recommendation and Board action anticipated mid-January
Clerk will publish the ordinance and it will take effect upon publication

Attachments:

Draft Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Ordinance Text
o Chapter 1 Zoning Code, Chapter 3 Shoreland-Wetland — Red-line edits
o Chapter 1 Zoning Code, Chapter 3 Shoreland-Wetland & Chapter 6 Shoreland — Clean &
formatted
Draft Land Use Table & Dimensional Standards Table (for discussion)
Draft Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Map

2| Page



Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Map Updates

Map Updates:

Draft December 7, 2020

The Draft Official Zoning Map for the Village was created using the November 2010 SEH Zoning Map
along with the Village’s Existing Land Use Map and Future Land Use Plan Maps within the

Comprehensive Plan.

The map has been updated to reflect the new zoning districts as proposed in the Village’s Draft Zoning

Ordinance.

Items for Plan Commission Discussion:

1. 3 Parcels on the Village’s Far West Side

2010 SEH Zoning Map: Business - 2

Existing Land Use: Far west parcel - Ag
Two eastern parcels - undeveloped

Future Land Use: Far west parcel — Ag
Two eastern parcels — Commercial

Proposed Zoning: R-T (Rural Transition)

215 Martin Avenue E

2010 SEH Zoning Map: Business — 1
Existing Land Use: Undeveloped
Future Land Use: Residential

Proposed Zoning: R-4 (compatible with
surrounding land uses)

3| Page



General Ordinance Updates — Draft December 7, 2020

Chapter 1 Zoning Code — Reorganized / reformatted sections (for example, moved Mobile Home Park
District into the zoning district section instead of a separate article, etc.)

Make ordinance more user-friendly and combine
Sections together (for example, incorporate
Conditional Use & Zoning Board of Appeals
information into the Administration Article)

Chapter 1 Application Fee References — removed reference to a specific dollar amount and instead
deferred to the Village fee schedule. Will need to ensure fee schedule is updated to reflect these

applications and associated fees.

Can adjust fees as necessary through the fee
schedule without amending the ordinance.

Separate out Chapter 3 Shoreland-Wetland into two separate chapters, Chapter 3 Shoreland-Wetland

and Chapter 6 Shoreland.

Specific changes are noted below.

In recent years, state statutes have changed with
results in portions of the Village’s shoreland-
wetland protection regulations being out of
compliance. Per DNRA standards, wetlands within
the shorelands are regulated differently than the
area within the shoreland. Shoreland-wetland
zoning only regulates uses and activities within
wetlands and setbacks for buildings, which fall
under shoreland zoning. Can no longer lump these
distinct areas into a single ordinance.

Specific Major Updates
Page # (red-line version) | Article / Section # Specific Change Purpose
(red-line version)

3 Create Section 13-1-19 Reference Comprehensive Plan Adopted Recognize the Comprehensive Plan for consistency.

3 13-1-10 Remove lot merger requirement Wis. Stats does not allow for lot merger.

6 13-1-15 Screening and Fencing moved to Article G Organizational preference
Performance Standards

8-35 Article C Updated Zoning Districts — most of the Make consistent with the desires of the Village.
dimensional standards and uses remained the | Distinguish various zoning districts and add purpose
same as current code. Cleaned-up some statements for each district.
duplicates, tried to make use references e Recognize telecommunication uses,
consistent. community living arrangements, etc. as

appropriate

13 13-1-24 Added two-family residential structure Allow for a duplex within the R-M district as a
(duplex) as a permitted use in the R-M (former | permitted use. Help meet the Village’s housing
R-3) district. needs and objectives within the housing study.

4| Page




Specific Major Updates

Page # (red-line version)

Article / Section #
(red-line version)

Specific Change

Purpose

13 13-1-24(b) Added up to four residential dwellings in one Helps address the housing needs as set forth in the
residential structure (4-plex) by conditional housing study. Adds units without changing the
use in the R-M district character of the surrounding neighborhood.

14 13-1-25 Added zero-lot line attached dwelling units as | Help meet the Village’s housing needs as set forth
a conditional use in the R-MF district. in the housing study.

15 N/A Conditional Uses Applicable to All Residential Establish specific conditional uses to all residential
Districts districts, including Bed and Breakfast, Accessory

Dwelling Unit and Group Homes.

16 13-1-31 Create a MHTH Mobile Home — Tiny Home Maintains the same standards as was in the MH-1
Neighborhood District. Mobile Home Park District but also brings in some

of the standards from Article K mobile homes.

23 N/A Create Intensive Agriculture District Address large livestock facilities (greater than 500
animal units) — allowed in I-A district by conditional
use with specific standards.

26 13-1-27 Residential above sidewalk level as a Allow for mixed-use buildings — another way to

conditional use in the B-G district address the Village’s housing needs.

27 13-1-28 Moves night clubs to Conditional Use, added Make these both conditional uses allowing special
Sexually oriented businesses as a conditional review by the Village.
use

27 N/A Create Downtown-Mixed Use District For the City’s downtown Central Business District —
encourages mixed-use development with
residential above the first floor. Residential
allowed by CUP on first floor with specific
standards.

30 13-1-29(b)(6) Allowed multi-family on 8 dwelling units by Allows multi-family residential to be considered

CUP. within the business park areas.
31-35 13-1-31 Create PD Planned Development District Provides the rules and regulations for someone to

establish a Planned Development District within the
Village. This allows flexibility in zoning regulations
for developments that will have a higher level of
design and amenity than under standard zoning.

5|Page




Specific Major Updates

Page # (red-line version)

Article / Section #
(red-line version)

Specific Change

Purpose

38 13-1-124 Created Home Occupations as an Accessory Allows for home occupations without necessitating
Use with specific standards a rezoning into a commercial zoning district or

obtaining conditional use permit approval.

40 - 45 13-1-40 to 13-1-59 Moved Conditional Use section to The Requires specific approval and has a specific
Administrative Article procedure for review and approval.

46 - 48 13-1-131 Created Tiny Home section Allows tiny homes within the MHTH district.
Allowed as Accessory Dwelling Units, which are
allowed by conditional use in residential districts.
Addresses strategy recommended by housing study
as well as the CAP committee.

49 Article F Clarifications and consistencies on Comply with statute requirements and make more

nonconforming uses, structures, and understandable.
substandard lots.

52-55 Moved Traffic Visibility, Loading, Parking and Organizational preference.
Access to Performance Standards Article

56 - 62 Article G Created a Performance Standards section Combine performance related standards into one
applicable to all zoning districts. article. Created section within Article specific to

standards for commercial districts, as directed by
Comp Plan.

63-78 Article H Updated Sign Ordinance, Created Special Make consistent with recent case law, most notably
Exception procedure (allows flexibility in Reed v. Town of Gilbert (2015), which specifies that
ordinance standards) a sign ordinance can no regulate signs based on

content. Regulations must be “content neutral”.
Used current standards, just worked to make them
content neutral.

79-93 Article | Updated Telecommunications Ordinance Make consistent with state legislative changes,
which specifies what a municipality can regulate
related to telecommunications facilities.

94 - 102 Article K Mobile Homes — Removed as incorporated Incorporated these standards into the zoning

into Section 13-1-27 (MHTH District) and
Article E (Manufactured Homes, Mobile
Homes & Tiny Homes)

district regulations instead of having a separate
Article.

6| Page



Specific Major Updates

Page # (red-line version)

Article / Section #
(red-line version)

Specific Change

Purpose

104 N/A Created a Review and Approval Requires Help public and staff understand the review
section to help explain the various review and | processes.
approval processes and the associated
respective governing bodies.

105 - 107 N/A Brought in Zoning Amendment process from Combine various articles for ease of use and
Article M. Also added Review Standards (2) on | establish standards timeline for review and
page 106 to provide the Village with standards | approval.
in which to review specific amendments by.
Established timeline for review and action on
requests.

107 -112 N/A Brought in Conditional Use Permit Procedures | Updated for consistency with State law regarding
(from Article D) into the Administration & conditional uses. Must have “substantial evidence”
Procedures Article. to deny a conditional use permit request.
p.112 — added conditional use standards
specific to Sexually Oriented Businesses
p. 113 0 Added conditional use standards
specific to Specific Livestock Operations

118-119 13-1-173 & 13-1-170 Brought the Variance and Appeals sections Combine various administrative sections into one
into the Administrative Section. article.

126 - 137 Article K Updated Definitions & brought in those Combined various definition sections into one
specific to Mobile Homes, Large Livestock Article.
Facilities and Signs

N/A Chapter 3 -Shoreland- Created sections 13-3-26, 13-3-27 Comply with Wis. Stats. & DNR requirements.

Wetland

(updated based on model
ordinance from WI DNR)

Only regulates land use
within the shoreland
where wetlands of 5 ac.
Or more are present

Removed Section 13-3-24 (Regulation of Tree
Cutting, Removal of Shrubbery & Water
Setbacks and Building Elevation Standards)

Created section 13-3-32
Added to reference to Supreme Court

declaration under “Navigable Waters”
definition.

7| Page




Turtle Lake, WI Code of Ordinances

ARTICLE A

Introduction
SEC. 13-1-1 AUTHORITY.
This Chapter is adopted under the authority granted by Sections 61.35. 62.23(7) and 87.30 of the Wisconsin
Statutes and amendments thereto.

SEC. 13-1-2 TITLE.
This Chapter shall be known as, referred to, and cited as the "Zoning Code, Village of Turtle Lake,
Wisconsin" and is hereinafter referred to as the "Code" or "Chapter."

SEC. 13-1-3 GENERAL PURPOSE.
The purpose of this Chapter is to promote the comfort, health, safety, morals, prosperity, aesthetics and
general welfare of the people of the Village of Turtle Lake, Wisconsin.

SEC. 13-1-4 INTENT AND PURPOSES IN VIEW.
The general intent and purposes in view of this Chapter are to regulate and restrict the use of all structures,
lands and waters and to:

(a) Promote and protect the comfort, public health, safety, morals, prosperity, aesthetics and general
welfare of the people;

(b) Divide the Village into zones or districts restricting and regulating therein the location, erection,
construction, reconstruction, alteration and use of buildings, structures and land for residence, business and
manufacturing and other specified uses;

(c) Protect the character and the stability of the residential, business, manufacturing and other districts
within the Village and to promote the orderly and beneficial development thereof;

(d) Regulate lot coverage, the intensity of use of lot areas and the size and location of all structures so as
to prevent overcrowding and to provide adequate sunlight, air, sanitation and drainage;

(e) Regulate population density and distribution so as to avoid sprawl or undue concentration and to
facilitate the provision of adequate public services, utilities and other public requirements;

() Regulate parking, loading and access so as to lessen congestion in and promote the safety and
efficiency of streets and highways;

(g) Secure safety from fire, panic, flooding, pollution, contamination and other dangers;

(h) Stabilize and protect existing and potential property values and encourage the most appropriate use of
land throughout the Village;

(1) Preserve and protect the beauty of the Village of Turtle Lake;

(j) To prohibit uses, buildings or structures incompatible with the character of development or intended
uses within specified zoning districts;

(k) To provide for the elimination of nonconforming uses of land, buildings and structures which are
adversely affecting the character and value of desirable development in each district;

() Prevent and control erosion, sedimentation and other pollution of the surface and subsurface waters;

(m) Further the maintenance of safe and healthful water conditions;

(n) Prevent flood damage to persons and property and minimize expenditures for flood relief and flood
control projects;

(o) Provide for and protect a variety of suitable commercial and industrial sites;

(p) Protect the traffic-carrying capacity of existing and proposed arterial streets and highways;

(q) Implement those municipal, county, watershed and regional comprehensive plans or components of



such plans adopted by the Village of Turtle Lake;

(r) Provide for the administration and enforcement of this Chapter; and to provide penalties for the
violation of this Chapter.
(s) Implement certain goals and objectives of the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan, which are
best addressed through zoning approaches, as enable by Wisconsin Statutes.

SEC. 13-1-5 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.

It is not intended by this Chapter to repeal, abrogate, annul, impair or interfere with any existing easements,
covenants, deed restrictions, agreements, rules, regulations or permits previously adopted or issued pursuant
to law. However, whenever this Chapter imposes greater restrictions, the provisions of this Chapter shall
govern.

SEC. 13-1-6 RULES OF INTERPRETATION.

(a) In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Chapter shall be held to be minimum
requirements adopted to promote the General Purpose identified in Section 13-1-3 and shall be
liberally construed in favor of the Village and shall not be construed to be a limitation or repeal of any
other power granted to the Village by the Wisconsin Statutes.rew-pessessed-by-the-Village-of Turtle-
Lakee:

(b) Where property is affected by the regulations imposed by any provision of this Chapter and by other
governmental regulations, the regulations which are more restrictive or which impose higher
standards or requirements shall prevail. Regardless of any other provision of this Chapter, no land
shall be developed. and no structure erected or maintained. in violation of any state or federal
regulations. Where there are conflicts between or among regulations within this Chapter, the
regulations that are more restrictive or which impose higher standards or requirements shall prevail.
In all instances, where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and any tables or figures of
this Chapter, the text shall prevail.

(¢) Nothing herein contained shall require any changes in plans, construction, size, or designated use of
any building or part thereof for which a building permit has been issued before the effective date of
this Chapter, and the construction of which shall have been started within one year from the date of
such permit.

(d) Except as provided in this Chapter, under provisions for nonconforming uses, nonconforming
developments, substandard lots, and nonconforming structures and buildings (see Article XX), no
building, structure, development, or premises shall be hereinafter used or occupied, and no applicable
permit granted, that does not conform to the requirements of this Chapter.

(e) In cases of mixed occupancy or mixed use buildings, the regulations for each land use shall apply to
the portion of the structure or land so occupied and so used. In the case of buildings containing both
residential and nonresidential uses, the density, intensity, and standards for nonresidential buildings

shall apply.

SEC. 13-1-7 SEVERABILITY AND NON-LIABILITY.
The provisions of this Chapter are separable in accordance with the following:

(a) If any section, clause, provision or portion of this Chapter is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Chapter shall not be affected thereby.

(b) If any application of this Chapter to a particular structure, land or water is adjudged unconstitutional or
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not be applicable to any other structure, land
or water not specifically included in said judgment.

(c) The Village does not guarantee, warrant or represent that only those areas designated as floodlands
will be subject to periodic inundation and hereby asserts that there is no liability on the part of the Village
Board, its agencies or employees for any flood damages, sanitation problems or structural damages that may
occur as a result of reliance upon and conformance with this Chapter.



SEC. 13-1-8 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.

(a) All other ordinances or parts of ordinances of the Village inconsistent or conflicting with this
Chapter, to the extent of the inconsistency or conflict only, are hereby repealed.

(b) This Chapter shall become effective upon passage and publication according to law, following the
date of repeal and recreation of the Official Zoning Map. All plans approved under previous zoning
regulations shall be valid and may be used to obtain permits for a period of not more than a year after
the effective date of this Chapter, except where subject to developer agreement provisions.

SEC. 13-1-9 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED

The Village has adopted as though fully set forth in this chapter that certain document entitled “Village of
Turtle Lake 2020-2040 Comprehensive Plan” dated August 17, 2020, and as amended. A copy of the
adopted plan is available in the office of the Village Clerk.

SEC. 13-1-910 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE B
General Provisions
Sec. 13-1-10 Jurisdiction and General Provisions.
(a) Jurisdiction. The jurisdiction of this Chapter shall apply to all structures, lands, water and air within
the corporate limits of the Village of Turtle Lake.

(b) Compliance. No new structure, new use of land, water or air or change in the use of land, water or air
shall hereafter be permitted and no structure or part thereof shall hereafter be located, erected, moved,
reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted or structurally altered without a zoning permit and without full
compliance with the provisions of this Chapter and all other applicable Villageloeal, county and state
regulations.

(c) District Regulations to be Complied With. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, the use and
height of buildings hereafter erected, converted, moved, enlarged or structurally altered and the use of any
land shall be in compliance with the regulations established herein for the district in which such building or
land is located.

(d) Yard Reduction or Joint Use.

(1) No lot, yard, parking area, building area or other space shall be reduced in area or dimension so as
not to meet the provisions of this Chapter. No part of any lot, yard, parking area or other space required for a
structure or use shall be used for any other structure or use. Lots existing and of record prior to adoption of
this Chapter, but of substandard size, may be devoted to uses permitted in the district in which located.

(2) No part of a yard or other open space provided about any building for the purpose of complying
with the provisions of this Code shall be included as a part of a yard or other open space required for another
building.;-exeept-thatiftwe s e L e B e T

substandard parcels — cannot require lot merger.

pames&e#ﬂm@hap&eﬂ' 1 - - TCommented [SB1]: Wis Stats 66.10015(4) regarding

F__ | Commented [SB2]: This requirement is repeated, with
additional details, in section 13-1-12




1 __— — | Commented [SB3]: This requirement is repeated, with
(2) Nuisance Actions. No provision of this Chapter shall be construed to bar an action to enjoin or abate additional restrictions, in section 13-1-12

the use or occupancy of any land or structure as a nuisance under the appropriate laws of the State of
Wisconsin.

(h) Construction of Utilities. No provision of this Chapter shall be construed to prohibit the customary
and necessary construction, reconstruction or maintenance of above- ground or underground public utility
neighborhood service lines and mechanical appurtenances thereto where reasonably necessary for the
preservation of the public health, safety. convenience, and general welfare.

Sec. 13-1-11 General Use Regulations.
Only the following uses and their essential services may be allowed in any district:

(a) Permitted Uses. Permitted uses, being the principal uses, specified for a district.

(b) Accessory Uses. Accessory uses and structures as specified are permitted in any district but not until
their principal structure is present or under construction. Any permanent, roofed structure serving as an
accessory use, if attached to the principal building, shall be considered a part of the principal building. If such
structure is a building and is not attached to the principal building, it shall conform to the setback and other
dimensional requirements of the district within which it is located. Residential accessory uses shall not
involve the conduct of any business, trade or industry, with the exception of home occupations as allowed for
under Section 13-1-124.

(c) Conditional Uses.
(1) _Conditional uses and their accessory uses are considered as special uses requiring, for their
authorization, review, public hearing and approval by the Village Board in accordance with Article B-J of

this Chapter.-exeepting-these-existent-at-time-ofadeption-otfthe Zoning Code:

(2) Pre-Existing Conditional Uses. Those existing uses which are classified as "conditional uses" for

the district(s) in which they are located at the time of adoption of this Code require no action by the Village
Board for them to continue as valid conditional uses, and the same shall be deemed to be "regular"
conditional uses.

(d) Uses Not Specified in Code.
(1) Uses not specified in this Chapter which are found by the Village Board to be sufficiently similar to
specified permitted uses for a district shall be allowed by the Zoning Administrator.

(2) Uses not specified in this Chapter and which are found sufficiently similar to specified conditional
uses permitted-for a district may be permitted-allowed by the Village Board after consideration and
recommendation by the Plan Commission, public hearing and approval in accordance with Article BJ of this
Chapter.



(e) Temporary Uses. Temporary uses, such as real estate sales field offices or shelters for materials and
equipment being used in the construction of a permanent structure, may be permitted-allowed by the Village
Board. The Board may impose conditions on such temporary uses, to the extent allowed for under Article J.

Sec. 13-1-12 Site Regulations.

(ab) Street Frontage. All lots shall abut upon a public street or other officially approved means of access,
and each lot shall have a minimum frontage of sixty (60) feet at the setback line; however, to be buildable,
the lot shall comply with the frontage requirements of the Zzoning Dédistrict in which it is located. No zoning
permit shall be issued for a lot which abuts a non-public road or public street dedicated to only a portion of

its proposed width and located on that side thereof from which the required dedication has not been secured.

(be) Principal Structures. All principal structures shall be located on a lot. Only one (1) principal structure
shall be located, erected or moved onto a lot. The Village Board may permit as a conditional use more than
one (1) principal structure per lot in any district where more than one (1) such structure is needed for the
orderly development of the parcel. Where additional structures are permitted, the Village Board, subject to
the recommendation of the Plan Commission, may impose additional yard requirements, landscaping
requirements or parking requirements, or require a minimum separation distance between principal
structures.

(cf) Site Suitability. No land shall be used or structure erected where the land is held unsuitable for such
use or structure by the Village Board, upon the recommendation of the Plan Commission by reason of
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, unfavorable topography,
low percolation rate or bearing strength, erosion susceptibility or any other feature likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, prosperity, aesthetics and general welfare of this community. The Plan Commission, in
applying the provisions of the Section, shall, in writing, recite the particular facts upon which it bases its
conclusion that the land is not suitable for certain uses. The applicant shall have an opportunity to present
evidence contesting such unsuitability if he so desires. Thereafter, the Plan Commission may affirm, modify
or withdraw its determination of unsuitability when making its recommendation to the Village Board.

(dg) Preservation of Topography. In order to protect the property owner from possible damage due to
change in the existing grade of adjoining lands and to aid in preserving and protecting the natural beauty and
character of the landscape, no change in the existing topography of any land shall be made which would
result in increasing any portion of the slope to a ratio greater than one and one-half (1-1/2) horizontal to one
(1) vertical, within a distance of twenty (20) feet from the property line, except with the written consent of
the owner of the abutting property and with the approval of the Village Board, or which would alter the
existing drainage or topography in any way as to adversely affect the adjoining property. In no case shall any
slope exceed the normal angle of slippage of the material involved, and all slopes shall be protected against
erosion.



Sec. 13-1-13 Heights and Area Exceptions.
(a) Height. The district height limitations stipulated elsewhere in this Chapter may be exceeded, but

such modifications shall be in accord with the following:

(1) Architectural Projections. Spires, belfries, parapet walls, cupolas, domes, flues and chimneys are
exempt from the height limitations of this Chapter.

(2) Special Structures. Radio and television receiving antennas are exempt from the height limitations of
this Chapter.

(3) Essential Services. Utilities, water towers, electric power and communication transmission lines are
exempt from the height limitations of this Chapter.

(4) Communications Structures. Radio and television transmission and relay towers, aerials and
observation towers shall not exceed in height three (3) times their distance from the nearest lot line.

(5) Agricultural Structures. Barns, silos and windmills shall not exceed in height twice their distance
from the nearest lot line.

(6) Public or Semi-public Facilities. Schools, churches, hospitals, governmental offices and stations may
be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet, provided all required yards are increased not less than one (1) foot
for each foot the structure exceeds the district's maximum height requirement.

(b) Yards. The yard requirements stipulated elsewhere in this Chapter may be modified as follows:

(1) Uncovered Stairs. Uncovered stairs, landings and fire escapes may project up to six (6) feet into any
yard; but shall not be closer than three (3) feet to any lot line.

(2) Architectural Projections. Chimneys, flues, sills, window wells, eaves, belt courses and ornaments
may project into any required yard; but such projection shall not exceed two (2) feet.

(3) Essential Services. Essential service, utilities, electric power and communication transmission lines
are exempt from the yard and distance requirements of this Chapter.

(4) Landscaping. Landscaping and vegetation are exempt from the yard requirements of this Chapter.

(5) Additions. Additions in the street yard of existing structures shall not project beyond the average of
the existing street yards on the abutting lots or parcels.
(6) Decks. Porches. and Handicapped Ramps. For purposes of this Chapter, decks and porches shall be
considered a part of a building or structure for determining setback compliance (see Section 13-1-120(1) for
ed ramps shall not be considered a part of a building for determining setback compliance.

Sec. 13-1-14 Bulk Standards
(a) All structures shall comply with the requirements listed for each zoning district in this Chapter.
(b) All lots shall abut on a public street. Refer to additional standards for lots and blocks in Title 14:
Subdivision Regulations.
(c) On lots fronting two nonintersecting streets, a front yard must be provided on both streets.
(d) On lots fronting three or more streets and/or on sharply curved streets, the determination of the

yards and appropriate setbacks shall be made by the Zoning Administrator, or designee.

|

Commented [SB4]: This is already addressed in section
13-1-10(d)

|

Commented [SB5]: Moved to Performance Standards
section

|




| Commented [SB6]: Move to the section with Mobile
Homes & Tiny Homes

Sec. 13-1-17 through Sec. 13-1-19 Reserved for Future Use.



ARTICLE C
Zoning Districts

Sec. 13-1-20 Districts Established.
| (@) Zoning Districts. The following standard Zoning Districts are hereby established in the Village of
TurtleLake]
(1) R-R¥ Single-FamilyRural Residential District.
(2) R-L2 Low Density Single-Family Residential District.

(34) R-M3 Medium Density Single-Family Residential District.

(45) R-MF4 Multi-Family Residential District.

(5) MHTH-+ Mobile Home - Tiny Home ParkNeighborhood District
(6) R-TD Rural BevelopmentTransitional District.

(7) _1-A Intensive Agriculture District

(87) B-G* General CoemmereialBusiness District.

(98) B-2H Highway CemmereialBusiness District.

(10) D-MU Downtown Mixed-Use District

(11) B-P Business Park District

O)—1Hndustrial Distriet:
(128) P-C Park and Conservancy €-+-Censervaney-District.
(134) PDD Planned Development DistrictMH+-Mebile Home Park Distriet:

(b) ZeningMaps:District Boundaries

(1) Zoning Map & Amendments. The boundaries of the aforesaid districts are hereby established as
shown on the "Official Zoning Map, Village of Turtle Lake, Wisconsin", dated XXXXXX, as amended
periodically, which is adopted by reference and made a part hereof. Such map, together with a copy of this
Chapter, shall be available for public inspection in the office of the Village Administrator. The map shall be
certified by the Village President, and attested by the Village Administrator. Any changes in zoning district
boundaries shall be recorded on the map. No change shall be effective until so recorded and until a duly
certified and attested certificate describing the change is filed with the map. Changes to the zoning map
(zoning map amendments) shall be consistent with the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan.

(2) Boundary Lines. The district boundaries are either streets or alleys, unless otherwise shown, and
where the designation on the District Map indicates that the various districts are approximately bounded by a
street or alley line, such street or alley line shall be construed to be the district boundary line.

3)—a. Where the district boundaries are not otherwise indicated and where the property has been or may
hereafter be divided into blocks and lots, the district boundaries shall be construed to be lot lines and where
the designations on the District Map are approximately bounded by lot lines, said lot line shall be construed
to be the boundary of the district.

—b. In subdivided property, the district boundary lines shown on the District Map shall be determined
by use of the scale shown on such map.

(3) Vacation. Vacation of public streets and alleys pursuant to Section 840.11, Wis. Stats., shall cause

the land vacated to be automatically placed in the same district as the abutting side to which the vacated

land reverts.

Sec. 13-1-20.5 R-R Rural Residential District (former R-2 Single-Family Estate District)

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to allow for a low density semi-rural life style areas
where topographic features or the natural environment make the land less suitable for row crop production of more
intense development. Development in this district is often integrated and appropriate incorporated into natural or

= {Commented [SB7]: Update with names of zoning districts }




wooded areas, which often makes the most suitable use of land for single-family homes on large lots. These areas
are designed to be served by private water and sanitary sewer systems on a permanent basis with no central sewers
planned for this area.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) A single-family dwelling and its accessory structure(s) or use(s).
(2) A licensed residential facility serving six (6) or fewer persons.

(3) A licensed day care facility serving twelve (12) or fewer persons.

s 7| Commented [SB8]: Not clear what this is — remove as not
needed.

(4) Public parks and open space.

(5) Forest and wildlife management areas.

(6) Public utility infrastructure and offices.

(1) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 8 or fewer persons being

served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Wis. Stats. 60.63.

(&) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

(b) Regulations for Permitted Uses in Unplatted Areas
(1) Single-family, detached, non-farm dwellings are permitted used in unplatted areas, subject to
the following standards:
a.  No more than four (4) dwelling units per forty (4) acres shall be allowed.
b. A minimum frontage of two hundred (200) feet on a public road for each parcel.
c. A maximum of one (1) access per residential lot on a public road.
d. For lots recorded as of October 16, 2000, the following additional lots may be

created.

Areas in acres as of October 16, 2000 Max. # of Additional Lots
Permitted

0to 20 0

More than 20 to 40 1

The foregoing shall not apply to a single parcel of not less than twenty (20) acres
and having a width of not less than give hundred (500) feet, and its conveyance
does not results in the division of a parcel into two (2) or more lots or parcels, any
one (1) of which is less than twenty (2) acres in area of five hundred (500) feet in
width.

e. Density transfers for parcels larger than forty (40) acres shall be permitted where
the entire parcel has frontage on an existing public road.

2) The following also satisfies criteria for permitted uses:
a. Solar energy systems and solar structures.
b. Temporary roadside stand not to exceed one (1) per farm.

c. A group of not more than five (5) unrelated persons maintaining a common

household and using common cookies and kitchen facilities.

(c) Conditional Uses.
1) Licensed residential facilities serving seven (7) through sixteen (16) persons.




2) Accessory structures other than those listed as permitted.

3) Churches.

[C)) Cemeteries.

%) Schools.

(6) Government and community buildings.
5) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate nine or more persons being served by
the program, provided meets the requirements of Wis. Stats. 60.63.

(6) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section XXXX.
(7) Dog kennels: Refer to kennel licensing ordinance Section 7-1-3.
(8) Agricultural uses.

(d) Lot Requirements.
(1) Minimum Area: One and one-half (1.5) acres exclusive of water bodies and wetlands.
(2) Maximum Height. Three stories not including basement.

(3) Minimum building width: Twenty (20) feet.
(4) Minimum Lot width:

a. Unplatted: Two hundred (200) feet
b. Platted: One hundred sixty (160) feet

c. Cul-de-sacs: Eight (80) feet at setback line

(5) Minimum Lot Depth: Two hundred (200) feet; provided, however, that the depth of any lot in a
minor subdivision erin-a-cluster-development shall not exceed three (3) times the lot’s width.

(6) Yards

a. Street: Fifty (50) feet minimum

b. Side: Twenty-five (25) feet minimum. Minimum side yard for garage/carport is twenty

(20) feet.

c. Rear: Fifty (50) feet minimum

(7) Maximum Building Coverage: Thirty-five percent (35%)

(8) Minimum Building Square Footage: Minimum 1,200 finished square feet per home.
N-MiseellancousResulations—Addition nedardsrelated-to-parking siens—ete—are settorthin
wlations—Additional standard ated-to-parking sicns_ete.

10



Sec. 13-1-22 R-L.2 Low Density Single-Family Residential District. (combines the R-1 & R-2 districts)
Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to preserve and enhance areas for single-family
detached dwellings. The land use standards for this district permit primarily single-family detached residential
development at an approximate density of up to 3 dwelling units per acre. Development within this district is
primarily served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a)  Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) A Ssingle-family dwellings and itstheir accessory structure(s) or use(s).
2) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 8 or fewer persons being
served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Wis. Stats. 60.63.
3) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

()
(b) Conditional Uses and Structures.-Fhosecenditionalusespreseribed-for the R4 Distriet.

(1) Public parks and open spaces;

(4) Schools:

(5) Cemeteries;

(6) Government and community buildings;
(7) Public utility infrastructure and offices;
(9)  Golf courses;

(10) Churches:

5 _B= ‘{Commented [SB9]: Not sure what this is so delete.

(11) Agricultural uses;
(12)  Residential lot serviced by private water and sanitary. (Note: this applies only to lots established and

home occupation? I'd suggest making it permitted accessory

*********************************************** — — ~ 7| Commented [SB10]: Do you want to require a CUP for a
use with standards.

zoned under this district as of August XX, 2020.
(13)  Licenses daycare facility — 12 or fewer individuals;
(14) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate nine or more individuals, in
accordance with Wis. Stats. 60.63.

(15)  Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section XXXX.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.
a. Width: Ninety (90) feet minimum.
b. Area: Twelve thousand (12,000) square feet minimum.
(2) Building. Height: Thirty (359) feet maximum.
(3) Yards.
a. Street: Thirty (30) feet minimum.

11



b. Rear: Thirty (30) feet minimum.
c. Side: Ten (10) feet minimum.

12



Sec. 13-1-24 R-M3 Medium Density Single-Family Residential District.
Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to create, preserve, and enhance areas for smaller lot

residential neighborhoods at an approximate density of 5 dwelling units per acre. Neighborhoods in this district are
typically dominated by single-family residential dwelling structures thought it may accommodate other residential
dwelling structure types in infill situations provided they fit the neighborhood context and character. Development
within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) A Ssingle-family dwellings and theirits accessory structure(s) or use(s).
(2) Two-family residential structures.
(3) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 8 or fewer persons being served by
the program, provided meets the requirements of Wis. Stats. 60.63.

(4) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

(b) Conditional Uses and Structures. These-conditional-uses-preseribed-for the R—1-Distriet, with-the-

(1) Those conditional uses prescribed for the R-2 District
——Up to four residential dwellings in one residential structure may be allowed provided the form of
the residential structure complies with the character of the surrounding neighborhood.

(¢) Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.

13



a.  Width: Seventy (70) feet minimum.

b. Area: Eight thousand (8,000) square feet minimum.
(2) Building. Height: Thirty-five (35) feet maximum.
(3) Yards.

a. FreatStreett: Twenty (20) feet minimum.

b. Rear: Twenty (20) feet minimum.

c. Side: Eight (8) feet minimum.

Sec. 13-1-25 R-MF4 Multi-Family Residential District.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to create, preserve, and enhance areas for multi-family
uses in residential structures such as townhomes, multiplexes, or garden style homes. Group homes such as
Community Based Residential Facilities (CBRF), nursing homes and assisted livings may also be most compatible
within this district. Development within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) —(ay—Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) A Ssingle-family residential dwellinguses and its accessory structure(s) or uses(s).

(2) A multi-family dwelling unit structure containing up to and including eight (8) units.-*qsg% - Commented [SB11]: Does this fit with the Village? How
. : .

was the 24 unit multi-family building constructed?
Permitted or CUP?

(3) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 15 or fewer persons being served
by the program, provided meets the requirements of Wis. Stats. 60.63.

(4) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

(b) Conditional Uses and Structures.
(1) Public Pparks and open spaces;

(—Grecmsmesand-oponspaesss
)—Playgrounds;
(4) Publie-andprivatesSchools;

(5) Medical and dental clinics;

(6) Cemeteries;

(7) Nursing homes;

(8) Geovernmentaland-community-service-buildings-and-funetionsGovernment and community
buildings;

(9) Public Hutility infrastructurelines and offices;

>

(11)  Golf courses;
(12) Churches;
—3)—Libraries;
. . S :
‘ ; .

5 L ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, __— — | Commented [SB12]: No need to call out separately as it’s
(146) Agricultural uses; addressed in the accessory uses section.

(158) Two-family residential structures.L 7777777777777777777777777777777777777 -~ | Commented [SB13]: Why is a single-family residential
16 A multi-family dwelling unit structure containing more than eight (8) units. structure allowed but not a duplex?
(17) _ Residential occupancy of zero-lot line attached dwelling units of zero-lot line subject to: "~ | Commented [SB14]: Do you want to limit and require
a. A maintenance agreement shall be entered into by the owners of all zero-lot line CUP for more than 8 units?

parcels to ensure equal and reasonable maintenance and repair schedules are conducted
for all attached residential units.

b. An eight-foot maintenance easement, four-feet on each side of the zero-lot line side

property line, to allow for normal maintenance of each single-family attached
residential unit, shall be recorded with the register of deeds office and a recorded copy

14



provided to the zoning administrator.
c. The dwelling wall abutting the zero-lot line shall be a one hour fire wall.
d. Shall be served by municipal water and sewer.
(18)  Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 16 or more persons being served by
the program, provided meets the requirements of Wis. Stats. 60.63.
(19)  Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section XXXX.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.
a. Width: Eighty (80) feet minimum.
b. Area: Nine thousand six hundred (9,600) square feet.
(2) Building. Height: Maximum forty-five (45) feet or four (4) stories, whichever is the least.
(3) Yards.
a. FreanStreet: Twenty (20) feet minimum.
b. Rear: Twenty (20) feet minimum.
c. Side: Six (6) feet minimum.
(d) Other Requirements.
(1) That the recreation space ratio, defined as the minimum square footage of recreation space required
for each square foot of floor area, is not less than .16.
(2) That the floor area ratio, defined as the maximum square footage, of total floor area permitted for
each foot of land area, is not more than .32.
(3) That the open space ratio, defined as the maximum square footage of open space
required for each square foot of floor area, is not less than 2.0.
(4) That the living space ratio defined as the minimum square footage of non-vehicular outdoor spaced
required for each square foot of floor area, is not less than 1.2.
(e) Zero-lot line lots having single-family attached dwelling structures:
1) Minimum lot area: 5,000 square feet
(2) Minimum lot width: 40 feet
3) Minimum street yard setback: 20 feet
4) Minimum zero-lot line side yard (shared) setback: Zero feet. A two-foot eave protrusion shall
be permitted across the zero lot line into the adjoining lot.
%) Remaining standards shall be the same as described in this Section.

SEC. 13-1-XX Conditional Uses Applicable to All Residential Districts
Applicability. This Section applies to residential districts of R-R, R-2, R-3, R-4

Bed and Breakfast Establishment

(a) As Conditional Use. Bed and breakfast establishments shall be considered conditional uses and may be
allowed in any Residential District.

(b) State Standards. Bed and breakfast establishments shall comply with the standards of Chapter HSS
197, Wis. Adm. Code.

Accessory Dwelling Unit

(a) As Conditional Use. Accessory Dwelling Unit shall be considered a conditional use and may be
permitted in the Residential Districts pursuant to this Article and subject to the following standards of this
Section.

(b) Not more than one accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot.

(c) Accessory dwelling units shall be allowed only on a lot having at least 8,000 square feet.

(d) Accessory dwelling units shall not exceed 800 square feet in floor area and shall have a minimum

15




floor area of 250 square feet.

(e) The property owner of record must reside in either the primary dwelling unit or the accessory
dwelling unit as their permanent and legal address. A restrictive agreement shall be recorded to this effect.
) In addition to off-street parking spaces requirements for the primary dwelling unit, a minimum of one

off-street parking space of an efficiency or one-bedroom accessory dwelling unit, or a minimum of two off-
street parking spaces for a two or more bedroom accessory dwelling unit, shall be provided.

(2) The accessory dwelling unit shall not be conveyed or separated in ownership from the primary
dwelling unit.
h The accessory dwelling unit shall comply with all pertinent building codes.
(i) An accessory dwelling unit may be attached to or detached from the single-family residence.
(1) Attached accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following:
(1) The accessory dwelling unit shall be clearly incidental to the principal dwelling unit and the
building’s exterior shall appear to be single-family.
(2) Only one entrance may be located on the facade of the dwelling facing the street, unless the
dwelling contained additional entrances before the accessory dwelling unit was created. An
exception to this regulation is entrances that do not have access from the ground such as entrances
from balconies or decks.
3) Fire escapes or exterior stairs for access to an upper level accessory dwelling shall not be
located on the front of the primary dwelling unit.
(k) Detached accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following:
(1) The accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to the requirements of Section 13-1-120
Accessory Uses or Structures.
2 The accessory dwelling unit shall comply with all building code regulations relating to

dwellings.

Group homes

(a) Group homes that fall within the meaning of community living arrangements are as defined in Wis.
Stats. 62.23(7)(1) or subsequent relevant changes and that are identified as conditional uses in particular
districts of this Chapter shall be governed in conditional use review by standards of Wisconsin Stats.
§62.23(7)(1)9 and the process of Wisconsin Stats. §62.23(7)(1) shall apply.

Sec. 13-1-31 MHTH Mobile Home - Tiny Home Neighborhood District.
Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to create, preserve, and enhance areas exclusively
designed for mobile home and tiny home developments.

(a) Minimum Dimensional Requirements; Minimum Number of Lots or Spaces.
(1) Where an MHTH District is to be established for the development of a mobile home or tiny home

neighborhood, the minimum area shall be ten (10) acres. The minimum number of lots or spaces completed
and ready for occupancy before first occupancy is permitted shall be established as fifty percent (50%) of
total units permitted on the zoned site.

(2) These limitations shall not apply where expansion of an existing mobile home park or neighborhood is

concerned and where such expansion will not increase variation from requirements applying to mobile home
neighborhoods, as set forth herein.

(b) Permitted and Permissible Uses and Structures.

(1) Single-Family Detached Mobile Homes (residential mobile home) or Tiny Home. In mobile or tiny
home neighborhoods, recreational vehicles shall not be occupied as living quarters and sales lots shall not be
permitted, but dwellings may be sold on lots or spaces they occupy in residential use.

(2) Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures. Uses and structures that are customarily accessory and
clearly incidental to permitted principal uses and structures shall be permitted, except for those requiring
specific approval as provided below.

(3) Rental. No mobile home or tiny home site shall be rented for a period of less than thirty (30) days.

16



(©) Standard Requirements for Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhoods, Additions or Extensions.
All mobile home and tiny home neighborhoods and modifications of or additions or extensions to existing
neighborhoods within an MTH District shall comply with the following:

(1) Chapters H 82 and 77, PSC 184, Wis. Adm. Code, are hereby made a part of this Article and
incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth; except that such regulations shall not be deemed to
modify any requirement of this Article or any other applicable law or ordinance of the state or Village which
is more restrictive.

(2) Mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall contain a minimum of ten (10) acres of land.
Additions to or extensions of mobile home parks shall contain a minimum of one (1) acre of land.

(3) Individual lots or spaces shall be not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet in area and arranged to
afford ample area for a variety of units, a setback of fifty (50) feet from all public rights-of-way and twenty-
five (25) feet from any park drive or common area, including common parking areas, forty (40) feet from all
park boundary lines, twenty (20) feet from any other unit, building or structure. Street frontage for individual
mobile home lots shall not be less than fifty (50) feet. Accessory structures such as awnings, storage cabinets,
carports, windbreaks or attached porches shall be considered part of the unit for purposes of determining
compliance with this provision.

(4) No mobile home or tiny home neighborhood shall be laid out, constructed or operated without Village
water supply and sanitary sewer service. All water or sanitary sewerage facilities in any unit not connected
shall be sealed and their use is hereby declared unlawful.

(5) Individual valved water service connections shall be provided for direct use of each unit, so

constructed and installed that they will not be damaged by frost or parking of the unit. Water systems shall be
adequate to provide a pure, potable water supply of six (6) gallons per minute at a minimum pressure of

twenty (20) psi and capable of furnishing a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) gallons per unit per day. Fire
hydrants shall be installed within five hundred (500) feet of every mobile home stand and park building.

(6) All liquid wastes originating at units, service or other buildings shall be discharged into a sewerage
system extended from and connected with the public sewerage system. Such system shall comply with all
provisions of the state code and Village ordinances relating to plumbing and sanitation. Each individual
space shall be provided with a three (3) inch watertight sewer connection protected from damage by heaving
and thawing or parking of the unit, and located within the rear one-third (1/3) of the stand, with a continuous
grade, which is not subject to surface drainage, so constructed that it can be closed when not in use and
trapped in such a manner that it can be kept odor free.

(7) Adequate provision shall be made for the disposal of solid and liquid wastes in a manner approved by

the Health Officer or Fire Chief. Open burning of waste or refuse is prohibited.
(8) All television antenna systems, electrical and telephone distribution lines and oil or gas piping serving

the neighborhood or spaces therein shall be installed underground. Distribution systems shall be new and all
parts and installations shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local codes. Each space shall be
provided with a weatherproof electrical overcurrent protection device, disconnect means and branch service
of not less than sixty (60) amperes for two hundred twenty (220) volt service located adjacent to the water
and sewerage outlets. Receptacles shall be on the 1-pole-4-wire grounding type and have a 4-prong
attachment for 110-220 volts.

(10) A minimum of two (2) off-street parking spaces surfaced with bituminous concrete or similar

material capable of carrying a wheel load of one thousand (1,000) pounds shall be provided for each mobile
home space.

(11) Condition of soil, ground, water level, drainage and topography shall not create hazards to the
property, health or safety of occupants of mobile or tiny home spaces or living units. The site shall not be
exposed to objectionable smoke, noise, odors or other adverse influences. No portion of the neighborhood
which is subject to unpredictable and or sudden flooding, subsidence or erosion shall be used for any purpose
which would expose persons or property within or without the park to hazards.

(12) Exposed ground surfaces in all parts of every mobile home or tiny home neighborhood shall be paved
or covered with stone screenings or other solid materials or protected with a vegetative growth that is capable

17




of preventing soil erosion and eliminating objectionable dust.

(13) The ground surface in all parts of every mobile home or tiny home neighborhood shall be graded and
equipped to drain all surface water in a safe, sanitary and efficient manner.

14) All mobile or tiny home neighborhoods shall be furnished with lighting so spaced and equipped with
luminaires placed at such heights as will provide the following average maintained levels of illumination for
the safe movement of pedestrians and vehicles at night:

a. All parts of the park street systems: 0.6 footcandles with a minimum of 0.1 footcandles.
b. Potentially hazardous locations, such as major park street intersections and steps or stepped ramps
individually illuminated with a minimum of 0.6 footcandles.

(15) All mobile home or tiny home spaces shall abut upon a street. Widths of streets shall be in
accordance with the Village's Subdivision and Platting Code. All streets shall be provided with a smooth
hard and dense surface which shall be well drained under normal use and weather conditions for the area.
Pavement edges shall be curbed or protected to prevent raveling of the wearing surface and shifting of the
pavement base. Grades of streets shall be sufficient to insure adequate surface drainage but not more than
eight percent (8%), provided a maximum grade of twelve percent (12%) may be used if approved by the
Village as safe and designed to avoid traffic hazards. Streets shall be at approximately right angles within one
hundred (100) feet of an intersection. Intersections of more than two (2) streets at one point shall not be
allowed. A distance of at least one hundred fifty (150) feet shall be maintained between center lines of offset
intersecting streets.

(16) In all mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods there shall be one or more recreation areas easily
accessible to all neighborhood residents. Such areas shall include a total minimum of one (1) lot per thirty
(30) spaces. If a park has less than thirty (30) spaces, one recreation area must be provided. No single
recreational area shall contain less than five thousand (5,000) square feet unless each mobile home site is
provided with contiguous common recreational area not less than twenty (20) feet wide at the narrowest
dimension. Recreation areas shall be so located as to be free of traffic hazards and convenient to mobile
home or tiny home spaces which they serve.

(17) Single family nondependent mobile homes or tiny homes and approved accessory structures included
in the original plans and specifications or revisions thereof, parks, playgrounds, open space, off-street
parking lots, one park office and service buildings for exclusive use of park residents shall be the only
permitted uses in mobile home parks, provided the Village Board may approve the following uses when
designed and limited to exclusive use of neighborhood residents:

a. Laundromats.
b. Clubhouses and facilities for private social or recreation clubs.
c. Swimming pools.
(18) No signs shall be erected in mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods except signs pertaining to the

lease, hire or sale of individual mobile homes or tiny homes not more than two (2) square feet in area and one
(1) mobile home or tiny home neighborhood identification sign not more than fifty (50) square feet in area at
each park entrance.

(19) All mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall be provided with safe and convenient vehicular
access from abutting public streets or roads to each mobile home space. Entrances to neighborhoods shall be
designed to minimize congestion and traffic hazards and allow free movement of traffic on adjacent streets.
The standards and requirements for mobile home or tiny home neighborhood design, layout and development
contained in this Section are intended to be minimum standards necessary to create a safe, sanitary, healthful,
and agreeable environment in neighborhoods designed for mobile home, tiny homes, and the Village of
Turtle Lake. The express enumeration of such standards shall not preclude the governing body by resolution
or bylaw or express written agreement with the mobile home or tiny home neighborhood owner or developer
from imposing additional requirements or modifying the requirements set forth in this Article whenever it
shall determine that such modifications or additions are more likely to achieve the purposes of this Section
than those set forth herein and will not conflict with applicable laws of the state or county.

(d) Annual Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhood Operation License.

(1) No person shall operate, administer or maintain a mobile home or tiny home neighborhood within the
18




Village of Turtle Lake without a valid, unexpired license issued by the Village Administrator and approved
by the Village Board upon determination that the standards in this Article have been met and payment of the

required fee.

(2) Mobile home or tiny home neighborhood licenses shall be issued for a calendar year and shall expire
on December 31 next succeeding date of issue. Licenses may be issued after January 1 of any year but not
rebate or diminution of the fee shall be allowed therefor.

(3) The fee for a mobile home or tiny home neighborhood llcense shall be as establlshed in the Village’s
annual fee scheduleFifty sk 4
Licenses may be transferred durmg a 11cense year upon payment of a fee as estabhshed in the Vlllage S
annual fee schedulefor-a-fee-often-dotars($10-60).

(4) Licenses granted under this Section shall be subject to revocation or suspension by the governing
body for cause in accordance with Sec. 66.058(2)(d), Wis. Stats. "Cause" as used in this Subsection shall
include, but not be limited to:

a. Failure or neglect to abide by the requirements of this Article or the laws or regulations of the State
of Wisconsin relating to mobile home parks and their operation.

b. Conviction of any offense under the laws of the state or ordinances of the Village relating to
fraudulent or misleading advertising or deceptive practices regarding the sale or renting of mobile homes or
tiny homes or the leasing or rental of mobile home of tiny home spaces or sale, lease or operation of
neighborhood facilities.

¢. Operation or maintenance of the mobile home or tiny home neighborhood in a manner inimical to the
health, safety or welfare of park occupants or the inhabitants of the Village of Turtle Lake; including, but not
limited to, repeated violations of laws or ordinances relating to health, sanitation, refuse disposal, fire
hazards, morals or nuisances.

d. Transfer or sale of an ownership interest in any mobile home or tiny home space or the underlying
land other than to another eligible licensee. Such action shall also subject the owner of the underlying land to
all requirements of the state and municipal subdivision control laws and regulations regardless of the size or
number of lots or spaces so transferred or sold.

(5) Except as provided in Subsection (f) of this Section, no mobile home or tiny home neighborhood
license shall be granted for any premises or to any person not meeting the following standards and
requirements:

a. All standards and requirements set forth in this Article, except as specifically waived or modified in
writing by the Village Board and endorsed on the mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developer's
permit. This requirement includes a valid certificate form the Wisconsin Department of Health and Social
Services that the neighborhood complies with the provisions of Ch. H 77, Wis. Adm. Code, applicable
thereto.

b. Mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall be used only for the parking and occupancy of single-
family nondependent mobile homes or tiny homes and accessory structures and appurtenances and uses
authorized and approved under Section 13-1-134(q).

c. Applicants shall file with the approving officer, certificates of the Building Inspector and Health
Officer certifying that all equipment, roads, sanitary facilities, water facilities and other equipment and
facilities have been constructed or installed in the park as required by this Article and are in required
operating condition at the time of said application.

d. Location and operation of the neighborhood shall comply with all zoning and land use ordinances of
the state and Village and no permit shall be issued until the proposed use has been certified by the Building
Inspector as complying with such ordinances.

(6) Each applicant for an original or renewed license shall file with the Village Administrator a bond, as
specified in the Village’s annual fee schedule, in-the-sum-of One-Theusand DoHars($1000-00)-for each fifty
(50) mobile home spaces or fraction thereof guaranteeing the collection by the licensee of the monthly
parking permit fees as provided in Title 7, Chapter 5 and the compliance of the licensee and the
neighborhood management with the provisions of this Code of Ordinances. Such bond shall also be for the
use and benefit and may be prosecuted and recovery had thereon by any person who may be injured or
damaged by reason of the licensee violating any provision of this Article.

19



(e) Operation of Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhoods; Responsibility of Neighborhood
Management.

(1) For every mobile home or tiny home neighborhood there shall be located an office of the attendant or
person in charge of said neighborhood. A copy of the license and of this Article shall be posted therein and
the neighborhood register shall at all times be kept in said office. Said office shall be located within the
Village of Turtle Lake.

(2) The attendant or person in charge and the neighborhood licensee shall operate the neighborhood in
compliance with this Article and regulations and ordinances of the Village and state and their agents or
officers and shall have the following duties:

a. Maintain a register of all neighborhood occupants, to be open at all times to inspection by state
federal and Village officers, which shall show:

1.. Names and addresses of all owners and occupants of each mobile home or tiny home.

2. Number of children of school age.

3. State of legal residence.

4. Date of entrance and departure of each mobile home or tiny home.

5. Make, model, year and serial number of license number of each mobile home or tiny home, and
towing or other motor vehicles and state, territory or country issuing such licenses.

b. Notify neighborhood occupants of the provisions of this Article and inform them of their duties and
responsibilities and report promptly to the proper authorities any violations of this Article or any other
violations of law which may come to their attention.

c. Notify the Health Officer immediately of any suspected communicable or contagious disease within
the neighborhood.

d. Supervise the placement of each mobile home on its stand which includes securing its stability and
installing all utility connections and tiedowns and the placement of any tiny home in accordance with
building code requirements.

e. Maintain neighborhood grounds, buildings and structures free of insect and rodent harborage and
infestation and accumulations of debris which may provide rodent harborage or breeding places for flies,
mosquitoes and other pests.

f. Maintain the neighborhood free from growth of noxious weeds.

g. Maintain the neighborhood free of litter, rubbish and other flammable materials, provide portable fire

extinguishers of a type approved by the Fire Chief in all locations designated by the Chief and maintain such
extinguishers in good operating condition and cause every area within the neighborhood designated as a fire

lane by the Fire Chief to be kept free and clear of obstructions.
h. Provide every mobile home and tiny home unit with a substantial flytight, watertight, rodentproof

container for the deposit of garbage and refuse. The management shall provide stands for all refuse and
garbage containers so designed as to prevent tipping and minimize spillage and container deterioration and

facilitate cleaning.
i. Provide for the sanitary and safe removal and disposal of all refuse and garbage at least weekly.

Removal and disposal of garbage and refuse shall be in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin
and the ordinances and regulations of the Village, including regulations promulgated by
the Health Officer and the Fire Chief.

j. Collect the monthly parking permit fee and cash deposits for each occupied nonexempt mobile home
or tiny home within the neighborhood and remit such fees and deposits to the Village Administrator.
Neighborhood operators are responsible to assure for the collection and payment to the Village Treasurer real
estate taxes which are levied upon the neighborhood, mobile homes, and tiny homes within the
neighborhood.

k. Allow inspections of neighborhood premises and facilities at reasonable times by municipal officials
or their agents or employees as provided by

(H) Responsibility and Duties of Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhood Occupants.
(1) Neighborhood occupants shall comply with all applicable requirements of this Article and regulations
20




issued hereunder and shall maintain their mobile home or tiny home space, its facilities and equipment in
good repair and in a clean and sanitary condition.

(2) Neighborhood occupants shall be responsible for proper placement of their mobile homes on the
mobile home stand, tiny homes constructed in accordance with building regulations, and proper installation
of all utility connections in accordance with the instruction of the park management.

3) No owner or person in charge of a dog, cat or other pet animal shall permit it to run at large or to
cause any nuisance within the limits of any neighborhood.

(4) Each owner or occupant of a nonexempt mobile home or tiny home within a neighborhood shall remit
to the license or authorized neighborhood management the cash deposit and monthly parking permit fee.

(5) It shall be the duty of every occupant of a neighborhood to give the park licensee or management, or
his agent or employee, access to any part of such neighborhood or mobile home or tiny home premises at
reasonable times for the purpose of making such repairs or alterations as are necessary to effect compliance
with this Article or any law or ordinance of the state or Village or lawful regulation or order adopted
thereunder.

(6) Mobile homes shall be parked only on the mobile home stands provided and shall be placed thereon in
accordance with all requirements of this Article.

(7) No mobile home or tiny home owner or occupant shall conduct in any unit or any mobile home or tiny
home neighborhood any business or engage in any other activity which would not be permitted in single-
family residential districts in the Village.

(8) No person shall discharge any waste water on the surface of the ground within any mobile home or
tiny home neighborhood.

(9) No person shall erect or place upon any mobile home or tiny home space any permanent or temporary
structure intended to be used for dwelling purposes or in connection with any mobile home unit except as
specifically authorized by this Article.

(2) Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhood Developer’s Permit.

(1) Requirement. No person shall construct, alter, modify or extend any mobile home or tiny home
neighborhood or mobile home or tiny home neighborhood building or facility within the limits of the Village
of Turtle Lake without first having the property re-zoned to the MHTH classification and securing a mobile
home or tiny home neighborhood developer's permit from the Village. Such permits shall be issued by the
Administrator upon approval by the Village Board.

(2) Applications. Applications for mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developers' permits shall be
filed with the Village Administrator with sufficient copies for the Building Inspector, members of the Plan
Commission, and Fire Chief who shall investigate and review said application to determine whether the
applicant, the premises on which said park will be located and the proposed design and specifications thereof
and all buildings proposed to be constructed thereon will comply with the applicable regulations, ordinances
and laws of the state and Village and report their findings in writing to the Village Board within sixty (60)
days. Such reports shall be considered by the Village Board before any permit is issued hereunder. Failure of
any one of the above to report within the allotted time shall be deemed a favorable recommendation.

(3) Fees. Applications for mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developers' permits shall be
accompanied by a fee as set forth in the Village’s annual fee schedule efOne-Hundred DoHars($1+00-00)-to
cover the cost of investigation and processing, plus regular building permit fees for all buildings or structures
to be erected within the proposed neighborhood.

(4) Information. Applications shall be made on forms furnished by the Administrator and shall include
the following information:

a.  Name and address of the applicant.

b. Location and legal description of the proposed neighborhood, addition, modification, or extension.

c. A complete plot plan showing compliance with all applicable provisions of this Article and the
Village Building Code and zoning and subdivision ordinances.

d. Complete preliminary engineering plans and specifications, including a scale drawing of the
proposed neighborhood showing, but not limited to:

21



1. Plans and specifications of all utilities, including:
i. Sewerage collection and disposal;
ii. Storm water drainage;
iii. Water and electrical distribution and supply;
iv. Refuse storage and collection;
v. Lighting;
vi. Telephone and television antenna systems.
2. Location and width of roadways and walkways, buffer strips, recreational and other common areas.
3. The location of mobile home stands with the mobile home spaces, including a detailed sketch of at
least one typical mobile home space and stand therein. The location of all tiny homes, including a detailed
sketch of at least one typical tiny home space.
4. Landscape plan showing all plantings.
5. Plans and specifications of all buildings and structures within the proposed neighborhood.

e. Interest of applicant in proposed mobile home or tiny home neighborhood or extension thereof. If
owner of the tract is a person other than applicant, a duly verified statement shall be provided by the owner
that the applicant is authorized by him to construct and maintain the proposed neighborhood. addition,
modification, or extension and make the application.

f. Written statements describing proposed neighborhood operations, management and maintenance,
including proposed fees and charges and other requirements to be imposed on neighborhood occupants by the
neighborhood operator.

(5) Final Plans. Final engineering plans and specifications complying with the provisions of this Article
and any modifications or conditions imposed by the governing body shall be submitted to the Administrator
and checked by the proper Village officials for compliance before the license is issued.

(6) Re-Zoning Procedures. The procedures for creating an MHTH District shall be as prescribed in
Article M of this Code of Ordinances, except that the standards of Section 13-1-46 shall be followed.

(7) _Assignment of Permits. No mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developer's permit, once issued,
shall be assignable without the written consent of the Village Board.

(h) Additional Regulations on Mobile Homes, Tiny Homes, and Associated Neighborhoods.

(a) Wrecked, damaged or dilapidated mobile homes or tiny homes shall not be kept or stored in a mobile
home or tiny home neighborhood or upon any premises in the Village. The Health Officer or Building
Inspector shall determine if a mobile home or tiny home is damaged or dilapidated to a point which makes it
unfit for human occupancy. Such mobile homes or tiny homes are hereby declared to be a public nuisance.
Whenever the appropriate officer so determines he shall notify the licensee or landowner and owner of the
mobile home or tiny home in writing that such public nuisance exists within the neighborhood or on lands
owned by him giving the findings upon which his determination is listed and shall order such home removed
from the neighborhood or site or repaired to a safe, sanitary and wholesome condition of occupancy within a
reasonable time, but not less than thirty (30) days.

(b) The Health Officer, Building Inspector, Fire Chief, Village Engineer, Village Board or their lawful
agents or employees are authorized and directed to inspect mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods not less
than once in every twelve (12) month period to determine the health, safety and welfare of the occupants of
the neighborhood and inhabitants of the Village as affected thereby and the compliance of structures and
activities therein with this Article and all other applicable laws of the state and ordinances of the Village.

(c) Fires in mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall be made only in stoves and other cooking or
heating equipment intended for such purposes. Outside burning is prohibited except by permit and subject to
requirements or restrictions of the Fire Chief.

(¢) __All plumbing, building, electrical, oil or gas distribution, alterations or repairs in the neighborhood

shall be in accordance with the regulations of applicable laws, ordinances and regulations of the state
and municipalities and their authorized agents.

22



Sec. 13-1-26 R-TB RuralDevelopmentRural Transitional District.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to allow for limited low density residential (not multi-lot
or subdivision development), general agricultural and forestry, and related on-site processing, storage, and rural
business uses that are appropriate for certain larger parcels. This district accommodates ag-tourism related uses.
Development within this district is served by private water and sanitary.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) A Ssingle-family resideneesdwelling and its accessory structure(s) or use(s);
(2) Public Pparks and open spaces;

-3)—Open-spaces;

or-garbageAgriculture or general
reenhouses and other similar enterprises
or uses, except fur farms and farms operated for the disposal or reduction of garbage, sewage and rubbish.
a. New or existing livestock operations which will house fewer than 500 animal units;

(5) Cemeteries;

(6) Municipalservicefunetions-and-struetaresPublic utility infrastructure and offices;

(8)  Quarries;

(9) Churches;

(10) Taverns;

(12) Fairgrounds;

(13) Shooting clubs and preserves;

(15) Campgrounds.
(16) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

(b) Conditional Uses
[@)) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section XXXX.

() Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.
a. Width: Two hundred seventy (270) feet minimum.
b. Area: Two (2) acres minimum.
(2) Building: Height: Thirty-five (35) feet maximum except for barns, silos and other buildings and
structures which are customarily higher and accessory uses to farming.
(3) Yards.
a. Street: Fifty (50) feet minimum.
b. Rear: Fifty (50) feet minimum.
c. Side: Fifty (50) feet minimum.
Note: In no case shall any structure be closer than forty (40) feet from any lot line; nor any dump, disposal
area, incinerator, or principal structures or buildings for mink farms, or farm feeding or using offal or
garbage be less than five hundred (500) feet from any lot line.

Sec. XXXXXX I-A Intensive Agricultural Distriecd
Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to accommodate all sizes of agricultural operations,
whether by right or as a conditional use, as well as ag-related processing uses. Lands within this district do not have
access to Village services. The state legislature adopted s. 93.90, Wis. Stats., (Livestock Facility Siting Law) to
govern livestock facilities, which is implemented by administrative rule under ch. ATCP 51, Wis. Admin.

23

Commented [SB15]: Will need to send to DATCP for
review and approval per livestock siting law.




Code. Terms used in this section that are not defined in Article O Definitions shall be fined using those
definitions under s. 93.90 and ch ATCP 51. The Livestock Facility Siting Law allows local jurisdictions to

review livestock facilities with 500 animal units or more as a conditional use.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures
1 Agriculture or general farming, including dairying livestock and poultry raising, nurseries

greenhouses and other similar enterprises or uses, except fur farms and farms operated for the disposal or
reduction of garbage, sewage and rubbish.
2) New or existing livestock operations which will house fewer than 500 animal units.

(3) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

4) Acgricultural buildings

(%) Accessory agricultural structures

\(b) Conditional Uses and Structures‘ 7777777777777777777777777777777777777777
1) A new or existing livestock operation, which houses or expands to house 500 or more anima
units. (see section 13-1-53)
2) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1

collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section XXXX.

1

c) Standards for livestock facilities with 500 animal units or more. A livestock facility with 500 animal

units or more shall comply with the following requirements.

(1) Minimum lot area. The facility shall only occur on a parcel of land that is 40 acres or larger.
Once this use is established, the parcel shall not be made smaller through a property boundary
relocation or other means, except as may be approved by the Village of Turtle Lake Plan
Commission and Village Board.

(2) General Setbacks

a. Property lines. Except as provided for waste storage structures, livestock structure must

be located a minimum of 100 feet from the property line if the livestock facility will have
fewer than 1,000 animal units and 200 feet from the property line if the livestock facility
will have 1,000 or more animal units. The setback requirement does not prevent the use

or expansion of a livestock structure that was located within the setback area prior to the

effective date of the setback requirement, except that a structure may not be expanded
closer to the property line.

b. Public road right-of-way. Except as provided for waste storage structures, livestock

structures must be located a minimum of 100 feet from the public road right-of-way if the
livestock facility will have fewer than 1,000 animal units, and 150 feet from a public road

right-of way if the livestock facility will have 1,000 or more animal units. The setback

requirement does not prevent the use or expansion of a livestock structure that was located

within the setback area prior to the effective date of the setback requirement, except that

a

structure may not be expanded closer to the public road right-of-way.

c.  Waste Storage Structure. A new waste storage structure may not be located within 350
feet of a property line, or within 350 feet from a property boundary. If any portion of an

existing structure is closer than 350 feet from a property boundary line, such structure
may be expanded, provided the expansion is not located any closer to the property

boundary line than the existing structure. A single new livestock waste storage structure

may be constructed closer than 350 feet if such structure (1) is located on the same tax
parcel as a livestock waste storage structure in existence before May 1, 2006, (2) is lot

24

Commented [SB16]: Any other conditional uses that
would be appropriate here? Meat processing? Farm
residence, etc.? If allow, include provision that single-family
shall not be constructed within 1,000 feet of a livestock
structure or building, including animal waste storage areas.




larger than the existing structure, (3) is no further than 50 feet from the existing structure
and (4) is no closer to the property boundary line than the existing structure. This setback
requirement does not apply to existing waste storage structures, except that an existing
structure within 30 feet of a property line or road may not expand toward the property line
or road.

d. All wells located within a livestock facility shall comply with chs. NR 811 and 812, Wis.
Admin. Code. New or substantially altered livestock structures shall be separated from
existing wells by the distances required in chs. NR 811 and 812, regardless of whether the
livestock facility operator owns the land on which the wells are located. A livestock
structure in existence on May 1, 2006 may be altered as long as the alteration does not
reduce the distance between the livestock structure and an existing well.

Sec. 13-1-27 B-G1 General CommereialBusiness District.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to permit areas having general business or office uses,
mostly at small or medium scale compatible with the Village setting and the neighborhood context. It may, but does
not necessarily include, home occupations. Development within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and
water services. The district is intended for mapping in commercial areas on secondary streets, not within the
downtown or highway commercial areas.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.

(1) —Personal or Professional Service: Including but not limited to barber shops; beauty salons; banks:
insurance and real estate offices; savings and loan/finance companies;

(2) Indoor Sales and Services: Including but no limited to hardware and feed stores; drug stores; furniture
stores; grocery stores; bakeries; fruit stores; dry good stores; luggage shops; stationery stores; pet
shops: clothing stores: gift stores; variety stores; jewelry stores: shoe stores; packaged beverage stores:
appliance sales and repair; sporting goods; radio and television sales and service; department stores:;
coin operated laundry; tobacco and magazine stores; music shops;

B

(2) Funeral parlors;

(8) Bakeries;
(9) Bars and cocktail lounges;

(11) Restaurants and cafes;

— e
(13)  Hotels, motels;

(14)  Rooming houses;

e e

(22) Public passenger transportation terminals;

25



—H—Varietystores:
—5)—Garages;

(26) Theaters;

(27) Professional offices;

(28) Organization headquarters;

(29) Newspaper' and magazine publishers;

HH—Jeweehystores:

(+38) Catalogue order stores;
— 19 —Savings-and-leanand finanee-companies;

(20)— Department stores:
—2hH—Cein-eperatedlaundries
—22—Meodiealand-dental-othecs=

(243) Bowling alleys;

(244) Churches;

(245) Tobacco and magazine stores;
—26)—Beauty-salons;

(248) Radio (w/o antenna);
—B30)—Open-spaces

(352) Public Pparks_and open spaces.
(53) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

(be) Conditional Uses.
(1) Agricultural Uses;
(1) Wholesale outlets;
(2) Government and community buildingsal-serviee-funetions;

—(3)—Garages:
— {4y Office;

(5) Second hand stores;

(6) Professional laundry and dry cleaning establishments;
(7) Gas stations;

(8) Implement sales;

(9) Contractor's offices;

(10) Automobile sales and service;
N __ -~ ~ | Commented [SB17]: Motels are already permitted use
(12) Commercial storage and other uses similar or customarily incident to the above uses. under (13)

(1) Residential above sidewalk level.

(2) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section
XXXX.

(cd) Lot Requirements.
26



(1) Lot Size. ’NO minimum.L 777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 - { Commented [SB18]: Should establish a minimum.

2) Buildinﬁ\.I Height: Four (4) stories or forty-five (45) feet maximum.

(3) Yards.No minimum.t 7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 _Pe {Commented [SB19]: Should establish a minimum.

Sec. 13-1-28 B-H-2 Highway CemmereialBusiness District.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to accommodate a wide range of commercial uses,
primarily serving travelers, along major highway corridors or as otherwise directed by the Comprehensive Plan. Uses
may include large- and small-scale office, retail, commercial service, restaurant, and lodging uses. Development
within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) Gas stations;
(2) Automobile repair;
(3) Automobile sales and service;
(4) Implement sale and service;
(5) Drive-in establishments serving food and beverages for consumption on premises;
(6) Motels, hotels;
(7) Drive-in theaters;
(8) Gift stores;
(9) Mobile home sales;
(10) Restaurants;

S - - {Commented [SB20]: Moved to CUP.
(12) Public Pparks and open spaces;

(14) FreightFrueking terminals_and trans-shipment depots;

(16) Amusement parks and parking.
(17)  Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modifications, per Section XXXXX.
(b) —b)—Conditional Uses and Structures.
(1) Casino and gaming establishments;
(2) Other uses similar to our customarily incidental to any of the above uses and extensive
commercial uses requiring large land areas.
(3) Agricultural Uses.
(4) Nightclubs.
(5) Sexually oriented businesses (see Section XXXX for standards)
(6) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1

collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section
XXXX.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Building. Height: Thirty-five (35) feet maximum.
(2) Lot Size.
a. Width: Eighty (80) feet minimum.
b. Area: One-half (*2) acre_ minimum.
(3) Minimum Yards.
a. StreetErent: Eighty (80) feet (may be parking).
b. Rear: Twenty (20) feet.
c. Side: Twenty (20) feet.

Sec. XXXXXX D-MU Downtown Mixed-Use District

27



Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to permit mid-scale downtown commercial,
governmental, and institutional development, along with outdoor public spaces, at an intensity which provides

significant incentives for infill development, redevelopment, and the commercial economic viability of existing
downtown development. The district is also intended to retain the existing “Main Street” characteristics of the core
blocks in the Village's historic downtown. Residential uses are strongly preferred to occur as vertical mixed-use, with
the residential uses locating above the first floor.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) Mixed Use Building
(2) Public parks and open spaces
(3) Public utility infrastructure and offices
(4) Professional office
(5) Personal or Professional Service (with uses allowed in this classification in the B-G district)
(6) Indoor Sales or Services (with uses allowed in this classification in the B-G district)
(7) Residential dwelling unit(s) above sidewalk level.

(b) Conditional Uses and Structures.
(1) First floor residential dwelling unit.
a. First floor shall maintain visual form and function so that it could revert or be converted to a
commercial use in the future. Form elements to consider include first floor entry above sidewalk
grade, interior height, depth of space, recessed entries, and building access.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Building Height: Maximum of forty-five (45) feet or four (4) stories, whichever is the least.

(2) Lot Size.
a.  Width: No minimum.
b. Area: No minimum.
(3) Minimum Yards.
a. Street: Twenty (15) feet minimum.
b. Rear: Twenty (15) feet minimum.
c. Side: Six (6) feet minimum, except in the case of a common or shared wall.

Sec. 13-1-29 IH-GeneralHndustrialB-P Business Park District.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district accommodates areas that are predominately industrial or office in
character with support institutions and service uses. The district includes a range of research & development users,
manufacturing, assembling, fabrication and processing, storage, warehousing, and trucking uses. Development

within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
(1) AutemetivebodyrepairsAutomobile repairs;
(2) Automotive upholstery;
(3) Cleaning;
(4) Pressing and dyeing establishments;
(5) Commercial bakeries;
(6) Commercial greenhouses;
(7) Distributors;
(8) Farm machinery;
(9) Feed mills;
(10) Dairy plants;
(11) Equipment repairs and storage;
(12) Railroad depots;
28



(13) Cooperatives;
(14) Laboratories;
(15) Machine shops;

(18)  Printing and publishing;
: e

(20) Storage and sale of lumber;

(21) Machinery and equipment sales;

(22) Tradeand-eContractor's offices;

(23) Warehousing and wholesaling;
——26)—Packing:

(27) Packaging and assembly of products from furs, glass, leather, metals, paper, plaster, plastics,
textiles and wood;

(28) Manufacture, fabrication, processing, packaging and packing of confections cosmetics, electrical
appliances; electronic devices; food except cabbage, fish and fish products, meat products and pea vining;
instruments, jewelry, pharmaceuticals, tobacco and toiletries;

(29) Freight yards;

(30) Freight terminals and transhipment depots;

(31) Inside storage;

(32) Breweries;

(33) Agricultural usese;

(34) Greenways-andPublic parks and open spaces;

arking < S (36) Research and Development facilities

(37) _Professional office, accessory to a permitted or conditional use

(38)  Public utility infrastructure and office
(39) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure without
substantial modification, per Section XXXXX.

(b) Conditional Uses and Structures.

(1) Dumps and Disposal Areas. Incinerators and sewage disposal plants, earth and sanitary landfill
operations.

(2) Manufacture. Processing of: abrasives, acetylene, acid, alkalies, ammonia, asbestos, asphalt,
batteries, bedding, bleach, bone, cabbage, candle, carpeting, celluloid, cement, cereals, charcoal, chemicals,
chlorine, coal tar, coffee, coke, cordage, creosote, dextrine, disinfectant, dye, excelsior, felt, fish, fuel, furs,
gelatin, glucose, gypsum, hair products, ink, insecticide, lime products, linoleum, matches, meat, oil cloth,
paint, paper, peas, perfume, pickle, plaster of paris, plastics, poison, potash, pulp, pyroxylin, radium, rope,
rubber, sausage, seeds, starch, stove polish, textiles, and varnish. Manufacturing, processing and storage of
building materials, explosives, dry ice, fat, fertilizer, flammables, gasoline, glue, grains, grease, lard,
radioactive materials, shellac, soap, turpentine, vinegar and yeast. Bag cleaning, bleacheries, canneries, cold
storage warehouses; electric and steam generating plants; electroplating; enameling forges; foundries;
garbage incinerators; lacquering; lithographing; bulk gas storage and sales; offal, rubbish or animal
reduction; oil, coal and bone distillation; refineries; road test facilities; slaughterhouses; smelting; stockyards;
tanneries; and weaving.

(3) Outside Storage and Manufacturing Areas. Wrecking, junk demolition and scrap yards shall be
surrounded by a solid fence or evergreen planting screen completely preventing a view from any other
property or public right-of-way and shall be at least six hundred (600) feet from residential or commercial
structures.

29



(5) Retail sales and services that exclusively or predominantly serve businesses and employees of the
business park area and are a minor part (less than 25 percent) of the total parcel usages by area, volume, or
similar measures.
(6) Multi-family residential structure with up to eight (8) dwelling units.
(1) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1 collocation of a
new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per Section XXXX.
(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.
a. Width: Eighty (80) feet.
b. Area: Ten thousand (10,000) square feet.
(2) Building: Height: No_maximumse-
(3) Yards.
. Street: Minimum ten (10) feet.
b. Rear: Minimum thirty (30) feet.
c. Side: Minimum ten (10) feet.

Sec. 13-1-30 €1P-C Park and Conservancy District.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to accommodate parks, public recreational areas, public
open spaces, and private lands and buildings available for either public recreation and/or conservation. This district is
also used to protect valued natural resources, including those identified as Environmental Sensitive Areas (ESAs),
wildlife habitat, or surface waters.

(a) Permitted Uses and Structures.
[@)) The harvesting of wild crops such as marsh hay, ferns, moss, wild rice, berries, tree fruits, tree seeds,
sustained yield forestry,

(2) Public utility infrastructure and officesutilitiessuch-as;-butnetrestricted-to;telephonetelegraphand-

3) fishing, scenic, historic, scientific, wildlife preserve;
[€))] non-resident buildings used solely in conjunction with the raising of water fowl or fish;
(@) hiking trails and bridle paths;aeeessory-uses;
(6)  public and private parks and picnic areas, greenways and open spaces:s-
(@A) recreation related structures not requiring basements;;regulatory-signs-not-oversix{6)-square-feet an
(8) general farming provided no drainage, filling or dredging takes place and no farm buildings are
constructed.
(b) Conditional Uses.
(1) Filling, drainage, dredging,
2) farm structures,
[€))] single-family residences,
[€D)] dams, power plants, flowages, ponds, relocation of water courses, removal of top soil or peat;
(@) piers, docks, boathouses, campgrounds mebﬂ%hem%pafk@—ﬁﬁaﬂe%pa%ks—hem%eeeupa&mﬂsﬂd
(6) cranberry bogs. A § 5
s

(c) Lot Requirements.
All lot requirements are as determined by the Village Board through the subdivision process.

30



Sec. 13-1-31 PD Planned Development District

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: The PD Planned Development District, pursuant to Wis. Stats. §62.23(7)(b),
provides a regulatory framework to encourage improved environmental design by allowing flexibility in the
development of land while ensuring compliance with the basic intent of the zoning ordinance and with the Village
comprehensive plan. The planned development district has no set standards and specifications. Developers can
propose uses or combination of uses and configurations of intensity and density of development. Standards are
negotiated by the developer and the Village; such negotiated standards have the same legal force and effect as do
standard zoning requirements.

The objective of the planned development district is not simply to allow exceptions to otherwise applicable
regulations. It is instead to encourage a higher level of design and amenity than is possible to achieve under other
zoning districts. An example application of use of the PDD is for a conservation design subdivision, where due to the
topographic and natural features, the standards are relaxed, as negotiated by the Village and the developer.

(a) General requirements:

(1) Use regulations. The uses allowable in this district are the uses approved as part of the
general or detailed plan for particular sites that are placed in the Planned Development District.

2 Density and dimensional requirements. This Section sets no prescribed density or dimensional
regulations in the Planned Development District.

3) Off-street parking and loading. There shall be no prescribed requirements for off-street
parking and loading in the Planned Development District. However, in the review and approval of any
general or detailed plan in a Planned Development District, due consideration shall be given to the
requirements established in Article F of this Chapter for uses similar to those proposed in such plan.

4) Standards. The following standards shall apply in the review of all general or detailed plans
proposed for the Planned Development District:

a. The uses proposed in the planned development shall be in general conformance with
the Village Comprehensive Plan.
b. The planned development shall incorporate environmental design considerations,

including the preservation of topography, trees and ground cover, streams and natural bodies of
waters, and other significant natural features and control of erosion and runoff in accord with the
Village’s erosion control standards as identified in Title 14 Subdivision Regulations.

c. The planned development shall provide for convenient and harmonious groups of
buildings, structures and uses; and buildings shall be spaced and sited to ensure adequate safety, light,
ventilation, and privacy.

d. In a planned development for residential use, adequate open space and recreational
areas shall be provided in appropriate locations, and all public and common open spaces shall be
designed and located to provide safe and convenient access to residents.

e. The width of street rights-of-way, width of paving, width and location of street or

other paving, outdoor lighting, location of sewer and water lines, provision for stormwater drainage or

other similar environmental engineering considerations shall be based on a determination of the
appropriate standards necessary to implement the specific function in the specific situation; provided,

however, that is no case shall standards be less than those necessary to ensure the public safety and
welfare as determined by the Village.

f. The application for a Planned Development District shall provide evidence satisfactory
to the Village Board of its economic feasibility of available adequate financing and that it would not
adversely affect the economic prosperity of the Village of the values of surrounding properties.

g. The application for a Planned Development District shall submit a reasonable schedule
for the implementation of the development to the satisfaction of the Village Board, including suitable
provisions for assurance that each phase could be brought to completion in a manner that would not
result in an adverse effect upon the community as a result of termination at that point.

(5) Minimum Area. A Planned Development District shall not be less than three (3) acres of

31



contiguous land under the same ownership. This requirement shall not be interpreted to prohibit the post-
development sale or all or part of an approved PD subject to the provision of this Section and all applicable
statutes and Subdivision regulations.

(6) Subdivision review. The applicable Subdivision review under Title 14 Subdivision
Regulations shall be carried out as an integral part of the review of a Planned Development District. The
plan required must be submitted in a form that substantially satisfied requirements of the Subdivision
regulations for the Preliminary and Final Plat approvals. Subdivision application may be submitted for the
whole, a part, or parts of the overall planned development as indicated by phases in the detailed plan for

staged development.

(a) Procedure for establishment of a Planned Development District. The provisions set forth in Article M
shall apply for the establishment of any Planned Development District, provided the amendatory
ordinance shall be considered only in conjunction with a general or detailed plan.

(b) Pre-application procedures. Applicants are encouraged to seek preapplication, conceptual review of
proposed plans by the Plan Commission. The Plan Commission is under no obligation to give a
response to such submittals at the same meeting as they are presented. The Plan Commission is
entitled to seek outside assistance and sources of critique. No responses by the Plan Commission or by
individual Plan Commissioners shall bind the Plan Commission or the Village unless the response is
on behalf of the Plan Commission, is in writing and is expressed as a binding response.

(c) Approval of general or detailed plan and adoption of zoning ordinance amendment. In the event that
the Village Board approves a general (or detailed) plan and adopted a zoning amendment creating a
Planned Development District in connection with such general (or detailed) plan, the requirements of
the plan shall constitute the zoning regulations of the district and the zoning district maps shall be
amended to show all lands included in such general (or detailed) plan as within the Planned
Development District. In the approval of any general (or detailed) plan, the Village Board may
stipulate any conditions or restrictions in the establishment, maintenance or operation of any uses
proposed in such plan, and may also require any guarantees, including the filing of a contract together
with a surety, satisfactory in form to the Village Attorney and satisfactory to the Village Engineer,
with the Village to ensure that improvements will be installed and completed as proposed in the plan.

(d) Recording of approval general or detailed plans and zoning ordinance amendments. Whenever the
Village Board designates land as being within a Planned Development District, the Village Clerk shall
record in the Office of the Register of Deeds of the County in which the lands belong, a facsimile copy
of the approved general (or detailed) plan, together with a certified copy of the related zoning
ordinance amendment and any other action taken thereon by the Village Board. The cost of preparing
a facsimile copy of the general (or detailed) plan in recordable form and the recording fee shall be paid
by the owners of the lands included in the general (or detailed) plan.

(e) Changes or modifications to general or detailed plans and zoning ordinance amendments. Any
approved general or detailed plan, together with the related zoning ordinance amendment, may be
amended in whole or in part pursuant to the same procedure and subject to the same limitations by
which general or detailed plans were approved and the zoning ordinance amended. However, minor
modifications may be made by any general or detailed plan upon approval of the Village Plan
Commission provided that such modifications shall be in general conformity with the approved
general or detailed plan and shall not substantially change the concept of such approved plan. All
approved minor modifications shall become a part of the approved general or detailed plan and shall
be recorded as provided in Subsection (e) of this Section. The Plan Commission shall decide whether
a proposed amendment is minor or major, with appeals made to the Village Board.

(f) Construction of building and establishment of uses. No zoning or building permit shall be issued for
any lot within the Planned Development District until the detailed plan and the related zoning
ordinance amendment have been recorded as required above. Within one year of the date of recording
of any detailed plan and the zoning ordinance, construction thereon must begin; and construction must
be substantially completed throughout the project within three years of such date of recording, unless
extensions are granted by the Village Board. If initial construction has not begun within one year of

32




the date of recording or within the prescribed time period granted as an extension by the Village
Board, the approval of the detailed plan and the related zoning ordinance amendment shall become
null and void, and the zoning shall revert to the classification that applied prior to the approval of the
PDD zoning. No occupancy of dwelling units shall occur until all public works that have been
scheduled to be completed before occupancy are completed to the satisfaction of the Village.

(g) Procedure for establishment of the Planned Development District — General plan for staged

development.
(1) Submittal of general plan. The general plan shall contain any information and representations

deemed necessary by the Plan Commission and shall consist of a statement entitled “Planned
Development District — General Plan, Statement of Owner’s Intent and Description of Development,”
which shall include, without limitation, the following:
a. A legal description describing all of the tract of land included in the proposed
development.
b. A statement indicating the nature of the applicant’s interest in the land included in the
proposed development.
c. A statement describing the proposed development, including the character, method and
operation of the development and a development schedule or timetable for construction.
d. A statement as to the following data or graphic information referenced to a map or
plan of the proposed development:

1. The location and size of the site including dimensioned exterior boundaries
topography and other salient features, and existing buildings and structures, and also adjacent
properties and streets, including all public utilities and public easements.

2. The use and approximate location and bulk of buildings and structures
including number of stories and dimensions of buildings.

3. The approximate location of vehicular and pedestrian facilities, such as streets,
sidewalks and off-street parking areas, including approximate number of parking spaces.

4. The approximate location of areas for public or common open spaces and for
other public or semipublic uses.

5. A tabulation of land areas for the different types of uses in relation to the total

area.
6. A tabulation of the gross floor areas of buildings by types of uses.
7. A tabulation of the number of types of dwelling units, if applicable.
2) Review of general plan. The Plan Commission shall review the general plan and determine
whether it complies with the standards set forth in Subsection (h)(1) of this Section.

Following review of the general plan, the Plan Commission shall forward the petition to the

Village Board, together with a recommendation that the general plan be either approved as

submitted, or approved with modifications or disapproved.

3) Approval of general plan.

a. In the event that the Village Board approves the general plan and adopts the related
zoning ordinance amendment, the zoning district maps shall be amended to include all of
the lands within the general plan as within the Planned Development District (general
plan approved). However, no building construction shall be permitted in any portion of
the approved general plan until a detailed plan prepared in accordance with the
requirements hereunder has been approved by the Village as provided below.

b. In the event the Village Board fails to approve the general plan and ordinance, the Village
Board shall communication its objections back to the Plan Commission for
reconsideration and further discussions.

(i) Procedure for establishment of the Planned Development District — Detailed plan for staged
development.
1) Submittal of plan. Within one year after the recording of the general plan and the copy of the

related zoning ordinance amendment, a detailed plan for at least one stage of the general plan
shall be filed with the Village Clerk, unless an extension is granted by the Village Board. The
33




detailed plan shall contain any information and representation deemed necessary by the Plan

Commission and shall consist of a statement entitled, “Planned Development District -

Detailed Plan, Statement of Owner’s Intent and Description of Development,” which shall

include without limitations, the following:

a. A legal description describing all of the tract of land included in the proposed
development, referenced to a locational map indicated the relationship of the tract to the

total general plan.
b. A statement indicating the nature of the applicant’s interest in the land included in the

proposed development.

c. A statement describing the proposed development, including the character, method and
operation of the development, and a development schedule or timetable for construction.
Where the formation of organizations such as a homeowners’ association is proposed
such a statement shall include any agreements, bylaws or covenants which govern the
organizational structure, use, maintenance and protection of the development and any of
its common services, common open spaces or other common facilities.

d. A statement as to the following date or graphic information referenced to a map of the
proposed development:

1. The location and size of the site, including dimensioned exterior boundaries,
topography and other salient features, and existing buildings and structures, and
also adjacent properties and streets.

2. The use and location of all buildings or structures, including the architectural
character and design of each building, the number of stories and dimensions of
each building, and the dimensioned yards between buildings or structure and lot
lines.

3. The location of vehicular and pedestrian facilities, including dimensioned streets,
walkways, access driveways, off-street parking spaces and loading berths, and

refuse receptacle areas.
4.  The location and size of areas for public or common open spaces and for other

public and semi-public uses.
5. A grading plan, including any storm sewer system, a landscaping plan, and an

erosion control plan.

6. A sanitary sewer and water distribution system plan.
7. A tabulation of land areas for the different uses in relation to the total tract area.

8. A tabulation of the number of buildings and the use and the total gross floor area
for each building.
9. A tabulation indicating the number and types of dwelling units, if any, in each
2) Review of the detailed plan.

a. The Plan Commission shall review the detailed plan as a conditional use review and shall
determine whether the plan complies with the standards set forth in Subsection (h)(1) of
this Section and is in general conformance with the approved general plan. Following
Plan Commission approval of a detailed plan, the City Clerk shall record in the Office of
the Office of the Register of Deeds of the County in which the lands belong a facsimile
copy of the approved detailed plan and a certified copy of the Plan Commission action
approving the same. The costs for copies and recordings shall be paid by the owners of
the land within the plan areas.

b. The action of the Plan Commission on the proposed detailed plan shall be appealable to

the Village Board. The Village Board shall consult with the Plan Commission before
making its appeal decision, but in no case shall a detailed plan be approved that is out of

conformity with the corresponding approved general plan.
3) Approval of detailed plan. Once the detailed plan is approved, the zoning district maps shall
be amended to include all of the lands within the detailed plan as Planned Development District —

34



detailed plan approved.
[@)) Planned Development District — Single-stage procedure. Upon request by applicant and subject to

Village Board concurrence, the general and detailed stages of plan review and approval can be combined.

Under this option, the plan is submitted in detailed form and is processed as is a general plan.

Sec. 13-1-32 through Sec. 13-1-39 Reserved for Future Use.

35



ARTICLE D

Accessory Uses and Structures
SEC. 13-1-120 ACCESSORY USES OR STRUCTURES.

(a) Principal Use to be Present. An accessory use or structure in any zoning district shall not be
established prior to the principal use or structure being present or under construction. Any accessory use or
structure shall conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as
specifically otherwise provided.

(b) Placement Restrictions -- Residential District. An accessory use or structure in a residential district
may be established subject to the following regulations:

1) Accessory Building Number Limits. In any residential district, in addition to the principal building, a

detached garage or attached garage and one (1) additional accessory building may be placed on a lot.

(2) Attached Accessory Buildings. All accessory buildings which are attached to the principal building
shall comply with the yard requirements of the principal building.

(3) Detached Accessory Buildings. Detached accessory buildings are permitted in the rear yard only. No
detached accessory building shall occupy more than twenty percent (20%) of the required rear yard or be
located within three (3) feet of any other accessory building, ten (10) feet of the principal structure, or five
(5) feet of any alley. Larger accessory use buildings may be permitted following issuance of a conditional use
permit. Accessory buildings not attached to the principal building shall conform to the setback requirements
of the district in which located. In no event can the accessory uses or structures be forward of the front line of
the principal structure. Accessory structures shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.

(¢) Use Restrictions -- Residential District. Accessory uses or structures in residential districts shall not
involve the conduct of any business, trade or industry except for home occupations as further described in

(d) Placement Restrictions -- Nonresidential Districts. An accessory use or structure in a business or
manufacturing district may be established in the rear yard or side yard. Accessory buildings not attached to
the principal building shall conform to the setback requirements of the district in which located.

(e) Reversed Comer Lots. When an accessory structure is located on the rear of a reversed corner lot, it
shall not be located beyond the front yard required on the adjacent interior lot to the rear, nor nearer than
three (3) feet to the side line of the adjacent structure.

(f) Landscaping and Decorative Uses. Accessory structures and vegetation used for landscaping and
decorating may be placed in any required yard area. Permitted structures and vegetation include flag poles,
ornamental light standards, lawn furniture, sun dials, bird baths, trees, shrubs and flowers and gardens.

(g) Temporary Accessory Uses. Temporary accessory uses such as real estate sale field offices or shelters
for materials and equipment being used in the construction of the permanent structure may be permitted by

the Zoning Administrator.
(h) Garages in Embankments in Front Yards. Where the mean natural grade of a front yard is more than

eight (8) feet above the curb level, a private garage may be erected within the front yard, provided as follows:
(1) That such private garage shall be located not less than five (5) feet from the front lot line;
(2) That the floor level of such private garage shall be not more than one (1) foot above the curb level;
and
(3) That at least one-half (!%) the height of such private garage shall be below the mean grade of the
front yard.
(i) Outdoor lighting. Outdoor lighting installations shall not be permitted closer than three (3) feet to an

abutting property line and, where not specifically otherwise regulated, shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in
height and shall be adequately shielded or hooded so that no excessive glare or illumination is cast upon the

adjoining properties.
(j) _Lawn Accessories. Walks, drives, paved terraces and purely decorative garden accessories such as

36



pools, fountains, statuary, flag poles, etc.. shall be permitted in setback areas but not closer than three (3) feet
to an abutting property line other than a street line.

(k) Retaining Walls. Retaining walls may be permitted anywhere on the lot, provided, however, that no
individual wall shall exceed six (6) feet in height, and a terrace of at least three (3) feet in width shall be
provided between any series of such walls and provided further that along a street frontage no such wall shall
be closer than three (3) feet to the property line.

1)) Patios/decks. Patios/decks at ground level or at a floor level shall be no more than four feet above
ground at any point under the deck (decks at greater height are considered part of the structure and may not
intrude into setback areas). There shall be a ten-foot minimum separation measure in from any side (or the
side yard setback of the subject property’s zoning district, whichever is lesser) or rear lot line to the edge or
side of the structure unless the applicant has obtained a signed and notarized affidavit of consent to run with

the land from the owner(s) of record of the neighboring properties identifying a closer distance, and has

recorded this against both parcels in the register of deeds office and with the Village Zoning Administrator.

SEC. 13-1-121 OUTSIDE STORAGE OF FIREWOOD.

(a) No person shall store firewood in the front yard on residentially zoned property, except that firewood
may be temporarily stored in the front yard for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of its delivery.

(b) Firewood should be neatly stacked and may not be stacked closer than three (3) feet to any lot line and
not higher than six (6) feet from grade, except adjacent to a fence where firewood can be stacked against the
fence as high as the fence. Fences as used in this Section shall not include hedges and other vegetation.

(¢) _All brush, debris and refuse from processing of firewood shall be promptly and properly disposed of
and shall not be allowed to remain on the premises.

(d) Woodpiles that contain diseased wood that is capable of transmitting disease to healthy trees and
woodpiles that harbor or are infested or inhabited by rats or other vermin are public nuisances and may be
abated pursuant to the provisions of this Code of Ordinances.

(e) Not more than twenty percent (20%) of the side and rear yard may be used for storage of firewood at

any one (1) time.

SEC. 13-1-123 SWIMMING POOLS.

(a) Definition. A private or residential swimming pool is an outdoor structure containing a body of water
in a receptacle or other container having a depth for water at any point greater than one and one-half (1-1/2
feet located above or below the surface of ground elevation, used or intended to be used solely by the owner.
operator or lessee thereof and his family, and by friends invited to use it, and includes all structural facilities
appliances and appurtenances, equipment and other items used and intended to be used for the operation and

maintenance of a private or residential swimming pool.
(b) Exempt Pools. Storable children's swimming or wading pools, with a maximum dimension of fifteen

(15) feet and a maximum wall height of fifteen (15) inches and which are so constructed that it may be
readily disassembled for storage and reassembled to its original integrity are exempt from the provisions of
this Section.

(c) Permit Required. Before work is commenced on the construction or erection of private or residential
swimming pools or on any alterations, additions, remodeling or other improvements, an application for a
swimming pool building permit to construct, erect, alter, remodel or add must be submitted in writing to the
Zoning Administrator. Plans and specifications and pertinent explanatory data should be submitted to the

Zoning Administrator at the time of application. No work or any part of the work shall be commenced until a
written permit for such work is obtained by the applicant. A fee of Ten Dollars ($10.00) shall accompany

such application.

(d) Construction Requirements. In addition to such other requirements as may be reasonably imposed by
the Zoning Administrator, the Zoning Administrator shall not issue a permit for construction as provided for
in Subsection (b), unless the following construction requirements are observed:

(1) All materials and methods of construction in the construction, alteration, addition, remodeling or
other improvements and pool installation shall be in accord with all state regulations and code and with any
and all Ordinances of the Village now in effect or hereafter enacted.

37



(2) All plumbing work shall be in accordance with all applicable Ordinances of the Village and all state
codes. Every private or residential swimming pool shall be provided with a suitable draining method and, in
no case, shall waters from any pool be drained into the sanitary sewer system, onto lands of other property
owners adjacent to that on which the pool is located on in the general vicinity.

(3) All electrical installations, including lighting and heating but not limited thereto, which are provided

for, installed and used in conjunction with a private swimming pool shall be in conformance with the state
laws and Village Ordinances regulating electrical installations.

(e) Setbacks and Other Requirements.

1) Private swimming pools shall be erected or constructed on rear or side lots only and only on a lot
occupied by a principal building. No swimming pool shall be erected or constructed on an otherwise vacant
lot. A lot shall not be considered vacant if the owner owns the contiguous lot and said lot is occupied by a
principal building.

(2) No swimming pool shall be located, constructed or maintained closer to any side or rear lot line than

is permitted in the Zoning Code for an accessory building, and in no case shall the water line of any pool be
less than six (6) feet from any lot line.
(f) Fence.

(1) Pools within the scope of this Section which are not enclosed with a permanent building shall be
completely enclosed by a fence of sufficient strength to prevent access to the pool. Such fence or wall shall
not be less than six (6) feet in height and so constructed as not to have voids, holes or openings larger than
four (4) inches in one (1) dimension. Gates or doors shall be kept locked while the pool is not in actual use.

(2) The pool enclosure may be omitted where portable pools are installed above ground and have
unobstructed walls a minimum of thirty-six (36) inches high on the top.

(g) Compliance. All swimming pools existing at the time of passage of this Code of Ordinances not
satisfactorily fenced shall comply with the fencing requirements of this Section or when water is placed in
the pool.

SEC. 13-1-124 HOME OCCUPATIONS

(a) Intent. The Intent of this Section is to provide a means to accommodate a small family business
within a residence without the necessity of a rezoning into a Commercial District or obtaining a Conditional
Use Permit.

(b) Accessory use. Home occupations are determined to be an allowed accessory use in all Residential
Districts. Permits are not required prior to engaging in such activities, but the following standards apply:

(1) The activity must be clearly secondary and incidental to the primary residential use.

(2) The activity must not significantly alter the residential character of the dwelling unit, dwelling
structure or the parcel.

(3) The home occupation shall not occupy more than 25 percent of the floor area of the dwelling.

(4) The home occupation shall be conducted only within the enclosed areas of the dwelling unit or
attached or detached garage.

(5) The activity must not unreasonably interfere with the residential occupancy of other parcels in
the neighborhood.

(6) The activity must not create environmental, safety or health hazards such as noise, light
odors, vibrations, electrical emissions, or other fire or safety hazards that are noticeably out of character with
those produced by normal residential occupancy.

(1) The use shall not involve the use of commercial vehicles for more than occasional delivery of
materials to or from the premises, and traffic generated by the home occupation may not exceed that which is
customary to residential occupancies in the neighborhood.

(8) No storage or display of materials, goods, supplies, or equipment related to the operation of
the home occupation shall be visible outside any structures located on the premises.

9) Signage for the home occupation is governed by Section XXXXXXX.

(10)  The parcel and structure must contain adequate area to accommodate the home occupation
without interfering with residential occupancy of other parcels in the neighborhood.

(11)  Under no circumstances shall a kennel business of a vehicle repair or body work business

38



qualify as a home occupation.

(12)  Garage sales as a type of home occupation are allowable in all Residential Districts, provided
that not more than two are held on a single premises per year and that each such sale shall not exceed four
days in duration.

(13) Day care is allowable as a home occupation on a residential premises. Conditional use
approval may be required, however, if Wis. Stats. §66.1017, or as it may be hereafter amended. applies.

SEC. 13-1-125 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-129 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

39



Moved section to Administrative

Commented [SB21]

Article










-~ | Commented [SB22]: Moved to Conditional Uses
Applicable to All Residential Districts Section up near the
Residential Districts




== {Commented [SB23]: Moved to definition section

44






ARTICLE E
Manufactured Home, Mobile Home & Tiny Home Standards

SEC. XX-X-XX PURPOSE

The purpose of this Article is to establish regulations for manufactured homes, mobile homes and tiny
homes. It is not the intent of this article to exceed Wisconsin State Uniform Dwelling Code (UDC)
regulations. Where in conflict with the WI State UDC or other state regulations, the more restrictive rule
shall apply.

Sec. 13-1-16 Manufactured Homes; Foundations in Residentially Zoned Areas.

All manufactured homes located in any residentially zoned district as outlined in Article C, Section 13-1-
20(a)(1-5) shall be supported by a permanent enclosed foundation constructed to standards as outlined in the
"Permanent Foundations Guide for Manufactured Housing" (HUD 0007487 Now HUD 4930.3G) with the
additions, insertions, deletions, and changes, if any, as prescribed below:

(a) Placement of manufactured homes without U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

(HUD) approval shall require special approval of the Village Board, but under no circumstances shall an
unapproved home serve as a year round dwelling.

(b) A manufactured home shall be placed on a permanent foundation meeting the requirements of HUD-
007487 Now HUD 4930.3G "Permanent Foundations Guide for Manufactured Housing," except as follows:

(1) A manufactured home may be placed on a permanent foundation meeting the requirements of Ch.
COMM 22 of the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code if the home is constructed for such placement.

2) A manufactured home placed in a manufactured home park shall be governed under Section 13-1-
130 through Section 13-1-139 of the Village of Turtle Lake Code of Ordinances.

(3) The Building Inspector may waive the requirement for a design professional.

SEC. 13-1-130 MOBILE HOMES

(b) Mobile Home Construction Standards. It is the intent of this Article to recognize mobile homes
constructed prior to October 1, 1974, as distinct and different from units designated as Mobile Homes within
the definitions of this Article and to prohibit units not meeting the requirements for Mobile Homes as defined
herein. Units constructed prior to 1974 are prohibited. Mobile Homes meeting the requirements of the One-
and Two-Family Building Dwelling Code shall not be permitted in a MH-1 Mobile Home Park District.
except as a conditional use. Permits may be obtained only after approval by the Village Board.

(c) Location in Mobile Home Neighborhoods. Except as provided in Subsection (d) below, no person
shall park, locate or place any mobile home outside of a properly zoned and licensed mobile home park in the
Village of Turtle Lake, except unoccupied mobile homes may be parked on the lawfully situated premises of
a licensed mobile home dealer for the purposes of sale display; the lawfully situated premises of a vehicle
service business for purposes of servicing or making necessary repairs; the premises leased or owned by the
owner of such mobile home for purposes of sales display for a period not exceeding one hundred twenty
(120) days, provided no business is carried on therein, or in an accessory private garage, building or rear yard
of the owner of such mobile home, provided no business is carried on therein.

(d) Location of Outside and Mobile Home Neighborhoods.

(1) Limitations. Until such time as an approved mobile home neighborhood is constructed, the total
number of mobile homes allowed in the Village of Turtle Lake grandfathered as nonconforming uses shall be
the number in existence at the date of adoption of this Code of Ordinances. Those lots within the Village

currently housing mobile homes are subject to the grandfather clause of Section 13-1-132 and to the other

requirements contained in this Subsection, provided that the mobile home is resident-owned. It is the intent
of this Article to require all mobile homes to be located within a properly approved and zoned mobile home

neighborhood, while noting that there are within the Village a limited number of pre-existing non-
conforming mobile homes located outside of such neighborhoods.

46



(2) Issuance of Permits.
a. Permits are to be issued only to the owner of the lot upon which the mobile home is to be placed
and shall apply to that lot and not to the mobile home itself.

b. No permit shall be issued for the movement of a mobile home from one lot in the Village to
another lot within the Village.

(3) Other Requirements.

a. No mobile home shall be allowed in the Village without the obtaining of a building permit from the
Village Administrator. Owners of lots upon which homes are currently located within the Village shall apply
for a permit within thirty (30) days of the passage of this Article.

b. All grandfathered mobile homes located outside of a mobile home neighborhood shall comply with
the following minimum requirements:

1. The home must be set on a concrete pier extending below the frost line and have a minimum of
six (6) tiedowns at regular intervals on the site and leveling devices placed upon six (6) inches of gravel.

2. The home must be skirted in a manner which will prevent rodent infestation.

3. The placement of the home on the site and the site itself must meet all requirements of the Zoning
Code for the district wherein it is located.

4. Adequate stairways must be provided for each doorway.

5. Village water and sewer system hookups must be provided for each mobile home.

6. Mobile homes must have a minimum of six hundred (600) square feet of floor space. Said space
is determined by the length, less the tongue, times the width.

c. All requirements of Sections 13-1-138 and 13-1-139 must be followed.

d. Only nondependent mobile homes shall be allowed.

e. All provisions relating to the collection of a monthly parking fee of Title 7. Chapter 5 of this Code
shall apply. The owner of the mobile home shall be responsible for the prompt payment of said fees.

(4) Replacement. Grandfathered non-conforming mobile home units allowed outside of a mobile home
park under Subsection (d) may be replaced with a more modern unit.

(e) All mobile homes shall be skirted. Areas enclosed by such skirting shall be maintained free of rodents

and fire hazards.

(c) No person shall construct, alter, add to or alter any structure, attachment or building in a mobile home
park or on a mobile home space without a permit from the Village Building Inspector. Construction
on an addition or alteration to the exterior of a mobile home shall be of the same type of construction
and materials as the mobile home affected. No permit shall be issued unless the value of the home
already existing is in excess of Six Thousand Dollars ($6.000.00). Said value shall be determined by
the tax assessor. This Subsection shall not apply to addition of awnings, antennae or skirting to
mobile homes. Accessory structures on mobile home spaces shall comply with all setback, side yard
and rear yard requirements for mobile home units.

(d)  Before a mobile home is located on a space within a mobile home neighborhood a stand consisting of
concrete piers extending below frost and having tiedown and levelling devices with six (6) inch
gravel. At least six (6) tiedowns shall be provided at regular intervals on each slab.

SEC. 13-1-131 TINY HOMES.

(a) Where Allowed.
(1) Tiny Houses are permitted as a Principal Use in the MHTH District, subject to the regulations
outlined in Sec. XXXX.
2) Tiny Houses are permitted as Accessory Dwelling Units in the Residential Districts of
Qﬁ, subject to the supplemental regulations in this section and the use regulations for
Accessory Dwelling Units, as described in Section XXXX.
(3) A Tiny House on Wheels is considered a “Camping Unit,” and is only permitted in a Camping
Ground.
(b) General Standards. All Tiny Houses shall comply with the following:
(1) Each Tiny House shall be located on its own individual lot, except when established as an

47



Accessory Dwelling Unit.
(2) Construction of the house shall comply with any applicable building code.
(3) Each house shall be installed on a permanent foundation, with wheels and chassis removed.
(4) Each house shall be connected to water and sewer utilities (public water, public sewer, private

well, and/or an approved septic system.

(c) Porches. A Tiny House permitted as a Principal Use shall have a porch that:

(1) is oriented towards common open space or a public or approved private street, and

(2) has a minimum width of 4 feet or 75% of the building facade width, whichever is greater, and
(3) has a minimum depth of 5 feet.

48



ARTICLE FE-
Nonconforming Uses, Structures and Lots
SEC. XX-X-XX PURPOSE
The purpose of this Article is to establish regulations for the following nonconforming situations created

legally prior to the effective date of this Section: nonconforming uses, nonconforming and substandard lots,
nonconforming structures, and other nonconforming sites.

SEC. 13-1-60 EXISTING NONCONFORMING USES-ANB-STRUCTURES.
—(a) The lawful and established nonconforming use of a structure or land, including but not limited to
fences, parking and zeningsetbacksbuildings, existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of this
Chapter may be continued although the use does not conform with the provisions of this Chapter. However,
only that portion of the land in actual use may be so continued and the structure may not be extended,
enlarged, reconstructed, substituted, moved or structurally altered except when required to do so by law or
order or so as to comply with the provisions of this Chapter.

(b) If no structural alterations are made, a nonconforming use of a building may be changed to any use
permitted in the same use district as that in which the use existing is permitted according to the provisions of
this Chapter. However. :provided when a use district is changed, any existing, nonconforming use in such
changed district may be continued or changed to a use permitted in the same use district as that in which the
existing use is permitted; provided all other regulations governing the new use are complied with.

chansed-to-contormto-the-use-provistonsot-this-Chapter:

(©) —{e&)—Substitution of new equipment may be permitted by the Board of Zoning Appeals if such
equipment will reduce the incompatibility of the nonconforming use with the neighboring uses.

d If a nonconforming use or the use (conforming or nonconforming) of a structure that is
nonconforming (as it relates to zoning setbacks, heights, etc.) is discontinued for a period of 12 months, any
future use of the building, premises, structure, or fixture shall conform to the Chapter.

(e) _ Notwithstanding subsections (a) — (e) of this section, a manufactured home community licensed under
Wis. Stats. §101.935 that is a legal nonconforming use continues to be a legal nonconforming use
notwithstanding the occurrence of any of the following activities within the community:

(1) Repair or replacement of homes;
(2) Repair or replacement of infrastructure.

SEC. 13-1-612 EXISTING NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.

(a) The lawful nonconforming structure existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of this Chapter
may be continued although its size or location does not conform with the lot width, lot area, yard,
height, parking and loading, and access provisions of this Chapter. However, it shall not be extended,
enlarged, reconstructed, moved or structurally altered except when required to do so by law or order or
so as to comply with the provisions of this Chapter.

(b) Total lifetime structural repairs or alterations of a lawfully established nonconforming building shall

49



not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the Village's assessed value of the building, premises, structure or

fixture at the time of its becoming a nonconforming use unless it is permanently changed to conform
to the use provisions of this Chapter.

(¢) Repair and maintenance of certain nonconforming structures
(1) Definitions. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the

meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different
meaning:

a. Development regulations means the part of this chapter that applies to elements including
setback, height, lot coverage, and side yard.

b. Nonconforming structure means a dwelling or other building that existed lawfully before
this chapter was enacted or amended, but that does not conform to one or more of the
development regulations in this chapter.

(2) Nothing in this chapter prohibits, or limits based on cost, the repair, maintenance, renovation, or
remodeling of a nonconforming structure.
(d) Restoration of certain nonconforming structures.

1) Restrictions in this chapter that are applicable to damaged or destroyed nonconforming structures
and that are contained in an ordinance enacted under this subsection do not prohibit the restoration
of a nonconforming structure if the structure will be restored to the size, subject subsection (¢)©(2)
of this section, location, and use that it had immediately before the damage or destruction occurred,

or impose any limits on the costs of the repair, reconstruction, or improvement if all of the
following apply:

a. The nonconforming structure was damaged or destroyed on or after March 2, 2006:
b. The damage or destruction was caused by violent wind, vandalism, fire, flood, ice, snow,
mold, or infestation.
(2) The structure may be larger than the size it was immediately before the damage or destruction if
necessary for the structure to comply with applicable state or federal requirements.

(f) Building Destroyed by Fire. Where a building located in a district restricted against its use has been
destroyed by fire or other calamity to the extent of not more than fifty percent (50%) of its value assessed by
the Village, the same may be rebuilt; but where such a building is destroyed to the extent of more than fifty
percent (50%) of its assessed value, a permit may be granted for its reconstruction within twelve (12) months
from the date of such fire or other calamity, except any public utility located in a restricted district shall be

permitted to rebuild, alter or enlarge in any business or industrial district as the interest of the public
demands.

SEC. 13-1-63 CHANGES AND SUBSTITUTIONS.

Once a nonconforming use or structure has been changed to conform, it shall not revert back to a
nonconforming use or structure. Once the Board of Zoning Appeals has permitted the substitution of a more
restrictive nonconforming use for an existing nonconforming use, the substituted use shall lose its status as a
legal nonconforming use and become subject to all the conditions required by the Board of Zoning Appeals.




(a) No lot shall be created which does not meet the lot dimensional requirements of the associated zoning

district.

(b) Legal nonconforming or substandard lots, as defined Section - may be utilized as a building site
for a permitted use (but not for a conditional use) in the associated zoning district, if all of the
following apply:

(1) Such lot has never been developed with one or more of its structures placed partly upon an
adjacent lot or parcel.

(2) Such lot is developed to comply with this Chapter and other applicable chapters of the Turtle
Lake Municipal Code.

(c) Conforming structures existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of this Chapter may be
continued, although the lot does not conform to the newly adopted or amended requirements of this
Chapter, as long as all uses on the lands containing the structure are legal conforming uses.

(4) Each aforementioned structure may be extended, enlarged, substituted, moved, remodeled, modified,
added to, or rebuilt as long as any such change conforms to the established building setback lines
along streets and the other lot and building requirements of this Chapter.

SEC. 13-1-65 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-69 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

51



P Commented [SB24]: Moved to Performance Standards
Section










55



ARTICLE G
Performance Standards

SEC. XX-XX-XX PURPOSE.
The purpose of this Article is to identify the standards and minimum requirements for highway access, traffic
visibility, loading, off-street parking, fencing, screening, and general welfare standards.

SEC. 13-1-73 HIGHWAY ACCESS.

(a) Highway Access. No direct private access shall be permitted to the existing or proposed rights-of-
way of expressways, nor to any controlled access arterial street without permission of the highway
agency that has access control jurisdiction. No direct public or private access shall be permitted to
the existing or proposed rights-of-way of freeways, interstate highways and their interchanges or
turning lanes nor to intersecting or interchanging streets within 1,500 feet of the most remote end of
the taper of the turning lanes (such as exit and entrance ramps). No driveway openings shall be
permitted within one hundred (100) feet of the intersection of an arterial street right-of-way line.

(b) Access barriers, such as curbing, fencing, ditching, landscaping or other topographic barriers shall
be erected to prevent unauthorized vehicular ingress or egress to the above specified streets or
highways.

(c) Temporary access to the above rights-of-way may be granted by the Zoning Administrator after
review and recommendation by the highway agencies having jurisdiction. Such access permit shall
be temporary, revocable and subject to any conditions required and shall be issued for a period not
to exceed twelve (12) months.

SEC. 13-1-70 TRAFFIC VISIBILITY — VISION CLEARANCE TRIANGLES.

(a) Within vision clearance triangles, no obstructions, such as signs, structures, fences, parking,
earthwork, vegetation, or other obstructions between 30 inches and ten feet in height shall be
permitted, except for tree trunks, mailboxes, and sign poles. The vision clearance triangle shall
apply where public streets intersect, and where private driveway and alleys intersect with public
streets, per the following standards:

(1) Where public streets intersect, or whether a private driveway or alleys intersect with a public
street. To draw the first two lines of the triangle, measures 15 feet from the point of
intersection of the two street right-of-way along the two right-of-way lines. Next, draw a third
straight line between the ends of the first two lines to form the vision clearance triangle.

(2) In the case of arterial streets intersecting with other arterial streets or railways, the corner cut-
off distances establishing the triangular vision clearance space shall be increased to fifty (50)
feet.

SEC. 13-1-71 LOADING REQUIREMENTS.
(a) Loading Space Requirements. On every lot on which a business, trade or industrial use is hereafter
established, space with access to a public street or alley shall be provided as indicated below for the
loading and unloading of vehicles off the public right-of-way:

H Floor Area (sq. ft.) Loading Space
Use
0-1,500 None

1,500 - 10,000

|—=

Retail, wholesale warehouse, service
manufacturing, and industrial establishments

10,000 and greater
Each additional 20,000

=N

(b) Multiple or Mixed Uses. Where a building is devoted to more than one (1) use or for different uses
and where the floor area for each use is below the minimum required for a loading space but the
aggregate floor area of such uses is above such a minimum, then off-street loading space shall be
provided as if the entire building were devoted to that use in the building for which the most loading

56



spaces are required.

(c) Location. Required off-street loading spaces shall be located on the same lot with the principal use
requiring such space. No loading space shall be located within thirty (30) feet of the nearest point of
intersection of two (2) streets or require any vehicle to back into a public street.

(d) Design Standards. Each off-street loading space shall have a width of at least twelve (12) feet, a
length of at least forty-five (45) feet, and a vertical clearance of at least fourteen (14) feet.
Dimensions for loading spaces in connection with funeral homes shall be reduced to ten (10) feet in
width, twenty-five (25) feet in length, and eight (8) feet in vertical clearance. Every loading space
shall be sufficiently screened in the form of a solid fence or shrubbery to protect neighboring
residences.

(e) Surfacing. All open off-street loading berths shall be improved with a compacted macadam base, not
less than seven (7) inches thick, surfaced with not less than two (2) inches of asphalt or treated with
some comparable all-weather dustless material.

(f) Repair and Service. No motor vehicle repair work or service of any kind shall be permitted in
conjunction with loading facilities provided in any Residence District.

(g) Utilization. Space allocated to any off-street loading berth shall not, while so allocated, be used to
satisfy the space requirements for any off-street parking facilities or portions thereof.

(h) Central Loading. Central loading facilities may be substituted for loading berths on the individual
zoning lots provided the following conditions are fulfilled:

(1) Each zoning lot served shall have direct access to the Central Loading Area without crossing
streets or alleys at grade.

(2) Total berths provided shall meet the requirements based on the sum of the several types of
uses served. (Areas of types of uses may be totaled before computing number of loading
berths.)

(3) No zoning lot served shall be more than three hundred (300) feet removed from the Central
Loading Area.

(4) The tunnel or ramp connecting the Central Loading Area with the zoning lot served shall be
not less than seven (7) feet in width and have a clearance of not less than seven (7) feet.

SEC. 13-1-72 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS.
All new parking lots and all alterations of existing lots shall be subject to the approval of the Village Board,
after a recommendation from the Plan Commission. Requests for said parking lots shall be accompanied
with detailed plans on landscaping, parking layout, drainage provisions and driveway locations. In all
districts, except those areas which are located within the fire zone as designated on the Official Map, there
shall be provided at the time any use or building is erected, enlarged, extended, or increased off-street
parking stalls for all vehicles in accordance with the following:
(a) Access. Adequate access to a public street shall be provided for each parking space.
(b) Design Standards. Each required off-street parking space shall be at least one hundred eighty (180)
square feet, have a stall width of at least ten (10) feet and a stall length of at least eighteen (18) feet.
No parking area of more than four (4) spaces shall be designed as to require any vehicle to back into
a public street. Large expanses of unchanneled parking areas shall be avoided by interior
landscaping and safety islands.
(c) Location.

(1)  Off-street parking shall be on the same lot as the principal use or not over three hundred
(300) feet from the principal use.

(2) Off-street parking is permitted in all yards of all districts except in the front yards of single-
family and two-family residence districts but shall not be closer than five (5) feet to a side lot
line, right-of-way line or rear lot line or twenty-five (25) feet to a residential district lot line.

(3) Off-street parking in the single-family residence and two-family residence districts is permitted
in the front yard in the driveway, even though closer than five (5) feet to a side lot line
providing the driveway conforms to the requirements in Section 13-1-73.

(d) Surfacing. All off-street parking areas, except a single parking space accessory to a single-family
dwelling, shall be surfaced with an all-weather material, such as compacted stone, gravel or
blacktop. All off-street parking areas shall be graded and surfaced so as to be properly drained. Any
parking area for more than five (5) vehicles shall have the aisles and spaces clearly marked except
parking area serving single-family dwellings.

57



(e) Additional Requirements.

(@)

Special residential requirements. Those parking areas for five (5) or more vehicles if adjoining

(2)

a residential use shall be screened from such use by a solid wall, fence, evergreen planting
of equivalent visual density or other effective means, built and maintained at a minimum
height of five (5) feet. Where a solidly constructed decorative fence is provided along the
interior lot line, the minimum setback for the parking area shall be five (5) feet from said lot
line. Said fence shall be located a minimum of one (1) foot from the said lot line.

Repair and Service. No motor vehicle repair work or service of any kind shall be permitted in

(3)

association with parking facilities provided in Residence Districts.
Lighting. Any lighting used to illuminate off-street parking areas shall be directed away from

(4)

residential properties and public streets in such a way as not to create a nuisance. However,
in no case shall such lighting exceed three (3) footcandles measured at the lot line.
Street Setback Area. No parking shall be permitted between the street right-of-way line and

the building setback line prevailing in the zone in which the proposed parking area is to be
located. The resulting open area shall be planted in grass or otherwise landscaped to create
a permanent green area.

(f) Curbs. Curbs or barriers shall be installed a minimum of four (4) feet from a property line so as to

prevent the parked vehicles from extending over any Iot lines.

(g) Number of Parking Stalls Required.

Type of Use Parking Stalls Required
Single-Family Dwellings, Mobile Homes, and | Two (2) stalls for each dwelling unit
Tiny Homes

Multi-family Dwellings

One and one-half (1-1/2) stall for each
dwelling unit, except in housing for the
elderly this ratio shall be .5 stalls per
dwelling unit.

Hotels, Motels

One (1) stall for each guest room plus one
(1) stall for each three (3) employees

Hospitals, Clubs, Lodges, Dormitories,
Lodging and Boarding Houses

One (1) stall for each two (2) beds plus one
(1) stall for each three (3) employees

Campgrounds and Travel Trailer Parks

One (1) stall per campsite or parking site

Medical and Dental Clinics

Three (3) stalls for each staff members

Churches, Theaters, Auditoriums,
Community Centers, Vocational and Night
Schools and Other Places of Public
Assembly

One (1) stall for each five (5) seats

Secondary and Elementary Schools

One (1) stall per 2 employees plus one (1)
stall per ten (10) students

Restaurants, Bars, Places of Entertainment

Parking stalls equal to thirty percent (30%) of

capacity in persons

Manufacturing and Processing Plants,
Laboratories and Warehouses

One (1) stall for each three (3) employees

Funeral Homes

One (1) stall for each four (4) seats

Bowling Alleys

Five (5) stalls for each alley, plus one (1)
stall per three hundred (300) gross square
feet used for restaurants, bars, etc.

(h) Uses Not listed. In the case of structures or uses not mentioned, the provision for a use which is

similar shall apply. Floor space or area shall mean the gross floor area inside the exterior walls

where floor space is indicated above as a basis for determining the amount of off-street parking

required.

(i) Combined Uses. Combinations of any of the above uses shall provide the total of the number of

stalls required for each individual use. Two (2) or more uses may provide required off-street parking

spaces in a common parking facility less than the sum of the spaces required for each use

individually, provided such uses are not operated during the same hours. A written agreement

satisfactory to the Village Attorney shall accompany any joint use arrangement.

(i) Handicapped Parking Requirements. In addition to any other requirements relating to parking spaces




contained in these Ordinances, the provisions contained in Sections 101.13, 346.503 and 346.56,
Wis. Stats., and any Wisconsin Administrative Code sections adopted pursuant thereto are hereby
adopted by reference and made applicable to all parking facilities whenever constructed.

(k) Changes in Buildings or Use. Whenever a building or use is changed, structurally altered or enlarged
to create a need for an increase of twenty-five percent (25%) or more in the number of existing
parking spaces, such spaces shall be provided on the basis of the enlargement or change.
Whenever a building or use is enlarged to the extent of fifty percent (50%) or more in the floor area,
said building or use shall then comply with the parking requirements set forth in the district in which it
is located.

() Off-Lot Parking.

(1) Required off-street parking spaces shall be located on the same lot with the principal use, or
when this requirement cannot be met, such parking spaces may be located off-lot provided
the parking spaces are located in the same district. Off-lot parking spaces shall also be held
in fee simple ownership by the owner of the use requiring such parking or be leased or rented
through a written agreement satisfactory to the Village Attorney.

(2) Off-lot parking spaces for residential uses shall be within two hundred fifty (250) feet of the
principal entrance or the entrance for the individual occupants for whom the spaces are
reserved while the farthest portions of a parking lot for all other uses shall be within three
hundred (300) feet of the entrance of the establishment.

(3) Accessory parking may be located in residential districts provided that said lots or property
are immediately adjacent to a commercial, business or industrial zoning district.

(4) Al off-street parking lots adjoining lots zoned for residential use shall have a minimum
setback of ten (10) feet from any interior lot line, except if the adjoining lot is used for legally
conforming parking purposes.

(m)During Site Review, as described under Section XXXX, the Village may reduce the number of
required parking stalls or allow land banking for future parking stalls.

SEC. 13-1-15 FENCING

(a) Fences Defined. For the purpose of this Section, a "fence" is herein defined as an enclosed barrier
consisting of vegetation, plastic, vinyl, wood, stone or metal intended to prevent ingress or egress.
For the purpose of this Section, the term "fence" shall include plantings, such as hedges and
shrubbery. No fence shall be constructed of unsightly or dangerous materials which would constitute
a nuisance.

(b) Fences Categorized. Fences shall be categorized into five (5) classifications:

(1) Boundary Fence. A fence placed on or within three (3) feet of the property lines of adjacent
properties.

(2) Protective Fence. A fence constructed to enclose a hazard to the public health, safety and
welfare.

(3) Architectural or Aesthetic Fence. A fence constructed to enhance the appearance of the
structure or the landscape.

(4) Hedge. A row of bushes of small trees planted close together which may form a barrier
enclosure or boundary.

(5) Picket Fence. A fence having a pointed post, stake, pale or peg laced vertically with the point
or sharp part pointing upward to form a part of the fence.

(c) Height of Fences Regulated. Except for swimming pool fences, a fence or wall may be erected,
placed, maintained or grown along a lot line on residentially zoned property or adjacent thereto
pursuant to Subsection (d) to a height not exceeding six (6) feet above the ground level, except that
no such fence, wall, hedge or shrubbery which is located in a required front or corner side yard shall
exceed a height of four (4) feet. Where such lot line is adjacent to a nonresidentially zoned property,
there shall be an eight (8) foot limit on the height of a fence, wall, hedge or shrubbery along such lot
line.

(d) Setback for Residential Fences. Fences in or adjacent to a residential property may be constructed
on lot lines within setback areas.

(e) Security Fences. Security fences are permitted on the property lines in all districts except residential
districts, but shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height and shall be of an open type similar to woven
wire or wrought iron fencing.

59



(f) Prohibited Fences. No fence shall be constructed which is of a dangerous type of construction or
which conducts electricity or is designed to electrically shock.

(g) Fences to be Repaired. All fences shall be maintained and kept safe and in a state of good repair,
and the finished side or decorative side of a fence shall face adjoining property.

(h) Temporary Fences. Fences erected for the protection of planting or to warn of construction hazard,
or for similar purposes, shall be clearly visible or marked with colored streamers or other such
warning devices at four (4) foot intervals. Such fences shall comply with the setback requirements
set forth in this Section. The issuance of a permit shall not be necessary for temporary fences as
described herein, but said fences shall not be erected for more than forty-five (45) days.

(i) Nonconforming Fences and Hedges. Any fence or hedge existing on the effective date of this
Municipal Code and not in conformance with this Section may be maintained, unless it would violate
vision triangle standards, but no alteration, modification or improvement of said fence shall comply
with this Section.

SEC. XX-XX-XX SCREENING

(a) Mechanical equipment (heating, air conditions and ventilation) that will be readily visible when
viewed from ground level from other properties or from major public ways should be softened by
screening or covered in a manner that forms an integral part of the building design. Rooftop
equipment may require the use of an extended parapet wall or other integrated roof form.

(b) External garbage or refuse containers shall be screened by walls, fences, berms, or effective
landscaping, or combinations thereof.

(c) Outdoor storage / display areas shall be limited. The storage of materials, fuel, scrap, inoperative
vehicles and similar objects in places that are readily visible from major public rights-of-way or parts
of neighboring properties where a significant amount of viewing is expected shall be minimized and,
where necessary, shall be effectively screened.

(d) Approval Required. Any use or conditional use listed in this Chapter requiring screening or fencing
shall be permitted only when authorized by the Village Board, upon the recommendation of the Plan
Commission, and subject to its approval of a screening or fencing plan for that particular use.

(1) Objective. Planting or other suitable screening including fences or freestanding walls shall be
required where deemed necessary for screening or enclosure purposes by the Village Board, upon
the recommendation of the Plan Commission, such as, around outdoor storage yards and industrial
property lines, salvage vards, refuse disposal sites, quarries and mines, mobile home parks and
trailer camps. Such provisions shall be required to the extent needed to provide for:

a. Screening of objectionable views;
b.  Adequate shade;
[ Enclosure of storage materials;
d.  Public health and safety;
e. A suitable setting for the particular use and other facilities.

(e) Maintenance. All screenings, fences and walls required by this Chapter shall be maintained so as not

to prove an objectionable view by themselves.

SEC. 13-1-101_NOISE.
No operation or activity shall transmit any noise exceeding 75 dBA from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and 65 dBA
from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. beyond the property line. The following noises are exempt from the regulations:
(a) Noises not directly under the control of the property owner.
(b) Noises from temporary construction or maintenance activities during daylight hours.
(c) Noises from emergency, safety or warning devices.

SEC. 13-1-102 VIBRATION.

(a) No operation or activity shall transmit any physical vibration that is above the vibration perception
threshold of an individual at or beyond the property line of the source. Vibration perception threshold
means the minimum ground- or structure-borne vibrational motion necessary to cause a normal
person to be aware of the vibration by such direct means as, but not limited to, sensation by touch or
visual observation of moving objects.

(b) Vibrations not directly under the control of the property user and vibrations from temporary
construction or maintenance activities shall be exempt from the above standard.

60



SEC. 13-1-103 EXTERNAL LIGHTING.
No operation or activity shall produce any intense glare or lighting with the source directly visible beyond the
property boundary.

SEC. 13-1-104 ODOR.
No operation or activity shall emit any substance or combination of substances in such quantities that create
an objectionable odor as defined in Chapter NR 154.18, Wisconsin Administrative Code.

SEC. 13-1-105 PARTICULATE EMISSIONS.

No operation or activity shall emit into the ambient air from any direct or portable source any matter that will
affect visibility in excess of the limitations established in Chapter NR 154.11, Wisconsin Administrative
Code.

SEC. 13-1-106 VISIBLE EMISSIONS.

No operation or activity shall emit into the ambient air from any direct or portable source any matter that will
affect visibility in excess of the limitations established in Chapter NR 154.11(6), Wisconsin Administrative
Code.

SEC. 13-1-107_ HAZARDOUS POLLUTANTS.

No operation or activity shall emit any hazardous substances in such a quantity, concentration or duration
as to be injurious to human health or property, and all emissions of hazardous substances shall not exceed
the limitations established in Chapter NR 154.19, Wisconsin Administrative Code.

SEC. XX-X-XXX STANDARDS FOR THE B-H, D-MU & B-P DISTRICTS
(a) Site Design

(1) An overall site amenities theme and materials palette shall be presented and approved by the
Village as part of the site review process required under Section 13-1-154.

(2) Buildings along with trees and landscaping shall be predominant. Parking lots and free-
standing signs shall be secondary features of a site.

(3) Loading docks or delivery doors shall be placed to reduce visibility from residential areas or
public streets.

(4) To ensure that building entrances are welcoming and easily identifiable from the street and
sidewalks, the principal entry for persons to the building shall be marked by an architectural
element such as a building canopy, large entry doors, or landscaping with seating.

(5) Pedestrian and bicycle connections into and throughout the site shall be clearly defined.
Pedestrian access to the building shall be visually and functionally clear and shall offer a
convenient access.

(6) Provide accessible and high-quality bicycle parking. Bicycle racks shall be placed within 50
feet or the primary entrance of the building they are intended to serve.

(7) _Parking lots shall have decorative landscape treatment at the perimeter of the lot and, for
larger lots, in island areas within the lot, to provide break-up of the expanse of paving.

(8) All sites shall be planned and constructed so that surface drainage drains from structures.

(b) Building Architecture, Mass & Articulation

(1) An overall architectural theme and building materials palette shall be presented and approved
by the Village as part of the site review process.

(2) Buildings shall include articulation along the facades facing and visible from public rights-of-
way; flat blank walls are not allowed.

(3) Building masses and long, straight fronts and sides (relative to the overall length of the
building) that are visually accessible shall be broken up and made more variegated with
staggers and offsets, with landscaping or surficial features or with accumulation of mass in
the form of smaller, related units.

(4) Any side of the building visible from a street or public open space shall be given architectural
treatment utilizing windows, awnings, or other architectural details.

(c) Landscaping and Lighting
(1) The proposed site shall provide landscaping of sufficient height and density to accomplish

61



(2)

positive visual impact and complement the site and building.
Exterior lighting shall be established, directed and maintained so as not to be cast directly on

public right-of-way or occupied structures or neighboring properties or be lighted in intensity
or colors seriously disturbing to neighboring properties.

62



ARTICLE HG - SIGNSSigns

Sec. 13-1-80 Purpose and Intent

The purpose and intent of this Article is to establish standards for signage that shal-be-te-premeteand protect
and preserve the public health, welfare and safety, advance aesthetic and community character objectives
promote compatible business development and activity, and ensure the effective and flexible use of signage

for commercial, community, and individual expression. by-regitatingthe placement-and-maintenanee-of

6P O a-ahnd a 7 0 & &
o ORI -GH-O DB OFLHIAE —LO-PFOHOLe







Sec. XXXXX Compliance

(a) No sign shall hereafter be located, erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted. or
structurally altered without conformance with the provisions of this Article and a sign permit, unless
exempted from sign permit requirements under Section XXXX or Section XX.

65



Sec. XXX Noncommercial Signs
(a) Any sign authorized by this Article may contain a noncommercial message. Noncommercial signs

shall be subject to the same permit requirements, restrictions on size and type, and other specifications set
forth in this Article.

Sec. XXXX Existing Nonconforming Signs
Sign
(a) Signs lawfully existing at the time of the adoption of this Ordinance may be continued although the

size or location does not conform with the provisions of this Ordinance. Such signs shall be deemed
nonconforming and the nonconforming use and structure provisions of this Ordinance shall apply.

(a) No non-conforming sign shall be enlarged, physically altered or replaced by another sign, relocated,

whether on or off of the premises on which it was situated at the time that it became non-conforming without
causing it to become a conforming sign under this Article. These limitations shall not apply to the changing
of messages or the contents of the sign. All non-conforming signs shall be removed at the time of a change in
business on the premises upon which the sign is located.

(b) Non-conforming signs may be routinely maintained, but no repairs shall be made to them for the

purpose of prolonging its anticipated life beyond what is reasonably anticipated as of the time such repairs
are proposed to be made.

(c) Without the express, written consent of the Village, no new signs, including, but not limited to, those
capable of being permitted under this Article may be erected on any premises upon which a non-conforming
sign is located unless the non-conforming sign is brought into full compliance with this Article or is
removed.

(e) Non-conforming signs which have been abandoned in accord with § 13-1-91 lose their nonconforming
status and shall be removed from the premises upon which they are located in accord with the
procedures set forth in § 13-1-91. Thereafter, no sign may be erected on the same premises that is not
in full compliance with the provisions of this Article.

(f) A change in business or other use that necessitates a new sign message or sign structure shall require
the sign be brought into conformance with the provisions of this Article, including an application for a

sign permit.

Sec. XXXX Exemptions
(a) The following Signs are exempt from the regulations contained in this Ordinance:

(1 A Sign posted by the Village: a County, State, or Federal agency.
2) A Sign integrated into or on an automatic teller machine, coin-operated machine, or vending
machine.
3) A Sign carried by a person.
4) A Sign not visible from any public street, highway, sidewalk, bicycle path, or park.
(5) Street Addresses and Numbers as required by the US Postal Service.
(6) Murals and other work of art that are not related by logo, pictorial depiction, or other means to
the advertisement of any product or service or the identification of any business.
(@) Holiday lights and decorations containing no commercial message and displayed during the
appropriate time of year.
®) Flags of the United States and Wisconsin and other countries or states, up to a maximum of

three per parcel. If the flag is displayed on a flagpole, the maximum dimension of any flag shall be
proportional to the flagpole height, and the hoist side of the flag shall not exceed 20 percent of the

vertical height of the pole. Flags must be flow in accordance with protocol established by U.S.
Congress. Any flag not meeting these requirements shall be considered a sign subject to the
requirements of this Article and not allowed as an exemption under this Section.

Sec. XXXX Abandoned and Dilapidated Signs
A sign that is deemed to have been abandoned by the owner or user is subject to the following:

66



(a) _Each sign advertising an on-premises business that has not been conducted upon or from the premises
for six (6) months in succession shall be removed by the owner of the premises upon which it is located or
his or her lessee of said property. All other abandoned signs shall be removed upon order of the Building
Inspector.

(b) _Dilapidated signs or signs beyond repair under the provision of §66.0413, Wis. Stats., shall be
removed upon order of the Building Inspector. For purposes of this paragraph, a dilapidated sign is one that
is so old and out of repair as to become dangerous or unsafe, whether to the public at large or merely to
guests and invitees on the premises on which it is located.

(¢) __In the event that the owner of a premises upon which an abandoned or dilapidated sign is situated or
his or her lessee fails or refuses to remove such sign, the Village may, upon notice of its intent to remove it,
sent by first class mail or personally delivered to the owner of the premises upon which the sign is located.

remove the sign and impose the cost thereof against the real estate as a special charge under §66.0627, Wis.

Stats.

Sec. 13-1-82 Sign Permitting and Approval Proceduress

(a) General Requirements.

(1) Tt shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, enlarge, modify, or move any sign for
which a permit is required under this Article without first obtaining a sign permit from the Clerk-
Treasurer. In addition to being in compliance with all of the provisions of this Article, each sign
shall meet the structural requirements of the Village Building Code.

_____(2b) Permits shall not be required for changes in messages, repainting, cleaning, normal
maintenance, or other general refurbishing of any sign.

__ (3¢) For purposes of permits, a double-faced sign shall be equivalent of one (1) sign.

__(é4) Sign permits issued by the Clerk-TreasurerZoning Administrator for the erection, construction,
enlargement, modification, or moving of a sign shall be subject to the following time limitations: Work
permitted by the permit issued shall commence within sixty (60) days of the date of issue or the permit shall
be null and void. Each sign or work on a sign subject to a permit shall be completed within six (6) months
after the date of the permit of the owner shall be required to apply for and receive another permit before
continuing to work on the sign.

(be) Application. Each application for a sign permit shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator on a
form provided by that office prior to sign installation or modification. Each complete application shall
include the following:Sig i teations-s i e on:

(1) —Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant and property owner.

(2) Location of the building, structure, or lot upon which the sign is to be attached or erected.

(3) Name of the person, firm, corporation, or association erecting the sign.

(4) (H— If located on land not owned by the owner of the sign subject to the application, the written
consent or approval or a lease or other form of contract executed by the owner of the land on which
the sign is to be placed, indicating that permission has been granted for placement of the sign at the
location in question.

(5) —+2)—A scale drawing of the proposed sign, indicating the design of the sign including colors to be
used, the materials to be used in its construction, the proposed means of construction or erection, any
lighting that is proposed for the sign and a description of the means by which thes sign will be
attached to a building or other structure or to the ground.

(63) A scale site plan showing the location of the building, other structure or site on a given premises to
which the sign is to be attached or affixed, demonstrating the relationship of the sign to buildings and other
structures on the premises and its property lines.

(74)  Electrical permits applied for or obtained for the sign.

(85) Calculations demonstrating that the sign, as it is designed, meets the construction requirements of
this Article for dead load and wind pressure.

See—13-1-83-Fee(9) A description of any existing signs that will remain on the site.

67



(10)  Fee. At the time an application is submitted to the Clerk—TFreasurerZoning Administrator for a
sign permit under this Article, the applicant shall pay the applicable fee in full with the fee to be determined
in accord with the administrative fee schedule adopted annually by the Village Board and maintained on file
with the Clerk-TFreasurerZoning Administrator.

(c) Basis for Granting. In deciding whether or not to grant a sign permit, the Zoning Administrator shall
determine whether the proposed sign is in compliance with the provisions of this Article; whether the sign
is in compliance with all provisions of this Chapter, including those related to traffic safety, traffic visibility,
sign setbacks, and structural integrity; and whether other required Village approval(s) has or has not been
granted for the sign.

(d) Administration and Enforcement.

(1) The Village Building Inspector shall be responsible for enforcing the requirements of this
Article.

(2) Should any sign be erected or constructed that fails to meet all requirements of this Article
and any applicable building or electrical code, notwithstanding the fact that the owner thereof was granted
a permit with which to construct it or, in other cases, that no permit was required under this Article, the
Building Inspector may provide notice to the owner of the premises upon which it is located that the sign be
rebuilt to standards and that the owner or his or her agent shall be thirty (3) to ninety (90) days in which to
do so. The failure to do so shall result in the loss of the sigh permit in cases where a sign permit is required.
Signs that are subject to this paragraph shall, it not rebuilt or reconstructed by the owner, be treated by the
Village as abandoned or dilapidated signs, subject to removal by the Village in accord with this Article.

(3) Violations of this Article, if uncorrected in accord with the requirements of the notice
provided by the Village, shall be subject to imposition of a forfeiture in the amount of not less than $100 for
each day such a violation continues, with each day constituting a separate violation.

(4) Each violation of the requirements of this Article pertaining to permanent signs is deemed by
the Village to create a public nuisance which endangers the health, safety, and general welfare of the
citizens of the Village. Correspondingly, in addition to or as a complete alternative to pursuing the
imposition of a forfeiture for violations of this Article, the Village may seek injunctive relief against the
continued maintenance of such signs, requesting of the court that it order removal or authorize the Village
to do so at the expense of the owner of the premises on which the offending sign is located.

Sec. XXXX Measurement Standards

(a) Signable Area. The signable area of a building is designated as the area of the facade of the building
up to the roof line which is free of windows and doors or major architectural detail on which signs may be
displayed. In computing signable area, any facade which faces or abuts a public right-of-way may be

utilized. Calculations may include parapet walls. but shall exclude door and window openings.

(b) Measuring Sign Face. In calculating the area of a sign to determine whether it meets the requirements
of this Article, the Clerk shall include the sign copy and any border or frame surrounding that copy.
Supporting posts or foundations shall be excluded from the area calculation. The area of irregularly

shaped signs or signs containing two or more detached elements shall be determined by the area of
the smallest regular polygon that will encompass all elements of the sign.

(c) Measuring Sign Height. The sign height shall be the vertical distance measured from the grade at the
base of the sign structure to the highest point of such sign or sign structure. In the case where a sign
is to be located in a raised planting bed or berm, the grade shall be determined by the average of the
grades measured at the grade of the planting bed or the toes of the slope at the front and back of the
bed or berm.

68



Sec. 13-1-XX Construction Specifications & Sign Maintenance

(a) All signs, other than temporary and portable signs, shall comply with all applicable provisions of state
and Village building and electrical codes at all times. Verification of compliance therewith may be required
of the sign owner by the Village.

(b) All free standing signs or pole signs shall be self-supporting and permanently affixed to the real estate
on foundations adequate to support their superstructures.

(c) Signs that use glass or transparent panels shall be constructed using tempered, safety glass only.

(d) All signs shall be constructed to withstand wind pressure of not less than thirty (30) pounds per square
foot and shall be constructed so as to support dead loads in accord with the building code.

(e) Supports and braces shall be integral to the design of a sign. Angle irons, chains, or wire used for
supports or braces shall be hidden from public view to the extent that this is physically feasible.

No sign shall be suspended in such a fashion or manner that will allow it to swing in an unrestricted

manner, whether due to wind or other causes or to the extent that swinging may cause damage to the sign

superstructure, supports, or foundation.

(g) All signs shall be appropriately maintained so as to present a neat and clean appearance off of the

premises on which they are located.

Sec. XXXXXX General Provisions

(a) No signs are permitted in the triangle formed by the point at the corner of an intersection and points 15
feet from the corner along each street.

b) Signs shall not be placed on utility poles, light standards, trees, utility pedestals or boxes or any similar
structure.

(c) Signs shall not be attached or affixed to or adhered to or drawn upon any public street or sidewalk.

(d) Signs shall not resemble, imitate, or approximate the shape, size, form, or color of railroad or traffic
signs, signals, or devices and shall not obstruct or interfere with the effectiveness of railroad or traffic
signs, signals, or devices.

(e) Color schemes and lettering styles shall be used consistently on all signage used on a single lot or

shopping center.

Sec. XXXX  Signs permitted in all Districts without a permit.
The following signs are permitted in all zoning districts without a permit, subject to the specified
conditions.

(a) Temporary Freestanding or Wall Signs on properties or buildings for sale, lease, or rent not exceeding
eight (8) square feet in area on one side or sixteen (16) square feet in area on all sides. If not attached
to a wall, such signs shall be set back at least 10 feet from a side or rear lot line, shall not be located
in a public right-of-way, and shall be removed within 10 days after the property or building is sold
leased, or rented.

(b) Temporary Freestanding or Wall Signs on properties of buildings with an open house, grand opening,
anniversary or special sale, not exceeding sixteen (16) square feet on one side, of thirty-two (32)
square feet in area on all sides. Side may be placed on the premises no earlier than seven (7) days
prior to the event in questions and shall be removed no later than at the end of the last day of the
event.

(c) Election Campaign Signs. As provided in Section 12.04 of Wisconsin Statutes, election campaign
signs are permitted in residential zoning districts subject to the following requirements:

1) The sign shall not be erected prior to the first day of the “election campaign period” as defined
in Wisconsin Statutes, and shall be removed within 10 days following the election.

2) Election signs shall not exceed 11 square feet in area unless the sign is affixed to a permanent
structure; does not extend beyond the perimeter of the structure; and does not obstruct a window,
door, fire escape, ventilation shaft, or other area which is required by the Village building code to
remain unobstructed.

3) No election campaign sign shall be placed within a public right-of-way nor so close to a
pedestrian way as to hinder or endanger safe passage.

69



(d) A temporary sign not to exceed 8 square feet and shall not be displayed for more than 30 days in any
given 12 month period of time on any given parcel.

Sec. XXXX Signs permitted in Residential Districts with a permit.
The following signs are permitted in all Residential Zoning Districts, with a permit, subject to the following
regulations:

(a) Permanent Ground Sign placed at the entrance to a subdivision or development, which shall be set
back at least 10 feet from a street right-of-way or side or rear lot line. The sign shall not exceed
twenty (20) square feet is size and six (6) feet in height.

) The Subdivider, condominium association, or homeowners association shall be
responsible for paying all costs for maintenance of the sign and associated
landscaping. Written agreements shall be on file between the Village and the
Subdivider, condominium association, and/or homeowners association as to the
maintenance and care of the sign and landscaping.

b) Signs associated with a permitted or conditionally permitted non-residential use. Signage shall
consist of no more than one (1) monument sign not to exceed twenty (20) square feet in size and six
(6) feet in height, together with one (1) wall sign not larger than fifteen (15) square feet in size.

Sec. XXXX Signs permitted in All Zoning Districts Other than Residential District with a permit

The following signs are permitted in all Zoning Districts, other than Residential District, with a permit,

70



subject to the following regulations:

(a) Awning Signs. If an awning sign is used, no other signs may be affixed or attached to the
exterior of the building to which it is joined. The area covered by awning signs shall not exceed
thirty-five percent (35%) of the building face and awnings shall be at least seven (7) feet above
grade and shall not project outward from the building by more than seven (7) feet. Internally lit
awnings are prohibited and lettering shall only be on the valance.

(b) Ground and Pole Signs.

(1) Shall not to exceed thirty (30) feet in height above the mean centerline grade of
the street upon which the premises on which they are placed has its only or
principal frontage.

(2) Shall meet all setback requirements for the zoning district in question.

(3) Shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) square feet of total display face area.
with a maximum of 60 square feet per side, including borders.

(4) No more than one (1) ground of pole sign may be erected on a single premises.

(5) There shall be at least ten (1) feet of clearance between each pole sign and the
grade on which it is situated.

(c) Monument Signs not to exceed fifty (50) square feet in size nor to be more than ten (10) feet in
height above grade.

(d) Changeable Copy Signs. Electronic message boards or changeable copy reader boards may be
included as part of on-premise ground or monument signs, subject to the following additional

requirements:
(1) One changeable copy sign per business to be calculated as part of the total sign

square footage.

(2) Segmented messages shall be displayed for not less than on-half (1/2) second and
for no more than ten (10) seconds.

(3) Traveling messages shall be no slower than sixteen (16) light columns per second
and no faster than thirty-two (32) light columns per second.

(e) Projecting Signs fastened to, suspended from, or supported by other structures.

(1) Shall not exceed seven and one-half (7.5) square feet in size.

(2) Shall not be more than five (5) feet from the building face to which it is attached
or affixed.

(3) Shall be located at least ten (1) feet from all side lot lines.

(4) Shall not exceed a height of twenty (2) feet above the mean centerline grade of
the street upon which the premises on which they are placed has its only or
principal frontage.

(5) Each projecting sign shall at its lowest point be not less than ten (1) feet above a
sidewalk or fifteen (15) feet from the edge of any alley or driveway.

(f) Menu Boards, not to exceed two per drive-through or walk-up food establishment.
(g) Wall Signs.

(1) Shall not exceed three times linear frontage plus an additional 25% of said
calculated frontage for corner lots in total size.

(2) Shall no exceed twenty (20) feet in height above the mean centerline grade of the
street upon which the premises on which they are placed has its only principal
frontage, provided that on corner lots such signs are not placed on the front
facade of the building, further defined to mean that side of the building facing the
front yard of the lot on which it is situated.

(h) Window Signs shall be calculated as part of the total sign square footage.
(i) Roof Signs.

(1) Shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height above the roof of the structure to which
they are attached or affixed.

(2) Shall meet all height restrictions for the zoning district in which the site is
located.

71



(3) Shall be calculated as part of the total sign square footage for any one premises.
(1) Joint Business Signs and Industrial Business Signs. No more than one (1) joint business sign
shall be allowed for the exterior of each building, facing the street or a highway in the event that
there are three or more tenants in a building. As a complete alternative, separate individual
business signs for each tenant or occupant of a building which has a separate and direct exit to
and front the exterior building may be allowed listing the business by name.
(k) No more than one (1) ground, pole, or roof sign for each business on a given premises.




Sec. 13-1-87 Illumination Restrictions-All Zoning Districts
(a) The following restrictions on illumination of signs shall apply in all zoning districts.

(1) No illuminated sign shall cause any reflection or glare upon any public street, highway or sidewalk,
nor create glare on adjoining private properties.

(2) Exposed lighting media such as light bulbs and tubes are prohibited. All external sources of
illumination must be hidden from view by the planting of vegetation, such as shrubbery, or by being
camouflaged by non-vegetative means, subject to the approval of the Village.

(b) No sign which is allowed to be erected or constructed without a permit shall be illuminated without the
express permission of the Village.

Sec. 13-1-88 Temporary and Portable Signs;Eleetronie-Sign; Portable-Sign-and Political SignLimitations
(a) -Femperary-SignRemovalReguirements In addition to the temporary signage allowed under Section
XXX, Exempt Signs, the following temporary and portable signage may be allowed subject to review and
approval of a sign permit:
(1) Flag Signs or banners may be approved on a temporary basis in any district by the Plan Commission
following a review and recommendation by the Zoning Administrator. Temporary sign permits shall not be
73




granted for a period of more than three weeks, and each business or organization shall be limited to two
temporary sign permits for a flag sign or banner in any 12-month period. Banners displayed above a street
shall not exceed 120 square feet in area on each side. Banners attached to a building or other structure shall
not exceed 32 square feet in area. Real-estate-and-construction-sie ha ved-within 0

(2) Temporary Signs. A temporary sign other than a flag or banner may be allowed in any district for up
to 30 days in any given calendar year provided the sign is not permanently mounted or affixed to the ground.
The sign area shall not exceed 32 square feet on one side or 64 square feet on all sides, and shall be at least
10 feet from a property line (except in the Downtown-Mixed Use District). Only one temporary sign may be
located on a lot. Each business or organization shall be limited to two temporary sign permits in any 12-
month period.Petiticet-si Lt R s bich-the

(be) Portable Sign Restrictions
(1) To be placed on premises for no more than seven (7) consecutive days at one time and for not more
than three (3) such periods per calendar year.
(2) Maximum size to be limited to twenty-five (25) square feet per sign with double-faced signs each
qualifying for this maximum size.

Sec. 13-1-89 Off-Premises Signs and Billboards
No billboards shall be allowed at any place in the Village of Turtle Lake. This prohibition does not include
off-premises signs, however, advertising businesses in the Village.

Sec. 13-1-90 Prohibited Signs
The following types of signs are prohibited:

(a) Animated signs, signs containing beacons or signs containing moving lights, other than revolving
signs.

(b) Flashing signs.

(c) Signs containing or consisting of bare reflecting bulbs.







Sec. 13-1-95 Varianees-and-Appeals_and Special Exceptions

(ab) Appeals. The Board of Appeals shall be authorized to hear appeals from decisions of the Zoning
Administrator or Building Inspector. Appeals may be taken within thirty (30) days of issuance of written
notice of a determination of the Zoning Administrator or Building Inspector.

(b) Special Exceptions.
(1) Applicability and Procedure. Following submittal of a complete special exception application,
the Plan Commission may grant a special exception to one or more requirements in Section
XXXXXXX. The application requirements and procedure for, and other requirements associated
with, a special exception shall be the same as those for a conditional use permit under Section XXXX,
except as follows:
a. The application for special exception shall also include materials required to obtain a
sign permit under Section XXXXX.
b. The criteria for consideration of a special exception shall be those in subsection (2)
below.
(2) Criteria. No special exception shall be granted unless the Plan Commission finds that the
sign(s) authorized thereby, as limited by an enforceable conditions, will meet all of the following
criteria:
a. Consistent with the purpose and intent of this Chapter and this Section.
b. Not negatively affecting the reasonable use and development of nearby properties of the
community.
c. Compatible with existing signage on and visible from the subject site and not significantly
exceeding the height, area, or quantity of such existing signage.
d. Proportional with the scale of the subject site and the building(s) and use(s) on the
subject site to which the sign relates or advertises.
e. Not hazardous, harmful, or otherwise adverse to the natural environment and aesthetic
value of the site, nearby properties, and the community.
f. Not negatively affecting the safe and efficient installation, use, and maintenance of public
facilities serving the area, including but not limited to roadways, sidewalks and paths, and
utilities.
g. Supported by evidence that normally applicable requirements do not provide for
sufficient visibility for the proposed signage or use(s) it advertises, such as a highway visibility
study for freestanding signage that exceeds normally applicable height or area requirements.

76



%R—T—I-CLEHL 7777777777777777777777777777 P ‘{Commented [SB25]: Combined into Section G —

Performance Standards

77



78



ARTICLE |
Signal Receiving Antennas; Wireless Telecommunications Facilities

SEC. XX-X-XX PURPOSE
The purpose of this Article is to establish regulations for signal received antennas and wireless
telecommunication facilities.

Sec. 13-1-110 Signal Receiving Antennas.

(a) Purpose. This Section regulating the placement of signal receiving antennas is adopted to:

(1) Provide uniform regulation of all signal receiving antenna devices;

(2) Secure placement of such antennas in an aesthetically sensitive manner while allowing users
reasonable reception of signals;

(3) Protect the public from injury from antennas that are inadequately mounted, unduly susceptible to
wind pressure, improperly installed and wired, or are placed on structures insufficiently designed or
constructed to safely support the antenna; and

(4) Provide for placement of such antennas in locations that preserve access to rear property areas by
firefighting apparatus and emergency personnel.

(b) Permit Required. No owner shall, within the Village of Turtle Lake, build, construct, use or place any
type of signal receiving antenna until a permit shall have first been obtained from the Zoning Administrator.

(c) Definitions.

(1) For purposes of this Section, a "signal receiving antenna" is defined as any apparatus capable of
receiving communications from a transmitter or a transmitter relay located in a planetary orbit. This
definition includes all types of signal receiving antennas, including, without limitation, parabolic antennas,
home earth stations, satellite television disks, UHF and VHF television antennas, and AM, FM, ham and
short-wave radio antennas, regardless of the method of mounting.

(2) "Owner" means the holder of record of an estate in possession in fee simple, or for life, in land or
real property, or a vendee of record under a land contract for the sale of an estate in possession in fee simple
or for life but does not include the vendor under a land contract. A tenant in common or joint tenant shall be
considered such owner to the extent of his interest. The personal representative of at least one (1) owner shall
be considered an owner.

(d) Application. Application for a signal receiving antenna permit shall be made in writing to the Zoning
Administrator. With such application, there shall be submitted a fee as set forth in the Village’s annual fee
scheduleef Fen-Delars($10-00) and a sufficient set of mounting plans and specifications, including a
general plot plan showing the location of the proposed signal receiving antenna with respect to streets, lot
lines and buildings. If such application meets all requirements of this Section, the application shall be
approved.

(e) Installation Standards. Signal receiving antennas installed in any zoning district within the Village
shall comply with the following provisions:

(1) Setbacks.

a. Any signal receiving antenna and its mounting post shall be located a minimum of ten (10) feet
from any property line.

b. Subject to the provisions herein, signal receiving antennas shall only be located in the rear yard of
any lot. If reasonable reception of signals is not possible with a rear yard placement due to the physical
characteristics of the lot and area, the signal receiving antenna shall be placed in the side yard of the lot. In
the event that reasonable reception of signals is not possible by locating the signal receiving antenna on the
rear or side yard of the property, such antenna may be placed in the front yard or on the roof of structures on
the property. For corner lots, a side yard is only a yard that does not face a street.

c. Ifside yard, front yard or roof mounting is requested, the Zoning Administrator shall determine
where reasonable reception is possible, based on evidence provided by the person seeking to erect or

79



construct the antenna.

(2) Mounting. Signal receiving antennas attached to the wall or roof of any principal or accessory
structure shall be permitted only if the structure is properly constructed to carry all imposed loading and
complies with applicable state and local building code requirements. The Zoning Administrator may require
engineering calculations.

(3) Diameter. The diameter of the signal receiving antenna shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in
diameter, except for systems used to provide community antenna television services.

(4) Height.

a. A ground-mounted signal receiving antenna, including any platform or structure upon which said
antenna is mounted or affixed, may not exceed eighteen (18) feet in height, as measured from the ground to
the highest point of the dish.

b. A roof-mounted antenna may not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height above the surrounding roof line
as measured from the lowest point of the existing roof line.

(5) Wind Pressure. All signal receiving antennas shall be permanently mounted in .accordance with the
manufacturer's specifications for installation. All such installations shall meet a minimum wind load design
velocity of eighty (80) mph.

(6) Electrical Installations. Electrical installations in connection with signal receiving antennas,
including grounding of the system, shall be in accordance with the National Electrical Safety Code,
Wisconsin State Electrical Code and the instructions of the manufacturer. In cases of conflict, the stricter
requirements shall govern. All cable used to conduct current or signals from the signal receiving antenna to
the receivers shall be installed underground unless installation site conditions preclude underground. If a
signal receiving antenna is to be used by two (2) or more residential property owners, all interconnecting
electrical connections, cables and conduits must also be buried. The location of all such underground lines,
cables and conduits shall be shown on the application for a permit. All signal receiving antennas shall be
grounded against direct lightning strikes.

(7) Temporary Placement. No portable or trailer-mounted signal receiving antenna shall be allowed,
except for temporary installation for on-site testing and demonstration purposes for periods not exceeding
five (5) days. However, such trial placement shall be in accordance with all provisions of this Section.
Failure to comply shall result in a citation being issued for violation of this Section. Any person making such
temporary placement shall first give written notice to the Zoning Administrator of the date when such
placement shall begin and end.

(8) Advertising. No form of advertising or identification, sign or mural is allowed on the signal
receiving antenna other than the customary manufacturer's identification plates.

(9) Interference with Broadcasting. Signal receiving antennas shall be filtered and/or shielded so as to
prevent the emission or reflection of an electromagnetic radiation that would cause any harmful interference
with the radio and/or television broadcasting or reception on adjacent properties. In the event that harmful
interference is caused subsequent to its installation, the owner of the signal receiving antenna shall promptly
take steps to eliminate the harmful interference in accordance with Federal Communications Commission
regulations.

(10) Compliance with Federal Regulations. The installation and use of every signal receiving antenna
shall be in conformity with the Federal Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984 and regulations adopted
thereunder.

(11) Aesthetic Considerations. Signal receiving antennas shall be located and designed to reasonably
reduce visual impact from surrounding properties at street level.

(f) Enforcement.

(1) It shall be unlawful to construct, use, build or locate any signal receiving antenna in violation of any
provisions of this Section. In the event of any violation, the Village Board or any property owner who would
be specifically damaged by such violation may institute appropriate action or proceedings to enjoin a
violation of this Section.

(2) Any person, firm or corporation who fails to comply with the provisions of this Section shall, upon
conviction, be subject to the general penalty found in Section 1-1-6.

80



Sec. 13-1-111 Wireless Telecommunication Facilities.

(a)

Purpose and Intent.

(b)

(1) The purpose and intent of this section is to strike a balance between the state and federal interest
concerning the construction, modification and siting of mobile service facilities and mobile service
support structures for use in providing personal wireless services, and the Village’s interest in:
a. Protecting residential areas and land uses from the potential adverse impacts of towers
and antennas.

b. Minimizing the total number of towers throughout the community.
c. Encouraging the joint use of new and existing tower sites as a primary siting option
rather than construction of additional single-use towers.
d. Avoiding potential damage to adjacent properties from tower failure through
engineering and careful siting of tower structures.
2) This Section establishes regulations for:
a. The siting and construction of any new mobile service support structure and facilities;
b. With regard to a Class I collocation, the substantial modification of an existing support
structure and mobile service facilities; and
c. With regard to a Class II collocation, collocation on an existing support structure
which does not require the substantial modification of an existing support structure and mobile
service facilities.
3) The regulations contained in this section shall be interpreted to comply with Wis. Stats.
§66.0404, and any amendments thereto. Any provisions within the Code that conflicts with the
Village’s authority under Wis. Stats. §66.0404 shall not be applied to new mobile service support
structure and facilities, class 1 collocation, or class 2 collocation.
Authority. The Village of Turtle Lake has the specific authority under 61.35, 62.23 and 66.0404

Wis. Stats., to adopt and enforce this Section.

(©)

Definitions. Unless expressly indicated, all terms in this Section shall have the meanings established

in Wis. Stats. §66.0404(1).

(@

Siting and Construction of Any New Mobile Service Support Structure and Facilities

(1) A Village zoning permit is required for the siting and construction of any new mobile service

structure and facilities. The siting and construction of any new mobile service support structure and facilities

is a conditional use in the Village obtainable with this permit through the conditional use permit process.

2 An application for a permit to engage in the siting or construction of a new mobile service
support structure and facilities shall be submitted in writing to the Zoning Administrator. The Zoning

Administrator shall submit a copy of the application to the Building Inspectors for review and
recommendation on all structural requirements. The application shall contain the following
information:

a. The name and business address of, and the contact individuals for, the applicant.
b. The location of the proposed or affected support structure.

C. The location of the proposed mobile service facility.

d. If the application is the substantially modify an existing support structure, a

construction plan which describes the proposed modifications to the support structure and the
equipment and network components, including antennas, transmitters, receivers, base stations
power supplies, cabling, and related equipment associated with the proposed modifications.

e. If the application is to construct a new mobile service support structure, a construction
plan which describes the proposed mobile service support structure and the equipment and
network components, including antennas, transmitters, receivers, base stations, power
supplies, cabling, and related equipment to be placed on or around the new mobile service
support structure.

f. If the application is to construct a new mobile service support structure, an explanation
as to why the applicant chose the proposed location and why the applicant did not choose
collocation, including a sworn statement from an individual who has responsibility over the
placement of the mobile service support structure attesting that collocation within the

81



applicant’s search ring would not result in the same mobile service functionality, coverage,
and capacity; is technically infeasible; or is economically burdensome to the mobile service
provider.

g. If the application is to construct a new mobile service support structure, the application
shall demonstrate that the structure will be located a distance from any residential dwelling
structure that is equal to the height of the mobile service support structure plus 10 feet
measured from the base of the support structure to the nearest portion of the residential

dwelling structure (including roof overhangs, porches and patios). Alternatively, the applicant

may demonstrate through submittal of an engineering certification showing that the mobile
service support structure is designed to collapse within a smaller distance than the height of

the structure.
h. The fee for the permit shall be as established in the Village fee schedule [but may not
exceed Three Thousand Dollard ($3.000) per Sec. 66.0404(4)(d), Wis. Stats.].

3 The Zoning Administrator shall inform the applicant within ten (10) days of receipt of the
application if the application is not complete. Notification shall be in writing and shall specify in
detail the information that was incomplete.

4 Within ninety (90) days of receipt of a completed application, the Zoning Administrator shall
issue a written decision to approve or deny the application. If the application is denied, the written
decision shall set forth the reasons for denial based upon substantial evidence. The Zoning
Administrator and the applicant may agree in writing to an extension of the ninety-(90) day period.
(5) Decisions to deny an application shall be supported by substantial evidence. Such evidence
shall be included in the written decision.

6 Pursuant to Wis. Stats. §66.0404 (2 the decision of the Zoning Administrator, or of the
Village Board under subsection (¢)(3), is a final decision appealable to circuit court.

(e) Class 1 Collocation.
(1) A Village Zoning Permit is required for a Class 1 collocation. A Class 1 colocation is a
conditional use in the Village obtainable with this permit through the conditional use permit process of this

Chapter.
2) An application for a permit to engage in a Class I collocation shall be completed by the

applicant and submitted in writing to the Zoning Administrator. The application must contain, at a minimum,
the following information:

a. The name and business address of, and the contact individuals for, the applicant.
b. The location of the proposed or affected support structure.
c. The location of the proposed mobile service facility.

d. If the application is to substantially modify an existing support structure, a
construction plan which describes the proposed modifications to the support structure and the equipment and

network components, including antennas, transmitters, receivers, base stations, power supplies, cabling, and
related equipment associated with the proposed modifications.
e. The fee for the permit shall be as established in the Village fee schedule [but may not
exceed Three Thousand Dollard ($3.,000) per Sec. 66.0404(4)(d), Wis. Stats.].

3 The Zoning Administrator shall inform the applicant within ten (10) days of receipt of the
application if the application is not complete. Notification shall be in writing and shall specify in
detail the information that was incomplete.

4 Within ninety (90) days of receipt of a completed application, the Zoning Administrator shall
issue a written decision to approve or deny the application. If the application is denied, the written
decision shall set forth the reasons for denial based upon substantial evidence. The Zoning
Administrator and the applicant may agree in writing to an extension of the ninety-(90) day period.

5 Decisions to deny an application shall be supported by substantial evidence. Such evidence
shall be included in the written decision.

6 Pursuant to Wis. Stats. §66.0404 (2 the decision of the Zoning Administrator, or of the
Village Board under subsection (¢)(3). is a final decision appealable to circuit court.

82



®

Class 2 Collocation.

(2)

(1) A Village Zoning Permit is required for a Class 2 Collocation. A Class 2 Collocation is a
permitted use in the Village but still requires the issues of a Village building and zoning permit.
2) An application for a permit to engage in Class 2 Collocation shall be completed by the
applicant and submitted in writing to the Zoning Administrator. The application must contain, at a
minimum, the following information:

a. The name and business address of, and the contact individuals for, the applicant.
b. The location of the proposed or affected support structure.
c. The location of the proposed mobile service facility.

2) The Building Inspector shall inform the applicant within five (5) days of receiving the
application if the applicant is not complete. Notification shall be in writing and shall specify in detail
the information that was incomplete.

3) Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of a completed application, the Building Inspector shall
issue a written decision to approve or deny the application, except that the Building Inspector and the
applicant may agree in writing to an extension.

4) Decisions to deny an application shall be supported by substantial evidence. Such evidence
shall be included in the written decision.

(5) The decision of the Building Inspector is a final decision appealable to circuit court.

Abandonment.

(h)

1) If a mobile service support structure shall cease to be used for a period exceeding one year and
a day, it shall be considered abandoned. The owner or operator of said structure shall remove the
structure and related improvements upon at no cost to the Village within ninety (90) days thereafter
and return the site to an erosion and dust free condition. Prior to the issuance of any building or
zoning permits to construct the support structure, a performance bond shall be provided to guarantee
that a support structure that has ceased being used for mobile service facilities purposes is removed.
The bond amount shall be the lesser of twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) or an amount based on a
written estimate of a person qualified to remove such structures. Responsibility to remove abandoned
structured may be assigned to the owner of property upon which the structure is located of any other
mobile service provider with facilities on the structure upon notice to the Zoning Administrator that
such assigned have been made and accepted and filing of a new bond for the new responsible party.
Notwithstanding the forgoing, the owner of property upon which the structure sits may be held jointly
and severally liability by the Village for the obligation and cost of removal of any abandoned
structure and in the event the structure is not removed in accordance with this Section, upon sixty
day’s notice, the Village may cause the structure to be removed and assess the cost thereof to the
property under Wis. Stats. §66.0627.

Structural Requirements.

()

1) Every mobile service support structure and mobile service facility shall be designed and
constructed so as to comply with the requirements of Title 15 of the Village of Turtle Lake Code of
Ordinance, and International Building Code (IBC) 3108, as amended from time to time. If, upon
inspection, the Building Inspector concludes that a structure of facility fails to comply with such
codes in effect at the time of construction, and constitutes a danger to persons or property, then upon
notice being provided to the owner of the structure or facility, the owner shall have thirty (30) days or
such time as determined by the Building Inspector to bring such tower into compliance with said
codes. Failure to bring such structure or facility into compliance within said thirty (30) days or such
time as determined by the Building Inspector shall constitute grounds for the removal of the structure
or facility at owner’s expense.

Tower and Building Design. All new mobile service support structures and facilities shall be

designed as follows:

83



(0]

1) Mobile service facilities and mobile service support structures shall be constructed out of
metal or other nonflammable material.

2) Mobile service facilities and mobile service support structures shall insure that sufficient anti-
climbing measures have been incorporated into the facility, as needed, to reduce potential for trespass
and injury.

3) Emergency back-up generators shall be completely enclosed on all sides. Other efforts to
mitigate noise from such generators may be required.

4 All new mobile service support structures shall be structurally and electrically designed to
accommodate at least three (3) separate antenna arrays, unless credible evidence is presented that said
construction is economically and technologically unfeasible. Multiple-user mobile service support
structures shall be designed to allow for future rearrangement of antennas and to accept antennas
mounted at varying heights. Parking areas, access roads, and utility easements shall be shared by site
users.

(%) Mobile service support structures are not subject to the height restrictions established for any
district in which they are located.

Location. A good faith effort in achieving collocation shall be required of the applicant and host

entity, subject to existing collocation contracts, and all of the following measures shall be implemented for

new mobile service support structures and Class 1 collocations:

1) No mobile service support structure shall be installed closer than one-quarter (1/4) mile from
another mobile service support structure, measured from the base of the existing structure to the base
of the proposed structure, unless the applicant provides a sworn statement from an individual who has

responsibility over the placement of the mobile service structure attesting that collocation within the
applicant’s search ring:

a. Would not result in the same mobile service functionality, coverage, and capacity:
b. is technically infeasible, or
C. is economically burdensome to the mobile service provider.

2) Mobile service support structure(s) may be located on a lot in a residential district, only if said
lot is greater than two (2) acres in area and the principal use is other than residential.

3) Mobile service support structures towers, guy wires, appurtenant equipment and buildings
shall comply with the yard and setback requirements of the zoning district in which they are located.
4 Mobile service support structures shall be located no closer to any residential dwelling
structure than a distance that is equal to the height of the mobile service support structure and
attached facilities (including possible future collected facilities) plus 10 feet measured from the base
of the support structure to the nearest portion of the residential dwelling structure (including roof
overhangs, porches and patios) unless the applicant demonstrates through submittal of an engineerin
certification showing that the mobile service support structure is designed to collapse within a smaller
distance than the height of the structure and attached facilities (including possible future collected

facilities). Unless the Building Inspector can demonstrate by substantial evidence that the

engineering certification is flawed, the mobile service support structure shall be located no closer to

any residential dwelling structure than zone of collapse established by the engineering certification
plus 10 feet.




85















Sec. 13-1-112 through Sec. 13-1-119 Reserved for Future Use.

P {Commented [SB26]: Move this to Article D










93



94


















100






SEC. 13-1-146-132 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-149 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

102



ARTICLE JL
AdministrationADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES

SEC. 13-1-150 PURPOSEGENERAL-ADMINISTRATIVE-SYSTEM:

The purpose of this Article is to establish responsibilities for the administration of this Chapter, and the
enforcement procedures and penalties for non-compliance with the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance. The
purpose of this Article is to establish procedural requirements for zoning text amendments, zoning map
amendments, and various development approvals under this Chapter, including but not limited to conditional

use permits, variances, and site plan review and approval. Fhis-Chapter-contemplates-an-administrative-and-
C, CO A 1 " 1 11cten " q 1a1c . C a3 oo a1

SEC. 13-1-151 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR.
The Village Board shall designate a Village official to serve as the Zoning Administrator and as the
administrative enforcement officer for the provisions of this Chapter. The duty of the Zoning Administrator
shall be to interpret and administer this Chapter and to issue, after on-site inspection, all permits required by
this Chapter. The Zoning Administrator shall further:

(a) Maintain records of all permits issued, inspections made, work approved and other official actions.

(b) Record the lowest floor elevations of all structures erected, moved, altered or improved in the
floodland districts.

(c) Establish that all necessary permits that are required for floodland uses by state and federal law have
been secured.

(d) Inspect all structures, lands and waters as often as necessary to assure compliance with this Chapter.

(e) Investigate all complaints made relating to the location of structures and the use of structures, lands
and waters, give notice of all violations of this Chapter to the owner, resident, agent or occupant of the
premises and report uncorrected violations to the Village Attorney in a manner specified by him.

(f) Prohibit the use or erection of any structure, land or water until he has inspected and approved such use
or erection.

(g) Request assistance and cooperation from the Police Department, Village Clerk-Treasurer, Building
Inspector and Village Attorney as deemed necessary.

SEC. 13-1-152 ROLE OF SPECIFIC VILLAGE OFFICIALS IN ZONING ADMINISTRATION.

(a) Plan Commission. The Plan Commission, together with its other statutory duties, shall make reports
and recommendations relating to the plan and development of the Village to the Village Board, other public
officials and other interested organizations and citizens. In general, the Plan Commission shall have such
powers as may be necessary to enable it to perform its functions and promote municipal planning. Under this
Chapter, its functions are primarily recommendatory to the Village Board pursuant to guidelines set forth in
this Chapter as to various matters and, always, being mindful of the intent and purposes of this Chapter.
Recommendations shall be in writing. A recording thereof in the Commission's minutes shall constitute the
required written recommendation. The Commission may, in arriving at its recommendation, on occasion of
its own volition, conduct its own public hearing.

(b) Village Board. The Village Board, the governing body of the Village, subject to recommendations by
the Plan Commission and the holding of public hearings by said Board, has ultimate authority to grant
permitted conditional uses; planned-unit-developmentconditional-uses, make changes and amendments in
zoning districts, the zoning map and supplementary floodland zoning map and to amend the text of this
Chapter. The Village Board may delegate to the Plan Commission the responsibility to hold some or all

103



public hearings as required under this chapter.

(c) —fe)y—Zoning Board of Appeals. A Zoning Board of Appeals is established to provide an appeal
procedure for persons who deem themselves aggrieved by decisions of administrative officers in
enforcement of this Chapter. See-Asrticle N-of this-Chapterfor-detatl-provisions-The Board of Appeals
shall have the following powers:

(1) Errors. To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order,
requirement, decision or determination made by the Zoning Administrator or Building Inspector.

(2) Variances. To hear and grant appeals for variances as will not be contrary to the public
interest where, owing to practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit and purposes of
this Chapter shall be observed and the public safety, welfare and justice secured. Use variances shall
not be granted.

(3) Interpretations. To hear and decide application for interpretations of the zoning
regulations and the boundaries of the zoning districts after the Plan Commission has made a review and
recommendation.

(4) Substitutions. To hear and grant applications for substitution of more restrictive
nonconforming uses for existing nonconforming uses provided no structural alterations are to be
made and the Plan Commission has made a review and recommendation. Whenever the Board
permits such a substitution, the use may not thereafter be changed without application.

(5) Unclassified Uses. To hear and grant applications for unclassified and unspecified uses
provided that such uses are similar in character to the principal uses permitted in the district and the
Plan Commission has made a review and recommendation.

(6) Temporary Uses. To hear and grant applications for temporary uses, in any district
provided that such uses are of a temporary nature, do not involve the erection of a substantial
structure and are compatible with the neighboring uses and the Plan Commission has made a review
and recommendation. The permit shall be temporary, revocable, subject to any condition required by
the Board of Zoning Appeals and shall be issued for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months.
Compliance with all other provisions of this Chapter shall be required.

(7) Permits. The Board may reverse, affirm wholly or partly, modify the requirements
appealed from and may issue or direct the issue of a permit.

SEC. XX-X-XXX REVIEW AND APPROVAL REQUIRED
(a) Review procedures vary depending on the type of request; however, procedures within this Article
generally adhere to three common elements:
(1) Submittal of a complete application, including fee payment and appropriate supplemental
information.
(2) Review by appropriate Village staff and/or officials.
(3) Action by appropriate Village officials or staff to approve, conditionally approve, or deny
the request.
(b) Table XX summarizes the procedures, agencies, and personnel involved in various procedures

authorized by this Chapter. The table is provided as a convenience for the Village and general public.
Where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and Table XX, the text shall prevail.

104



Table XX Review and Approval Activities and Bodies:

c T e
9 I ©| =
— 7 O o] 8
. . G cf v o o
Application Process s‘ E| c o
n Q. IS S| <
S o | w
© s N
Zoning Ordinance Amendment RR RR PH,RE, A
Zoning Map Amendment PM*, RR RR RR, RE, A
Conditional Use Permit RR PH, RR RE, A
Zoning Permit RE, IP
Site Plan RR RE, A
Planned Development District PM*, RR PH, RR RE, A
Interpretation RE, A Appeal Only
Variance RR PH, RE, A
Appeal RR PH, RE, A
Violations and Penalties RE, A
Floodplain Map Amendment Refer to Wisconsin DNR/FEMA
Sign Permit RE, IP \ |
RE = Review and Evaluate IP = Issues Permit RR = Review and Recommend
PH = Public Hearing PM = Public Meeting A = Final Action
*If determined to be necessary by the Zoning Administrator or designee.

Note: This table is not exhaustive. Some procedures may not be covered within this table including Land Division
approvals required under Title 14, Subdivision Regulations.

SEC. XX-X-XXX ZONING ORDINANCE (TEXT OR MAP) AMENDMENT

(a) Authority. Whenever the public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning practice requires
the Village Board may, by ordinance, change the district boundaries established by this Chapter and the
Zoning Map incorporated herein or amend, change or supplement the text of the regulations established by
this Chapter or amendments thereto. Such change or amendment shall be subject to the review and

recommendation of the Plan Commission with final action by the Village Board.

(b) Initiation of Changes or Amendments. The Village Board, the Plan Commission, the Zoning Board of
Appeals and other government bodies and any private petitioners may apply for an amendment to the text of

this Chapter or to the District boundaries hereby established or by amendments hereto in the accompanying
zoning map made a part of this Chapter.

(c) Procedures for Changes or Amendments.

(1) Application. Petitions for any change to the district boundaries and map(s) or amendments to
the text regulations shall be addressed to the Village Board and shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator,
describe the premises to be rezoned or the portions of text of regulations to be amended, list the reasons
justifying the petition, specify the proposed use, if applicable, and have attached the following, if petition be
for change of district boundaries:

a. Plot plan, drawn to a scale of one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet showing the area
proposed to be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the location and classification of adjacent zoning
districts and the location and existing use of all properties within three hundred (300) feet of the area
proposed to be rezoned.

b. Owners' names and addresses of all properties lying within one hundred (100) feet of the

area proposed to be rezoned.

c. Fee. The fee for a rezoning amendment shall be as set forth in the Village’s annual fee

105




schedule.
3. Together with additional information as may be required by the Plan Commission or Village
Board.

2 Review Standards. The Zoning Administrator, or designee, and other Village Departments shall

review the complete application and evaluate whether the proposed amendment:

a. Advances the purposes of this Chapter as outlined in Section XXXXXX.

b. Advances the purposes of the general Article in which the amendment is proposed to be
located.

c. Advances the purposes of the specific Section in which the amendment is proposed to be
located.

d. Is in harmony with the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan.

e. Maintains the desired overall consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use
impacts within the pertinent zoning districts.

f. Addresses any of the following factors that may not be addressed in the current zoning text:

1. A change in the land market, or other factors which require a new form of

development, a new type of land use, or a new procedure to meet said change(s). New methods of
development or types of infrastructure.

2. Changing governmental finances to meet the needs of the government in terms of
providing and affording public services.

3. Any other factor deemed appropriate by the Village.

(3) Public Hearing Required.

a.  Within 90 days of filing of a complete application, the Village Board shall hold a public hearing to
consider the proposed zoning change or amendment, giving notice of the time, place and the change or
amendment proposed by publication of a Class 2 notice, under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes. At
least ten (10) days prior, written notice shall also be given to the clerk of any municipality within one
thousand (1,000) feet of any land to be affected by the proposed change or amendment.

b. A public hearing may be held more than 90 days from filing of the complete application when
requested by the applicant in writing.

c. The Village Board may delegate to the Plan Commission the responsibility to hold public hearings as
required under this Section.

(4) Plan Commission Review and Recommendation.

a. The Village Board or the Village Administrator shall cause the petition to be forwarded to the Plan
Commission for its consideration and recommendation.

b. Within 60 days of the public hearing, the Plan Commission shall make its recommendations
regarding the application. Said recommendation may include a formal finding of facts developed and

approved by the Plan Commission and whether the public benefits outweigh any and all potential adverse
impacts of the proposed amendment.

d. The Plan Commission shall review all proposed amendments to the text and zoning map(s) within
the corporate limits and shall recommend in writing that the petition be granted as requested, modified or
denied. A recording of the recommendation in the Plan Commission's official minutes shall constitute the
required written recommendation. In arriving at its recommendation, the Commission may on occasion, of its
own volition, conduct its own public hearing on proposed amendment(s).

e. If'the Plan Commission fails to make a recommendation within 60 days of the public hearing, the
Village Board may hold a public hearing within 30 days after the expiration of said 60-day period. Failure to
receive said recommendation from the Plan Commission shall not invalidate the proceedings or actions of the
Village Board. If a public hearing is necessary, the Village Board shall provide notice per the requirements
of Section XXXXXX.

(5) Village Board Review and Action.

106



a. Following the require public hearing and after consideration of the Plan
Commission's recommendations, the Village Board shall review the proposed
amendment. The Village Board may request further information and/or additional
reports from the Plan Commission, Zoning Administrator (or designee), the
applicant, and/or any other entity as it sees fit.

b. The Village Board may refer the matter back to the Plan Commission. In such cases,
the Village Board shall specify the issue(s) to be addressed in further detail.

c. The Village Board may take final action (by ordinance) on the application at the time
of'its initial meeting or may continue the proceedings by its own decision or the
applicant’s request. The Village Board may approve the amendment as originally
proposed, may approved the proposed amendment with modifications, or may deny

approval of the proposed amendment. The Plan Commission's recommendations
may only be overruled by three-fourths (3/4) of the full Board membership.

(d) Effect of Denial. No application which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall be resubmitted
for a period of 365 days from the date of said order of denial, except on grounds of new evidence or material
changes of circumstances.

(e) Protest.

(1) In the event of a protest against amendment to the zoning map, duly signed and acknowledged by the
owners of twenty percent (20%) or more, either of the areas of the land included in such proposed change, or
by the owners of twenty percent (20%) or more of the land immediately adjacent extending one hundred
(100) feet therefrom, or by the owners of twenty percent (20%) or more of the land directly opposite thereto
extending one hundred (100) feet from the street frontage of such opposite land, such changes or
amendments shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the full Village
Board membership.

(2) In the event of protest against amendment to the text of the regulations of this Chapter, duly signed
and acknowledged by twenty percent (20%) of the number of persons casting ballots in the last general
election, it shall cause a three-fourths (3/4) vote of the full Village Board membership to adopt such
amendment.

SEC. XX-X-XXX CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCEDURES & STANDARDS
(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to provide regulations which govern the procedure and
requirements for the review and approval, or denial, or proposed conditional uses.

(b) Applicability. There are certain uses, which because of their unique characteristics, may have a high
potential to create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, public facilities, or the community as a whole.
In these cases, specific standards, regulations, or conditions may be established.

c Initiation of Request for Conditional Use. Any person, firm, corporation or organization having a
freehold interest or a possessory interest entitled to exclusive possession, or a contractual interest which may
become a freehold interest, or an exclusive possessory interest, and which is specifically enforceable in the
land for which a conditional use is sought may file an application to use such land for one (1) or more of the
conditional uses provided for in this Chapter in the zoning district in which such land is located.

(d) Application for Conditional Use.

(1) An application for a conditional use shall be filed on a form prescribed by the Village. A
non-refundable application fee, as set forth in the annual Village fee schedule, shall be paid
at the time of application. The application shall be accompanied by a plan showing the
location, size and shape of the lot(s) involved and of any proposed structures, the existing
and proposed use of each structure and lot, and shall include a statement in writing by the

107




applicant and adequate evidence showing that the proposed conditional use shall conform to
the standards set forth in Section 13-1-46 hereinafter.

(2) The Plan Commission or Village Board may require such other information as may be
necessary to determine and provide for an enforcement of this Chapter, including a plan
showing contours and soil types: highwater mark and groundwater conditions; bedrock,
vegetative cover, specifications for areas of proposed filling, grading, and lagooning;
location of buildings, parking areas, traffic access, driveways, walkways, open spaces and
landscaping; plans of buildings, sewage disposal facilities, water supply systems and
arrangements of operations. When considering a development proposal or land use change,
the Village may require additional studies, benefits-costs analysis, or other information, at
its discretion and potentially at the developer’s expense. Such studies or information may
be needed to analyze factors such as: land use compatibility, potential impacts (e.g.
transportation, fiscal, environment, public health, property values), engineering studies or
place, and whether other standards are sufficiently met).

(e) Public Hearing Required.
(1) All requests for conditional uses shall be referred to the Plan Commission or the Plan

Commission can, on its own motion, apply conditional uses when applications for rezoning
come before it. Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit the Village Board, on its own motion,

from referring the request for conditional use to the Plan Commission. Upon receipt of the
application and statement referred to in Section 13-1-43 above, the Plan Commission shall
hold a public hearing on each application for a conditional use at such time and place as

shall be established by such Commission. The hearing shall be conducted and a record of the

proceedings shall be preserved in such a manner and according to such procedures as the
Plan Commission shall, by rule, prescribe from time to time.

(2) Notice of Public Hearing. Notice of the time, place and purpose of such hearing shall be
given by publication of a Class 2 Notice under the Wisconsin Statutes in the official Village
newspaper. Notice of the time, place and purpose of such public hearing shall also be sent to
the applicant, the Zoning Administrator, members of the Village Board and Plan
Commission, and the owners of record as listed in the office of the Village Assessor who are
owners of property in whole or in part situated within one hundred (100) feet of the
boundaries of the properties affected. Said notice to be sent at least ten (10) days prior to the
date of such public hearing.

Conditional Use Permit Review Standards. In determining whether to approve, approve with
conditions, or deny a request for issuance of a conditional use permit, the Plan Commission and the
Village Board shall consider all relevant factors specific in other sections of this Ordinance, including
standards for specific requirements for certain land uses and activities. If an applicant for a conditional
use permit meets or agrees to meet all of the requirements and conditions specific in this Chapter or
imposed by the Village, the Village shall grant the conditional use permit. The applicant must

demonstrate by substantial evidence that the applicant and all requirements and conditions established
by the Village are or shall be satisfied. No application for a conditional use shall be recommended for

approval by the Plan Commission or granted by the Village Board unless such Commission and Board
shall find all of the following conditions are present:

) That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will not be

detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.

2) That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for purposes
already permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially impaired or diminished by
the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use and the proposed use is
compatible with the use of adjacent land.

3) That the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly

108



development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.
(4) That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site improvements have

been or are being provided. The Village will consider the availability and potential impacts to
public services, especially sanitary sewer, water lines, storm sewers, fire protection, parks,
transportation networks, and schools, and ensure that any needed services be available or that
such services could be made available safely and efficiently.

(%) That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed
as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

(6) That the conditional use shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in which it is
located.

(7 That the proposed use does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site.

(8) That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building or an addition

to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in mind the statement of
purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed building or addition at its location does
not defeat the purposes and objective of the zoning district.

9 That, in addition to passing upon a Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission and Board
shall also evaluate the effect of the proposed use upon:
a. The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions.
b The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation.
[ Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site.
d. The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers and
streams.
e. The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope. soil type
and vegetative cover.
f. The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads.
g. The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location.
h. Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land.
i The amount of liquid wastes to be generated and the adequacy of the proposed disposal
systems.

j. Potential negative impacts on environmentally sensitive areas or other critical community services
e.g.. schools, nursing care, governmental) are prevented or mitigated. New development
reconstruction, and infrastructure projects should consider and apply resource conservation
techniques and best practices that reduce energy demand and promote air and water quality
improvements.
(10) The use is in harmony with the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan.
(11)  The conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not impose an
undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public or private
agencies serving the subject property.

(h) Plan Commission Review and Recommendation.

1) Following public hearing, the Plan Commission shall review the proposed Conditional Use
Permit request with the review standards in Section XXXXX.
2) The Plan Commission shall report its advisory recommendations to the Village Board within thirty

(30) days after a matter has been referred to. If such action has not been reported by the Plan Commission

within thirty (30) days, the Village Board can act without such recommendation.

(h) Village Board Review and Action.

(1) Within 60 days after the filing of a Conditional Use Permit application, the Village Board shall
make its findings and take final action on the application.

2) The Village Board may. by resolution, authorize the Zoning Administrator to issue a

conditional use permit after review, public hearing and advisory recommendation from the Plan

Commission, provided that such conditional use and involved structure(s) are found to be in accordance with

109




the purpose and intent of this Zoning Code and evaluation of the standards for conditional uses as outlined in
Section XX-XX-XX. Prior to the granting of a conditional use, the Commission shall make findings based
upon the evidence presented that the standards herein prescribed are being complied with.

3) Any development within five hundred (500) feet of the existing or proposed rights-of-way of
freeways, expressways and within one-half (%) mile of their existing or proposed interchange or turning lane
rights-of-way shall be specifically reviewed by the highway agency that has jurisdiction over the traffic way.
The Plan Commission shall request such review and await the highway agency's recommendation for a
period not to exceed twenty (20) days before taking final action.

(4) Conditions, as further described in Section XX-X-XX of this Article may be required by the Village
Board upon its finding that these are necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of this Chapter.

(5) Compliance with all other provisions of this Chapter, such as lot width and area, yards, height,
parking, loading, traffic, highway access and performance standards shall be required of all conditional uses.

(1) Action on a Conditional Use Permit

(1) The Village Board may take the final action on the application at the time of the public hearing or
may continue the proceedings at its discretion or at the applicant’s request. The Board may approve
the conditional use as originally proposed, may approve the proposed conditional use with
modifications, or may deny approval of the proposed conditional use. The requirements and
conditions described must be reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable and may include
conditions such as the permit’s duration or renewal. The applicant and all requirements and
conditions established by the Village relating to the conditional use are or shall be satisfied, both of
which must be supported by substantial evidence.

(2) The Village’s approval of the proposed conditional use shall be considered the approval of a unique
request, and shall not be construed as precedent for any other proposed conditional use.

(3) When an advisory recommendation or determination of denial of a conditional use application is
made, the Plan Commission/Village Board shall furnish the applicant, in writing when so requested,
those standards that are not met and enumerate reasons the Commission/Board has used in
determining that each standard was not met. Per Wisconsin Statutes §62.23(7)(de), if the Village
denies a conditional use permit application, the applicant may appeal the decision to the circuit court
under the procedures contained in Statute.

(4) Effect of Denial: No application which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall be resubmitted
for a period of 6 months from the date of denial, except on grounds of new evidence or proof of
change of factors.

(i) Conditions and Guarantees

(1) Conditions. Prior to the granting of any conditional use, the Village Board may stipulate such
conditions and restrictions upon the establishment, location, construction, maintenance and operation of the
conditional use as deemed necessary to promote the public health, safety and general welfare of the
community, and to secure compliance with the standards and requirements specified in Section 13-1-46
above. In all cases in which conditional uses are granted, the Board shall require such evidence and
guarantees as it may deem necessary as proof that the conditions stipulated in connection therewith are being
and will be complied with. Any condition imposed must be related to the purpose of this Chapter and be
based on substantial evidence. The requirements and conditions must be reasonable and, to the extent
practicable, measurable and may include conditions such as the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal. The
applicant must demonstrate that the application and all requirements and conditions established by the
Village related to the conditional use are or shall be satisfied, both of which must be supported by substantial
evidence. Such conditions may include specifications for, without limitation because of specific
enumeration:

a. Landscaping;
b. Type of construction;

c. Construction commencement and completion dates;
d. Sureties:;

110



e. Lighting;

f. Fencing;

2. Operational control;

h. Hours of operation;
i. Traffic circulation;
j. Deed restrictions;

k. Access restrictions;

1. Setbacks and yards:;
m. Type of shore cover:
n
o

Specified sewage disposal and water supply systems;
Planting screens;
p. Piers and docks;

q. Increased parking:
r._Duration of conditional use; or

s. Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of this Chapter.

2) Site Review. In making its recommendation, the Plan Commission shall evaluate each application and
may request assistance from any source which can provide technical assistance. The Commission or Board
may review the site, existing and proposed structures, architectural plans, neighboring uses, parking areas,
driveway locations, highway access, traffic generation and circulation, drainage, sewerage and water systems
and the proposed operation/use.

(3) Alteration of Conditional Use. No alteration of a conditional use shall be permitted unless approved by
the Village Board after recommendation from the Plan Commission.

(4) Architectural Treatment. Proposed architectural treatment will be in general harmony with
surrounding uses and the landscape. To this end, the Village Board may require the use of certain general
types of exterior construction materials and/or architectural treatment.

(5) Sloped Sites: Unsuitable Soils. Where slopes exceed six percent (6%) and/or where a use is proposed
to be located on areas indicated as having soils which are unsuitable or marginal for development, on-site soil
tests and/or construction plans shall be provided which clearly indicate that the soil conditions are adequate
to accommodate the development contemplated and/or that any inherent soil condition or slope problems will
be overcome by special construction techniques. Such special construction might include, among other
techniques, terracing, retaining walls, oversized foundations and footings, drain tile, etc.

(6) Conditional Uses to Comply with Other Requirements. Conditional uses shall comply with all other
provisions of this Chapter such as lot width and area, yards, height, parking and loading.

(1) Validity of Conditional Use Permit.

(1) Conditional uses authorized by Village Board resolution shall be established for a period of time to a
time certain or until a future happening or event at which the same shall terminate.

(2) Where the Village Board has approved or conditionally approved an application for a conditional use,
such approval shall become null and void within twelve (12) months of the date of the Board's action unless
the use is commenced. construction is underway or the current owner possesses a valid building permit under
which construction is commenced within six (6) months of the date of issuance and which shall not be
renewed unless construction has commenced and is being diligently prosecuted. Approximately forty-five
(45) days prior to the automatic revocation of such permit, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the holder
by certified mail of such revocation. The Board may extend such permit for a period of ninety (90) days for
justifiable cause, if application is made to the Village Board at least thirty (30) days before the expiration of

said permit.

2) Once granted, a conditional use permit shall remain in effect as long as the conditions upon which the
permit was issued are followed, but the Village may impose conditions such as the permit’s duration,
transfer, or renewal, in addition to any other conditions specified in the zoning ordinance or by the Village
Plan Commission or Village Board.

111



3) Discontinuing an Approved Conditional Use. Any and all conditional uses which have been
discontinued for a period exceeding 365 days shall have their conditional use invalidated automatically. The
burden of proof shall be on the property owner to conclusively demonstrate that the subject conditional use
was operational during this period.

(4) Termination. Conditional use(s), when replaced by permitted use(s), shall terminate. In such case(s),
the reestablishment of any previous conditional use(s), or establishment of a new conditional use(s) shall
require review, public hearing and approval by the Village Board in accordance with Article D of this
Chapter.

(6) Substitution. Conditional uses authorized by the Village Board shall not be subject to substitution

with other conditional uses, whether similar type or not, without Village Board approval and the procedures
required in Article D.

(1) Complaints Regarding Conditional Uses. The Village Board shall retain continuing jurisdiction over
all conditional uses for the purpose of resolving complaints against all previously approved conditional uses.
Such authority shall be in addition to the enforcement authority of the Zoning Administrator to order the
removal or discontinuance of any unauthorized alterations of an approved conditional use, and the

elimination, removal or discontinuance of any violation of a condition imposed prior to or after approval or
violation of any other provision of this Code. Upon written complaint by any citizen or official and after

seeking an advisory recommendation from the Plan Commission, the Village Board shall initially determine
whether said complaint indicates a reasonable probability that the subject conditional use is in violation of
either one (1) or more of the standards set forth in Section 13-1-46 above, a condition of approval or other
requirement imposed hereunder. Upon reaching a positive initial determination, a hearing shall be held upon
notice as provided in Section 13-1-45 above. Any person may appear at such hearing and testify in person or
represented by an agent or attorney. The Village Board may, in order to bring the subject conditional use into
compliance with the standards set forth in Section 13-1-46 or conditions previously imposed by the Village
Board, modify existing conditions upon such use and impose additional reasonable conditions upon the
subject conditional use. In the event that no reasonable modification of such conditional use can be made in
order to assure that Standards (a) and (b) in Section 13-1-46 will be met, the Village Board may revoke the
subject conditional approval and direct the Zoning Administrator and the Village Attorney to seek
elimination of the subject use. Following any such hearing, the decision of the Village Board shall be
furnished to the current owner of the conditional use in writing stating the reasons therefor. The basis for

permit termination or revocation must be supported by substantial evidence.

(k) Conditional Use - Sexually Oriented Businesses

(1) Findings and Purpose. The Village Board finds that due to their nature, the existence of sexually
oriented businesses in the Village have serious objectionable operational characteristics, such as an effect
upon property values, local commerce and crime. Due to the deleterious combined effect on adjacent areas
when such uses are concentrated, or when located in close proximity to premises which serve alcoholic
beverages, fermented malt beverages, or wine for consumption on site, such uses should not be permitted to
be located in close proximity to each other or to premises serving such beverages. Special regulation of these
uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not contribute to the blighting or downgrading of
the surrounding neighborhood. Such regulations are contained in these standards. These standards are
designed to protect the Village's retail trade, maintain property values, prevent crime, control the spread of
disease, and, in general protect and preserve the quality of the Village's neighborhoods, commercial districts
and the quality of Village life.

(2) Standards. A sexually oriented business is permitted only as a conditional use and only in the B-H
district, provided that:

a. Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1.000) feet of any residence or single/multi-family

residential district designated within this Chapter (this includes the R-R, R-2, R-3, R-4, MHTH, R-T, P-C
Districts).

112



b.  Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1.000) feet of any public or private school, day
care premises, nursery, church, park, or any building used even upon occasion as such.

¢. Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of another adult book store, adult
entertainment establishment, or adult motion picture theater.

d. Such use shall not be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of any establishment that serves or
sells or disperses any alcohol beverages for consumption on-site.

e. Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of any premises which is licensed by
the Village of Turtle Lake or any other governmental body to sell, serve, or dispense alcoholic beverages,
fermented malt beverages or wine for consumption on site.

f. Such use shall not be located on or in premises which are licensed by the Village of Turtle Lake to
sell, serve, or dispense alcoholic beverages, fermented malt beverages or wine for consumption on site.

(3) Exemptions. The provisions of this Section do not apply to the following establishments: theaters
performing arts centers, civic centers, and dinner theaters where live dance, ballet, music and dramatic
performances of serious artistic merit are offered on a regular basis and in which the predominant business or
attraction is not of the type or nature offered by a sexually oriented business as defined in Section 13-1-
180(a)(4), (5) and (6) of this Code of Ordinances.

(4) Miscellaneous.

a. The distances provided in this Section shall be measured by following a straight line, without regard
to intervening buildings, from the nearest point of the lot upon which the proposed use is to be located, to the
nearest point of the zoning district boundary line or the lot from which the proposed use is to be separated.

b. Violation of these provisions is declared to be a public nuisance per se.

c. Nothing in this Section is intended to authorize, legalize or permit the establishment, operation of

maintenance of any business. building or use which violates any Village ordinance, county ordinance, or
statute of the State of Wisconsin regarding public nuisances, sexual conduct, lewdness or obscene or harmful

matter or the exhibition or public display thereof.

(1) Conditional Use — Specific Livestock Operations
(1) Generally. This section describes the procedural requirements relating to the conditional use permit
review of a new or expanded livestock operations that will have 500 or more animal units, as required under
XXXXX.

2 Initiation. The owner of the subject property may submit an application for the establishment of a
livestock operation.
3) Application and Review Procedure. The general steps outlined below shall be used in the review of
an application for a Conditional use permit for a new or expanded livestock operations.

a. Pre-submittal meeting. Before submitting an application, the applicant or the applicant’s agent
may meet with the Zoning Administrator to review applicable regulations and procedures and the
proposed livestock operation.

b. Submittal of application materials. The applicant shall submit 4 copies of the completed
application form and worksheets prescribed by s. ATCP 51.30, Wis. Admin Code, to the Zoning
Administrator, submission of a nutrient management plan, along with the application fee as may
be established by the Village Board in the Village’s annual fee schedule.

c. Determination of completeness. Within 45 days of submittal, the Zoning Administrator shall

determine whether the application is complete or incomplete. If the Zoning Administrator
determines that the application is incomplete, he or she shall send the applicant a written notice

that describes the reason or reasons why the application is incomplete. If the Zoning
Administrator determines that the application is complete, he or she shall send a written notice to
the applicant within 14 days of such determination.

d. Notice to adjacent property owners. Within 14 days of a determination of completeness, the
Zoning Administrator shall mail a completed notice as in ch. ATCP 51, Wis. Admin. Code to the
recorded owner of each parcel of land that is adjacent to the proposed livestock facility. Such
notices shall be mailed by first class mail. Failure to comply with the notice requirement under
this subsection does not invalidate the approval of a proposed livestock facility, or create a cause

113




of action by a property owned against the Village of Turtle Lake or any Village committee,
Village Board, or employee.

e. Public Hearing. The Zoning Administrator may schedule a public hearing on the application
within 90 days after issuing notice of a complete application.

f. Standards. The standards for issuing a permit are as follows:
1. The state livestock facility siting standards adopted under ATCP 51, Wis. Adm. Code. These
standards are incorporated by reference, without reproducing them in full.
2. Setbacks authorized by this ordinance.

g. Criteria for Issuance of a Permit
1. A permit shall be issued if the application for the proposed livestock facility contains
sufficient credible information to show, in the absence of clear and convincing information to the
contrary, that the proposed livestock facility meets the standards specific in this ordinance.
2. A permit may be denied if any of the following apply:

i The application, on its face, fails to meet the standards for approval.

ii. The Village finds, based on other clear and convincing information in the record, that
the proposed livestock facility does not comply with applicable standards in this
ordinance.

iii. Other grounds authorized by s. 93.90, Stats., that warrant disapproving the proposed
livestock facility.

3. No conditions may be imposed on a permit other than the standards provided in the ordinance.
h. Record of Decision.

1. The Village Board shall issue its decision in writing. Its decision shall be based on written
findings of fact supported by evidence in the record.

2. In the event that a permit is approved, the applicant shall receive a duplicate copy of the
approved application, marked “approved.” The duplicate copy must include worksheets,
maps, and other documents (other than engineering specifications) included in the application.

i. Notice to the Department. The Village Clerk as required by ATCP 51.36 within 30 days of the

Village decision on the application shall do all of the following:

1. Give the Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection written notice of the
town/county decision.

2. File with the Department a copy of the final application granted or denied, if the Village has
granted or denied an application under this ordinance. (The copy shall include all of the
worksheets, maps, and other attachments included in the application, except that it is not
required to include the engineering design specifications.)

3. Ifthe Village has withdrawn a local approval under this ordinance, file with the department a
copy of the Village final notice or order withdrawing the local approval.

. Expiration of Permit. A permit remains in effect regardless of the amount of time that elapses
before the livestock operator exercises the full authority granted under the permit, and
regardless of whether the livestock operator exercises the full authority granted by the
approval. However, the Village may treat a permit as lapsed and withdraw the permit if the
permit holder fails to do all of the following within 2 years after issuance of the permit: (1)
Begin populating the new or expanded livestock facility, or (2) Begin constructing all of the
new or expanded livestock housing or waste storage structures proposed in the permit
application.

k. Permit Modifications. The operator may make reasonable changes that maintain compliance
with the standards in this ordinance, and the Village shall not withhold authorization for those
changes.

L. Compliance Monitoring. The Village shall monitor compliance with the ordinance as follows:

1. Upon notice to the livestock facility owner the Village may request the right of the Zoning
Administrator to personally view the permitted facility at a reasonable time and date to insure
that all commitments of the application as approved are being complied with.

2. Ifthe livestock facility owner refuses the Zoning Administrator the right to view the permitted

114




facility, the Zoning Administrator may request the assistance of the Sheriff or a deputy Sheriff
to obtain an inspection warrant for the circuit court to inspect the permitted facility for the
purpose of protection of the public health and safety under Sec. 66.0119 of Wis. Statutes.

3. If a permitted facility is found not to be in compliance with the commitments made in the
approved application, the Zoning Administrator shall issue a written notice to the livestock
facility owner stating the conditions of non-compliance and directing that compliance of the
commitments of the approved application and be complied with in a reasonable amount of
time stated in this written notice.

4. Ifnon-compliance of the permit conditions as described in the written notice given by the
Zoning Administrator continue past the stated reasonable time to comply, the Zoning
Administrator may take further action as provided in this ordinance, including but not limited
to issuance of a citation or seeking of injunctive relief.

5. If the livestock facility owner disputes that the conditions of the permit have not been
complied with, the livestock facility owner may request a hearing in writing within five days
of receipt of the notice of non-compliance. The Village Board shall schedule a hearing within
five days to determine if the conditions of the permit have been complied with or whether
non-compliance of the commitments of the approved application and local approval exists.

m. Terms of the Permit. A permit and the privileges granted by a permit issued under this
ordinance is conditioned on the livestock operator’s compliance with the standards in this
ordinance, and with commitments made in the application for a permit. The Village is
authorized to suspect a permit or seek other redress provided in this ordinance for non-
compliance.

n. Transferability. A permit and the privileges granted by the permit run with the land, and
remain in effect, despite a change in ownership of the livestock facility, as long as the new
operator does not violate the terms of the local approval. An applicant may record with the
register of deeds, at the applicant’s expense, the duplicate copy of the approved application.

Upon change of ownership of the livestock facility, the new owner of the facility shall file

information with the Village Clerk providing pertinent information, including but not limited

to such information as the name and address of the new owner and date of transfer of

ownership.
0. Appeal Of Decision on Livestock Facilities Conditional Use Permit

1. In addition to other appeal rights provided by law, Sec. 93.90(5), Wis. Stats., provides
that any “aggrieved person” may request review by the Livestock Facility Siting Review Board and any
decision by the Village Board in connection with a permit application. An “aggrieved person” may challenge
the decision on the grounds that the Village Board incorrectly applied the standards under this Article or
violated Sec. 93.30, Wis. Stats.

2. An “aggrieved person” under this section as defined in Sec. 93.90(5) of Wis. Stats.
Means a person who applied to the Village for approval of a livestock siting or expansion, a person who lives
within 2 miles of the livestock facility that is proposed to be sites or expanded. or a person who owns land
within 2 miles of a livestock facility that is proposed to be sited or expanded.

3. Any appeal to the State Livestock Facility Siting Review Board shall comply with Sec.
93.90 of Wis. Statutes and administrative rules of said board.

SEC. 13-1-153 ZONING PERMIT.

(a) Zoning Permit Required. No new structure, new use of land, water or air or change in the use of land,
water or air shall hereafter be permitted and no structure or part thereof shall hereafter be located, erected,
moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted or structurally altered without a zoning permit.

(b) Applications for a zoning permit shall be made to the Zoning Administrator and shall include the
following where pertinent and necessary for proper review:

(1) Names and addresses of the applicant, owner of the site, architect, professional engineer and
contractor.
115



(2) Description of the subject site by lot, block and recorded subdivision or by metes and bounds;
address of the subject site; type of structure; existing and proposed operation or use of the structure or site;
number of employees; and the zoning district within which the subject site lies.

(3) Plat of survey prepared by a land surveyor registered in the State of Wisconsin or other map drawn
to scale and showing such of the following as may be required by the Zoning Administrator: the location,
boundaries, dimensions, uses, and size of the following: subject site; existing and proposed structures;
existing and proposed easements, streets and other public ways; public utilities; off-street parking, loading
areas and driveways; existing highway access restrictions; high water; channel, floodway and floodplain
boundaries; and existing and proposed street, side and rear yards.

(4) Additional information as may be required by the Zoning Administrator or the Plan Commission and
Village Board (if involved).

(c) Action.

(1) A zoning permit shall be granted or denied in writing by the Zoning Administrator within thirty (30)
days of application and the applicant shall post such permit in a conspicuous place at the site.

(2) The permit shall expire within six (6) months unless substantial work has commenced or within
eighteen (18) months after the issuance of the permit if the structure for which a permit is issued is not
substantially completed, in which case of expiration, the application shall reapply for a zoning permit before
commencing work on the structure.

(3) Any permit issued in conflict with the provisions of this Chapter shall be null and void.

SEC. 13-1-154 SITE PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCEDURESAPPROVAL-

Purpose: The purpose of promoting compatible development, stability of property values, insuring the
attractiveness and functional utility of the community as a place to live and work, preserving the character
and quality of the building environment by retaining the integrity of those areas which has a discernible
character, protecting certain public investments in the area, and raising the level of community expectations
for the quality of its environment.—

(a) Site Plan Review and Approval. All applications for Zoning or Building Permits for any construction,
reconstruction, expansion or conversion, except for one (1) and two (2) family residences in Residential
Districts, shall require site plan approval by the Plan Commission in accordance with the requirements of this
Section. This review will include: existing and proposed structures, neighboring uses, utilization of
landscaping and open space, parking areas, driveway locations, loading and unloading, highway access,
traffic generation and circulation, drainage, sewerage and water systems, and the proposed operation of the
use.

(b) Application. The applicant for a zoning permit shall also submit a site plan and sufficient plans and
specifications of proposed buildings, machinery and operations to enable the Plan Commission or its expert
consultants to determine whether the proposed application meets all the requirements applicable thereto in
this Chapter. This includes the following materials:

(1) Written Use Description: Description of the intended use described in reasonable detail, which
may include the following: zoning, land use plan designation, current land uses. proposed land
uses, projected use, proposed development, operations, operations considerations, building
materials, other information.

(2) Location Map: A map of the subject property showing all lands for which the use is proposed,
and all other lands within 200 feet of the boundaries of the subject property.

(3) Scale Site Plan: A site plan of the subject property as proposed for development drawn to scale.

(4) Detailed Landscape Plan: At the same scale as the site plan, showing the location of all required
setbacks and landscaping areas, proposed landscaping and any proposed screening.

(5) Grading Plan: At the same scale as the site plan showing existing and proposed grades, including
retaining walls and related devices, and erosion control measures.

(6) Elevation Drawings: Side views of proposed buildings, structures, or proposed remodeling of
existing buildings showing finished exterior treatment shall also be submitted, with adequate

116




labels provided to clearly depict exterior materials, texture, color and overall appearance.
(7) Stormwater Management Plans: At the same scale as the site plan, prepare stormwater runoff and
erosion control plans consistent with Village Ordinances.

(c) Administration. The Zoning Administrator shall make a preliminary review of the application and
plans and refer them, along with a report of his findings, to the Plan Commission within ten (10) days. The
Plan Commission shall review the application and may refer the application and plans to any expert
consultants selected by the Village Board to advise whether the application and plans meet all the
requirements applicable thereto in this Chapter. Within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the application, the
Commission shall authorize the Zoning Administrator to issue or refuse a Zoning Permit.

(d) Requirements. In acting on any site plan, the Plan Commission shall consider the following:

(1) The appropriateness of the site plan and buildings in relation to the physical character of the site and
the usage of adjoining land areas.

(2) The layout of the site with regard to entrances and exits to public streets; the arrangement and
improvement of interior roadways; the location, adequacy and improvement of areas for parking and for
loading and unloading and shall, in this connection, satisfy itself that the traffic pattern generated by the
proposed construction or use shall be developed in a manner consistent with the safety of residents and the
community, and the applicant shall so design the construction or use as to minimize any traffic hazard
created thereby.

(3) The adequacy of the proposed water supply, drainage facilities and sanitary and waste disposal.

(4) —4)—The landscaping and appearance of the completed site. The Plan Commission may
require that those portions of all front, rear and side yards not used for off-street parking shall be
attractively planted with trees, shrubs, plants or grass lawns and that the site be effectively
screened so as not to impair the value of adjacent properties nor impair the intent or purposes of
this Section.

(5) The architectural design, landscaping, control or lighting, and general site development within the
proposed use will result in an attractive and harmonious area compatible with and not adversely
affecting the aesthetics, enjoyment, or property values of the surrounding neighborhood.

(6) Potential negative impacts on environmentally sensitive areas and other critical community
services (e.g., schools, nursing care, governmental) are prevented or mitigated. New
development, reconstruction, and infrastructure projects should consider and apply resource
conservation techniques and best practices that reduce energy demand and promote air and water
quality improvements.

(e) Effect on Municipal Services. Before granting any site approval, the Plan Commission may, besides
obtaining advice from consultants, secure such advice as may be deemed necessary from the Village
Engineer or other municipal officials, with special attention to the effect of such approval upon existing
municipal services and utilities. Should additional facilities be needed, the Plan Commission shall forward its
recommendations to the Village Board and shall not issue final approval until the Village Board has entered
into an agreement with the applicant regarding the development of such facilities.




SEC. 13-1-173 VARIANCES.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to provide regulations which enable the Village to hear

and decide requests for permitted variation from the terms of this Chapter as will not be contrary
to the public interest; where owing to special factors, a literal enforcement of the provisions of
this Chapter would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of this
Chapter shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done; as
provided for by Wis. Stats. 62.23(7)(e)(7).
(1) For the purposes of this Section, "unnecessary hardship" shall be defined as an unusual or extreme
decrease in the adaptability of the property to the uses permitted by the zoning district which is

caused by facts, such as rough terrain or good soil conditions, uniquely applicable to the particular
piece of property as distinguished from those applicable to most or all property in the same zoning

district

(b) Initiation of Request. A request for a variance may be made when an aggrieved party can submit
proof that strict adherence to the provisions of this Zoning Code would cause him undue hardship or
create conditions causing greater harmful effects than the initial condition. A variance granted to a
nonconforming use brings that use into conformance with the district and zoning requirements.

¢) Application for Variance. The application for a variance shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator.

with a fee as established in the Village’s annual fee schedule plus publication and report costs. Applications
may be made by the owner or lessee of the structure, land or water to be affected. The application shall
contain the following information:

(1) Name and address of applicant and all abutting and opposite property owners of record.

(2) Statement that the applicant is the owner or the authorized agent of the owner of the property.

(3) Address and description of the property.

(4) A site plan showing an accurate depiction of the property.

(5) Additional information required by the Plan Commission, Village Engineer, Board of Zoning

Appeals or Zoning Administrator.
(6) Application fee as set forth in the Village’s annual fee schedule.

(d) Public Hearing of Variance application. Within sixty (60) days of filing of a complete application,
The Board of Appeals shall conduct at least one (1) public hearing on the proposed variance. Notice
of such hearing shall be given not more than thirty (30) days and not less than ten (10) days before the
hearing in one (1) or more of the newspapers in general circulation in the Village, and shall give due
notice to the parties in interest, the Zoning Administrator and the Plan Commission. At the hearing
the appellant or applicant may appear in person, by agent or by attorney. The Board shall thereafter
reach its decision within thirty (30) days after the final hearing and shall transmit a written copy of'its

decision to the appellant or applicant, Zoning Administrator, Plan Commission and Village Board.

(e) _Action of the Board of Appeals. For the Board to grant a variance, it must find that:

(1) Denial of variation may result in hardship to the property owner due to physiographical
consideration. There must be exceptional, extraordinary or unusual circumstances or conditions applying to
the lot or parcel, structure, use or intended use that do not apply generally to other properties or uses in the
same district and the granting of the variance would not be of so general or recurrent nature as to suggest that

118



the Zoning Code should be changed.

(2) The conditions upon which a petition for a variance is based are unique to the property for which
variance is being sought and that such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights possessed by other properties in the same district and same vicinity.

(3) The purpose of the variance is not based exclusively upon a desire to increase the value or income
potential of the property.

(4) The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to the other
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located.

(5) The proposed variance will not undermine the spirit and general and specific purposes of the Zoning
Code.

(f) Conditions. The Board of Appeals may impose such conditions and restrictions upon the premises
benefitted by a variance as may be necessary to comply with the standards established in this Section.

() Effect of Denial. No application for a variance which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall
be resubmitted for a period of 365 days from the date of said order of denial, except on grounds of new

evidence or material change of circumstances found valid by the Zoning Administrator, or designee.

(h) Review by Court of Record. Any person or persons aggrieved by any decision of the Board of Appeals
may present to a court of record a petition, duly verified, setting forth that such decision is illegal and
specifying the grounds of the illegality. Such petition shall be presented to the court within thirty (30) days
after the filing of the decision in the offices of the Board of Appeals.

SEC. 13-1-170 APPEALS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS.

(a) Scope of Appeals. Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be taken by any person aggrieved or by any
officer, department, board or bureau of the Village affected by any decision of the administrative officer.
Such appeal shall be taken within reasonable thirty (30) days of the alleged grievance or judgment in
question by filing with the officer(s) from whom the appeal is taken and with the Board of appeals a notice of
appeal specifying the grounds thereof, together with payment of a filing fee as may be established by the
Village Board. The officer(s) from whom the appeal is taken shall forthwith transmit to the Board of Appeals
all papers constituting the record of appeals upon which the action appeals from was taken.

(b) Stay of Proceedings. An appeal shall stay all legal proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed
from, unless the officer from whom the appeal is taken certified to the Board of Appeals that, by reason of
facts stated in the certificate, a stay would, in his opinion, cause immediate peril to life or property. In such
cases, proceedings shall not be stayed otherwise than by a restraining order which may be granted by the
Board of Appeals or by a court of record on application, on notice to the officer from whom the appeal is
taken and on due cause shown.

(c) Hearing on Appeals. Within 60 days after the filing of a complete application the Board of Appeals
shall fix a reasonable time for a public hearing, cause notice thereof to be published in the official newspaper
not less than seven (7) days prior thereto, cause notice to be given to the appellant or applicant and the
administrative officer(s) appealed from by regular mail or by personal service not less than five (5) days prior
to the date of hearing. In every case involving a variance, notice shall also be mailed not less than five (5)
days prior to the hearing of the fee owners of records of all land within one hundred (100) feet of any part of
the subject building or premises involved in the appeal.
(d) Decision of the Board of Appeals.

1. Timeframe. The Board of Appeals shall decide all appeals and applications within thirty (30) days

after the public hearing and shall transmit a signed copy of the Board's decision to the appellant or applicant

and the Zoning Administrator.
2. Conditions. Conditions may be placed upon any zoning permit ordered or authorized by this

Board.
3. Validity. Variances, substitutions or use permits granted by the Board shall expire within six (6)
months unless substantial work has commenced pursuant to such grant.
(e) Effect of Denial. No application for an appeal which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall
119




be resubmitted for a period of 365 days from the date of said order of denial, except on grounds of new

evidence or material change of circumstances found valid by the Zoning Administrator, or designee.

SEC. 13-1-155 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.

(a) Violations. It shall be unlawful to use or improve any structure or land, or to use water or air in
violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter. In case of any violation, the Village Board, the Zoning
Administrator, the Plan Commission or any property owner who would be specifically damaged by such
violation may cause appropriate action or proceeding to be instituted to enjoin a violation of this Chapter or
cause a structure to be vacated or removed.

(b) Remedial Action. Whenever an order of the Zoning Administrator has not been complied with within
thirty (30) days after written notice has been mailed to the owner, resident agent or occupant of the premises,
the Village Board, the Zoning Administrator or the Village Attorney may institute appropriate legal action or
proceedings.

(c) Penalties. Any person, firm or corporation who fails to comply with the provisions of this Chapter or
any order of the Zoning Administrator issued in accordance with this Chapter or resists enforcement shall,
upon conviction thereof, be subject to a forfeiture and such additional penalties as provided for in Section 1-
1-6 of this Code of Ordinances.

120



v
=
F=]
©
S
5
B
&
=
T©
<
o
2
=
Q
]
©
o
<}
j=N
2
[}
5]
£
~
o
-]
v
L
T
Q
-
c
£
)
v

Section

121



122



j_- Commented [SB28]: Incorporate into Administrative
Section







125



ARTICLE KO
Definitions
SEC. 13-1-180 DEFINITIONS.

{ey—For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall be used, unless a different definition is
specifically provided for a section. Words used in the present tense include the future; the singular number
includes the plural number; and the plural number includes the singular number. The word "shall" is
mandatory and not permissive.

(1) Abutting. Have a common property line or district line.

(2) Accessory Use or Structure. A use or detached structure subordinate to the principal use of a
structure, parcel of land or water and located on the same lot or parcel serving a purpose incidental to the
principal use or the principal structure.

(3) Acre, Net. The actual land devoted to the land use, excluding public streets, public lands or unusable
lands, and school sites contained within 43,560 square feet.

(4) Adult Book Store. An establishment having as a predominant portion of its stock in trade, books,
magazines and other periodicals, or video cassettes, which are distinguished or characterized by their
emphasis on matter depicting, describing or relating to "Specified Sexual Activities" (as defined herein) or
"Specified Anatomical Areas" (as defined herein).

(5) Adult Entertainment Establishment. An establishment having as a predominant portion of its
business live acts, demonstrations, dances or exhibitions which are distinguished or characterized by their
emphasis on matter depicting, describing or relating to "Specified Sexual Activities" (as defined herein) or
"Specified Anatomical Areas" (as defined herein).

(6) Adult Motion Picture Theater. An enclosed building which is significantly or substantially used for
presenting motion picture films, video cassettes, cable television, or any other such visual media, which are
distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matter depicting, describing or relating to "Specified
Sexual Activities" (as defined herein) or "Specified Anatomical Areas" (as defined herein).

Agricultural use. Any agricultural activity or use conducted for the purpose of producing an income or
livelihood such as: crop or forage production, keeping livestock, beekeeping, nursery. sod. or Christmas tree
production, floriculture, aquaculture, fur farming, forest management, enrolling in a federal agricultural
commodity payment program or a federal or state agricultural land conservation payment program or any
other activity or use permitted under Chapter 91 or identified by rule of the Wisconsin DATCP.

(7) Alley. A public way not more than twenty-one (21) feet wide which affords only a secondary means of
access to abutting property.

(8) Apartment. A room or suite of rooms in a multiple-family structure which is arranged, designed,
used or intended to be used as a single housekeeping unit. Complete kitchen facilities, permanently installed,
must always be included for each apartment.

(9) Arterial Street. A public street or highway used or intended to be used primarily for large volume or
heavy through traffic. Arterial streets shall include freeways and expressways as well as arterial streets,
highways and parkways.

(10) A Zones. Areas of potential flooding shown on the Village's "Flood Insurance Rate Map" which
would be inundated by the regional flood as defined herein. These zones may be numbered as A0, Al to
A99, or be unnumbered A Zones. The A Zones may or may not be reflective of flood profiles, depending on
the availability of data for a given area.

(11) Basement. That portion of any structure located partly below the average adjoining lot grade which
is not designed or used primarily for year-around living accommodations. Space partly below grade which is
designed and finished as habitable space is not defined as basement space.

Bed and Breakfast Establishment: any place of lodging that provides four (4) or fewer rooms for rent for
more than ten (10) nights in a twelve (12) month period, is the owner's personal residence, is occupied by the
owner at the time of rental and in which the only meal served to guests is breakfast.

126



(12) Block. A tract of land bounded by streets or by a combination of streets and public parks or other
recognized lines of demarcation.

(13) Boarding House. A building other than a hotel or restaurant where meals or lodging are regularly
furnished by prearrangement for compensation for three (3) or more persons not members of a family, but
not exceeding twelve (12) persons and not open to transient customers.

(14) Bailable Lot Area. The portion of a lot remaining after required yards have been provided.

(15) Building. Any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls used or intended to be used
for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, equipment, machinery or materials. When a building is
divided into separate parts by unpierced walls extending from the ground up, each part shall be deemed a
separate building.

(16) Building, Detached. A building surrounded by open space on the same lot.

(17) Building, Heights of. The vertical distance from the average curb level in front of the lot or the
finished grade at the building line, whichever is higher, to the highest point of the coping of a flat roof, to the
deck line of a mansard roof or to the average height of the highest gable of a gambrel, hip or pitch roof.

(18) Building Setback Line. A line parallel to the lot line at a distance parallel to it, regulated by the
yard requirements set up in this Code.

(19) Building, Principal. A building in which the principal use of the lot on which it is located is
conducted.

(20) Business. An occupation, employment or enterprise which occupies time, labor and materials, or
wherein merchandise is exhibited or sold, or where services are offered.

(21) Camping Ground. A parcel of land used or intended to be used, let or rented or occupancy by
campers or for occupancy by or of trailers, tents or movable or temporary dwellings, rooms or sleeping
quarters of any kind.

Camping Unit: Any portable device, no more than 400 square feet in area, used as a temporary shelter
including, but not limited to, a camping trailer, motor home, bus, van, pick-up truck or tent, that is fully
licensed if required, and ready for highway use.

(22) Channel. Those floodlands normally occupied by a stream of water under average annual high-water
flow conditions while confined within generally well-established banks.

(23) Community Living Arrangement. The following facilities licensed or operated or permitted under
the authority of the Wisconsin State Statutes: Child welfare agencies under Section 48.60, group foster
homes for children under Section 48.02(7m) and community-based residential facilities under Section 50.01,
but does not include day care centers, nursing homes, general hospitals, special hospitals, prisons and jails.
The establishment of a community living arrangement shall be in conformance with applicable Sections of
the Wisconsin State Statutes, including Sections 46.03(22),

69.97(15), 62.23(7)(i) and 62.23(7a), and amendments thereto, and also the Wisconsin Administrative Code.

(24) Conditional Uses. Uses of a special nature as to make impractical their predetermination as a
principal use in a district.

(25) Controlled Access Arterial Street. The condition in which the right of owners or occupants of
abutting land or other persons to access, light, air or view in connection with an arterial street is fully or
partially controlled by public authority.

(26) Corner Lot. On corner lots, the setback shall be measured from the street right-of-way line on
which the lot fronts. The setback from the side street shall be equal to seventy-five percent (75%) of the
setback required on residences fronting on the side street but the side yard setback shall in no case restrict the
buildable width to less than thirty (30) feet. Said corner lots shall be consisting of a parcel of property
abutting on two (2) or more streets at their intersection providing that the interior angle of such intersection is
less than one hundred thirty-five degrees (135°).

(27) Conservation Standards. Guidelines and specifications for soil and water conservation practices
and management enumerated in the Technical Guide, prepared by the USDA Soil Conservation Service for
Barron and Polk Counties, adopted by the County Soil and Water Conservation District Supervisors, and

127



containing suitable alternatives for the use and treatment of land based upon its capabilities from which the
landowner selects that alternative which best meets his needs in developing his soil and water conservation.

(28) Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not
limited to construction of or additions or substantial improvements to buildings, other structures, or accessory
uses, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations or disposition of materials.

(29) District, Basic. A part or parts of the Village for which the regulations of this Chapter governing
the use and location of land and building are uniform.

(30) District, Overlay. Overlay districts, also referred to herein as regulatory areas, provide for the
possibility of superimposing certain additional requirements upon a basic zoning district without disturbing
the requirements of the basic district. In the instance of conflicting requirements, the more strict of the
conflicting requirements shall apply.

(31) Dwelling. A building designed or used exclusively as a residence or sleeping place, but does not
include boarding or lodging houses, motels, hotels, tents, cabins or mobile homes.

(32) Dwelling Unit. A group of rooms constituting all or part of a dwelling, which are arranged,
designed, used or intended for use exclusively as living quarters for one (1) family.

(33) Dwelling, Efficiency. A dwelling unit consisting of one (1) principal room with no separate
sleeping rooms.

(34) Dwelling, Single-Family. A detached building designed for or occupied by one (1) family.

(35) Dwelling, Two-Family. A detached building containing two (2) separate dwelling (or living) units,
designed for occupancy by not more than two (2) families.

(36) Dwelling, Multiple-Family. A residential building designed for or occupied by three (3) or more
families, with the number of families in residence not to exceed the number of dwelling units provided.

(37) Equal Degree of Hydraulic Encroachment. The effect of any encroachment into the floodway is to
be computed by assuming an equal degree of hydraulic encroachment on the opposite side of a river or
stream for a significant hydraulic reach, in order to compute the effect of the encroachment upon hydraulic
conveyance. This computation assures that the property owners up, down or across the river or stream will
have the same rights of hydraulic encroachment.

(38) Essential Services. Services provided by public and private utilities, necessary for the exercise of
the principal use or service of the principal structure. These services include underground, surface or
overhead gas, electrical, steam, water, sanitary sewerage, storm water drainage, and communication systems
and accessories thereto, such as poles, towers, wires, mains, drains, vaults, culverts, laterals, sewers, pipes,
catch basins, water storage tanks, conduits, cables, fire alarm boxes, police call boxes, traffic signals, pumps,
lift stations and hydrants, but not including buildings.

(39) Family. One (1) or more persons immediately related by blood, marriage or adoption and living as
a single housekeeping unit in one (1) dwelling unit shall constitute a family. A family may include in
addition thereto two (2) but not more than two (2) persons not related by blood, marriage or adoption. A
person shall be considered to be related for the purpose of this Section if he is dwelling for the purpose of
adoption or for a foster care program.

Exceptions: Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit, under the definition of "Family," priests, lay brothers,
nurses or such other collective body of persons living either in one (1) house under the same management
and care, subsisting in common, and directing their attention to a common object or the promotion of their
mutual interest and social happiness as set forth by the Wisconsin Supreme Court in Missionaries of Our
Lady of LaSallette vs. Village of Whitefish Board of Zoning Appeals, 267 Wis. 609, which is hereby
incorporated by reference.

(40) Farmstead. A single-family residential structure located on a parcel of land, which primary land use
is associated with agriculture.

(41) Flood. A temporary rise in streamflow or stage in lake level that results in water overtopping the
banks and inundating the areas adjacent to the steam channel or lake bed.

(42) Flood Insurance Study. An examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards and, if
appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations; or an examination, evaluation and determination of
mudslide (i.e., mud flow) and/or floor-related erosion hazards. Such studies shall result in the publication of a
Flood Insurance Rate Map showing the intensity of flood hazards in either numbered or unnumbered A

128



Zones.

(43) Flood Profile. A graph showing the relationship of the floodwater surface elevation of a flood event
of a specified recurrence interval to the stream bed and other significant natural and man-made features along
a stream.

(44) Flood Protection Elevation. A point two (2) feet above the water surface elevation of the 100-year
recurrence interval flood. This safety factor, also called "freeboard," is intended to compensate for the many
unknown factors that contribute to flood heights greater than those computed. Such unknown factors may
include ice jams, debris accumulation, wave action and obstructions of bridge openings.

(45) Flood Stage. The elevation of the floodwater surface above an officially established datum plane,
which is Mean Sea Level, 1929 Adjustment, on the Supplementary Floodland Zoning Map.

(46) Floodlands. For the purpose of this Code, the floodlands are all lands contained in the "regional
flood" or 100-year recurrence interval flood. For the purpose of zoning regulation, the floodlands are divided
into the floodway district, the floodplain conservancy district and the floodplain fringe overlay district.

(47) Floodplain Fringe. Those floodlands, outside the floodway, subject to inundation by the 100-year
recurrence interval flood. For the purpose of this Code, the floodplain fringe includes the floodplain
conservancy district and the floodplain fringe overlay district.

(48) Floodproofing. Measures designed to prevent and reduce flood damage for those uses which cannot
be removed from, or which, of necessity, must be erected in the floodplain, ranging from structural
modifications through installation of special equipment or materials, to operation and management
safeguards, such as the following: reinforcing the basement walls; underpinning of floors; permanent sealing
of all exterior openings; use of masonry construction; erection of permanent watertight bulkheads, shutters
and doors; treatment of exposed timbers; elevation of flood-vulnerable utilities; use of waterproof cement;
adequate fuse protection; sealing of basement walls; installation of sump pumps; placement of automatic
swing check valves; installation of seal-tight windows and doors; installation of wire reinforced glass;
location and elevation of valuable items; waterproofing, disconnecting, elevation or removal of all electric
equipment; avoidance of the use of flood-vulnerable areas; temporary removal of waterproofing of
merchandise; operation of emergency pump equipment; closing of backwater sewer valve; placement of
plugs and food drain pipes; placement of movable watertight bulkheads; erection of sand bag levees; and the
shoring of weak walls or structures. Floodproofing of structures shall be extended at least to a point two (2)
feet above the elevation of the regional flood. Any structure that is located entirely or partially below the
flood protection elevation shall be anchored to protect it from larger floods.

(49) Floodway. A designated portion of the 100-year flood area that will safely convey the regulatory
flood discharge with small, acceptable upstream and downstream stage increases, limited in Wisconsin to 0.1
foot unless special legal measures are provided. The floodway, which includes the channel, is that portion of
the floodplain not suited for human habitation. All fill, structures and other development that would impair
floodwater conveyance by adversely increasing flood stages or velocities or would itself be subject to flood
damage should be prohibited in the floodway.

(50) Floor Area -- Business and Manufacturing Buildings. For the purpose of determining off-street
parking and off-street loading requirements, the sum of the gross horizontal areas of the floors of the
building, or portion thereof, devoted to a use requiring off-street parking or loading. This area shall include
accessory storage areas located within selling or working space occupied by counters, racks or closets and
any basement floor area devoted to retailing activities, to the production or processing of goods, or to
business or professional offices. However, floor area, for the purposes of determining off-street parking
spaces, shall not include floor area devoted primarily to storage purposes except as otherwise noted herein.

(51) Foster Family Home. The primary domicile of a foster parent which is four (4) or fewer foster
children and which is licensed under Section 48.62 of the Wisconsin State Statutes and amendments thereto.

(52) Frontage. All the property butting on one (1) side of a street between two (2) intersecting streets or
all of the property abutting on one (1) side of a street between an intersecting street and the dead end of a
street.

(53) Garage -- Private. A detached accessory building or portion of the principal building, designed,
arranged, used or intended to be used for storage of automobiles of the occupant of the premises.

(54) Garage -- Public. Any building or portion thereof, not accessory to a residential building or

129



structure, used for equipping, servicing, repairing, leasing or public parking of motor vehicles.

(55) Group Foster Home. Any facility operated by a person required to be licensed by the State of
Wisconsin under State Statute Section 48.62 for the care and maintenance of five (5) to eight (8) foster
children.

(56)  Home Occupations. DEFINE——56)—Heme Offices; Professional-Residences-of doctors-of

(57) Hotel. A building in which lodging, with or without meals, is offered to transient guests for
compensation and in which there are more than five (5) sleeping rooms with no cooking facilities in any
individual room or apartment.

(58) Loading Area. A completely off-street space or berth on the same lot for the loading or unloading
of freight earners, having adequate ingress and egress to a public street or alley.

(59) Lodging House. A building where lodging only is provided for compensation for not more than
three (3) persons not members of the family.

(60) Lot. A parcel of land having frontage on a public street, or other officially approved means of
access, occupied or intended to be occupied by a principal structure or use and sufficient in size to meet the
lot width, lot frontage, lot area and other open space provisions of this Code as pertaining to the district
wherein located.

(61) Lot, Corner. A lot abutting two (2) or more streets at their intersection provided that the corner of
such intersection shall have an angle of one hundred thirty-five degrees (135°) or less, measured on the lot
side.

(62) Lot, Interior. A lot situated on a single street which is bounded by adjacent lots along each of its
other lines and is not a corner lot.

(63) Lot, Through. A lot which has a pair of opposite lot lines along two (2) substantially parallel streets
and which is not a corner lot. On a through lot, both street lines shall be deemed front lot lines.

(64) Lot, Substandard. A parcel of land held in separate ownership having frontage on a public street, or
other approved means of access, occupied or intended to be occupied by a principal building or structure,
together with accessory buildings and uses, having insufficient size to meet the lot width, lot area, yard, off-
street parking areas or other open space provisions of this Code as pertaining to the district wherein located.

(65) Lot Coverage (residential). The area of a lot occupied by the principal building or buildings and
accessory building.

(66) Lot Coverage (except residential). The area of a lot occupied by the principal building or buildings
and accessory buildings including any driveways, parking areas, loading areas, storage areas and walkways.

(67) Lot Line. A property boundary line of any lot held in single or separate ownership, except that
where any portion of the lot extends into the abutting street or alley, the lot line shall be deemed to be the
abutting street or alley right-of-way line.

(68) Lot Lines and Area. The peripheral boundaries of a parcel of land and the total area lying within
130



such boundaries.

(69) Lot Width. The horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured at the building setback line.

(70) Minor Structures. Any small, movable accessory erection or construction such as birdhouses, tool
houses, pet houses, play equipment, arbors and walls and fences under four (4) feet in height.

(71) Mobile Home. A manufactured home that is HUD certified and labeled under the National Mobile
Home Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974. A mobile home is a transportable structure, being
eight (8) feet or more in width (not including the overhang of the roof), built on a chassis and designed to be
used as a dwelling with or without permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities.

(72) Mobile Home Lot. A parcel of land for the placement of a single mobile home and the exclusive
use of its occupants.

(73) Mobile Home Park. A parcel of land which has been developed for the placement of mobile homes
and is owned by an individual, a firm, trust, partnership, public or private association, or corporation.
Individual lots within a mobile home park are rented to individual mobile home users.

(74) Mobile Home Subdivision. A land subdivision, as defined by Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin
Statutes and any Village Land Division Ordinance, with lots intended for the placement of individual mobile
home units. Individual homesites are in separate ownership as opposed to the rental arrangements in mobile
home parks.

(75) Modular Unit. A modular unit is a factor fabricated transportable building unit designed to be used
by itself or to be incorporated with similar units at a building site into a modular structure to be used for
residential, commercial, educational or industrial purposes.

(76) Nonconforming Uses. Any structure, use of land, use of land and structure in combination or
characteristic of use (such as yard requirement or lot size) which was existing at the time of the effective date
of this Code or amendments thereto and which is not in conformance with this Code. Any such structure
conforming in respect to use but not in respect to frontage, width, height, area, yard, parking, loading or
distance requirements shall not be considered a nonconforming use, but shall be considered nonconforming
with respect to those characteristics.

(77) Official Letter of Map Amendment. Official notification from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) that a Flood Hazard Boundary Map or Flood Insurance Rate Map has been amended.

(78) Parking Lot. A structure or premises containing five (5) or more parking spaces open to the public.

(79) Parking Space. A graded and surfaced area of not less than one hundred eighty (180) square feet in
area, either enclosed or open, for the parking of a motor vehicle, having adequate ingress and egress to a
public street or alley.

(80) Parties in Interest. Includes all abutting property owners, all property owners within one hundred
(100) feet, and all property owners of opposite frontages.

Principal Use: The primary purposes for which a lot or parcel is used.

(81) Professional Office. The office of a doctor, practitioner, dentist, minister, architect, landscape architect,
engineer, lawyer, author, musician or other recognized trade. When established in a residential district, a
professional office shall be incidental to the residential occupation, not more than twenty-five percent (25%)
of the floor area of one (1) story of a dwelling unit shall be occupied by such office and only one (1)
unlighted nameplate, not exceeding one (1) square foot in area, containing the name and profession of the
occupant of the premises shall be exhibited.

(82) Public Airport. Any airport which complies with the definition contained in Section 114.013(3),
Wisconsin Statutes, or any airport which serves or offers to serve common carriers engaged in air transport.

(83) Rear Yard. A yard extending across the full width of the lot, the depth of which shall be the
minimum horizontal distance between the rear lot line and a line parallel thereto through the nearest point of
the principal structure. This yard shall be opposite the street yard or one (1) of the street yards on a corner lot.

(84) Regional Flood. This regional flood is a flood determined to be representative of large floods
known to have generally occurred in Wisconsin and which may be expected to occur on a particular stream
because of like physical characteristics. The flood frequency of the regional flood is once in every one
hundred (100) years; this means that in any given year, there is a one percent (1%) chance that the regional

131



flood may occur or be exceeded. During a typical thirty (30) year mortgage period, the regional flood has a
twenty-six percent (26%) chance of occurrence.

(85) Retail. The sale of goods or merchandise in small quantities to the consumer.

(86) Setback. The minimum horizontal distance between the front lot line and the nearest point of the
foundation of that portion of the building to be enclosed. The overhang cornices shall not exceed twenty-four
(24) inches. Any overhang of the cornice in excess of twenty-four (24) inches shall be compensated by
increasing the setback by an amount equal to the excess of cornice over twenty-four (24) inches. Uncovered
steps shall not be included in measuring the setback.

(87) Side Yard. A yard extending from the street yard to the rear yard of the lot, the width of which shall
be the minimum horizontal distance between the side lot line and a line parallel thereto through the nearest
point of the principal structure.

(88) Signs. Any medium, including its structure, words, letters, figures, numerals, phrases, sentences,
emblems, devices, designs, trade names or trademarks by which anything is made known and which are used
to advertise or promote an individual, firm, association, corporation, profession, business, commodity or
product and which is visible from any public street or highway.

(89) Specified Anatomical Areas. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic
region, buttock, perineum, anal region or female breast at or below the areola or human male genitals in a
discernable turgid state even if completely and opaquely covered.

(90) Specified Sexual Activities.

a. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal; or

b. Acts of human masturbation, sexual intercourse or sodomy; or

c. Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttock, perineum, anal region or
the female breast.

(91) Story. That portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the surface of the
next floor above it, or if there is no floor above it, then the space between the floor and the ceiling next above
it. Any portion of a story exceeding fourteen (14) feet in height shall be considered as an additional story for
each fourteen (14) feet or fraction thereof. A basement having one-half (}2) or more of its height above grade
shall be deemed a story for purposes of height regulation.

(92) Story, Half. That portion of a building under a gable, hip or mansard roof, the wall plates of which,
on at least two (2) opposite exterior walls, are not more than four and one-half (4-1/2) feet above the finished
floor of such story. In the case of one (1) family dwellings, two (2) family dwellings and multi-family
dwellings less than three (3) stories in height, a half (/2) story in a sloping roof shall not be counted as a story
for the purposes of this Code.

(93) Street. Property other than an alley or private thoroughfare or travelway which is subject to public
easement or right-of-way for use as a thoroughfare and which is twenty-one (21) feet or more in width.

(94) Street Yard. A yard extending across the full width of the lot, the depot of which shall be the
minimum horizontal distance between the existing street or highway right-of-way line and a line parallel
thereto through the nearest point of the principal structure. Corner lots shall have two (2) street yards.

(95) Structure. Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a permanent location on the
ground or attached to something having a permanent location on the ground.

(96) Structural Alterations. Any change in the supporting members of a structure, such as foundations,
bearing walls, columns, beams or girders.

Substantial evidence” means facts and information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation,
directly pertaining to the requirements and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a conditional use
permit and that reasonable persons would accept in support of a conclusion.

(97) Temporary Structure. A movable structure not designed for human occupancy nor for the protection
of goods or chattels and not forming an enclosure, such as billboards.

Tiny House: A Single-Family Dwelling that is 400 square feet or less in Floor Area, excluding Lofts.

132



Tiny House on Wheels: A Tiny Housing that is mounted on a wheeled trailer chassis.

(98) Use. The purpose or activity for which the land or building thereof is designed, arranged or intended,
or for which it is occupied or maintained.

(99) Use, Accessory. A subordinate building or use which is located on the same lot on which the
principal building or use is situated and which is reasonably necessary and incidental to the conduct of the
primary use of such building or main use, when permitted by district regulations.

(100) Use, Principal. The main use of land or building as distinguished from subordinate or accessory
use.

(101) Utilities. Public and private facilities, such as water wells, water and sewage pumping stations,
water storage tanks, electrical power substations, static transformer stations, telephone and telegraph
exchanges, microwave radio relays and gas regulation stations, inclusive of associated transmission facilities,
but not including sewage disposal plants, municipal incinerators, warehouses, shops, storage yards and power
plants.

(102) Vision Clearance. An unoccupied triangular space at the street corner of a corner lot which is
bounded by the street lines and a setback line connecting points specified by measurement from the corner on
each street line.

(103) Yard. An open space on the same lot with a structure, unoccupied and unobstructed from the
ground upward except the vegetation. The street and rear yards extend the full width of the lot.

(104) Zero Lot Line. The concept whereby two (2) respective dwelling units within a building shall be
on separate and abutting lots and shall meet on the common property line between them, thereby having zero
space between said units.

(105) Zoning Permit. A permit issued by the Zoning Administrator to certify that the use of lands,
structures, air and waters subject to this Chapter are or shall be used in accordance with the provisions of said
Chapter.

MOBILE HOME DEFINITIONS

(a) Complete Bathroom Facilities. A flush toilet, lavatory, bath and kitchen sink.

(b) Foundation Siding. A fire and weather resistant, pre-finished material surrounding the entire perimeter
of a home and completely enclosing a space between the exterior wall of such home and the ground.
Foundation siding shall be properly vented, harmonious, and compatible with the house and installed within
sixty (60) days from the date of placement on site.

(c) Licensee. Any person, firm or corporation licensed to operate and maintain a mobile home park under
this Article.

(d) Mobile Home Communities (Parks). Mobile home communities/parks are distinguished from
subdivisions lacking common facilities and continuing management services. The latter would be controlled
by general subdivision regulations, which would apply also to mobile home subdivisions without common
open space or continuing management.

(e) _Mobile Home on Tiny Home Neighborhood. A plot or plots of ground upon which two (2) or more
units, occupied for dwelling or sleeping purposes are located, regardless of whether or not a charge is made
for such accommodations. As used in this Article mobile home park is limited to plots on which are located
two (2) or more nondependent mobile homes.

(f) Mobile Home Stand. That part of an individual space which has been reserved and improved for the
placement of one mobile home unit.

(g) Mobile Home or Tiny Home Subdivision. A parcel of land platted for subdivision according to all
requirements of the comprehensive plan, designed or intended for lots to be conveyed by deed to individual
owners for residential occupancy primarily by mobile homes.

(h) Nondependent Mobile Home. A mobile home equipped with complete bath and toilet facilities, all
furniture, cooking, heating, appliances and complete year round facilities.

(i) Occupied Area. That portion of an individual mobile home space which is covered by a mobile home
and its accessory structures.

133



(1) Person. Any natural individual, firm, trust, partnership, association or corporation.

(m) Primary Exposure. Open areas adjacent to the front wall (or main entrance) of a dwelling unit.

(n) Residential Mobile Home. A single-family dwelling built on or after October 1, 1974, in accordance
with the ANSI Code (American National Standards Institute) or in accordance with the HUD Code (Housing
& Urban Development), both of which govern the heating and cooling systems, electrical systems, fire
safety, body and frame construction, thermal protections and plumbing systems. All said homes shall bear the
proper approved Wisconsin insignia as required by the Wisconsin Administrative Code, ILHR 20.12-20.17.
"Mobile home" also means a dwelling which is, or was as originally constructed, designed to be transported
by any motor vehicle upon a public highway and designed, equipped and used primarily for sleeping, eating
and living quarters, or is intended to be so used: and includes any additions, attachments, annexes,
foundations and appurtenances, except that a mobile home is not deemed a mobile home if the assessable
value of such additions, attachments, annexes, foundations and appurtenances equals or exceed fifty percent
(50%) of the assessable value of the mobile home. The term "mobile home" shall not include a factory-built
structure meeting the following requirements:

(1) Intended to be set on a foundation by virtue of its construction.
(2) Which is normally transported only once, from the factory to the construction site.
3) Which, from its very beginning, is designed to be permanently affixed to land.

(0) Secondary Exposure. Open areas adjacent to side and rear walls of a dwelling unit.

(p) Space. A plot of ground within a mobile home park, designed for the accommodation of one mobile
home unit.

(q) Statutory Definitions. In addition to the above definitions, definitions contained in Section 66.058 of
the Wisconsin Statutes shall also be applicable.

LARGE LARGESTOCK DEFINITIONS

Adjacent: located on land parcels that touch each other, or on land parcels that are separated only by a river, s
tream, or transportation or utility right-of-way.

Animal Unit: Has the meaning that was given in s. NR 243.03(3) as of April 27, 2004.

Expanded Livestock Facility: The entire livestock facility that is created by the expansion, after May 1, 2006.
“Expanded livestock facility” includes all livestock structures in the expanded facility, regardless of whether
those structures are new, existing or altered.

Expansion: An increase in the largest number of animal units kept at a livestock facility on at least 90 days in
any 12-month period. The acquisition of an existing livestock facility, by the operator of an adjacent

livestock facility, does not constitute an “expansion” unless that operator increases the largest number of
animal units kept at the combined livestock facilities on at least 90 days in any 12-month period.

Livestock: Domestic animals traditionally used in this state in the production of food, fiber or other animal
products. “Livestock” includes cattle, swine, poultry, sheep and goats. “Livestock’ does not include equine

animals, farm-raised deer, fish, captive game birds, ratites, camelids or mink.

Livestock facility: A feedlot, dairy farm or other operation where livestock area of will be fed, confined,
maintained or stabled for a total of 45 days or more in any 12-month period. A “livestock facility” includes
all of the tax parcels of land on which the facility is located, but does not include a pasture or winter grazing
area. Related livestock facilities are collectively treated as a single “livestock facility” for purposes of this
chapter, except that an operator may elect to treat a separate species facility as a separate “livestock facility.”

Livestock structure: A building or other structure used to house or feed livestock, to confine livestock for
134




milking, to confine livestock for feeding other than grazing, to store livestock feed, or to collect or store
waste generated at a livestock facility. “Livestock structure” includes a barn, milking parlor, feed storage
facility, feeding facility, animal lot or waste storage facility. “Livestock structure” does not include a pasture

or winter grazing area, a fence surrounding a pasture or winter grazing are, a livestock watering or feeding
facility in a pasture or winter grazing area, or a machine shed or like facility that is not used for livestock.

New livestock facility: A livestock facility that will be used as a livestock facility for the first time, or for the
first time in at least 5 years. “New livestock facility” does not include an expanded livestock facility if any
portion of that facility has been used as a livestock facility in the preceding 5 years.

Operator: A person who applied for or holds a local approval for a livestock facility.

Property line: A line that separates parcels of land owned by different persons.

Roadside Stand: A building or part of a building no more than 500 square feet used for the retail sale of
agricultural and related incidental products, excluding livestock, produced on the farm where the stand is
located.

Waste: Manure, milking center waste and other organic waste generated by a livestock facility.

Waste storage structure: A waste storage impoundment made by constructing embankments, excavating a pit

or dugout, or fabricating a structure. “Waste storage structure” does not include equipment used to apply
waste to land. For purposes of ss. ATCP 51.12(2) and 51.14, “waste storage structure” does not include any

of the following:

(a) A structure used to collect and store waste under a livestock housing facility.
(b) A manure digester consisting of a sealed structure in which manure is subjected to managed
biological decomposition.

SIGN DEFINITIONS:
Sec. 13-1-81 Definitions

(a) Abandoned Sign: A sign which is in disrepair or which no longer identifies a bonafide business or
current service, owner, product, or activity carried out on or off of the premises upon which the sign is
located or whose message is for an event whose time has passed or whose object or subject no longer exist or
for which sign the owner cannot be located. It shall also include any sign which no longer supports or

contains the medium of communication for which it was designated.

(c) Awning Sign.: A non-illuminated sign painted on or attached to a fabric or vinyl cover on a rigid
frame which is affixed as a projection from or extension of a building or other structure, erected in such a

manner as to provide shelter or cover over the approach to the entrance of any building or other structure or
place of assembly. Awning signs shall contain only the names of businesses, logos and address and no other
or further information or message.

(d) Banner: Any sign of lightweight fabric or similar material that is mounted to a pole or a building at
one or more edges. National flags, state, or municipal flags or the official flag of any institution or business
shall not be considered a banner.

(e) Billboard: An outdoor advertising sign which directs attention to a business, product, service,
activity, or solicits patronage of a business not conducted upon or offered on the premises where the sign is
located.

(h) Business Sign: A sign which directs attention to a business, profession, service, or entertainment sold
from or offered upon the premises where such sign is located, which contains no other or further messages.

(i) Changeable Copy Sign: A manual, electronic sign, or electronic time or temperature sign, or reader
135




board whose message is electronically or mechanically changed.

(7)) Commercial Message: Any message advertising a particular business or identifying goods, services,
recreational activities, or other public or private services made available to the public at large.

(1) _Display Face: The entire surface area of a sign upon which information copy can be placed. Display
face shall not be interpreted to include the super structure or supports of a sign outside of the display face

area contained thereupon. One side of a double-faced sign shall be used to determine the surface area of the
display face of that sign.

Flag Sign: Devices generally made of flexible materials, such as cloth, paper, or plastic, and supported by a
single vertical pole mounted into the ground or on a portable structure. They may or may not contain sign
copy.

(o) Flashing Sign: An illuminated sign, whose lighting is not constant in intensity or color at all times
and whose message is displayed by means of those changes. Illuminated signs that indicate the time,
temperature, weather, or similar public service information are not flashing signs.

Freestanding Sign: Any sign which is supported by structures or supports in or upon the ground and
independent from any building. Freestanding signs include ground signs, pvlon signs, and signs less than
four feet in height supported by a single pole or post.

(q) Ground Sign: A sign that rests upon or is affixed to the grade or is supported by posts or pillars on
the sides and/or a structural base. (r) _Illuminated Sign: Any sign which emanates light by means of
exposed or recessed artificial lighting devices. It shall not include a "flashing sign."”

(u) Joint Business Sign: A ground sign which serves as a collective means of identifving three (3) or more
businesses or occupations operated on the same premises upon which the sign is located including, but not
limited to, sign advertising a retail mall, shopping center, or office complex. The messages on such signs
shall be limited to the name and telephone number of the business.

Menu Board: A permanently mounted sign displaying the foods, products, or services for a drive-through or
walk-up facility.

(w) Message: Communication consisting of numbers, letters, characters, or pictorial descriptions or
representations designed to attract the attention of the public.

(x) Monument Sign: A sign made of brick, masonry, stone, or other materials, the bottom of which is
attached directly to and permanently affixed to the ground and physically separated from any other structure
located on the same premises as is the sign.

Mural: A picture painted on an exterior surface of a structure.
Noncommercial Sign: Sign expressing personal, political, religious, or other opinions, and not advertising
any product, service, or event.

(z) _Non-Conforming Sign: A sign legally in existence and actively in use as of the effective date of this
article or any amendment thereto which does not comply with all of the requirements of this article.

(aa) On-Premises Sign: A sign identifying or advertising a business, person, activity, goods, or services
located upon or doing business from the same premises upon which the sign is located.

Off-Premise Sign: A sign which is not related to a product sold, a service offered. or identity of the property
on which the sign is located. This definition does not include noncommercial signs that meet all applicable
requirements of this Article.

(ee) Portable Sign: Any sign including, but not limited to, a reader board sign, not permanently affixed to
or attached to the ground that is designed to be easily moved from one location to another, with or without
wheels, including, but not limited to, signs in or upon trailers and trucks.

(1) _Premises: A legally-described and recorded lot, parcel, or other tract of land.

(gg) Projecting Sign: A sign attached to the wall of a building or any other structure that projects
horizontally more than twelve (12) inches from the face of the wall or structure. This definition does not

include "marquee."”

(ji) __Roof Sign: Any sign erected or constructed wholly upon and over the roof of any building or other
structure, supported by the roof or other structure and extending vertically above the highest portion of said
roof or structure at its highest point above grade.

136



Shopping Center: A group of commercial establishments planned, constructed, and managed as a unified
entity that share a common on-site parking area for customers and employees, with provision for goods
delivery separated from customer access, and with aesthetic considerations and protection from the
elements.

(kk) _Sign: An object, device, display, placard, or other form of structure or part thereof, displayed out of
doors and visible from any street or highway right-of-way, adjoining premises or navigable water which
contains a display face which, in turn, contains a message whose purpose it is to display a message to
persons through visual means.

Sign Copy.: The message or advertisement, and any other symbols on the face of a sign.

(ll) Temporary Sign: Any sign which is erected or constructed and is portable including, but not limited
to, portable poster-type signs, banners, flags, pennants, and inflatable signs. Said definition shall include, as
well, A-frame sandwich boards and reader board signs.

(00) Wall Sign: A business sign permanently attached to and constructed of rigid material, erected upon,
or painted on or applied to the wall of a building or other structure, projecting not more than eight (8) inches
from the wall.

(pp) Window Sign: Any advertising sign affixed to an exterior window of a building or other structure.

137



Chapter 3

Shoreland-Wetland Zoning

Article A:

Statutory Authorization, Findings of Fact, Statement of Purpose and Title

13-3-1 Statutory Authorization.

13-3-2 Findings of Fact.

13-3-3 Title of Chapter.

13-3-4 Through 13-3-9 Reserved for Future Use.

13-3-10
13-3-11
13-3-12
13-3-13
13-3-14
13-3-15
13-3-16
13-3-17

13-3-20
13-3-21
13-3-22
13-3-23
13-3-24

Activities.

13-3-25
13-3-26

13-3-30
13-3-31
13-3-32
13-3-33
13-3-34
13-3-35
13-3-36
13-3-37
13-3-38

Article B:
General Provisions

Compliance.

Municipalities and State Agencies Regulated.
Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.
Interpretation.

Severability.

Annexed Areas.

Warning and Disclaimer of Liability.
Through 13-3-19 Reserved for Future Use.

Article C:
Shoreland-wetland Zoning District.

Purpose of Shoreland-wetland Zoning.

Official Shoreland-wetland Zoning Maps.

District Boundaries.

Permitted Uses.

Regulation of Tree Cutting, Removal of Shrubbery and Related

Water Setbacks and Building Elevation Standards.
Through 13-3-29 Reserved for Future Use.

Article D:
Administrative Provisions

Zoning Administrator.

Zoning Permits.

Conditional Use Permits for Wetland Areas.

Fees.

Recording.

Revocation.

Board of Appeals.

Amending Shoreland-wetland Zoning Regulations.
and 13-3-39 Reserved for Future Use.

Article E:

1|Page



Penalties; Definitions

13-3-40 Enforcement and Penalties.
13-3-41 Definitions.

Article A:
Statutory Authorization, Findings of Fact, Statement of Purpose and

Title
Sec. 13-3-1 Statutory Authorization.
This Chapter is adopted pursuant to the authorization in Sections 61.35;and 61.351-and-8730,
Wis. Stats.

Sec. 13-3-2 Findings of Fact.
Uncontrolled use of the shoreland-wetlands and the pollution of the navigable waters of the
Village of Turtle Lake would adversely affect the public health, safety, convenience, general
welfare and impair the tax base. The Legislature of Wisconsin has delegated responsibility to all
municipalities to:

(a) Promote the public health, safety, convenience and general welfare;

(b) Maintain the storm and flood water storage capacity of wetlands;

(c) Prevent and control water pollution by preserving wetlands which filter or store sediments,
nutrients, heavy metals or organic compounds that would otherwise drain into navigable waters;

(d) Protect fish, their spawning grounds, other aquatic life and wildlife by preserving wetlands
and other aquatic habitat;

(e) Prohibit certain uses detrimental to the shoreland-wetland area; and

(f) Preserve shore cover and natural beauty by restricting the removal of natural shoreland
cover and controlling shoreland-wetland excavation, filling and other earth moving activities.

Sec. 13-3-3 Title of Chapter.
Shoreland-Wetland Zoning Ordinance/Chapter for the Village of Turtle Lake, Wisconsin.

Sec. 13-3-4 through Sec. 13-3-9 Reserved for Future Use.

Article B:
General Provisions and Zoning Maps

Sec. 13-3-10 Compliance.
The use of wetlands and the alteration of wetlands within the shoreland area of the Village of

Turtle Lake shallanykaﬁée%wate%thﬁw%ﬁp%aﬁd%eeaﬁe&eﬁstme&&e&eﬁ%ets—the

be in full comphance w1th the terms of thls Chapter and other apphcable local state or federal
regulations. (However, see Section 13-3-23 of this Chapter for the standards applicable to
nonconforming uses within the shoreland-wetlands district.) All permitted development shall

require the issuance of a zoning permit unless otherwise expressly excluded by a provision of
this Chapter.

Sec. 13-3-11 Municipalities and State Agencies Regulated.
Unless specifically exempted by law, all cities, villages, town and counties are required to

2|Page



comply with this Chapter and obtain all necessary permits. State agencies are required to comply
if Section 13.48(13), Wis. Stats., applies. The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and
repair of state highways and bridges by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation are exempt
when Section 30.2022(1)12(4)=), Wis. Stats., applies.

Sec. 13-3-12 Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.

(a) This Chapter supersedes all the provisions of any municipal zoning ordinance enacted
under Section 61.35, 62.23 or 87.30, Wis. Stats., which relates to floodplains and shoreland-
wetlands, except that where another municipal zoning ordinance is more restrictive than the
provisions contained in this Chapter, that ordinance shall continue in full force and effect to the
extent of the greater restrictions, but not otherwise.

(b) This Chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing deed restrictions,
covenants or easements. However, where this Chapter imposes greater restrictions, the
provisions of this Chapter shall prevail.

Sec. 13-3-13 Interpretation.

In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Chapter shall be held to be minimum
requirements and shall be liberally construed in favor of the municipality and shall not be
deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes. Where a
provision of this Chapter is required by a standard in Chapter NR 117, Wis. Adm. Code, and
where the Chapter provision is unclear, the provision shall be interpreted in light of the Chapter
NR 117 standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this Chapter or in effect on the date of
the most recent text amendment to this Chapter.

Sec. 13-3-14 Severability.
Should any portion of this Chapter be declared invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Chapter shall not be affected.

Sec. 13-3-16 Warning and Disclaimer of Liability.

The degree of flood protection based upon a once per one hundred (100) year flood frequency
and a once per five hundred (500) year flood frequency for Critical Use Facilities as defined in
NR 116, Wis. Adm. Code, and erosion hazard protection (based on a fifty (50) year period)
intended to be provided by this ordinance is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is
based on rare occasions, larger floods may occur or the flood height may be increased by
manmade or natural causes such as ice jams or bridge openings restricted by debris. Therefore,
this Chapter does not imply that areas outside of the delineated floodplain or erosion hazard
areas or land uses permitted within the floodplain will be totally free from flooding or erosion
and associated damages. Nor shall this action against the Village of Turtle Lake or any officer or

3|Page



employee thereof for any flood, erosion, or other water-related damages that may result from
reliance on this Chapter.
Sec. 13-3-17 through Sec. 13-3-19 Reserved for Future Use.

Article C:

Shoreland-Wetland Zoning District.
Sec. 13-3-20 Purpose of Shoreland-Wetland Zoning.
This Chapter is adopted to maintain safe and healthful conditions, to prevent and control water
pollution, to protect fish spawning grounds, fish and aquatic life and wildlife habitation, to
preserve shore cover and natural beauty and to control building and development in wetlands
whenever possible. When development is permitted in a wetland, the development should occur
in a manner which minimizes adverse impacts upon the wetland.

Sec. 13-3-21 Official Shoreland-Wetland Zoning Maps.
The following maps are hereby adopted and made a part of this Chapter and are on file in the
office of the Village Administrator:

(a) —fa)—The most recent version of the Wisconsin Wetland Inventory as depicted on the
Department of Natural Resources Surface Water Data Viewer is made part of this
ordinance. The maps can be viewed at: https://dnrmaps.wi.gov/H5/?Viewer=SWDV.-map
s e s e 0

(b) —by—United States Geological Survey maps dated June and July, 1978.

(c) Zoning map for the Village of Turtle Lake, dated XXXXX and as updated.

Sec. 13-3-22 District Boundaries.

(a) Boundaries. The shoreland-wetland zoning district includes all wetlands in the Village of
Turtle Lake, Wisconsin, which are five (5) acres or more and are shown on the final-Wetland
Iventory Map-that-has-beenadepted-andmost recent version of the Wisconsin Wetland
Inventory as depicted on the Department of Natural Resources Surface Water Data Viewer and
made a part of this Chapter in Section 13-3-21 and which are:

(1) Within one thousand (1,000) feet of the ordinary high-water mark of navigable lakes,
ponds or flowages. Lakes, ponds or flowages in the Village of Turtle Lake shall be presumed to
be navigable if they are shown on the United States Geological Survey quadrangle maps or other
zoning base maps which have been incorporated by reference and made a part of this Chapter in
Section 13-3-21 of this Chapter.

(2) Within three hundred (300) feet of the ordinary high-water mark of navigable rivers or
streams, or to the landward side of the floodplain, whichever distance is greater. Rivers and
streams shall be presumed to be navigable if they are designated as either continuous or
intermittent waterways on the United States Geological Survey quadrangle maps or other zoning
base maps which have been incorporated by reference and made a part of this Chapter in Section
13-3-21.

(b) Farm Drainage Ditches. Under Sec. 281.31(2m), Wis. Stats., the shoreland jurisdiction to
which the shoreland-wetland district applies, does not include lands adjacent to farm drainage
ditches if:

(1) Such lands are not adjacent to a natural navigable stream or river.

(2) Those parts of such drainage ditches, adjacent to such lands were non-navigable streams

before ditching;-or-had-ne-previeusstreamhistory.

4|Page



(3) Suchlands-are-maintained-innonstructaral-agrienlture-tse-Lands adjacent to artificially

constructed drainage ditches, ponds, or storm water retention basis that are not hydrologically
connected to a natural navigable water body.

(c) Determinations of Navigability. The Zoning Administrator shall initially make a
determination of navigability and ordinary high-water mark. When questions arise, the Zoning
Administrator shall contact the appropriate office of the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources for the final determination of navigability or ordinary high-water mark.

(d) Discrepancies. When an apparent discrepancy exists between the shoreland-wetland
district boundary shown on the official shoreland-wetland zoning maps and the actual field
conditions at the time the maps were adopted, the Zoning Administrator shall contact the
appropriate office of the Department of Natural Resources to determine if the shoreland/wetland
district boundary as mapped is in error. If the DNR staff concurs with the Zoning Administrator
that a particular area was incorrectly mapped as a wetland, the Zoning Administrator shall have
the authority to immediately grant or deny a land use or building permit in accordance with the
regulations applicable to the correct zoning district. In order to correct wetland mapping errors
shown on the official shoreland-wetland zoning maps, or acknowledge exempted wetlands
designated in sections XXXXX and XXXXX, the Zoning Administrator shall be responsible for
initiating a shoreland-wetland map amendment within a reasonable period.

Sec. XX-X-XX Filled Wetlands.

Wetlands which are filled prior to the effective date of the municipality’s original
implementation of shoreland-wetland zoning,. in a manner which affects their wetland
characteristics to the extent that the area can no longer be defined as wetland, are not subject to
this ordinance.

Sec. XX-X-XX Wetlands Landward of a Bulkhead Line
Wetlands located between the original ordinance high water mark and a bulkhead line

established prior to May 7, 1982 under s. 30.11, Stats. Are not subject to this ordinance.

Sec. 13-3-23 Permitted Uses.
The following uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Chapters 30 and 31, Wis. Stats.,
and the provisions of other local, state and federal laws, if applicable:
(a) Activities and uses which do not require the issuance of a zoning permit, provided that no
wetland alteration occurs:
(1) Hiking, fishing, trapping, hunting, swimming, snowmobiling and boating;
(2) The harvesting of wild crops, such as marsh hay, ferns, moss, wild rice, berries, tree
fruits and tree seeds, in a manner that is not injurious to the natural reproduction of such crops;
(3) The practice of silviculture, including the planting, thinning and harvesting of timber;
(4) The pasturing of livestock;
(5) The cultivation of agricultural crops; and
(6) The construction and maintenance of duck blinds.
(b) Uses which do not require the issuance of a zoning permit and which may involve wetland
alterations only to the extent specifically provided below:
(1) The practice of silviculture, including limited temporary water level stabilization

5|Page



measures which are necessary to alleviate abnormally wet or dry conditions that would have an
adverse impact on the conduct of silvicultural activities if not corrected;

(2) The cultivation of cranberries, including limited wetland alterations necessary for the
purpose of growing and harvesting cranberries;

(3) The maintenance and repair of existing drainage systems to restore pre-existing levels of
drainage, including the minimum amount of filling necessary to dispose of dredged spoil,
provided that the filling is otherwise permissible underChapter 30,-Wis—Stats-and that dredged
spoil is placed on existing spoil banks where possible;

(4) The construction and maintenance of fences for the pasturing of livestock, including
limited excavating and filling necessary for such construction or maintenance;

(5) The construction and maintenance of piers, docks and walkways, observation decks and
trail bridges built on pilings, including limited excavating and filling necessary for such
construction or maintenance;

(6) The installation and maintenance of sealed tiles for the purpose of draining lands outside
the shoreland-wetland zoning district provided that such installation or maintenance is done in a
manner designed to minimize the adverse impact upon the natural functions of the shoreland-
wetland listed in Section 13-3-37(c) of this Chapter; and

(7) The maintenance, repair, replacement and reconstruction of existing highways and
bridges, including limited excavating and filling necessary for such maintenance, repair,
replacement or reconstruction.

(c) Uses which are allowed upon the issuance of a building permit and which may include
wetland alterations only to the extent specifically provided below:

(1) The construction and maintenance of roads which are necessary for the continuity of the
municipal street system, the provision of essential utility and emergency services or to provide
access to uses permitted in this Section, provided that:

a. The road cannot, as a practical matter, be located outside the wetland;

b. The road is designed and constructed to minimize the adverse impact upon the natural
functions of the wetland listed in Section 13-3-37(c) of this Chapter;

c. Theroad is designed and constructed with the minimum cross-sectional area practical
to serve the intended use;

d. Road construction activities are carried out in the immediate area of the roadbed only;
and

e. Any wetland alteration must be necessary for the construction or maintenance of the
road.

(2) The construction and maintenance of nonresidential buildings provided that:

a. The building is used solely in conjunction with a use permitted in the shoreland-
wetland district or for the raising of waterfowl, minnows or other wetland or aquatic animals;

b. The building cannot, as a practical matter, be located outside the wetland;

c. The building does not exceed five hundred (500) square feet in floor area; and

d. Only limited filling and excavating necessary to provide structural support for the
building is allowed.

(3) The establishment and development of public and private parks and recreation areas,
outdoor education areas, historic, natural and scientific areas, game refuges and closed areas, fish
and wildlife habitat improvement projects, game bird and animal farms. wildlife preserves and
public boat launching ramps, provided that:

a. Any private development allowed under this paragraph shall be used exclusively for the

6|Page



permitted purpose;

b. Only limited filling and excavating necessary for the development of public boat
launching ramps, swimming beaches or the construction of park shelters or similar structures is
allowed;

c. The construction and maintenance of roads necessary for the uses permitted under this
paragraph are allowed only where such construction and maintenance meets the criteria in
Subsection (c)(1) of this Section; and

d. Wetland alterations in game refuges and closed areas, fish and wildlife habitat
improvement projects, game bird and animal farms, wildlife preserves shall be for the purpose of
improving wildlife habitat or to otherwise enhance wetland values.

(4) The construction and maintenance of electric and telephone transmission lines and
water, gas and sewer distribution lines, and related facilities and the construction and
maintenance of railroad lines provided that:

a. The utility transmission and distribution facilities and railroad lines cannot, as a
practical matter, be located outside the wetland;

b. Only limited filling or excavating necessary for such construction or maintenance is
allowed; and

c. Such construction or maintenance is done in a manner designed to minimize the
adverse impacts upon the natural functions of the wetland listed in Section 13-3-37(c) of this
Chapter.

Sec. XX-X-XX Prohibited Uses
(a) Any use not listed in section 13-3-23 of this Chapter is prohibited, unless the wetland or a
portion of the wetland has been rezoned by an amendment of this ordinance in
accordance with section 13-3-37.
(b) The use of a boathouse for human habitation and the construction or placement of a
boathouse or fixed houseboat below the ordinary high-water mark of any navigable
waters are prohibited.

Sec. XX-X-XX Nonconforming Structures and Uses Within the Shoreland-Wetland
District

(a) The lawful use of a building, structure or property which existed at the time this Chapter,
or an applicable amendment to this Chapter, took effect and which is not in conformity
with the provisions of the Chapter, including the routine maintenance of such a building
or structure, may be continued, subject to the following conditions:

1. The shoreland-wetland provisions of this ordinance authorized by s. 61.351, Wis.
Stats., shall not limit the repair, reconstruction, renovation, remodeling or expansion
of a nonconforming structure or of any environmental control facility related to such
a structure in existence on the effective date of the shoreland-wetland provisions. All
other modifications to nonconforming structures are subject to s. 62.23(7)(hb), Wis.
Stats.

(b) If a nonconforming use of the use of a nonconforming structure is discontinued for
twelve (12) consecutive months, any future use of the building, structure or property shall
conform to this Chapter.

(¢) Any legal nonconforming use of property which does not involve the use of a structure
and which existed at the time of the adoption or subsequent amendment of this ordinance

7|Page



adopted under sections 61.351 or 62.231, Wis. Stats., may be continued although such
use does not conform with the provisions of this Chapter. However, such nonconforming
use may not be extended.

(d) The maintenance and repair of nonconforming boathouses which are located below the
ordinance high-water mark of any navigable waters shall comply with the requirements
of section 30.121, Wis. Stats.

(e) Uses which are nuisances under common law shall not be permitted to continue as
nonconforming uses.




9|Page



Sec. 13-3-26 through Sec. 13-3-29 Reserved for Future Use.
Article D: Administrative Provisions

Sec. 13-3-30 Zoning Administrator.

The Village Administrator is appointed zoning administrator for the purpose of administering
and enforcing this Chapter. The Zoning Administrator shall have the following duties and
powers:

(a) Advise applicants as to the provisions of this Chapter and assist them in preparing permit
applications and appeal forms.

(b) Issue permits and certificates of compliance and inspect properties for compliance with
this Chapter.

(c) Keep records of all permits issued, inspections made, work approved and other official
actions.

(d) Have access to any structure or premises between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. for
the purpose of performing these duties.

(e) Submit copies of decisions on variances, conditional use permits, appeals for a map or text
interpretation and map or text amendments within ten (10) days after they are granted or denied
to the appropriate office of the Department of Natural Resources.

(f) Investigate and report violations of this Chapter to the appropriate Village planning
agency and the District Attorney, corporation counsel or Village Attorney.

Sec. 13-3-31 Zoning Permits.
(a) When Required. Unless another Section of this Chapter specifically exempts certain types
of development from this requirement, a zoning permit shall be obtained from the Zoning

10| Page



Administrator before any new development, as defined in Section 13-3-41(b)(4) of this Chapter,
or any change in the use of an existing building or structure is initiated.

(b) Application. An application for a zoning permit shall be made to the Zoning Administrator
upon forms furnished by the Village and shall include, for the purpose of proper enforcement of
these regulations, the following information:

(1) General Information.

a. Name, address and telephone number of the applicant, property owner and contractor,
where applicable.

b. Legal description of the property and a general description of the proposed use or
development.

c. Whether or not a private water or sewage system is to be installed.

(2) Site Development Plan. The site development plan shall be drawn to scale and
submitted as a part of the permit application form and shall contain the following information
drawn to scale:

a. Dimensions and area of the lot;

b. Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot lines and centerline of
all abutting streets or highways;

c. Description of any existing or proposed on site sewage systems or private water supply
systems;

d. Location of the ordinary high-water mark of any abutting navigable waterways;

e. Boundaries of all wetlands;

f. Existing and proposed topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover;

g. Location of floodplain and floodway limits on the property as determined from
floodplain zoning maps-tsed-te-delineate Hloodplain-areas;

h. Location of existing or future access roads; and

i.  Specifications and dimensions for areas of proposed wetland alteration.

(c) Expiration. All permits issued under the authority of this Chapter shall expire one (1)
year from the date of issuance.

Sec. XX-X-XX Certificates of Compliance

(a) Except where no zoning permit or conditional use permit is required, no land shall be
occupied or used, and no building which is hereafter constructed, altered, added to,
modified, rebuilt or replaced shall be occupied, until a certificate of compliance is issued
by the zoning administrator subject to the following provisions:

(1) The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part thereof,
and the proposed use thereof, conform to the provisions of this Chapter.

(2) Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a zoning
or conditional use permit.

(3) The certificate of compliance shall be issued within 10 days after notification of the
completion of the work specified in the zoning or conditional use permit, providing
the building or premises and proposed use thereof conform with all the provisions of
this Chapter.

(b) The zoning administrator may issue a temporary certificate of compliance for a building,
premises or part thereof pursuant to rules and regulations established by the municipal
governing body.

(¢) Upon written request from the owner, the zoning administrator shall issue a certificate of

11| Page



compliance for any building or premises existing at the time of ordinance adoption,
certifying after inspection, the extent and type of use made of the building or premises
and whether or not such use conforms to the provisions of this Chapter.

Sec. 13-3-32 Conditional Use Permits for Wetland Areas.

(a) Application. Any use listed as a conditional use in this Chapter shall be permitted only
after an application has been submitted to the Zoning Administrator and a conditional use permit
has been granted by the Board of Appeals, following the procedures in Sections 13-3-36(c), (d)
and (e) for hearing and deciding appeals.

(b) Conditions. Upon consideration of the permit application and the standards applicable to
the permitted uses in Section 13-3-23(c) of the Chapter, the Board of Appeals shall attach such
conditions to a conditional use permit in addition to those required elsewhere in this Chapter, as
are necessary to further the purposes of this Chapter as listed in Section 13-3-2 of this Chapter.
Such conditions may include specifications for, without limitation because of specific
enumeration: type of shore cover; erosion potential; increased side yard-setbacks; specific
sewage disposal and water supply facilities; landscaping and planting screens; period of
operation; operational control; sureties; deed restrictions; location of piers, docks, parking areas
and signs; and type of construction. To secure information upon which to base its determination,
the Board of Appeals may require the applicant to furnish, in addition to the information required
for a zoning permit, other pertinent information which is necessary to determine if the proposed
use is consistent with the purpose of this Chapter.

Sec. 13-3-33 Fees.
The Village Board, by resolution, shall establish fees for the following:
(a) —a)r—Zoning permits.
(b) Certificates of compliance.
(b) Public hearings.
(c) Legal notice publications.
(d) Conditional use permits.
(e) Rezoning petitions.

Sec. 13-3-34 Recording.
Where a zoning permit or conditional use permit is approved, an appropriate record shall be
made by the Zoning Administrator of the land use and structures permitted.

Sec. 13-3-35 Revocation.
Where the conditions of a zoning permit or conditional use permit are violated, the permit shall
be revoked by the Board of Appeals.

Sec. 13-3-36 Board of Appeals.

(a) Appointment. The Village President shall appoint a Board of Appeals under Title 2,
Chapter 4 of this Code of Ordinances and Section 62.23(7)(e), Wis. Stats., consisting of five (5)
members subject to confirmation by the Village Board. The Board of Appeals shall adopt rules
for the conduct of the business of the Board of Appeals as required by Section 62.23(7)(e)3, Wis.
Stats.

12| Page



(b) Powers and Duties. The Board of Appeals shall:

(1) Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement,
decision or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement or
administration of this Chapter.

(2) Hear and decide applications for conditional use permits under this Chapter.

(3) May authorize, upon appeal, a variance from the dimensional standards of this Chapter
where an applicant convincingly demonstrates:

a. That literal enforcement of the terms of the Chapter will result in unnecessary hardship
for the applicant.

b. That the hardship is due to special conditions unique to the property; and is not self-
created or based solely on economic gain or loss.

c. That such variance is not contrary to the public interest as expressed by the purpose of
this Chapter.

d. That such variance will not grant or increase any use of property which is prohibited in
the zoning district.

(c) Appeals to the Board. Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be taken by any person
aggrieved or by an officer, department, board or bureau of the community affected by any order,
requirement, decision or determination of the Zoning Administrator or other administrative
official. Such appeals shall be taken within a reasonable time, as provided by the rules of the
Board, by filing with the official from whom the appeal is taken and with the Board of Appeals,
a notice of appeal specifying the reasons therefor. The Zoning Administrator or other official
from whom the appeal is taken shall transmit to the Board all the papers constituting the record
on which-the-appeal-action-was-takenthe matter appealed.

(d) Public Hearings.

(1) Before making a decision on an appeal, the Board of Appeals shall, within a reasonable
period of time, hold a public hearing. The Board shall give public notice of the hearing by
publishing a Class 2 notice under Ch. 985, Wis. Stats., specifying the date, time and place of the
hearing and the matters to come before the Board. At the public hearing, any party may appear in
person, by agent or by attorney and present testimony.

(2) A copy of such notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the appropriate
district office of the Department at least ten (10) days prior to all public hearings on issues
involving shoreland-wetland zoning.

(e) Decisions.

(1) The final disposition of an appeal, or application for a conditional use permit, to the
Board of Appeals shall be in the form of a written decision, made within a reasonable time after
the public hearing, signed by the Board chairperson. Such decision shall state the specific facts
which are the basis of the Board's determination and shall either affirm, reverse or modify the
order, requirement, decision or determination appealed, in whole or in part, dismiss the appeal
for lack of jurisdiction or persecution, or grant the application for a conditional use.

(2) A copy of such decision shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the appropriate
district office of the Department within ten (10) days after the decision is issued.

Sec. 13-3-37 Amending Shoreland-Wetland Zoning Regulations.
The Village Board may, from time to time, alter, supplement or change the district boundaries

and the regulations contained in this Chapter in accordance with the requirements of Section
62.23(7)(d)2, Wis. Stats., Ch. NR 117, Wis. Adm. Code, and the following:

13 |Page



(a) A copy of each proposed text or map amendment shall be submitted to the appropriate
office of the Department of Natural Resources within five (5) days of the submission of the
proposed amendment to the Village planning agency.

(b) All proposed text and map amendments to the shoreland-wetland zoning regulations shall
be referred to the municipal planning agency, and a public hearing shall be held after class 2
notice as required by Section 62.23(7)(d)2, Wis. Stats. The appropriate office of the Department
of Natural Resources shall be provided with written notice of the public hearing at least ten (10)
days prior to such hearing.

(c) In order to insure that this Chapter will remain consistent with the shoreland protection
objectives in Section 281.31444-26, Wis. Stats., will be-aceomplished-by-the-amendment-the
Village Board may not rezone a wetland in a shoreland-wetland zoning district, or any portion
thereof, where the proposed rezoning may result in a significant adverse impact upon any of the
following:

(1) Storm and flood water storage capacity;

(2) Maintenance of dry season stream flow or the discharge of groundwater to a wetland,
the recharge of groundwater from a wetland to another area or the flow of groundwater through a
wetland;

(3) Filtering or storage of sediments, nutrients, heavy metals or organic compounds that
would otherwise drain into navigable waters;

(4) Shoreline protection against soil erosion;

(5) Fish spawning, breeding, nursery or feeding grounds;

(6) Wildlife habitat; or

(7) Areas of special recreational scenic or scientific interest, including scarce wetland types
and habitat of endangered species.

(d) Where the appropriate office of the DNR determines that a proposed rezoning may have a
significant adverse impact upon any of the criteria listed in Subsection (c) of this Section, the
DNR shall so notify the Village of its determination either prior to or during the public hearing
held on the proposed amendment.

(e) The appropriate district office of the Department shall be provided with:

(1) A copy of the recommendations and report, if any, of the municipal planning agency on
the proposed text or map amendment within ten (10) days after the submission of those
recommendations to the Village Board; and

(2) Written notice of the Village Board's action on the proposed text or map amendment
within ten (10) days after the action is taken.

(f) If the Department notifies the municipal planning agency in writing that a proposed
amendment may have a significant adverse impact upon any of the criteria listed in Subsection
(c) of this Section, that proposed amendment, if approved by the Village Board, may not become
effective until more than thirty (30) days have elapsed since written notice of the Village Board
approval was mailed to the Department, as required by Subsection (e) of this Section. If, within
the thirty (30) day period, the Department notifies the Village Board that the Department intends
to adopt a superseding shoreland-wetland zoning ordinance for the Village under Section
62.231(6) and 61.351(6), Wis. Stats., the proposed amendment may not become effective until
the ordinance adoption procedure under Section 62.231(6) and 61.351(6), Wis. Stats., is
completed or otherwise terminated.

Sec. 13-3-38 and Sec. 13-3-39 Reserved for Future Use.

14| Page



Article E: Penalties; Definitions
Sec. 13-3-40 Enforcement and Penalties.
Any development, building or structure or accessory building or structure constructed, altered,
added to, modified, rebuilt or replaced, or any use or accessory use established after the effective
date of this Chapter in violation of the provisions of this Chapter, by any person, firm,
association, corporation (including building contractors or their agents) shall be deemed a
violation. The Zoning Administrator shall refer violations to the Village Board and the Village
Attorney who shall prosecute such violations. Any person, firm, association or corporation who
violates or refuses to comply with any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to a
forfeiture as specified in Section 1-1-6, "General Penalties," of this Code of Ordinances, together
with the taxable costs of such action. Each day of continued violation shall constitute a separate
offense. Every violation of this Chapter is a public nuisance and the creation thereof may be
enjoined and the maintenance thereof may be abated by action at suit of the Village, the State or
any citizen thereof pursuant to Section 87.30(2), Wis. Stats.

Sec. 13-3-41 Definitions.

(a) For the purpose of administering and enforcing this Chapter, the terms or words used
herein shall be interpreted as follows: Words used in the present tense include the future; words
in the singular number include the plural number; words in the plural number include the
singular number. The word "shall" is mandatory, not permissive. All distances unless otherwise
specified shall be measured horizontally.

(b) The following terms used in this Chapter mean:

(1) Accessory Structure or Use. A detached subordinate structure or a use which is clearly
incidental to, and customarily found in connection with, the principal structure or use to which it
is related and which is located on the same lot as that of the principal structure or use.

(2) Boathouse. As defined in Section 30.121(1), Wis. Stats., a permanent structure used for
the storage of watercraft and associated materials and includes all structures which are totally
enclosed, have roofs or walls or any combination of structural parts.

(3) Class 2 Public Notice. Publication of a public hearing notice under Chapter 985, Wis.
Stats., in a newspaper of circulation in the affected area. Publication is required on two (2)
consecutive weeks, the last at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing.

(4) Conditional Use. A use which is permitted by this Chapter provided that certain
conditions specified in the Chapter are met and that a permit is granted by the Board of Appeals
or, where appropriate, the planning agency designated by the municipal governing body.

(5) Department. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

(6) Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including,
but not limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures; the
construction of additions or substantial alterations to buildings, structures or accessory structures;
the placement of buildings or structures; ditching, lagooning, dredging, filling, grading, paving,
excavation or drilling operations; and the deposition or extraction of earthen materials.

(7) Drainage System. One (1) or more artificial ditches, tile drains or similar devices which
collect surface runoff or groundwater and convey it to a point of discharge.

(8) Environmental Control Facility. Any facility, temporary or permanent, which is
reasonably expected to abate, reduce or aid in the prevention, measurement, control or
monitoring of noise, air or water pollutants, solid waste and thermal pollution, radiation or other

15| Page



pollutants, including facilities installed principally to supplement or to replace existing property
or equipment not meeting or allegedly not meeting acceptable pollution control standards or
which are to be supplemented or replaced by other pollution control facilities.

(9) Fixed Houseboat. As defined in Section 30.121(1), Wis. Stats., a structure not actually
used for navigation which extends beyond the ordinary high-water mark of a navigable waterway
and is retained in place either by cables to the shoreline or by anchors or spudpoles attached to
the bed of the waterway.

(10) Navigable Waters. Lake Superior, Lake Michigan, all natural inland lakes within
Wisconsin, and all streams, ponds, sloughs, flowages and other waters within the territorial limits
of this State, including the Wisconsin portion of boundary waters, which are navigable under the
laws of this State. Under Section 144.26(2)(d), Wis. Stats., notwithstanding any other provision
of law or administrative rule promulgated thereunder, shoreland ordinances required under
Sections 612.351 and 62.2321, Wis. Stats., and Chapter NR 117, Wis. Adm. Code, do not apply
to lands adjacent to farm drainage ditches if:

a. Such lands are not adjacent to a natural navigable stream or river;

b. Those parts of such drainage ditches adjacent to such lands were not navigable streams
before ditching; and

c. Such lands are maintained in nonstructural agricultural use.
“Wisconsin’s Supreme Court has declared navigable bodies of water that have a bed
differentiated from adjacent uplands and levels of flow sufficient to support navigation by a
recreational craft of the shallowest draft on an annually recurring basis [Muench v. Public
Service Commissions, 261 Wis. 492 (1952) and DeGaynor and Co., Inc., v. Department of
Natural Resources, 70 Wis. 2d 936 (1975)]. For example, a stream which is navigable by skiff
or canoe during normal spring high water is navigable, in fact, under the laws of this state though
it may be dry during other seasons.”

(11) Ordinary High-Water Mark. The point on the bank or shore up to which the presence
and action of surface water is so continuous so as to leave a distinctive mark such as by erosion,
destruction or prevention of terrestrial vegetation, predominance of aquatic vegetation or other
easily recognized characteristic.

(12) Planning Agency. The Plan Commission created under Section 62.23(1), Wis. Stats.

(13) Shorelands. Lands within the following distances from the ordinary high-water mark of
navigable waters; one thousand (1,000) feet from a lake, pond or flowage; and three hundred
(300) feet from a river or stream or to the landward side of the floodplain, whichever distance is
greater.

(14) Shoreland-Wetland District. The zoning district, created in this shoreland-wetland
zoning ordinance, comprised of shorelands that are designated as wetlands on the wetlands
inventory maps which have been adopted and made a part of this Chapter as described in Section
13-3-11 of this Chapter.

(15) Unnecessary Hardship. That circumstance where special conditions, which were not
self-created, affect a particular property and make strict conformity with the restrictions
governing area, setbacks, frontage, height or density unnecessarily burdensome or unreasonable
in light of the purpose of this Chapter.

(16) Variance. An authorization granted by the Board of Appeals to construct, alter or use a
building or structure in a manner that deviates from the dimensional standards of this Chapter.

(17) Wetlands. Those areas where water is at, near or above the land surface long enough to
support aquatic or hydrophytic vegetation and which have soils indicative of wet conditions.

16 |Page



(18) Wetland Alteration. Any filling, flooding, draining, dredging, ditching, tiling,
excavating, temporary water level stabilization measures or dike and dam construction in a
wetland area.

17 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

CHAPTER 1
Zoning Code

Contents

ARTICLE A INTRODUCTION ....vuieiviieieetsecte ettt et ssas s s sse s ses s s s st s s sesassesssesssansesasananns 1
SEC. 13-1-1  AUTHORITY. ...oovieireieeeteeeeee et sesae ettt sttt s s s sss s snansns 1
SEC. 13-1-2  TITLE.iuiuiiieieeeceeteecte ettt ettt ae s sae st ae st ae st et sn s s s sssssesnansans 1
SEC.13-1-3  GENERAL PURPOSE. .....cocvuiveveieceeieteteseassesesessesassessassesassesestesssssssssssssssssssesanens 1
SEC.13-1-4  INTENT AND PURPOSES IN VIEW......coouivreerereeereeeceeseeeesesestesssessesesessesessssesanenns 1
SEC.13-1-5  ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS. .....oucvveiereecteeeeeeeesneesesnsesenenens 2
SEC.13-1-6  RULES OF INTERPRETATION. ....ocvuruvreceeiceeeesceeseseseeseseesesestesssessesssessssssssnanens 2
SEC.13-1-7  SEVERABILITY AND NON-LIABILITY. ...ocuivieerereeereeceeseeeeseseetesssssesssesesssesnaesens 3
SEC.13-1-8  REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE. w..ouvuivieceeiceceeseeeeeeeeae e sesestesssessessse s s snaesans 3
SEC.13-1-9  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED. .....cvovuieevieceeieeceeseeaesesestesesessesessesssssessansans 3
SEC. 13-1-10  RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE......covuevieceeieeeciesseeseecaesesaeseseste s sessesssessessansns 3

ARTICLE B GENERAL PROVISIONS ......oovuevvireceiceeiesecteseseetesesaesesssesesessssesassessssssesasssssssssssssssssnenns 4
SEC.13-1-11  JURISDICTION AND GENERAL PROVISION. ......cevvecrveeereectesereeeeseseesssssesenenens 4
SEC.13-1-12  GENERAL USE REGULATIONS......ovvvreeeerereeeerseeeesseeseseesesestesssessesssessssssssenanens 4
SEC. 13-1-13  SITE REGULATIONS. ....ovvereeeeeceesneetesceeseseeeesesassessassesassesestesssassssssssessssssnassns 5
SEC. 13-1-14  HEIGHT AND AREA EXCEPTIONS. ....vvcvevereeteseeeteseeseeeesesestessseesesssesesssesnassens 6
SEC. 13-1-15  BULK STANDARDS. ......ecvvuieereectessteseseaeseseesesessessssaesesassesssesssessessssessssssessassnns 7
SEC. 13-1-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.......c.coovvevieererrrereeecserneenans 7

ARTICLE C ZONING DISTRICTS ....ovverueviertereesteseeestesessessseesesssssesssesesassesessesessssesessssessssessssssesasessnns 8
SEC. 13-1-20  PURPOSE. ......ovvieeeeeeeeeeeeseeesseteseseetesssssesesassessssessassesassesstesssassssasesssssnssssanens 8
SEC.13-1-21  DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED. .......ouivvereericeeiseeeeseeeeeessassesestesestesesassssnsessssssssesanens 8
SEC.13-1-22  R-R RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT ....vucvvereceeiereeeeeeeeeseeeesesestesssesssssesssssssssesanenns 9
SEC.13-1-23  R-L LOW-DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. ....cvevereerrerrernnnnnes 10
SEC.13-1-24  R-M MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT........cceveeeee. 11
SEC. 13-1-25  R-MF MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. ...ovvevereererereeresecieseseeisssae s 12
SEC.13-1-26  CONDITIONAL USES APPLICABLE TO ALL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS......c..coon..... 14
SEC.13-1-27 MHTH MOBILE HOME — TINY HOME NEIGHBORHOOD DISTRICT................... 15
SEC.13-1-28  R-T RURAL TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT.....ovrvevereerereeereeecsesneesesessesesessssssesesenens 24
SEC.13-1-29  I-A INTENSIVE AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT. w...vuvuvvereereeceeeeneesesecseseneesssseesenenenns 25



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-1-30 B-G GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicniincc e 27
SEC. 13-1-31  B-H HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT . ...ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniincc e 28
SEC. 13-1-32 D-MU DOWNTOWN MIXED-USE DISTRICT.....cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiccc e, 29
SEC. 13-1-33  B-P BUSINESS PARK DISTRICT. ...ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc i 30
SEC. 13-1-34  P-C PARK AND CONSERVANCY DISTRICT. ...tvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeesniiiereeeee e 32
SEC. 13-1-35 PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT . ...evtiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeen e 32
SEC. 13-1-36 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE. .......ccccviviiniiinnnnn, 38
ARTICLE D ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES........cttiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinciecccrecc e 39
SEC. 13-1-40 ACCESSORY USES OR STRUCTURES. ......ceviiiiiiiiiiiiiicciiicc e 39
SEC. 13-1-41  OUTSIDE STORAGE OF FIREWOOD. ......cccviiiiiriiiiiiiiciiiicccireccrecce e 40
SEC. 13-1-42  SWIMMING POOLS. ....oiiiiiiiiiiiitiiec ittt e e 41
SEC. 13-1-43 HOME OCCUPATIONS. ..ottt ettt e e s 42
SEC. 13-1-44 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-50 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.......cccccooviiiiiiiiniiininnnen, 43
ARTICLE E MANUFACTURED HOME, MOBILE HOME & TINY HOME STANDARDS ........cccceeuveeenn. 44
SEC. 13-1-51  PURPOSE. .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiictitc e 44
SEC. 13-1-52 MANUFACTURED HOMES IN RESIDENTIALLY ZONED AREAS........ccocovvvvrrnnnee. 44
SEC. 13-1-53  MOBILE HOMES ......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitcc e 44
SEC. 13-1-54  TINY HOMES. ..ottt s 46
SEC. 13-1-55 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-59 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE. .......cccceiiiiiiiiininnen, 47
ARTICLE F NONCONFORMING USES, STRUCTURES AND LOTS....cciiiiiiiiiiiiieeeen et 48
SEC. 13-1-60  PURPOSE. .....ooiiiiitititie e e e e s 48
SEC. 13-1-61  EXISTING NONCONFORMING USES.......cccceviiiriiiiiiiiciiiinic e 48
SEC. 13-1-62  EXISTING NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES. .....ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriieieecc e, 48
SEC. 13-1-63  CHANGES AND SUBSTITUTIONS. ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiiiccrcc e 49
SEC. 13-1-64 NONCONFORMING AND SUBSTANDARD LOTS. ....cccviiiiiiriieiiinieccieece e 50
SEC. 13-1-65 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-69 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE............oociiiiiiiiiinnn, 50
ARTICLE G PERFORMANCE STANDARDS ....ccciiiiiiititiiiee ittt e e 51
SEC. 13-1-70  PURPOSE. ....coiiiiiieite e e e e s 51
SEC. 13-1-71  HIGHWAY ACCESS. ....ootiiiiiiiiiiittitc ettt 51
SEC. 13-1-72  TRAFFIC VISIBILITY — VISION CLEARANCE TRIANGLES. ........ccoovvviiiiiiiiiiinee, 51
SEC. 13-1-73  LOADING REQUIREMENTS. ....otiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiriccncc e 51
SEC. 13-1-74  OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS. .....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciciece 53
SEC. 13-1-75  FENCING.....cctiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic ittt 55



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-1-76  SCREENING. ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniicitcrce e s 56
SEC. 13-1-77  NOISE. ..ottt e 57
SEC. 13-1-78  VIBRATION. .ciiiiiiiiiiitiieiet ettt rrre e e e s 57
SEC. 13-1-79  EXTERNAL LIGHTING. ...ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec ittt 58
SEC. 13-1-80  ODOR. ..ottt e e e e e e s 58
SEC. 13-1-81  PARTICULATE EMISSIONS. ..ottt ettt 58
SEC. 13-1-82  VISIBLE EMISSIONS. .....cuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciitcc e 58
SEC. 13-1-83  HAZARDOUS POLLUTANTS. ...otiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciiniee et 58
SEC. 13-1-84 STANDARDS FOR THE B-H, D-MU & B-P DISTRICTS.....ccccceeriiiinieinieenreeeee 58
SEC. 13-1-85 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-89 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.........cccceeiriiiiiiinniiiiinnee, 59
ARTICLE H SIGNS ...ttt r e e e s s s raa e s e e e e s s s s enanes 60
SEC. 13-1-90 PURPOSE AND INTENT ...ciiiiiiiiiiiitiiei ettt 60
SEC. 13-1-91  COMPLIANCE. ... .ttt e e e e s s 60
SEC. 13-1-92 NONCOMMERCIAL SIGNS. ...ttt 60
SEC. 13-1-93  EXISTING NONCONFORMING SIGNS. ......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicinncceec e, 60
SEC. 13-1-94  EXEMPTIONS. ...ttt 61
SEC. 13-1-95 ABANDONED AND DILAPIDATED SIGNS. ....coiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciircccneecc e, 61
SEC. 13-1-96  SIGN PERMITTING AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES. ......ccccovviiiiiiriiiiiiniiecinee, 61
SEC. 13-1-97 MEASUREMENT STANDARDS. ....ootiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 63
SEC. 13-1-98 CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND SIGN MAINTENANCE. .........ccccceeinnneee. 64
SEC. 13-1-99  GENERAL PROVISIONS. ...ciiiiiiitiiiec ettt 64
SEC. 13-1-100 SIGNS PERMITTED IN ALL DISTRICTS WITHOUT A PERMIT......ccccevvvriiininnne. 64
SEC. 13-1-101 SIGNS PERMITTED IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS WITH A PERMIT.......ccccevrnnnnee. 65

SEC. 13-1-102

SIGNS PERMITTED IN ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, OTHER THAN RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICTS, WITH A PERMIT ..ttt 65
SEC. 13-1-103 ILLUMINATION RESTRICTIONS — ALL ZONING DISTRICTS. ....coccuvviviiriiieinnee, 67
SEC. 13-1-104 TEMPORARY AND PORTABLE SIGNS. ...ttt 67
SEC. 13-1-105 OFF-PREMISES SIGNS AND BILLBOARDS.......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiinieeee s 68
SEC. 13-1-106 PROHIBITED SIGNS. ....cciiiiiiiiiiiitiiicn ittt 68
SEC. 13-1-107 APPEALS AND SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS. ...ttt 68
SEC. 13-1-108 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-109 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.........cccoocviiviiiniiiiinnee. 69
ARTICLE | TELECOMMUNICATIONS ....ciiiiiiiiiiiitiiiiiiiec ittt 70

SEC. 13-1-110

PURPOSE. ...ttt 70



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-1-111 SIGNAL RECEIVING ANTENNAS. ..ottt 70
SEC. 13-1-112 WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES. ..ccoviriiiiiiiiiiiiirieciieeccee, 72
SEC. 13-1-113 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-119 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE...........coocuviiiiiiiiininen, 77
ARTICLE J ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES.......cccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieccrrtee e 78
SEC. 13-1-120 PURPOSE. ....coiiiiieeiieie ettt rre s e e e s 78
SEC. 13-1-121 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR. ...eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeciee ettt 78
SEC. 13-1-122 ROLE OF SPECIFIC VILLAGE OFFICIALS IN ZONING ADMINISTRATION. .......... 78
SEC. 13-1-123 REVIEW AND APPROVAL REQUIRED. ........cooviieiiiiiiiiieniiicniciic i 79
SEC. 13-1-124 ZONING ORDINANCE (TEXT OR MAP) AMENDMENT. .....cccceerierrienieeieennenns 80
SEC. 13-1-125 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCEDURES & STANDARDS .......cccevervrirrieennne 83
SEC. 13-1-126 ZONING PERMIT . ..eeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec ittt srrer e 94
SEC. 13-1-127 SITE PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES........ccccccciiiiiimiiiiiieeiiniinns 95
SEC. 13-1-128 VARIANCES. ...ttt e e 97
SEC. 13-1-129 APPEALS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS. ......ccceviiiiieiiiiiiiiiieeeeees 99
SEC. 13-1-130 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES. ..ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiricc e 99
SEC. 13-1-131 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-139 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE..........cccevvuviiiininiiinnns 100
ARTICLE K DEFINITIONS . ...cciiiitiiiiiiiiiiiitiee ittt 101
SEC. 13-1-140 DEFINITIONS....coiitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicirtec e 101
SEC. 13-1-141 MOBILE HOME DEFINITIONS. ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiieein et 111
SEC. 13-1-142 LARGE LIVESTOCK DEFINITIONS. ..ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiei ittt 112
SEC. 13-1-143 SIGN DEFINITIONS. ....cottiiiiiiiiiiiitiet et 114



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE A
INTRODUCTION

SEC. 13-1-1 AUTHORITY.
This Chapter is adopted under the authority granted by Sections 61.35, 62.23(7) and 87.30 of
the Wisconsin Statutes and amendments thereto.

SEC. 13-1-2 TITLE.
This Chapter shall be known as, referred to, and cited as the "Zoning Code, Village of Turtle
Lake, Wisconsin" and is hereinafter referred to as the "Code" or "Chapter."

SEC. 13-1-3 GENERAL PURPOSE.
The purpose of this Chapter is to promote the comfort, health, safety, morals, prosperity,
aesthetics and general welfare of the people of the Village of Turtle Lake, Wisconsin.

SEC. 13-1-4 INTENT AND PURPOSES IN VIEW.
The general intent and purposes in view of this Chapter are to regulate and restrict the use of
all structures, lands and waters and to:

(a) Promote and protect the comfort, public health, safety, morals, prosperity, aesthetics
and general welfare of the people;

(b) Divide the Village into zones or districts restricting and regulating therein the location,
erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration and use of buildings, structures and
land for residence, business and manufacturing and other specified uses;

(c) Protect the character and the stability of the residential, business, manufacturing and
other districts within the Village and to promote the orderly and beneficial development
thereof;

(d) Regulate lot coverage, the intensity of use of lot areas and the size and location of all
structures so as to prevent overcrowding and to provide adequate sunlight, air,
sanitation and drainage;

(e) Regulate population density and distribution so as to avoid sprawl or undue
concentration and to facilitate the provision of adequate public services, utilities and
other public requirements;

(f) Regulate parking, loading and access so as to lessen congestion in and promote the
safety and efficiency of streets and highways;

(9) Secure safety from fire, panic, flooding, pollution, contamination and other dangers;

(h) Stabilize and protect existing and potential property values and encourage the most
appropriate use of land throughout the Village;

(i) Preserve and protect the beauty of the Village of Turtle Lake;

(i) To prohibit uses, buildings or structures incompatible with the character of
development or intended uses within specified zoning districts;

(k) To provide for the elimination of nonconforming uses of land, buildings and structures
which are adversely affecting the character and value of desirable development in each

1|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

district;

() Prevent and control erosion, sedimentation and other pollution of the surface and
subsurface waters;

(m)Further the maintenance of safe and healthful water conditions;

(n) Prevent flood damage to persons and property and minimize expenditures for flood
relief and flood control projects;

(o) Provide for and protect a variety of suitable commercial and industrial sites;

(p) Protect the traffic-carrying capacity of existing and proposed arterial streets and
highways;

(9) Implement those municipal, county, watershed and regional comprehensive plans or
components of such plans adopted by the Village of Turtle Lake;

(r) Provide for the administration and enforcement of this Chapter; and to provide
penalties for the violation of this Chapter; and

(s) Implement certain goals and objectives of the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive
Plan, which are best addressed through zoning approaches, as enable by Wisconsin
Statutes.

SEC. 13-1-5 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.

It is not intended by this Chapter to repeal, abrogate, annul, impair or interfere with any
existing easements, covenants, deed restrictions, agreements, rules, regulations or permits
previously adopted or issued pursuant to law. However, whenever this Chapter imposes greater
restrictions, the provisions of this Chapter shall govern.

SEC. 13-1-6 RULES OF INTERPRETATION.

(a) In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Chapter shall be held to be
minimum requirements adopted to promote the General Purpose identified in Section
13-1-3 and shall be liberally construed in favor of the Village and shall not be construed
to be a limitation or repeal of any other power granted to the Village by the Wisconsin
Statutes.

(b) Where property is affected by the regulations imposed by any provision of this Chapter
and by other governmental regulations, the regulations which are more restrictive, or
which impose higher standards or requirements shall prevail. Regardless of any other
provision of this Chapter, no land shall be developed, and no structure erected or
maintained, in violation of any state or federal regulations. Where there are conflicts
between or among regulations within this Chapter, the regulations that are more
restrictive or which impose higher standards or requirements shall prevail. In all
instances, where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and any tables or
figures of this Chapter, the text shall prevail.

(c) Nothing herein contained shall require any changes in plans, construction, size, or
designated use of any building or part thereof for which a building permit has been
issued before the effective date of this Chapter, and the construction of which shall
have been started within one year from the date of such permit.

(d) Except as provided in this Chapter, under provisions for nonconforming uses,
nonconforming developments, substandard lots, and nonconforming structures and

2|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

buildings (see Article F), no building, structure, development, or premises shall be
hereinafter used or occupied, and no applicable permit granted, that does not conform
to the requirements of this Chapter.

(e) In cases of mixed occupancy or mixed-use buildings, the regulations for each land use
shall apply to the portion of the structure or land so occupied and so used. In the case
of buildings containing both residential and nonresidential uses, the density, intensity,
and standards for nonresidential buildings shall apply.

SEC. 13-1-7 SEVERABILITY AND NON-LIABILITY.
The provisions of this Chapter are separable in accordance with the following:

(a) If any section, clause, provision or portion of this Chapter is adjudged unconstitutional
or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Chapter shall not
be affected thereby.

(b) If any application of this Chapter to a particular structure, land or water is adjudged
unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not
be applicable to any other structure, land or water not specifically included in said
judgment.

(c) The Village does not guarantee, warrant or represent that only those areas designated
as floodlands will be subject to periodic inundation and hereby asserts that there is no
liability on the part of the Village Board, its agencies or employees for any flood
damages, sanitation problems or structural damages that may occur as a result of
reliance upon and conformance with this Chapter.

SEC. 13-1-8 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.

(a) All other ordinances or parts of ordinances of the Village inconsistent or conflicting with
this Chapter, to the extent of the inconsistency or conflict only, are hereby repealed.

(b) This Chapter shall become effective upon passage and publication according to law,
following the date of repeal and recreation of the Official Zoning Map. All plans
approved under previous zoning regulations shall be valid and may be used to obtain
permits for a period of not more than a year after the effective date of this Chapter,
except where subject to developer agreement provisions.

SEC. 13-1-9 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED.

The Village has adopted as though fully set forth in this chapter that certain document entitled
“Village of Turtle Lake 2020-2040 Comprehensive Plan” dated August 17, 2020, and as
amended. A copy of the adopted plan is available in the office of the Village Clerk.

SEC. 13-1-10 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

3|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE B
GENERAL PROVISIONS

SEC. 13-1-11 JURISDICTION AND GENERAL PROVISION.

(a) Jurisdiction. The jurisdiction of this Chapter shall apply to all structures, lands, water and
air within the corporate limits of the Village of Turtle Lake.

(b) Compliance. No new structure, new use of land, water or air or change in the use of
land, water or air shall hereafter be permitted and no structure or part thereof shall
hereafter be located, erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted or
structurally altered without a zoning permit and without full compliance with the
provisions of this Chapter and all other applicable Village, county and state regulations.

(c) District Regulations to be Complied With. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter,
the use and height of buildings hereafter erected, converted, moved, enlarged or
structurally altered and the use of any land shall be in compliance with the regulations
established herein for the district in which such building or land is located.

(d) Yard Reduction or Joint Use.

(1) No lot, yard, parking area, building area or other space shall be reduced in area or
dimension so as not to meet the provisions of this Chapter. No part of any lot, yard,
parking area or other space required for a structure or use shall be used for any
other structure or use. Lots existing and of record prior to adoption of this Chapter,
but of substandard size, may be devoted to uses permitted in the district in which
located.

(2) No part of a yard or other open space provided about any building for the purpose
of complying with the provisions of this Code shall be included as a part of a yard or
other open space required for another building.

(e) Nuisance Actions. No provision of this Chapter shall be construed to bar an action to
enjoin or abate the use or occupancy of any land or structure as a nuisance under the
appropriate laws of the State of Wisconsin.

(f) Construction of Utilities. No provision of this Chapter shall be construed to prohibit the
customary and necessary construction, reconstruction or maintenance of above- ground
or underground public utility neighborhood service lines and mechanical appurtenances
thereto where reasonably necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety,
convenience, and general welfare.

SEC. 13-1-12 GENERAL USE REGULATIONS.
Only the following uses and their essential services may be allowed in any district:

(a) Permitted Uses. Permitted uses, being the principal uses, specified for a district.

(b) Accessory Uses. Accessory uses and structures as specified are permitted in any district
but not until their principal structure is present or under construction. Any permanent,
roofed structure serving as an accessory use, if attached to the principal building, shall
be considered a part of the principal building. If such structure is a building and is not
attached to the principal building, it shall conform to the setback and other dimensional
requirements of the district within which it is located. Residential accessory uses shall

4|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

not involve the conduct of any business, trade or industry, with the exception of home

occupations as allowed for under Section 13-1-43.

(c) Conditional Uses.

(1) Conditional uses and their accessory uses are considered as special uses requiring,
for their authorization, review, public hearing and approval by the Village Board in
accordance with Article J of this Chapter.

(2) Pre-Existing Conditional Uses. Those existing uses which are classified as
"conditional uses" for the district(s) in which they are located at the time of
adoption of this Code require no action by the Village Board for them to continue as
valid conditional uses, and the same shall be deemed to be "regular" conditional
uses.

(d) Uses Not Specified in Code.

(1) Uses not specified in this Chapter which are found by the Village Board to be
sufficiently similar to specified permitted uses for a district shall be allowed by the
Zoning Administrator.

(2) Uses not specified in this Chapter and which are found sufficiently similar to
specified conditional uses for a district may be allowed by the Village Board after
consideration and recommendation by the Plan Commission, public hearing and
approval in accordance with Article J of this Chapter.

(e) Temporary Uses. Temporary uses, such as real estate sales field offices or shelters for
materials and equipment being used in the construction of a permanent structure, may
be allowed by the Village Board. The Board may impose conditions on such temporary
uses, to the extent allowed for under Article J.

SEC. 13-1-13 SITE REGULATIONS.

(a) Street Frontage. All lots shall abut upon a public street or other officially approved
means of access, and each lot shall have a minimum frontage of sixty (60) feet at the
setback line; however, to be buildable, the lot shall comply with the frontage
requirements of the Zoning District in which it is located. No zoning permit shall be
issued for a lot which abuts a non-public road or public street dedicated to only a
portion of its proposed width and located on that side thereof from which the required
dedication has not been secured.

(b) Principal Structures. All principal structures shall be located on a lot. Only one (1)
principal structure shall be located, erected or moved onto a lot. The Village Board may
permit as a conditional use more than one (1) principal structure per lot in any district
where more than one (1) such structure is needed for the orderly development of the
parcel. Where additional structures are permitted, the Village Board, subject to the
recommendation of the Plan Commission, may impose additional yard requirements,
landscaping requirements or parking requirements, or require a minimum separation
distance between principal structures.

(c) Site Suitability. No land shall be used or structure erected where the land is held
unsuitable for such use or structure by the Village Board, upon the recommendation of
the Plan Commission by reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage,
adverse soil or rock formation, unfavorable topography, low percolation rate or bearing

5|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

strength, erosion susceptibility or any other feature likely to be harmful to the health,
safety, prosperity, aesthetics and general welfare of this community. The Plan
Commission, in applying the provisions of the Section, shall, in writing, recite the
particular facts upon which it bases its conclusion that the land is not suitable for certain
uses. The applicant shall have an opportunity to present evidence contesting such
unsuitability if he so desires. Thereafter, the Plan Commission may affirm, modify or
withdraw its determination of unsuitability when making its recommendation to the
Village Board.

(d) Preservation of Topography. In order to protect the property owner from possible
damage due to change in the existing grade of adjoining lands and to aid in preserving
and protecting the natural beauty and character of the landscape, no change in the
existing topography of any land shall be made which would result in increasing any
portion of the slope to a ratio greater than one and one-half (1-1/2) horizontal to one
(1) vertical, within a distance of twenty (20) feet from the property line, except with the
written consent of the owner of the abutting property and with the approval of the
Village Board, or which would alter the existing drainage or topography in any way as to
adversely affect the adjoining property. In no case shall any slope exceed the normal
angle of slippage of the material involved, and all slopes shall be protected against
erosion.

SEC. 13-1-14 HEIGHT AND AREA EXCEPTIONS.
(a) Height. The district height limitations stipulated elsewhere in this Chapter may be
exceeded, but such modifications shall be in accord with the following:

(1) Architectural Projections. Spires, belfries, parapet walls, cupolas, domes, flues and
chimneys are exempt from the height limitations of this Chapter.

(2) Special Structures. Radio and television receiving antennas are exempt from the
height limitations of this Chapter.

(3) Essential Services. Utilities, water towers, electric power and communication
transmission lines are exempt from the height limitations of this Chapter.

(4) Communications Structures. Radio and television transmission and relay towers,
aerials and observation towers shall not exceed in height three (3) times their
distance from the nearest lot line.

(5) Agricultural Structures. Barns, silos and windmills shall not exceed in height twice
their distance from the nearest lot line.

(6) Public or Semi-public Facilities. Schools, churches, hospitals, governmental offices
and stations may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet, provided all required yards
are increased not less than one (1) foot for each foot the structure exceeds the
district's maximum height requirement.

(b) Yards. The yard requirements stipulated elsewhere in this Chapter may be modified as
follows:

(1) Uncovered Stairs. Uncovered stairs, landings and fire escapes may project up to six
(6) feet into any yard but shall not be closer than three (3) feet to any lot line.

(2) Architectural Projections. Chimneys, flues, sills, window wells, eaves, belt courses
and ornaments may project into any required yard; but such projection shall not

6|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

exceed two (2) feet.

(3) Essential Services. Essential service, utilities, electric power and communication
transmission lines are exempt from the yard and distance requirements of this
Chapter.

(4) Landscaping. Landscaping and vegetation are exempt from the yard requirements of
this Chapter.

(5) Additions. Additions in the street yard of existing structures shall not project beyond
the average of the existing street yards on the abutting lots or parcels.

(6) Decks, Porches, and Handicapped Ramps. For purposes of this Chapter, decks and
porches shall be considered a part of a building or structure for determining setback
compliance (see Section 13-1-40(l) for patios). Handicapped ramps shall not be
considered a part of a building for determining setback compliance.

SEC. 13-1-15 BULK STANDARDS.

(a) All structures shall comply with the requirements listed for each zoning district in this
Chapter.

(b) All lots shall abut on a public street. Refer to additional standards for lots and blocks in
Title 14: Subdivision Regulations.

(c) On lots fronting two nonintersecting streets, a front yard must be provided on both
streets.

(d) On lots fronting three or more streets and/or on sharply curved streets, the
determination of the yards and appropriate setbacks shall be made by the Zoning
Administrator, or designee.

SEC. 13-1-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

7|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE C
ZONING DISTRICTS

SEC. 13-1-20 PURPOSE.
(@) The purpose of this Article is to establish the Zoning Districts for the Village of Turtle
Lake and the regulations for each District.

SEC. 13-1-21 DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED.

(a) Zoning Districts. The following standard Zoning Districts are hereby established in the

Village of Turtle Lake:

(1) R-R Rural Residential District.

(2) R-2 Single-Family Residential District.

(3) R-3 Single-Family Residential District.

(4) R-4 Multi-Family Residential District.

(5) MHTH Mobile Home - Tiny Home Neighborhood District.

(6) R-T Rural Transitional District.

(7) I-A Intensive Agriculture District.

(8) B-G General Business District.

(9) B-H Highway Business District.

(10) D-MU Downtown Mixed-Use District.

(11) B-P Business Park District.

(12) P-C Park and Conservancy District.

(13) PDD Planned Development District.

(b) District Boundaries

(1) Zoning Map & Amendments. The boundaries of the aforesaid districts are hereby
established as shown on the "Official Zoning Map, Village of Turtle Lake, Wisconsin",
dated DATE OF ADOPTION, as amended periodically, which is adopted by reference
and made a part hereof. Such map, together with a copy of this Chapter, shall be
available for public inspection in the office of the Village Administrator. The map
shall be certified by the Village President and attested by the Village
Administrator. Any changes in zoning district boundaries shall be recorded on the
map. No change shall be effective until so recorded and until a duly certified and
attested certificate describing the change is filed with the map. Changes to the
zoning map (zoning map amendments) shall further or not contradict the objectives,
goals, and policies contained in the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan.

(2) Boundary Lines. The district boundaries are either streets or alleys, unless otherwise
shown, and where the designation on the District Map indicates that the various
districts are approximately bounded by a street or alley line, such street or alley line
shall be construed to be the district boundary line.

a.  Where the district boundaries are not otherwise indicated and where the
property has been or may hereafter be divided into blocks and lots, the
district boundaries shall be construed to be lot lines and where the

8|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

designations on the District Map are approximately bounded by lot lines, said
lot line shall be construed to be the boundary of the district.
b. Insubdivided property, the district boundary lines shown on the District Map
shall be determined by use of the scale shown on such map.
(3) Vacation. Vacation of public streets and alleys pursuant to Section 840.11, Wis.
Stats., shall cause the land vacated to be automatically placed in the same district as
the abutting side to which the vacated land reverts.

SEC. 13-1-22 R-R RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to allow for a low density semi-
rural lifestyle area where topographic features or the natural environment make the land less
suitable for row crop production or more intense development. Development in this district is
often integrated and appropriately incorporated into natural or wooded areas, which often
makes the most suitable use of land for single-family homes on large lots. These areas are
designed to be served by private water and sanitary sewer systems on a permanent basis with
no central sewers planned for this area.

(a) Permitted Uses.
(1) A single-family dwelling and its accessory structure(s) or use(s).
(2) A licensed residential facility serving six (6) or fewer persons.
(3) Alicensed day care facility serving twelve (12) or fewer persons.
(4) Public parks and open space.
(5) Forest and wildlife management areas.
(6) Public utility infrastructure and offices.
(7) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 8 or fewer persons
being served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Section 60.63,
Wis. Stats.
(8) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure
without substantial modification, per Article I.
(b) Permitted Uses in Unplatted Areas
(1) Single-family, detached, non-farm dwellings are permitted uses in unplatted areas,
subject to the following standards:
a.  No more than four (4) dwelling units per forty (4) acres shall be allowed.
b. A minimum frontage of two hundred (200) feet on a public road for each
parcel.

c. A maximum of one (1) access per residential lot on a public road.
d.  Forlots recorded as of October 16, 2000, the following additional lots may be
created.
Areas in acres as of October 16, 2000 Max. # of Additional Lots Permitted
0to 20 0
More than 20 to 40 1

The foregoing shall not apply to a single parcel of not less than twenty (20)
acres and having a width of not less than give hundred (500) feet, and its

9|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

conveyance does not results in the division of a parcel into two (2) or more
lots or parcels, any one (1) of which is less than twenty (2) acres in area of
five hundred (500) feet in width.

e. Density transfers for parcels larger than forty (40) acres shall be permitted
where the entire parcel has frontage on an existing public road.

(2) Solar energy systems and solar structures.

(3) Temporary roadside stand not to exceed one (1) per farm.

(4) A group of not more than five (5) unrelated persons maintaining a common
household and using common cookies and kitchen facilities.

(c) Conditional Uses.

(1) Licensed residential facilities serving seven (7) through sixteen (16) persons.

(2) Accessory structures other than those listed as permitted.

(3) Churches.

(4) Cemeteries.

(5) Schools.

(6) Government and community buildings.

(7) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate nine or more
persons being served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Section
60.63, Wis. Stats.

(8) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(9) Dog kennels: Refer to Village of Turtle Lake kennel licensing ordinance Section 7-1-3.

(10) Agricultural uses.

(d) Lot Requirements.

(1) Minimum Area: One and one-half (1.5) acres exclusive of water bodies and
wetlands.

(2) Maximum Height. Three stories not including basement.

(3) Minimum building width: Twenty (20) feet.

(4) Minimum Lot width:

a. Unplatted: Two hundred (200) feet
b.  Platted: One hundred sixty (160) feet
c.  Cul-de-sacs: Eight (80) feet at setback line

(5) Minimum Lot Depth: Two hundred (200) feet; provided, however, that the depth of
any lot in a minor subdivision shall not exceed three (3) times the lot’s width.

(6) Yards:

a.  Street: Fifty (50) feet minimum
b. Side: Twenty-five (25) feet minimum. Minimum side yard for garage/carport
is twenty (20) feet.
c.  Rear: Fifty (50) feet minimum
(7) Maximum Building Coverage: Thirty-five percent (35%)
(8) Minimum Building Square Footage: Minimum 1,200 finished square feet per home.

SEC. 13-1-23 R-L LOW-DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

10| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to preserve and enhance areas for
single-family detached dwellings. The land use standards for this district permit primarily
single-family detached residential development at an approximate density of up to 3 dwelling
units per acre. Development within this district is primarily served by public sanitary sewer and
water services.

(a) Permitted Uses.

(1) A single-family dwelling and its accessory structure(s) or use(s).

(2) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 8 or fewer persons
being served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Section 60.63,
Wis. Stats.

(3) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure
without substantial modification, per Article I.

(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Public parks and open spaces.

(2) Schools.

(3) Cemeteries.

(4) Government and community buildings.

(5) Public utility infrastructure and offices.

(6) Golf courses.

(7) Churches.

(8) Agricultural uses.

(9) Residential lot serviced by private water and sanitary. (Note: this applies only to lots
established and zoned under this district as of January 18, 2021.

(10) Licenses daycare facility — 12 or fewer individuals.

(11) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate nine or more
individuals, in accordance with Section 60.63, Wis. Stats.

(12) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class
1 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.
a.  Minimum area: Twelve thousand (12,000) square feet minimum.
b.  Minimum width: Ninety (90) feet minimum.
(2) Building. Height: Thirty (35) feet maximum.
(3) Yards.
a. Street: Thirty (30) feet minimum.
b.  Rear: Thirty (30) feet minimum.
c. Side: Ten (10) feet minimum.

SEC. 13-1-24 R-M MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to create, preserve, and enhance
areas for smaller lot residential neighborhoods at an approximate density of 5 dwelling units
per acre. Neighborhoods in this district are typically dominated by single-family residential

11| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

dwelling structures thought it may accommodate other residential dwelling structure types in
infill situations provided they fit the neighborhood context and character. Development within
this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses.

(1) A single-family dwelling and its accessory structure(s) or use(s).

(2) Two-family residential structure(s).

(3) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 8 or fewer persons
being served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Section 60.63,
Wis. Stats.

(4) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure
without substantial modification, per Article I.

(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Those conditional uses prescribed for the R-2 District

(2) Up to four residential dwellings in one residential structure may be allowed provided
the form of the residential structure complies with the character of the surrounding
neighborhood.

(3) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Lot Size.
a.  Minimum area: Thirty-five (35) feet minimum.
b.  Minimum width: Seventy (70) feet minimum.
(2) Building. Height: Thirty-five (35) feet maximum.
(3) Yards.
a. Street: Twenty (20) feet minimum.
b. Rear: Twenty (20) feet minimum.
c. Side: Eight (8) feet minimum.

SEC. 13-1-25 R-MF MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to create, preserve, and enhance
areas for multi-family uses in residential structures such as townhomes, multiplexes, or garden
style homes. Group homes such as Community Based Residential Facilities (CBRF), nursing
homes and assisted livings may also be most compatible within this district. Development
within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses.
(1) A single-family residential dwelling and its accessory structure(s) or uses(s).
(2) A multi-family dwelling unit structure containing up to and including eight (8) units.
(3) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 15 or fewer persons
being served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Section 60.63,
Wis. Stats.
(4) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure

12| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

without substantial modification, per Article I.
(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Public parks and open spaces.

(2) Schools.

(3) Medical and dental clinics.

(4) Cemeteries.

(5) Nursing homes.

(6) Government and community buildings.

(7) Public utility infrastructure and offices.

(8) Golf courses.

(9) Churches.

(10) Agricultural uses.

(11) Two-family residential structures.

(12) A multi-family dwelling unit structure containing more than eight (8) units.

(13) Residential occupancy of zero-lot line attached dwelling units of zero-lot line
subject to:

a. A maintenance agreement shall be entered into by the owners of all zero-lot
line parcels to ensure equal and reasonable maintenance and repair
schedules are conducted for all attached residential units.

b.  An eight-foot maintenance easement, four-feet on each side of the zero-lot
line side property line, to allow for normal maintenance of each single-family
attached residential unit, shall be recorded with the register of deeds office
and a recorded copy provided to the zoning administrator.

c. The dwelling wall abutting the zero-lot line shall be a one-hour fire wall.

d.  Shall be served by municipal water and sewer.

(14) Community Living Arrangement with capacity to accommodate 16 or more persons
being served by the program, provided meets the requirements of Section 60.63,
Wis. Stats.

(15) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class
1 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.

(1) Lot Size.

a.  Width: Eighty (80) feet minimum.

b.  Area: Nine thousand six hundred (9,600) square feet.

(2) Building. Height: Maximum forty-five (45) feet or four (4) stories, whichever is the
least.

(3) Yards.

a. Street: Twenty (20) feet minimum.

b.  Rear: Twenty (20) feet minimum.

c. Side: Six (6) feet minimum.

(d) Other Requirements.

(1) That the recreation space ratio, defined as the minimum square footage of

recreation space required for each square foot of floor area, is not less than .16.

13| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(2) That the floor area ratio, defined as the maximum square footage, of total floor area
permitted for each foot of land area, is not more than .32.

(3) That the open space ratio, defined as the maximum square footage of open space
required for each square foot of floor area, is not less than 2.0.

(4) That the living space ratio defined as the minimum square footage of non-vehicular
outdoor spaced required for each square foot of floor area, is not less than 1.2.

(e) Zero-lot line lots having single-family attached dwelling structures:

(1) Minimum lot area: 5,000 square feet

(2) Minimum lot width: 40 feet

(3) Minimum street yard setback: 20 feet

(4) Minimum zero-lot line side yard (shared) setback: Zero feet. A two-foot eave
protrusion shall be permitted across the zero-lot line into the adjoining lot.

(5) Remaining standards shall be the same as described in this Section.

SEC. 13-1-26 CONDITIONAL USES APPLICABLE TO ALL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS.
(a) Applicability. This Section applies to residential districts of R-R, R-L, R-M, R-MF
(b) Bed and Breakfast Establishment

(1) As Conditional Use. Bed and breakfast establishments shall be considered
conditional uses and may be allowed in any Residential District.

(2) State Standards. Bed and breakfast establishments shall comply with the standards
of Chapter HSS 197, Wis. Adm. Code.

(c) Accessory Dwelling Unit

(1) As Conditional Use. Accessory Dwelling Unit shall be considered a conditional use
and may be permitted in the Residential Districts pursuant to this Article and subject
to the following standards of this Section.

(2) Not more than one accessory dwelling unit shall be permitted on a lot.

(3) Accessory dwelling units shall be allowed only on a lot having at least 8,000 square
feet.

(4) Accessory dwelling units shall not exceed 800 square feet in floor area and shall have
a minimum floor area of 250 square feet.

(5) The property owner of record must reside in either the primary dwelling unit or the
accessory dwelling unit as their permanent and legal address. A restrictive
agreement shall be recorded to this effect.

(6) In addition to off-street parking spaces requirements for the primary dwelling unit, a
minimum of one off-street parking space of an efficiency or one-bedroom accessory
dwelling unit, or a minimum of two off-street parking spaces for a two or more
bedroom accessory dwelling unit, shall be provided.

(7) The accessory dwelling unit shall not be conveyed or separated in ownership from
the primary dwelling unit.

(8) The accessory dwelling unit shall comply with all pertinent building codes.

(9) An accessory dwelling unit may be attached to or detached from the single-family
residence.

(10) Attached accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following:

a. The accessory dwelling unit shall be clearly incidental to the principal

14| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

dwelling unit and the building’s exterior shall appear to be single-family.

b.  Only one entrance may be located on the facade of the dwelling facing the
street, unless the dwelling contained additional entrances before the
accessory dwelling unit was created. An exception to this regulation is
entrances that do not have access from the ground such as entrances from
balconies or decks.

c.  Fire escapes or exterior stairs for access to an upper level accessory dwelling
shall not be located on the front of the primary dwelling unit.

(11) Detached accessory dwelling units shall comply with the following:

a. The accessory dwelling unit shall be subject to the requirements of Section
13-1-40 Accessory Uses or Structures.

b.  The accessory dwelling unit shall comply with all building code regulations
relating to dwellings.

(d) Group homes

(1) As Conditional Use. Group homes shall be considered conditional uses and may be
allowed in any Residential District.

(2) Group homes that fall within the meaning of community living arrangements are as
defined in Section 62.23(7)(l), Wis. Stats., or subsequent relevant changes and that
are identified as conditional uses in particular districts of this Chapter shall be
governed in conditional use review by standards of Section 62.23(7)(l)9, Wis. Stats.,
and the process of Section 62.23(7)(l), Wis. Stats., shall apply.

SEC. 13-1-27 MHTH MOBILE HOME — TINY HOME NEIGHBORHOOD DISTRICT.
Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to create, preserve, and enhance
areas exclusively designed for mobile home and tiny home developments.

(2) Minimum Dimensional Requirements; Minimum Number of Lots or Spaces.

(1) Where an MHTH District is to be established for the development of a mobile home
or tiny home neighborhood, the minimum area shall be ten (10) acres. The minimum
number of lots or spaces completed and ready for occupancy before first occupancy
is permitted shall be established as fifty percent (50%) of total units permitted on
the zoned site.

(2) These limitations shall not apply where expansion of an existing mobile home park
or neighborhood is concerned and where such expansion will not increase variation
from requirements applying to mobile home neighborhoods, as set forth herein.

(b) Permitted and Permissible Uses and Structures.

(1) Single-Family Detached Mobile Homes (residential mobile home) or Tiny Home. In
mobile or tiny home neighborhoods, recreational vehicles shall not be occupied as
living quarters and sales lots shall not be permitted, but dwellings may be sold on
lots or spaces they occupy in residential use.

(2) Permitted Accessory Uses and Structures. Uses and structures that are customarily
accessory and clearly incidental to permitted principal uses and structures shall be
permitted, except for those requiring specific approval as provided below.

(3) Rental. No mobile home or tiny home site shall be rented for a period of less than

15| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

thirty (30) days.

(c) Standard Requirements for Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhoods, Additions or
Extensions. All mobile home and tiny home neighborhoods and modifications of or
additions or extensions to existing neighborhoods within an MTH District shall comply
with the following:

(1) Chapters H 82 and 77, PSC 184, Wis. Adm. Code, are hereby made a part of this
Article and incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth; except that such
regulations shall not be deemed to modify any requirement of this Article or any
other applicable law or ordinance of the state or Village which is more restrictive.

(2) Mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall contain a minimum of ten (10) acres
of land. Additions to or extensions of mobile home parks shall contain a minimum of
one (1) acre of land.

(3) Individual lots or spaces shall be not less than five thousand (5,000) square feet in
area and arranged to afford ample area for a variety of units, a setback of fifty (50)
feet from all public rights-of-way and twenty-five (25) feet from any park drive or
common area, including common parking areas, forty (40) feet from all park
boundary lines, twenty (20) feet from any other unit, building or structure. Street
frontage for individual mobile home lots shall not be less than fifty (50) feet.
Accessory structures such as awnings, storage cabinets, carports, windbreaks or
attached porches shall be considered part of the unit for purposes of determining
compliance with this provision.

(4) No mobile home or tiny home neighborhood shall be laid out, constructed or
operated without Village water supply and sanitary sewer service. All water or
sanitary sewerage facilities in any unit not connected shall be sealed and their use is
hereby declared unlawful.

(5) Individual valved water service connections shall be provided for direct use of each
unit, so constructed and installed that they will not be damaged by frost or parking
of the unit. Water systems shall be adequate to provide a pure, potable water
supply of six (6) gallons per minute at a minimum pressure of twenty (20) psi and
capable of furnishing a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) gallons per unit per day.
Fire hydrants shall be installed within five hundred (500) feet of every mobile home
stand and park building.

(6) All liquid wastes originating at units, service or other buildings shall be discharged
into a sewerage system extended from and connected with the public sewerage
system. Such system shall comply with all provisions of the state code and Village
ordinances relating to plumbing and sanitation. Each individual space shall be
provided with a three (3) inch watertight sewer connection protected from damage
by heaving and thawing or parking of the unit, and located within the rear one-third
(1/3) of the stand, with a continuous grade, which is not subject to surface drainage,
so constructed that it can be closed when not in use and trapped in such a manner
that it can be kept odor free.

(7) Adequate provision shall be made for the disposal of solid and liquid wastes in a
manner approved by the Health Officer or Fire Chief. Open burning of waste or
refuse is prohibited.

16 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(8) All television antenna systems, electrical and telephone distribution lines and oil or
gas piping serving the neighborhood or spaces therein shall be installed
underground. Distribution systems shall be new, and all parts and installations shall
comply with all applicable federal, state and local codes. Each space shall be
provided with a weatherproof electrical overcurrent protection device, disconnect
means and branch service of not less than sixty (60) amperes for two hundred
twenty (220) volt service located adjacent to the water and sewerage outlets.
Receptacles shall be on the 1-pole-4-wire grounding type and have a 4-prong
attachment for 110-220 volts.

(9) A minimum of two (2) off-street parking spaces surfaced with bituminous concrete
or similar material capable of carrying a wheel load of one thousand (1,000) pounds
shall be provided for each mobile home space.

(10) Condition of soil, ground, water level, drainage and topography shall not create
hazards to the property, health or safety of occupants of mobile or tiny home spaces
or living units. The site shall not be exposed to objectionable smoke, noise, odors or
other adverse influences. No portion of the neighborhood which is subject to
unpredictable and or sudden flooding, subsidence or erosion shall be used for any
purpose which would expose persons or property within or without the park to
hazards.

(11) Exposed ground surfaces in all parts of every mobile home or tiny home
neighborhood shall be paved or covered with stone screenings or other solid
materials or protected with a vegetative growth that is capable of preventing soil
erosion and eliminating objectionable dust.

(12) The ground surface in all parts of every mobile home or tiny home neighborhood
shall be graded and equipped to drain all surface water in a safe, sanitary and
efficient manner.

(13) All mobile or tiny home neighborhoods shall be furnished with lighting so spaced
and equipped with luminaires placed at such heights as will provide the following
average maintained levels of illumination for the safe movement of pedestrians and
vehicles at night:

a.  All parts of the park street systems: 0.6 footcandles with a minimum of 0.1
footcandles.

b. Potentially hazardous locations, such as major park street intersections and
steps or stepped ramps, individually illuminated with a minimum of 0.6
footcandles.

(14) All mobile home or tiny home spaces shall abut upon a street. Widths of streets
shall be in accordance with the Village's Subdivision and Platting Code. All streets
shall be provided with a smooth, hard and dense surface which shall be well drained
under normal use and weather conditions for the area. Pavement edges shall be
curbed or protected to prevent raveling of the wearing surface and shifting of the
pavement base. Grades of streets shall be sufficient to insure adequate surface
drainage but not more than eight percent (8%), provided a maximum grade of
twelve percent (12%) may be used if approved by the Village as safe and designed to
avoid traffic hazards. Streets shall be at approximately right angles within one

17 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

hundred (100) feet of an intersection. Intersections of more than two (2) streets at
one point shall not be allowed. A distance of at least one hundred fifty (150) feet
shall be maintained between center lines of offset intersecting streets.

(15) In all mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods there shall be one or more
recreation areas easily accessible to all neighborhood residents. Such areas shall
include a total minimum of one (1) lot per thirty (30) spaces. If a park has less than
thirty (30) spaces, one recreation area must be provided. No single recreational area
shall contain less than five thousand (5,000) square feet unless each mobile home
site is provided with contiguous common recreational area not less than twenty (20)
feet wide at the narrowest dimension. Recreation areas shall be so located as to be
free of traffic hazards and convenient to mobile home or tiny home spaces which
they serve.

(16) Single family nondependent mobile homes or tiny homes and approved accessory
structures included in the original plans and specifications or revisions thereof,
parks, playgrounds, open space, off-street parking lots, one park office and service
buildings for exclusive use of park residents shall be the only permitted uses in
mobile home parks, provided the Village Board may approve the following uses
when designed and limited to exclusive use of neighborhood residents:

a. Laundromats.
b.  Clubhouses and facilities for private social or recreation clubs.
c.  Swimming pools.

(17) No signs shall be erected in mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods except signs
pertaining to the lease, hire or sale of individual mobile homes or tiny homes not
more than two (2) square feet in area and one (1) mobile home or tiny home
neighborhood identification sign not more than fifty (50) square feet in area at each
park entrance.

(18) All mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall be provided with safe and
convenient vehicular access from abutting public streets or roads to each mobile
home space. Entrances to neighborhoods shall be designed to minimize congestion
and traffic hazards and allow free movement of traffic on adjacent streets. The
standards and requirements for mobile home or tiny home neighborhood design,
layout and development contained in this Section are intended to be minimum
standards necessary to create a safe, sanitary, healthful, and agreeable environment
in neighborhoods designed for mobile home, tiny homes, and the Village of Turtle
Lake. The express enumeration of such standards shall not preclude the governing
body by resolution or bylaw or express written agreement with the mobile home or
tiny home neighborhood owner or developer from imposing additional
requirements or modifying the requirements set forth in this Article whenever it
shall determine that such modifications or additions are more likely to achieve the
purposes of this Section than those set forth herein and will not conflict with
applicable laws of the state or county.

(d) Annual Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhood Operation License.

(1) No person shall operate, administer or maintain a mobile home or tiny home

neighborhood within the Village of Turtle Lake without a valid, unexpired license

18| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

issued by the Village Administrator and approved by the Village Board upon
determination that the standards in this Article have been met and payment of the
required fee.

(2) Mobile home or tiny home neighborhood licenses shall be issued for a calendar year
and shall expire on December 31 next succeeding date of issue. Licenses may be
issued after January 1 of any year but not rebate or diminution of the fee shall be
allowed therefor.

(3) The fee for a mobile home or tiny home neighborhood license shall be as established
in the Village’s annual fee schedule. Licenses may be transferred during a license
year upon payment of a fee as established in the Village’s annual fee schedule.

(4) Licenses granted under this Section shall be subject to revocation or suspension by
the governing body for cause in accordance with Sec. 66.058(2)(d), Wis. Stats.
"Cause" as used in this Subsection shall include, but not be limited to:

a.

Failure or neglect to abide by the requirements of this Article or the laws or
regulations of the State of Wisconsin relating to mobile home parks and their
operation.

Conviction of any offense under the laws of the state or ordinances of the
Village relating to fraudulent or misleading advertising or deceptive
practices regarding the sale or renting of mobile homes or tiny homes or the
leasing or rental of mobile home of tiny home spaces or sale, lease or
operation of neighborhood facilities.

Operation or maintenance of the mobile home or tiny home neighborhood in
a manner inimical to the health, safety or welfare of park occupants or the
inhabitants of the Village of Turtle Lake; including, but not limited to,
repeated violations of laws or ordinances relating to health, sanitation,
refuse disposal, fire hazards, morals or nuisances.

Transfer or sale of an ownership interest in any mobile home or tiny home
space or the underlying land other than to another eligible licensee. Such
action shall also subject the owner of the underlying land to all requirements
of the state and municipal subdivision control laws and regulations
regardless of the size or number of lots or spaces so transferred or sold.

(5) Except as provided in Subsection (f) of this Section, no mobile home or tiny home
neighborhood license shall be granted for any premises or to any person not
meeting the following standards and requirements:

a.

All standards and requirements set forth in this Article, except as specifically
waived or modified in writing by the Village Board and endorsed on the
mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developer's permit. This
requirement includes a valid certificate form the Wisconsin Department of
Health and Social Services that the neighborhood complies with the
provisions of Ch. H 77, Wis. Adm. Code, applicable thereto.

Mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall be used only for the parking
and occupancy of single-family nondependent mobile homes or tiny homes
and accessory structures and appurtenances and uses authorized and
approved under Section 13-1-27(c)(16).

19| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

c.  Applicants shall file with the approving officer, certificates of the Building
Inspector and Health Officer certifying that all equipment, roads, sanitary
facilities, water facilities and other equipment and facilities have been
constructed or installed in the park as required by this Article and are in
required operating condition at the time of said application.

d. Location and operation of the neighborhood shall comply with all zoning and
land use ordinances of the state and Village and no permit shall be issued
until the proposed use has been certified by the Building Inspector as
complying with such ordinances.

(6) Each applicant for an original or renewed license shall file with the Village
Administrator a bond, as specified in the Village’s annual fee schedule, for each fifty
(50) mobile home spaces or fraction thereof guaranteeing the collection by the
licensee of the monthly parking permit fees as provided in Title 7, Chapter 5 and the
compliance of the licensee and the neighborhood management with the provisions
of this Code of Ordinances. Such bond shall also be for the use and benefit and may
be prosecuted and recovery had thereon by any person who may be injured or
damaged by reason of the licensee violating any provision of this Article.

(e) Operation of Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhoods; Responsibility of

Neighborhood Management.

(1) For every mobile home or tiny home neighborhood there shall be located an office
of the attendant or person in charge of said neighborhood. A copy of the license and
of this Article shall be posted therein and the neighborhood register shall at all times
be kept in said office. Said office shall be located within the Village of Turtle Lake.

(2) The attendant or person in charge and the neighborhood licensee shall operate the
neighborhood in compliance with this Article and regulations and ordinances of the
Village and state and their agents or officers and shall have the following duties:

a. Maintain a register of all neighborhood occupants, to be open at all times to
inspection by state, federal and Village officers, which shall show:

1. Names and addresses of all owners and occupants of each mobile
home or tiny home.

Number of children of school age.

State of legal residence.

Date of entrance and departure of each mobile home or tiny home.

Make, model, year and serial number of license number of each

mobile home or tiny home, and towing or other motor vehicles and

state, territory or country issuing such licenses.

b.  Notify neighborhood occupants of the provisions of this Article and inform
them of their duties and responsibilities and report promptly to the proper
authorities any violations of this Article or any other violations of law which
may come to their attention.

c.  Notify the Health Officer immediately of any suspected communicable or
contagious disease within the neighborhood.

d.  Supervise the placement of each mobile home on its stand which includes
securing its stability and installing all utility connections and tiedowns and

vk wnN

20| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

the placement of any tiny home in accordance with building code
requirements.

e. Maintain neighborhood grounds, buildings and structures free of insect and
rodent harborage and infestation and accumulations of debris which may
provide rodent harborage or breeding places for flies, mosquitoes and other
pests.

f.  Maintain the neighborhood free from growth of noxious weeds.

g. Maintain the neighborhood free of litter, rubbish and other flammable
materials, provide portable fire extinguishers of a type approved by the Fire
Chief in all locations designated by the Chief and maintain such extinguishers
in good operating condition and cause every area within the neighborhood
designated as a fire lane by the Fire Chief to be kept free and clear of
obstructions.

h.  Provide every mobile home and tiny home unit with a substantial flytight,
watertight, rodentproof container for the deposit of garbage and refuse. The
management shall provide stands for all refuse and garbage containers so
designed as to prevent tipping and minimize spillage and container
deterioration and facilitate cleaning.

i.  Provide for the sanitary and safe removal and disposal of all refuse and
garbage at least weekly. Removal and disposal of garbage and refuse shall be
in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin and the ordinances and
regulations of the Village, including regulations promulgated by the Health
Officer and the Fire Chief.

j.  Collect the monthly parking permit fee and cash deposits for each occupied
nonexempt mobile home or tiny home within the neighborhood and remit
such fees and deposits to the Village Administrator. Neighborhood operators
are responsible to assure for the collection and payment to the Village
Treasurer real estate taxes which are levied upon the neighborhood, mobile
homes, and tiny homes within the neighborhood.

k.  Allow inspections of neighborhood premises and facilities at reasonable
times by municipal officials or their agents or employees.

(f) Responsibilities and Duties of Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhood Occupants.

(1) Neighborhood occupants shall comply with all applicable requirements of this Article
and regulations issued hereunder and shall maintain their mobile home or tiny home
space, its facilities and equipment in good repair and in a clean and sanitary
condition.

(2) Neighborhood occupants shall be responsible for proper placement of their mobile
homes on the mobile home stand, tiny homes constructed in accordance with
building regulations, and proper installation of all utility connections in accordance
with the instruction of the park management.

(3) No owner or person in charge of a dog, cat or other pet animal shall permit it to run
at large or to cause any nuisance within the limits of any neighborhood.

(4) Each owner or occupant of a nonexempt mobile home or tiny home within a
neighborhood shall remit to the license or authorized neighborhood management

21| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)
(9)

the cash deposit and monthly parking permit fee.

It shall be the duty of every occupant of a neighborhood to give the park licensee or
management, or his agent or employee, access to any part of such neighborhood or
mobile home or tiny home premises at reasonable times for the purpose of making

such repairs or alterations as are necessary to effect compliance with this Article or
any law or ordinance of the state or Village or lawful regulation or order adopted
thereunder.

Mobile homes shall be parked only on the mobile home stands provided and shall be
placed thereon in accordance with all requirements of this Article.

No mobile home or tiny home owner or occupant shall conduct in any unit or any
mobile home or tiny home neighborhood any business or engage in any other
activity which would not be permitted in single-family residential districts in the
Village.

No person shall discharge any wastewater on the surface of the ground within any
mobile home or tiny home neighborhood.

No person shall erect or place upon any mobile home or tiny home space any
permanent or temporary structure intended to be used for dwelling purposes or in
connection with any mobile home unit except as specifically authorized by this
Article.

(g9) Mobile Home or Tiny Home Neighborhood Developer’s Permit.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Requirement. No person shall construct, alter, modify or extend any mobile home or
tiny home neighborhood or mobile home or tiny home neighborhood building or
facility within the limits of the Village of Turtle Lake without first having the property
re-zoned to the MHTH classification and securing a mobile home or tiny home
neighborhood developer's permit from the Village. Such permits shall be issued by
the Administrator upon approval by the Village Board.
Applications. Applications for mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developers'
permits shall be filed with the Village Administrator with sufficient copies for the
Building Inspector, members of the Plan Commission, and Fire Chief who shall
investigate and review said application to determine whether the applicant, the
premises on which said park will be located and the proposed design and
specifications thereof and all buildings proposed to be constructed thereon will
comply with the applicable regulations, ordinances and laws of the state and Village
and report their findings in writing to the Village Board within sixty (60) days. Such
reports shall be considered by the Village Board before any permit is issued
hereunder. Failure of any one of the above to report within the allotted time shall be
deemed a favorable recommendation.
Fees. Applications for mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developers' permits
shall be accompanied by a fee as set forth in the Village’s annual fee schedule to
cover the cost of investigation and processing, plus regular building permit fees for
all buildings or structures to be erected within the proposed neighborhood.
Information. Applications shall be made on forms furnished by the Administrator
and shall include the following information:

a. Name and address of the applicant.

22 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

b. Location and legal description of the proposed neighborhood, addition,
modification, or extension.

c. A complete plot plan showing compliance with all applicable provisions of
this Article and the Village Building Code and zoning and subdivision
ordinances.

d. Complete preliminary engineering plans and specifications, including a scale
drawing of the proposed neighborhood showing, but not limited to:

1. Plans and specifications of all utilities, including:

i. Sewerage collection and disposal;

ii. Storm water drainage;

iii. Water and electrical distribution and supply;
iv. Refuse storage and collection;

v. Lighting; and

vi. Telephone and television antenna systems.

2. Location and width of roadways and walkways, buffer strips,
recreational and other common areas.

3. The location of mobile home stands with the mobile home spaces,
including a detailed sketch of at least one typical mobile home space
and stand therein. The location of all tiny homes, including a detailed
sketch of at least one typical tiny home space.

4. Landscape plan showing all plantings.

5. Plans and specifications of all buildings and structures within the
proposed neighborhood.

e. Interest of applicant in proposed mobile home or tiny home neighborhood or
extension thereof. If owner of the tract is a person other than applicant, a
duly verified statement shall be provided by the owner that the applicant is
authorized by him to construct and maintain the proposed neighborhood,
addition, modification, or extension and make the application.

f.  Written statements describing proposed neighborhood operations,
management and maintenance, including proposed fees and charges and
other requirements to be imposed on neighborhood occupants by the
neighborhood operator.

(5) Final Plans. Final engineering plans and specifications complying with the provisions
of this Article and any modifications or conditions imposed by the governing body
shall be submitted to the Administrator and checked by the proper Village officials
for compliance before the license is issued.

(6) Re-Zoning Procedures. The procedures for creating an MHTH District shall be as
prescribed in Article J, Section 13-1-124 of this Code of Ordinances.

(7) Assignment of Permits. No mobile home or tiny home neighborhood developer's
permit, once issued, shall be assignable without the written consent of the Village
Board.

(h) Additional Regulations on Mobile Homes, Tiny Homes, and Associated Neighborhoods.

(1) Wrecked, damaged or dilapidated mobile homes or tiny homes shall not be kept or
stored in @ mobile home or tiny home neighborhood or upon any premises in the

23| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

Village. The Health Officer or Building Inspector shall determine if a mobile home or
tiny home is damaged or dilapidated to a point which makes it unfit for human
occupancy. Such mobile homes or tiny homes are hereby declared to be a public
nuisance. Whenever the appropriate officer so determines he shall notify the
licensee or landowner and owner of the mobile home or tiny home in writing that
such public nuisance exists within the neighborhood or on lands owned by him
giving the findings upon which his determination is listed and shall order such home
removed from the neighborhood or site or repaired to a safe, sanitary and
wholesome condition of occupancy within a reasonable time, but not less than thirty
(30) days.

(2) The Health Officer, Building Inspector, Fire Chief, Village Engineer, Village Board or

(3)

(4)

their lawful agents or employees are authorized and directed to inspect mobile
home or tiny home neighborhoods not less than once in every twelve (12) month
period to determine the health, safety and welfare of the occupants of the
neighborhood and inhabitants of the Village as affected thereby and the compliance
of structures and activities therein with this Article and all other applicable laws of
the state and ordinances of the Village.

Fires in mobile home or tiny home neighborhoods shall be made only in stoves and
other cooking or heating equipment intended for such purposes. Outside burning is
prohibited except by permit and subject to requirements or restrictions of the Fire
Chief.

All plumbing, building, electrical, oil or gas distribution, alterations or repairs in the
neighborhood shall be in accordance with the regulations of applicable laws,
ordinances and regulations of the state and municipalities and their authorized
agents.

SEC. 13-1-28 R-T RURAL TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to allow for limited low density
residential (not multi-lot or subdivision development), general agricultural and forestry, and
related on-site processing, storage, and rural business uses that are appropriate for certain
larger parcels. This district accommodates ag-tourism related uses. Development within this
district is served by private water and sanitary.

(a) Permitted Uses.
(1) A single-family dwelling and its accessory structure(s) or use(s).
(2) Public parks and open spaces.
(3) Agriculture or general farming, including dairying livestock and poultry raising,

nurseries, greenhouses and other similar enterprises or uses, except fur farms and
farms operated for the disposal or reduction of garbage, sewage and rubbish.
a. New or existing livestock operations which will house fewer than 500 animal
units

(4) Cemeteries.
(5) Public utility infrastructure and offices.
(6) Quarries.

24 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(7) Churches.

(8) Taverns.

(9) Fairgrounds.

(10) Shooting clubs and preserves.

(11) Campgrounds.

(12) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure
without substantial modification, per Article I.

(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.

(1) Lot Size.

a.  Width: Two hundred seventy (270) feet minimum.
b.  Area: Two (2) acres minimum.

(2) Building Height: Thirty-five (35) feet maximum except for barns, silos and other
buildings and structures which are customarily higher and accessory uses to farming.

(3) Yards.

a. Street: Fifty (50) feet minimum.
b.  Rear: Fifty (50) feet minimum.
c. Side: Fifty (50) feet minimum.

Note: In no case shall any structure be closer than forty (40) feet from any lot line; nor

any dump, disposal area, incinerator, or principal structures or buildings for mink farms,

or farm feeding or using offal or garbage be less than five hundred (500) feet from any
lot line.

SEC. 13-1-29 |-A INTENSIVE AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to accommodate all sizes of
agricultural operations, whether by right or as a conditional use, as well as ag-related
processing uses. Lands within this district do not have access to Village services. The state
legislature adopted s. 93.90, Wis. Stats., (Livestock Facility Siting Law) to govern livestock
facilities, which is implemented by administrative rule under ch. ATCP 51, Wis. Admin. Code.
Terms used in this section that are not defined in Article O Definitions shall be fined using those
definitions under s. 93.90 and ch ATCP 51. The Livestock Facility Siting Law allows local
jurisdictions to review livestock facilities with 500 animal units or more as a conditional use.

(a) Permitted Uses.

(1) Agriculture or general farming, including dairying livestock and poultry raising,
nurseries, greenhouses and other similar enterprises or uses, except fur farms and
farms operated for the disposal or reduction of garbage, sewage and rubbish.

(2) New or existing livestock operations which will house fewer than 500 animal units.

(3) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure
without substantial modification, per Article I.

(4) Agricultural buildings

25| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(5) Accessory agricultural structures
(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) A new or existing livestock operation, which houses or expands to house 500 or
more animal units. (see Section 13-1-125(p) for Conditional Use -Specific Livestock
Operations)

(2) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article .

(c) Standards for livestock facilities with 500 animal units or more. A livestock facility with

500 animal units or more shall comply with the following requirements.

(1) Minimum lot area. The facility shall only occur on a parcel of land that is 40 acres or
larger. Once this use is established, the parcel shall not be made smaller through a
property boundary relocation or other means, except as may be approved by the
Village of Turtle Lake Plan Commission and Village Board.

(2) General Setbacks

a.

Property lines. Except as provided for waste storage structures, livestock
structure must be located a minimum of 100 feet from the property line if
the livestock facility will have fewer than 1,000 animal units and 200 feet
from the property line if the livestock facility will have 1,000 or more animal
units. The setback requirement does not prevent the use or expansion of a
livestock structure that was located within the setback area prior to the
effective date of the setback requirement, except that a structure may not
be expanded closer to the property line.

Public road right-of-way. Except as provided for waste storage structures,
livestock structures must be located a minimum of 100 feet from the public
road right-of-way if the livestock facility will have fewer than 1,000 animal
units, and 150 feet from a public road right-of way if the livestock facility will
have 1,000 or more animal units. The setback requirement does not prevent
the use or expansion of a livestock structure that was located within the
setback area prior to the effective date of the setback requirement, except
that a structure may not be expanded closer to the public road right-of-way.
Waste Storage Structure. A new waste storage structure may not be located
within 350 feet of a property line, or within 350 feet from a property
boundary. If any portion of an existing structure is closer than 350 feet from
a property boundary line, such structure may be expanded, provided the
expansion is not located any closer to the property boundary line than the
existing structure. A single new livestock waste storage structure may be
constructed closer than 350 feet if such structure (1) is located on the same
tax parcel as a livestock waste storage structure in existence before May 1,
2006, (2) is lot larger than the existing structure, (3) is no further than 50 feet
from the existing structure, and (4) is no closer to the property boundary line
than the existing structure. This setback requirement does not apply to
existing waste storage structures, except that an existing structure within 30
feet of a property line or road may not expand toward the property line or

26 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

road.

d.  All wells located within a livestock facility shall comply with chs. NR 811 and
812, Wis. Admin. Code. New or substantially altered livestock structures
shall be separated from existing wells by the distances required in chs. NR
811 and 812, regardless of whether the livestock facility operator owns the
land on which the wells are located. A livestock structure in existence on
May 1, 2006 may be altered as long as the alteration does not reduce the
distance between the livestock structure and an existing well.

SEC. 13-1-30 B-G GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to permit areas having general
business or office uses, mostly at small or medium scale compatible with the Village setting and
the neighborhood context. It may, but does not necessarily, include home occupations.
Development within this district is served by public sanitary sewer and water services. The
district is intended for mapping in commercial areas on secondary streets, not within the
downtown or highway commercial areas.

(a) Permitted Uses.

(1) Personal or Professional Service: Including but not limited to barber shops; beauty
salons; banks; insurance and real estate offices; savings and loan/finance companies.

(2) Indoor Sales and Services: Including but not limited to hardware and feed stores;
drug stores; furniture stores; grocery stores; bakeries; fruit stores; dry good stores;
luggage shops; stationery stores; pet shops; clothing stores; gift stores; variety
stores; jewelry stores; shoe stores; packaged beverage stores; appliance sales and
repair; sporting goods; radio and television sales and service; department stores;
coin operated laundry; tobacco and magazine stores; and music shops.

(3) Funeral parlors.

(4) Bakeries.

(5) Bars and cocktail lounges.

(6) Restaurants and cafes.

(7) Hotels, motels.

(8) Rooming houses.

(9) Public passenger transportation terminals.

(10) Theaters.

(11) Professional offices.

(12) Organization headquarters.

(13) Newspaper' and magazine publishers.

(14) Catalogue order stores.

(15) Bowling alleys.

(16) Churches.

(17) Tobacco and magazine stores.

(18) Radio (w/o antenna).

(19) (Public parks and open spaces.

(20) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure

27 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

without substantial modification, per Article I.
(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Agricultural Uses.

(2) Wholesale outlets.

(3) Government and community buildings.

(4) Secondhand stores.

(5) Professional laundry and dry-cleaning establishments.

(6) Gas stations.

(7) Implement sales.

(8) Contractor's offices.

(9) Automobile sales and service.

(10) Commercial storage and other uses similar or customarily incident to the above
uses.

(11) Residential above sidewalk level.

(12) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class
1 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.

(1) Lot Size. No minimum.

(2) Building. Height: Four (4) stories or forty-five (45) feet maximum.

(3) Yards. No minimum.

SEC. 13-1-31 B-H HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to accommodate a wide range of
commercial uses, primarily serving travelers, along major highway corridors or as otherwise
directed by the Comprehensive Plan. Uses may include large- and small-scale office, retail,
commercial service, restaurant, and lodging uses. Development within this district is served by
public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses.
(1) Gas stations.
(2) Automobile repair.
(3) Automobile sales and service.
(4) Implement sale and service.
(5) Drive-in establishments serving food and beverages for consumption on premises.
(6) Motels, hotels.
(7) Drive-in theaters.
(8) Gift stores.
(9) Mobile home sales.
(10) Restaurants.
(11) Public parks and open spaces.
(12) Freight terminals and trans-shipment depots.
(13) Amusement parks and parking.
(14) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure

28| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

without substantial modifications, per Article I.
(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Casino and gaming establishments.

(2) Other uses similar to our customarily incidental to any of the above uses and
extensive commercial uses requiring large land areas.

(3) Agricultural Uses.

(4) Nightclubs.

(5) Sexually oriented businesses (see Section 13-1-125(0) for Conditional Use — Sexually
Oriented Business standards)

(6) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Building. Height: Thirty-five (35) feet maximum.
(2) Lot Size.
a.  Width: Eighty (80) feet minimum.
b.  Area: One-half (}4) acre minimum.

(3) Minimum Yards.

a.  Street: Eighty (80) feet (may be parking).
b.  Rear: Twenty (20) feet.
c. Side: Twenty (20) feet.

SEC. 13-1-32 D-MU DOWNTOWN MIXED-USE DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to permit mid-scale downtown
commercial, governmental, and institutional development, along with outdoor public spaces, at
an intensity which provides significant incentives for infill development, redevelopment, and
the commercial economic viability of existing downtown development. The district is also
intended to retain the existing “Main Street” characteristics of the core blocks in the Village’s
historic downtown. Residential uses are strongly preferred to occur as vertical mixed-use, with
the residential uses locating above the first floor.

(a) Permitted Uses.
(1) Mixed Use Building
(2) Public parks and open spaces
(3) Public utility infrastructure and offices
(4) Professional office
(5) Personal or Professional Service (with uses allowed in this classification in the B-G
district)
(6) Indoor Sales or Services (with uses allowed in this classification in the B-G district)
(7) Residential dwelling unit(s) above sidewalk level.
(b) Conditional Uses.
(1) First floor residential dwelling unit.
(2) First floor shall maintain visual form and function so that it could revert or be
converted to a commercial use in the future. Form elements to consider include

29| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

first floor entry above sidewalk grade, interior height, depth of space, recessed
entries, and building access.
(c) Lot Requirements.
(1) Building Height: Maximum of forty-five (45) feet or four (4) stories, whichever is the
least.
(2) Lot Size.
a.  Width: No minimum.
b.  Area: No minimum.
(3) Minimum Yards.
a. Street: Twenty (15) feet minimum.
b.  Rear: Twenty (15) feet minimum.
c. Side: Six (6) feet minimum, except in the case of a common or shared wall.

SEC. 13-1-33 B-P BUSINESS PARK DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district accommodates areas that are predominately
industrial or office in character with support institutions and service uses. The district includes
a range of research & development users, manufacturing, assembling, fabrication and
processing, storage, warehousing, and trucking uses. Development within this district is served
by public sanitary sewer and water services.

(a) Permitted Uses.
(1) Automobile repairs.
(2) Automotive upholstery.
(3) Cleaning.
(4) Pressing and dyeing establishments.
(5) Commercial bakeries.
(6) Commercial greenhouses.
(7) Distributors.
(8) Farm machinery.
(9) Feed mills.
(10) Dairy plants.
(11) Equipment repairs and storage.
(12) Railroad depots.
(13) Cooperatives.
(14) Laboratories.
(15) Machine shops.
(16) Printing and publishing.
(17) Storage and sale of lumber.
(18) Machinery and equipment sales.
(19) Contractor's offices.
(20) Warehousing and wholesaling.
(21) Packaging and assembly of products from furs, glass, leather, metals, paper, plaster,
plastics, textiles and wood.
(22) Manufacture, fabrication, processing, packaging and packing of confections

30| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

cosmetics, electrical appliances; electronic devices; food except cabbage, fish and
fish products, meat products and pea vining; instruments, jewelry, pharmaceuticals,
tobacco and toiletries.

(23) Freight yards.

(24) Freight terminals and transhipment depots.

(25) Inside storage.

(26) Breweries.

(27) Agricultural uses.

(28) Public parks and open spaces.

(29) Research and Development facilities.

(30) Professional office, accessory to a permitted or conditional use.

(31) Public utility infrastructure and office.

(32) Class 2 collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure
without substantial modification, per Article I.

(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Dumps and Disposal Areas. Incinerators and sewage disposal plants, earth and
sanitary landfill operations.

(2) Manufacture. Processing of: abrasives, acetylene, acid, alkalies, ammonia, asbestos,
asphalt, batteries, bedding, bleach, bone, cabbage, candle, carpeting, celluloid,
cement, cereals, charcoal, chemicals, chlorine, coal tar, coffee, coke, cordage,
creosote, dextrine, disinfectant, dye, excelsior, felt, fish, fuel, furs, gelatin, glucose,
gypsum, hair products, ink, insecticide, lime products, linoleum, matches, meat, oil
cloth, paint, paper, peas, perfume, pickle, plaster of paris, plastics, poison, potash,
pulp, pyroxylin, radium, rope, rubber, sausage, seeds, starch, stove polish, textiles,
and varnish. Manufacturing, processing and storage of building materials,
explosives, dry ice, fat, fertilizer, flammables, gasoline, glue, grains, grease, lard,
radioactive materials, shellac, soap, turpentine, vinegar and yeast. Bag cleaning,
bleacheries, canneries, cold storage warehouses; electric and steam generating
plants; electroplating; enameling forges; foundries; garbage incinerators; lacquering;
lithographing; bulk gas storage and sales; offal, rubbish or animal reduction; oil, coal
and bone distillation; refineries; road test facilities; slaughterhouses; smelting;
stockyards; tanneries; and weaving.

(3) Outside Storage and Manufacturing Areas. Wrecking, junk demolition and scrap
yards shall be surrounded by a solid fence or evergreen planting screen completely
preventing a view from any other property or public right-of-way and shall be at
least six hundred (600) feet from residential or commercial structures.

(4) Retail sales and services that exclusively or predominantly serve businesses and
employees of the business park area and are a minor part (less than 25 percent) of
the total parcel usages by area, volume, or similar measures.

(5) Multi-family residential structure with up to eight (8) dwelling units.

(6) Siting and construction of any new mobile support structure and/or facility or Class 1
collocation of a new mobile service facility on an existing support structure, per
Article I.

(c) Lot Requirements.

31| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(1) Lot Size.

a.  Width: Eighty (80) feet.

b. Area: Ten thousand (10,000) square feet.
(2) Building Height: No maximum
(3) Yards.

a. Street: Minimum ten (10) feet.

b.  Rear: Minimum thirty (30) feet.

c. Side: Minimum ten (10) feet.

SEC. 13-1-34 P-C PARK AND CONSERVANCY DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: This district is intended to accommodate parks, public
recreational areas, public open spaces, and private lands and buildings available for either
public recreation and/or conservation. This district is also used to protect valued natural
resources, including those identified as Environmental Sensitive Areas (ESAs), wildlife habitat,
or surface waters.

(a) Permitted Uses.

(1) The harvesting of wild crops such as marsh hay, ferns, moss, wild rice, berries, tree
fruits, tree seeds, sustained yield forestry,

(2) Public utility infrastructure and offices

(3) fishing, scenic, historic, scientific, wildlife preserve.

(4) non-resident buildings used solely in conjunction with the raising of waterfowl or
fish.

(5) hiking trails and bridle paths.

(6) public and private parks and picnic areas, greenways and open spaces.

(7) recreation related structures not requiring basements; and (8) general farming
provided no drainage, filling or dredging takes place and no farm buildings are
constructed.

(b) Conditional Uses.

(1) Filling, drainage, dredging,

(2) farm structures,

(3) single-family residences,

(4) dams, power plants, flowages, ponds, relocation of water courses, removal of
topsoil or peat.

(5) piers, docks, boathouses, campgrounds,

(6) cranberry bogs.

(c) Lot Requirements.

(1) All lot requirements are as determined by the Village Board through the subdivision

process.

SEC. 13-1-35 PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.

Primary Purpose and Characteristics: The PD Planned Development District, pursuant to
Section 62.23(7)(b), Wis. Stats., provides a regulatory framework to encourage improved
environmental design by allowing flexibility in the development of land while ensuring

32| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

compliance with the basic intent of the zoning ordinance and with the Village comprehensive
plan. The planned development district has no set standards and specifications. Developers
can propose uses or combination of uses and configurations of intensity and density of
development. Standards are negotiated by the developer and the Village; such negotiated
standards have the same legal force and effect as do standard zoning requirements.

The objective of the planned development district is not simply to allow exceptions to
otherwise applicable regulations. It is instead to encourage a higher level of design and
amenity than is possible to achieve under other zoning districts. An example application of use
of the PDD is for a conservation design subdivision, where due to the topographic and natural
features, the standards are relaxed, as negotiated by the Village and the developer.

(a) General requirements:

(1) Use regulations. The uses allowable in this district are the uses approved as part of
the general or detailed plan for particular sites that are placed in the Planned
Development District.

(2) Density and dimensional requirements. This Section sets no prescribed density or
dimensional regulations in the Planned Development District.

(3) Off-street parking and loading. There shall be no prescribed requirements for off-
street parking and loading in the Planned Development District. However, in the
review and approval of any general or detailed plan in a Planned Development
District, due consideration shall be given to the requirements established in Article F
of this Chapter for uses similar to those proposed in such plan.

(4) Standards. The following standards shall apply in the review of all general or
detailed plans proposed for the Planned Development District:

a. The uses proposed in the planned development shall be in general
conformance with the Village Comprehensive Plan.

b. The planned development shall incorporate environmental design
considerations, including the preservation of topography, trees and ground
cover, streams and natural bodies of waters, and other significant natural
features and control of erosion and runoff in accord with the Village's
erosion control standards as identified in Title 14 Subdivision Regulations.

c. The planned development shall provide for convenient and harmonious
groups of buildings, structures and uses; and buildings shall be spaced and
sited to ensure adequate safety, light, ventilation, and privacy.

d. Inaplanned development for residential use, adequate open space and
recreational areas shall be provided in appropriate locations, and all public
and common open spaces shall be designed and located to provide safe and
convenient access to residents.

e. The width of street rights-of-way, width of paving, width and location of
street or other paving, outdoor lighting, location of sewer and water lines,
provision for stormwater drainage or other similar environmental
engineering considerations shall be based on a determination of the
appropriate standards necessary to implement the specific function in the

33| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

specific situation; provided, however, that is no case shall standards be less
than those necessary to ensure the public safety and welfare as determined
by the Village.

f.  The application for a Planned Development District shall provide evidence
satisfactory to the Village Board of its economic feasibility of available
adequate financing and that it would not adversely affect the economic
prosperity of the Village of the values of surrounding properties.

g. The application for a Planned Development District shall submit a reasonable
schedule for the implementation of the development to the satisfaction of
the Village Board, including suitable provisions for assurance that each phase
could be brought to completion in a manner that would not result in an
adverse effect upon the community as a result of termination at that point.

(5) Minimum Area. A Planned Development District shall not be less than three (3)
acres of contiguous land under the same ownership. This requirement shall not be
interpreted to prohibit the post-development sale or all or part of an approved PD
subject to the provision of this Section and all applicable statutes and Subdivision
regulations.

(6) Subdivision review. The applicable Subdivision review under Title 14 Subdivision
Regulations shall be carried out as an integral part of the review of a Planned
Development District. The plan required must be submitted in a form that
substantially satisfied requirements of the Subdivision regulations for the
Preliminary and Final Plat approvals. Subdivision application may be submitted for
the whole, a part, or parts of the overall planned development as indicated by
phases in the detailed plan for staged development.

(b) Procedure for establishment of a Planned Development District. The provisions set
forth in Article J shall apply for the establishment of any Planned Development District,
provided the amendatory ordinance shall be considered only in conjunction with a
general or detailed plan.

(c) Pre-application procedures. Applicants are encouraged to seek preapplication,
conceptual review of proposed plans by the Plan Commission. The Plan Commission is
under no obligation to give a response to such submittals at the same meeting as they
are presented. The Plan Commission is entitled to seek outside assistance and sources
of critique. No responses by the Plan Commission or by individual Plan Commissioners
shall bind the Plan Commission or the Village unless the response is on behalf of the
Plan Commission, is in writing and is expressed as a binding response.

(d) Approval of general or detailed plan and adoption of zoning ordinance amendment. In
the event that the Village Board approves a general (or detailed) plan and adopted a
zoning amendment creating a Planned Development District in connection with such
general (or detailed) plan, the requirements of the plan shall constitute the zoning
regulations of the district and the zoning district maps shall be amended to show all
lands included in such general (or detailed) plan as within the Planned Development
District. In the approval of any general (or detailed) plan, the Village Board may
stipulate any conditions or restrictions in the establishment, maintenance or operation
of any uses proposed in such plan, and may also require any guarantees, including the

34| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

filing of a contract together with a surety, satisfactory in form to the Village Attorney
and satisfactory to the Village Engineer, with the Village to ensure that improvements
will be installed and completed as proposed in the plan.

(e) Recording of approval general or detailed plans and zoning ordinance amendments.

()

Whenever the Village Board designates land as being within a Planned Development
District, the Village Clerk shall record in the Office of the Register of Deeds of the County
in which the lands belong, a facsimile copy of the approved general (or detailed) plan,
together with a certified copy of the related zoning ordinance amendment and any
other action taken thereon by the Village Board. The cost of preparing a facsimile copy
of the general (or detailed) plan in recordable form and the recording fee shall be paid
by the owners of the lands included in the general (or detailed) plan.

Changes or modifications to general or detailed plans and zoning ordinance
amendments. Any approved general or detailed plan, together with the related zoning
ordinance amendment, may be amended in whole or in part pursuant to the same
procedure and subject to the same limitations by which general or detailed plans were
approved and the zoning ordinance amended. However, minor modifications may be
made by any general or detailed plan upon approval of the Village Plan Commission
provided that such modifications shall be in general conformity with the approved
general or detailed plan and shall not substantially change the concept of such approved
plan. All approved minor modifications shall become a part of the approved general or
detailed plan and shall be recorded as provided in Subsection (e) of this Section. The
Plan Commission shall decide whether a proposed amendment is minor or major, with
appeals made to the Village Board.

(9) Construction of building and establishment of uses. No zoning or building permit shall

be issued for any lot within the Planned Development District until the detailed plan and
the related zoning ordinance amendment have been recorded as required above.
Within one year of the date of recording of any detailed plan and the zoning ordinance,
construction thereon must begin; and construction must be substantially completed
throughout the project within three years of such date of recording, unless extensions
are granted by the Village Board. If initial construction has not begun within one year of
the date of recording or within the prescribed time period granted as an extension by
the Village Board, the approval of the detailed plan and the related zoning ordinance
amendment shall become null and void, and the zoning shall revert to the classification
that applied prior to the approval of the PDD zoning. No occupancy of dwelling units
shall occur until all public works that have been scheduled to be completed before
occupancy are completed to the satisfaction of the Village.

(h) Procedure for establishment of the Planned Development District — General plan for

staged development.

(1) Submittal of general plan. The general plan shall contain any information and
representations deemed necessary by the Plan Commission and shall consist of a
statement entitled “Planned Development District — General Plan, Statement of
Owner’s Intent and Description of Development,” which shall include, without
limitation, the following:

a. Alegal description describing all of the tract of land included in the proposed

35| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

development.

A statement indicating the nature of the applicant’s interest in the land
included in the proposed development.

A statement describing the proposed development, including the character,
method and operation of the development and a development schedule or
timetable for construction.

A statement as to the following data or graphic information referenced to a
map or plan of the proposed development:

1. The location and size of the site including dimensioned exterior
boundaries, topography and other salient features, and existing
buildings and structures, and also adjacent properties and streets,
including all public utilities and public easements.

2. The use and approximate location and bulk of buildings and
structures, including number of stories and dimensions of buildings.

3. The approximate location of vehicular and pedestrian facilities, such
as streets, sidewalks and off-street parking areas, including
approximate number of parking spaces.

4. The approximate location of areas for public or common open spaces
and for other public or semipublic uses.

5. Atabulation of land areas for the different types of uses in relation to
the total area.

6. A tabulation of the gross floor areas of buildings by types of uses.

7. A tabulation of the number of types of dwelling units, if applicable.

(2) Review of general plan. The Plan Commission shall review the general plan and
determine whether it complies with the standards set forth in Subsection (a)(4) of
this Section. Following review of the general plan, the Plan Commission shall
forward the petition to the Village Board, together with a recommendation that the
general plan be either approved as submitted or approved with modifications or
disapproved.

(3) Approval of general plan.

a.

In the event that the Village Board approves the general plan and adopts the
related zoning ordinance amendment, the zoning district maps shall be
amended to include all of the lands within the general plan as within the
Planned Development District (general plan approved). However, no
building construction shall be permitted in any portion of the approved
general plan until a detailed plan prepared in accordance with the
requirements hereunder has been approved by the Village as provided
below.

In the event the Village Board fails to approve the general plan and
ordinance, the Village Board shall communication its objections back to the
Plan Commission for reconsideration and further discussions.

(i) Procedure for establishment of the Planned Development District — Detailed plan for
staged development.
(1) Submittal of plan. Within one year after the recording of the general plan and the

36| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

copy of the related zoning ordinance amendment, a detailed plan for at least one
stage of the general plan shall be filed with the Village Clerk, unless an extension is
granted by the Village Board. The detailed plan shall contain any information and
representation deemed necessary by the Plan Commission and shall consist of a
statement entitled, “Planned Development District - Detailed Plan, Statement of
Owner’s Intent and Description of Development,” which shall include without
limitations, the following:

a.

A legal description describing all of the tract of land included in the proposed
development, referenced to a locational map indicated the relationship of
the tract to the total general plan.

A statement indicating the nature of the applicant’s interest in the land
included in the proposed development.

A statement describing the proposed development, including the character,
method and operation of the development, and a development schedule or
timetable for construction. Where the formation of organizations such as a
homeowners’ association is proposed, such a statement shall include any
agreements, bylaws or covenants which govern the organizational structure,
use, maintenance and protection of the development and any of its common
services, common open spaces or other common facilities.

A statement as to the following date or graphic information referenced to a
map of the proposed development:

1. The location and size of the site, including dimensioned exterior
boundaries, topography and other salient features, and existing
buildings and structures, and also adjacent properties and streets.

2. The use and location of all buildings or structures, including the
architectural character and design of each building, the number of
stories and dimensions of each building, and the dimensioned yards
between buildings or structure and lot lines.

3. The location of vehicular and pedestrian facilities, including
dimensioned streets, walkways, access driveways, off-street parking
spaces and loading berths, and refuse receptacle areas.

4. The location and size of areas for public or common open spaces and
for other public and semi-public uses.

5. A grading plan, including any storm sewer system, a landscaping plan,
and an erosion control plan.

6. A sanitary sewer and water distribution system plan.

7. Atabulation of land areas for the different uses in relation to the total
tract area.

8. A tabulation of the number of buildings and the use and the total
gross floor area for each building.

9. A tabulation indicating the number and types of dwelling units, if any,
in each building.

(2) Review of the detailed plan.

a.

The Plan Commission shall review the detailed plan as a conditional use

37| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

review and shall determine whether the plan complies with the standards set
forth in Subsection (a)(4) of this Section and is in general conformance with
the approved general plan. Following Plan Commission approval of a
detailed plan, the City Clerk shall record in the Office of the Office of the
Register of Deeds of the County in which the lands belong a facsimile copy of
the approved detailed plan and a certified copy of the Plan Commission
action approving the same. The costs for copies and recordings shall be paid
by the owners of the land within the plan areas.

b.  The action of the Plan Commission on the proposed detailed plan shall be
appealable to the Village Board. The Village Board shall consult with the Plan
Commission before making its appeal decision, but in no case shall a detailed
plan be approved that is out of conformity with the corresponding approved
general plan.

(3) Approval of detailed plan. Once the detailed plan is approved, the zoning
district maps shall be amended to include all of the lands within the detailed
plan as Planned Development District — detailed plan approved.

(j) Planned Development District — Single-stage procedure. Upon request by applicant and
subject to Village Board concurrence, the general and detailed stages of plan review and
approval can be combined. Under this option, the plan is submitted in detailed form
and is processed as is a general plan.

SEC. 13-1-36 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

38| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE D
ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES

SEC. 13-1-40 ACCESSORY USES OR STRUCTURES.

(a) Principal Use to be Present. An accessory use or structure in any zoning district shall not
be established prior to the principal use or structure being present or under
construction. Any accessory use or structure shall conform to the applicable regulations
of the district in which it is located, except as specifically otherwise provided.

(b) Placement Restrictions -- Residential District. An accessory use or structure in a
residential district may be established subject to the following regulations:

(1) Accessory Building Number Limits. In any residential district, in addition to the
principal building, a detached garage or attached garage and one (1) additional
accessory building may be placed on a lot.

(2) Attached Accessory Buildings. All accessory buildings which are attached to the
principal building shall comply with the yard requirements of the principal building.

(3) Detached Accessory Buildings. Detached accessory buildings are permitted in the
rear yard only. No detached accessory building shall occupy more than twenty
percent (20%) of the required rear yard or be located within three (3) feet of any
other accessory building, ten (10) feet of the principal structure, or five (5) feet of
any alley. Larger accessory use buildings may be permitted following issuance of a
conditional use permit. Accessory buildings not attached to the principal building
shall conform to the setback requirements of the district in which located. In no
event can the accessory uses or structures be forward of the front line of the
principal structure. Accessory structures shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height.

(c) Use Restrictions -- Residential District. Accessory uses or structures in residential
districts shall not involve the conduct of any business, trade or industry except for home
occupations as further described in Section 13-1-43.

(d) Placement Restrictions -- Nonresidential Districts. An accessory use or structure in a
business or manufacturing district may be established in the rear yard or side yard.
Accessory buildings not attached to the principal building shall conform to the setback
requirements of the district in which located.

(e) Reversed Comer Lots. When an accessory structure is located on the rear of a reversed
corner lot, it shall not be located beyond the front yard required on the adjacent interior
lot to the rear, nor nearer than three (3) feet to the side line of the adjacent structure.

(f) Landscaping and Decorative Uses. Accessory structures and vegetation used for
landscaping and decorating may be placed in any required yard area. Permitted
structures and vegetation include flag poles, ornamental light standards, lawn furniture,
sun dials, bird baths, trees, shrubs and flowers and gardens.

(9) Temporary Accessory Uses. Temporary accessory uses such as real estate sale field
offices or shelters for materials and equipment being used in the construction of the
permanent structure may be permitted by the Zoning Administrator.

(h) Garages in Embankments in Front Yards. Where the mean natural grade of a front yard
is more than eight (8) feet above the curb level, a private garage may be erected within

39| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

the front yard, provided as follows:

(1) That such private garage shall be located not less than five (5) feet from the front lot
line;

(2) That the floor level of such private garage shall be not more than one (1) foot above
the curb level; and

(3) That at least one-half (%) the height of such private garage shall be below the mean
grade of the front yard.

(i) Outdoor lighting. Outdoor lighting installations shall not be permitted closer than three
(3) feet to an abutting property line and, where not specifically otherwise regulated,
shall not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height and shall be adequately shielded or hooded
so that no excessive glare or illumination is cast upon the adjoining properties.

(j) Lawn Accessories. Walks, drives, paved terraces and purely decorative garden
accessories such as pools, fountains, statuary, flag poles, etc., shall be permitted in
setback areas but not closer than three (3) feet to an abutting property line other than a
street line.

(k) Retaining Walls. Retaining walls may be permitted anywhere on the lot, provided,
however, that no individual wall shall exceed six (6) feet in height, and a terrace of at
least three (3) feet in width shall be provided between any series of such walls and
provided further that along a street frontage no such wall shall be closer than three (3)
feet to the property line.

(I) Patios/decks. Patios/decks at ground level or at a floor level shall be no more than four
feet above ground at any point under the deck (decks at greater height are considered
part of the structure and may not intrude into setback areas). There shall be a ten-foot
minimum separation measure in from any side (or the side yard setback of the subject
property’s zoning district, whichever is lesser) or rear lot line to the edge or side of the
structure unless the applicant has obtained a signed and notarized affidavit of consent
to run with the land from the owner(s) of record of the neighboring properties
identifying a closer distance, and has recorded this against both parcels in the register of
deeds office and with the Village Zoning Administrator.

SEC. 13-1-41 OUTSIDE STORAGE OF FIREWOOD.

(a) No person shall store firewood in the front yard on residentially zoned property, except
that firewood may be temporarily stored in the front yard for a period of thirty (30) days
from the date of its delivery.

(b) Firewood should be neatly stacked and may not be stacked closer than three (3) feet to
any lot line and not higher than six (6) feet from grade, except adjacent to a fence where
firewood can be stacked against the fence as high as the fence. Fences as used in this
Section shall not include hedges and other vegetation.

(c) All brush, debris and refuse from processing of firewood shall be promptly and properly
disposed of and shall not be allowed to remain on the premises.

(d) Woodpiles that contain diseased wood that is capable of transmitting disease to healthy
trees and woodpiles that harbor or are infested or inhabited by rats or other vermin are
public nuisances and may be abated pursuant to the provisions of this Code of
Ordinances.

40| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(e) Not more than twenty percent (20%) of the side and rear yard may be used for storage
of firewood at any one (1) time.

SEC. 13-1-42 SWIMMING POOLS.

(a) Definition. A private or residential swimming pool is an outdoor structure containing a
body of water in a receptacle or other container having a depth for water at any point
greater than one and one-half (1-1/2) feet located above or below the surface of ground
elevation, used or intended to be used solely by the owner, operator or lessee thereof
and his family, and by friends invited to use it, and includes all structural facilities,
appliances and appurtenances, equipment and other items used and intended to be
used for the operation and maintenance of a private or residential swimming pool.

(b) Exempt Pools. Storable children's swimming or wading pools, with a maximum
dimension of fifteen (15) feet and a maximum wall height of fifteen (15) inches and
which are so constructed that it may be readily disassembled for storage and
reassembled to its original integrity are exempt from the provisions of this Section.

(c) Permit Required. Before work is commenced on the construction or erection of private
or residential swimming pools or on any alterations, additions, remodeling or other
improvements, an application for a swimming pool building permit to construct, erect,
alter, remodel or add must be submitted in writing to the Zoning Administrator. Plans
and specifications and pertinent explanatory data should be submitted to the Zoning
Administrator at the time of application. No work or any part of the work shall be
commenced until a written permit for such work is obtained by the applicant. A fee of
Ten Dollars (510.00) shall accompany such application.

(d) Construction Requirements. In addition to such other requirements as may be
reasonably imposed by the Zoning Administrator, the Zoning Administrator shall not
issue a permit for construction as provided for in Subsection (b), unless the following
construction requirements are observed:

(1) All materials and methods of construction in the construction, alteration, addition,
remodeling or other improvements and pool installation shall be in accord with all
state regulations and code and with any and all Ordinances of the Village now in
effect or hereafter enacted.

(2) All plumbing work shall be in accordance with all applicable Ordinances of the
Village and all state codes. Every private or residential swimming pool shall be
provided with a suitable draining method and, in no case, shall waters from any pool
be drained into the sanitary sewer system, onto lands of other property owners
adjacent to that on which the pool is located on in the general vicinity.

(3) All electrical installations, including lighting and heating but not limited thereto,
which are provided for, installed and used in conjunction with a private swimming
pool shall be in conformance with the state laws and Village Ordinances regulating
electrical installations.

(e) Setbacks and Other Requirements.

(1) Private swimming pools shall be erected or constructed on rear or side lots only and
only on a lot occupied by a principal building. No swimming pool shall be erected or
constructed on an otherwise vacant lot. A lot shall not be considered vacant if the

41 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

owner owns the contiguous lot and said lot is occupied by a principal building.

(2) No swimming pool shall be located, constructed or maintained closer to any side or
rear lot line than is permitted in the Zoning Code for an accessory building, and in no
case shall the water line of any pool be less than six (6) feet from any lot line.

(f) Fence.

(1) Pools within the scope of this Section which are not enclosed with a permanent
building shall be completely enclosed by a fence of sufficient strength to prevent
access to the pool. Such fence or wall shall not be less than six (6) feet in height and
so constructed as not to have voids, holes or openings larger than four (4) inches in
one (1) dimension. Gates or doors shall be kept locked while the pool is not in actual
use.

(2) The pool enclosure may be omitted where portable pools are installed above ground
and have unobstructed walls a minimum of thirty-six (36) inches high on the top.

(g9) Compliance. All swimming pools existing at the time of passage of this Code of

Ordinances not satisfactorily fenced shall comply with the fencing requirements of this

Section or when water is placed in the pool.

SEC. 13-1-43 HOME OCCUPATIONS.

(a) Intent. The Intent of this Section is to provide a means to accommodate a small family
business within a residence without the necessity of a rezoning into a Commercial
District or obtaining a Conditional Use Permit.

(b) Accessory use. Home occupations are determined to be an allowed accessory use in all
Residential Districts. Permits are not required prior to engaging in such activities, but
the following standards apply:

(1) The activity must be clearly secondary and incidental to the primary residential use.

(2) The activity must not significantly alter the residential character of the dwelling unit,
dwelling structure or the parcel.

(3) The home occupation shall not occupy more than 25 percent of the floor area of the
dwelling.

(4) The home occupation shall be conducted only within the enclosed areas of the
dwelling unit or attached or detached garage.

(5) The activity must not unreasonably interfere with the residential occupancy of other
parcels in the neighborhood.

(6) The activity must not create environmental, safety or health hazards such as noise,
light, odors, vibrations, electrical emissions, or other fire or safety hazards that are
noticeably out of character with those produced by normal residential occupancy.

(7) The use shall not involve the use of commercial vehicles for more than occasional
delivery of materials to or from the premises, and traffic generated by the home
occupation may not exceed that which is customary to residential occupancies in the
neighborhood.

(8) No storage or display of materials, goods, supplies, or equipment related to the
operation of the home occupation shall be visible outside any structures located on
the premises.

(9) Signage for the home occupation is governed by Section 13-1-101.

42 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(10) The parcel and structure must contain adequate area to accommodate the home
occupation without interfering with residential occupancy of other parcels in the
neighborhood.

(11) Under no circumstances shall a kennel business of a vehicle repair or body work
business qualify as a home occupation.

(12) Garage sales as a type of home occupation are allowable in all Residential Districts,
provided that not more than two are held on a single premises per year and that
each such sale shall not exceed four days in duration.

(13) Day care is allowable as a home occupation on a residential premise. Conditional
use approval may be required, however, if Section 66.1017, Wis. Stats., or as it may
be hereafter amended, applies.

SEC. 13-1-44 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-50 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

43 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE E
MANUFACTURED HOME, MOBILE HOME & TINY HOME STANDARDS

SEC. 13-1-51 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Article is to establish regulations for manufactured homes, mobile homes
and tiny homes. It is not the intent of this article to exceed Wisconsin State Uniform Dwelling
Code (WI State UDC) regulations. Where in conflict with the WI State UDC or other state
regulations, the more restrictive rule shall apply.

SEC. 13-1-52 MANUFACTURED HOMES IN RESIDENTIALLY ZONED AREAS.

All manufactured homes in any residential zoning district shall be supported by a permanent
enclosed foundation constructed to standards as outlined in the "Permanent Foundations
Guide for Manufactured Housing" (HUD 0007487 Now HUD 4930.3G) with the additions,
insertions, deletions, and changes, if any, as prescribed below:

(a) Placement of manufactured homes without U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) approval shall require special approval of the Village Board, but
under no circumstances shall an unapproved home serve as a year-round dwelling.

(b) A manufactured home shall be placed on a permanent foundation meeting the
requirements of HUD-007487 Now HUD 4930.3G "Permanent Foundations Guide for
Manufactured Housing," except as follows:

(1) A manufactured home may be placed on a permanent foundation meeting the
requirements of Ch. COMM 22 of the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code if the home
is constructed for such placement.

(2) A manufactured home placed in a manufactured home park shall be governed under
Section 13-1-27.

(3) The Building Inspector may waive the requirement for a design professional.

SEC. 13-1-53 MOBILE HOMES

(a) Mobile Home Construction Standards. It is the intent of this Article to recognize mobile
homes constructed prior to October 1, 1974, as distinct and different from units
designated as Mobile Homes within the definitions of this Article and to prohibit units
not meeting the requirements for Mobile Homes as defined herein. Units constructed
prior to 1974 are prohibited. Mobile Homes meeting the requirements of the One- and
Two-Family Building Dwelling Code shall not be permitted in a MHTH District, except as
a conditional use. Permits may be obtained only after approval by the Village Board.

(b) Location in Mobile Home Neighborhoods. Except as provided in Subsection (c) below, no
person shall park, locate or place any mobile home outside of a properly zoned and
licensed mobile home park in the Village of Turtle Lake, except unoccupied mobile
homes may be parked on the lawfully situated premises of a licensed mobile home
dealer for the purposes of sale display; the lawfully situated premises of a vehicle
service business for purposes of servicing or making necessary repairs; the premises
leased or owned by the owner of such mobile home for purposes of sales display for a
period not exceeding one hundred twenty (120) days, provided no business is carried on

44 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

therein, or in an accessory private garage, building or rear yard of the owner of such
mobile home, provided no business is carried on therein.
(c) Location of Outside and Mobile Home Neighborhoods.

(1) Limitations. Until such time as an approved mobile home neighborhood is
constructed, the total number of mobile homes allowed in the Village of Turtle Lake
grandfathered as nonconforming uses shall be the number in existence at the date
of adoption of this Code of Ordinances. Those lots within the Village currently
housing mobile homes are subject to the grandfather clause of Section 13-1-27(a)
and to the other requirements contained in this Subsection, provided that the
mobile home is resident-owned. It is the intent of this Article to require all mobile
homes to be located within a properly approved and zoned mobile home
neighborhood, while noting that there are within the Village a limited number of
pre-existing non-conforming mobile homes located outside of such neighborhoods.

(2) Issuance of Permits.

a.

Permits are to be issued only to the owner of the lot upon which the mobile
home is to be placed and shall apply to that lot and not to the mobile home
itself.

No permit shall be issued for the movement of a mobile home from one lot
in the Village to another lot within the Village.

(3) Other Requirements.

a.

o

No mobile home shall be allowed in the Village without the obtaining of a
building permit from the Village Administrator. Owners of lots upon which
homes are currently located within the Village shall apply for a permit within
thirty (30) days of the passage of this Article.

All grandfathered mobile homes located outside of a mobile home
neighborhood shall comply with the following minimum requirements:

1. The home must be set on a concrete pier extending below the frost
line and have a minimum of six (6) tiedowns at regular intervals on
the site and leveling devices placed upon six (6) inches of gravel.

2. The home must be skirted in a manner which will prevent rodent
infestation.

3. The placement of the home on the site and the site itself must meet
all requirements of the Zoning Code for the district wherein it is
located.

4. Adequate stairways must be provided for each doorway.

5. Village water and sewer system hookups must be provided for each
mobile home.

6. Mobile homes must have a minimum of six hundred (600) square feet
of floor space. Said space is determined by the length, less the
tongue, times the width.

All requirements of Sections 13-1-27(f) and 13-1-27(h) must be followed.
Only nondependent mobile homes shall be allowed.

All provisions relating to the collection of a monthly parking fee of Title 7,
Chapter 5 of this Code shall apply. The owner of the mobile home shall be

45| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

responsible for the prompt payment of said fees.
(4) Replacement. Grandfathered non-conforming mobile home units allowed outside of
a mobile home park under Subsection (d) may be replaced with a more modern unit.

(d) All mobile homes shall be skirted. Areas enclosed by such skirting shall be maintained
free of rodents and fire hazards.

(e) No person shall construct, alter, add to or alter any structure, attachment or building in
a mobile home park or on a mobile home space without a permit from the Village
Building Inspector. Construction on an addition or alteration to the exterior of a mobile
home shall be of the same type of construction and materials as the mobile home
affected. No permit shall be issued unless the value of the home already existing is in
excess of Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00). Said value shall be determined by the tax
assessor. This Subsection shall not apply to addition of awnings, antennae or skirting to
mobile homes. Accessory structures on mobile home spaces shall comply with all
setback, side yard and rear yard requirements for mobile home units.

(f) Before a mobile home is located on a space within a mobile home neighborhood a stand
consisting of concrete piers extending below frost and having tiedown and levelling
devices with six (6) inch gravel. At least six (6) tiedowns shall be provided at regular
intervals on each slab.

SEC. 13-1-54 TINY HOMES.
(a) Where Allowed.

(1) Tiny Houses are permitted as a Principal Use in the MHTH District, subject to the
regulations outlined in Section 13-1-27.

(2) Tiny Houses may be allowed by Conditional Use as Accessory Dwelling Units in
Residential Districts, subject to the supplemental regulations in this Section, Section
13-1-26, and the use regulations for Accessory Dwelling Units, as described in
Section 13-1-40.

(3) ATiny House on Wheels is considered a “Camping Unit,” and is only permitted in a
Camping Ground.

(b) General Standards. All Tiny Houses shall comply with the following:

(1) Each Tiny House shall be located on its own individual lot, except when established
as an Accessory Dwelling Unit.

(2) Construction of the house shall comply with any applicable building code.

(3) Each house shall be installed on a permanent foundation, with wheels and chassis
removed.

(4) Each house shall be connected to water and sewer utilities (public water, public
sewer, private well, and/or an approved septic system.

(c) Porches. A Tiny House permitted as a Principal Use shall have a porch that:

(1) is oriented towards common open space or a public or approved private street;

(2) has a minimum width of 4 feet or 75% of the building facade width, whichever is
greater; and

(3) has a minimum depth of 5 feet.

46 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-1-55 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-59 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

47 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE F
NONCONFORMING USES, STRUCTURES AND LOTS

SEC. 13-1-60 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Article is to establish regulations for the following nonconforming situations
created legally prior to the effective date of this Section: nonconforming uses, nonconforming
and substandard lots, nonconforming structures, and other nonconforming sites.

SEC. 13-1-61 EXISTING NONCONFORMING USES.

(a) The lawful and established nonconforming use of a structure or land, including but not
limited to fences, parking and buildings, existing at the time of the adoption or
amendment of this Chapter may be continued although the use does not conform with
the provisions of this Chapter. However, only that portion of the land in actual use may
be so continued and the structure may not be extended, enlarged, reconstructed,
substituted, moved or structurally altered except when required to do so by law or
order or so as to comply with the provisions of this Chapter.

(b) If no structural alterations are made, a nonconforming use of a building may be changed
to any use permitted in the same use district as that in which the use existing is
permitted according to the provisions of this Chapter. However, when a use district is
changed, any existing, nonconforming use in such changed district may be continued or
changed to a use permitted in the same use district as that in which the existing use is
permitted; provided all other regulations governing the new use are complied with.

(c) Substitution of new equipment may be permitted by the Board of Zoning Appeals if such
equipment will reduce the incompatibility of the nonconforming use with the
neighboring uses.

(d) If a nonconforming use or the use (conforming or nonconforming) of a structure that is
nonconforming (as it relates to zoning setbacks, heights, etc.) is discontinued for a
period of 12 months, any future use of the building, premises, structure, or fixture shall
conform to the Chapter.

(e) Notwithstanding subsections (a) — (e) of this section, a manufactured home community
licensed under Section 101.935, Wis. Stats., that is a legal nonconforming use continues
to be a legal nonconforming use notwithstanding the occurrence of any of the following
activities within the community:

(1) Repair or replacement of homes.
(2) Repair or replacement of infrastructure.

SEC. 13-1-62 EXISTING NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.

(a) The lawful nonconforming structure existing at the time of the adoption or amendment
of this Chapter may be continued although its size or location does not conform with
the lot width, lot area, yard, height, parking and loading, and access provisions of this
Chapter. However, it shall not be extended, enlarged, reconstructed, moved or
structurally altered except when required to do so by law or order or so as to comply
with the provisions of this Chapter.

48 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(b) Total lifetime structural repairs or alterations of a lawfully established nonconforming
building shall not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the Village's assessed value of the
building, premises, structure or fixture at the time of its becoming a nonconforming use
unless it is permanently changed to conform to the use provisions of this Chapter.

(c) Repair and maintenance of certain nonconforming structures
(1) Definitions. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this section,

shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the
context clearly indicates a different meaning:

a. Development regulations means the part of this chapter that applies to
elements including setback, height, lot coverage, and side yard.

b.  Nonconforming structure means a dwelling or other building that existed
lawfully before this chapter was enacted or amended, but that does not
conform to one or more of the development regulations in this chapter.

(2) Nothing in this chapter prohibits, or limits based on cost, the repair, maintenance,
renovation, or remodeling of a nonconforming structure.

(d) Restoration of certain nonconforming structures.

(1) Restrictions in this chapter that are applicable to damaged or destroyed
nonconforming structures and that are contained in an ordinance enacted under this
subsection do not prohibit the restoration of a nonconforming structure if the
structure will be restored to the size, subject subsection (c)(2) of this section,
location, and use that it had immediately before the damage or destruction
occurred, or impose any limits on the costs of the repair, reconstruction, or
improvement if all of the following apply:

a. The nonconforming structure was damaged or destroyed on or after March
2, 2006.

b. The damage or destruction was caused by violent wind, vandalism, fire,
flood, ice, snow, mold, or infestation.

(2) The structure may be larger than the size it was immediately before the damage or
destruction if necessary, for the structure to comply with applicable state or federal
requirements.

(e) Building Destroyed by Fire. Where a building located in a district restricted against its
use has been destroyed by fire or other calamity to the extent of not more than fifty
percent (50%) of its value assessed by the Village, the same may be rebuilt; but where
such a building is destroyed to the extent of more than fifty percent (50%) of its
assessed value, a permit may be granted for its reconstruction within twelve (12)
months from the date of such fire or other calamity, except any public utility located in a
restricted district shall be permitted to rebuild, alter or enlarge in any business or
industrial district as the interest of the public demands.

SEC. 13-1-63 CHANGES AND SUBSTITUTIONS.

Once a nonconforming use or structure has been changed to conform, it shall not revert back to
a nonconforming use or structure. Once the Board of Zoning Appeals has permitted the
substitution of a more restrictive nonconforming use for an existing nonconforming use, the
substituted use shall lose its status as a legal nonconforming use and become subject to all the

49 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

conditions required by the Board of Zoning Appeals.

SEC. 13-1-64 NONCONFORMING AND SUBSTANDARD LOTS.

(a) No lot shall be created which does not meet the lot dimensional requirements of the
associated zoning district.

(b) Legal nonconforming or substandard lots, as detailed in Article F, may be utilized as a
building site for a permitted use (but not for a conditional use) in the associated zoning
district, if all of the following apply:

(1) Such lot has never been developed with one or more of its structures placed partly
upon an adjacent lot or parcel.

(2) Such lot is developed to comply with this Chapter and other applicable chapters of
the Turtle Lake Municipal Code.

(c) Conforming structures existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of this
Chapter may be continued, although the lot does not conform to the newly adopted or
amended requirements of this Chapter, as long as all uses on the lands containing the
structure are legal conforming uses.

(d) Each aforementioned structure may be extended, enlarged, substituted, moved,
remodeled, modified, added to, or rebuilt as long as any such change conforms to the
established building setback lines along streets and the other lot and building
requirements of this Chapter.

SEC. 13-1-65 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-69 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

50| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE G
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

SEC. 13-1-70 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Article is to identify the standards and minimum requirements for highway
access, traffic visibility, loading, off-street parking, fencing, screening, and general welfare
standards.

SEC. 13-1-71 HIGHWAY ACCESS.

(a) Highway Access. No direct private access shall be permitted to the existing or proposed
rights-of-way of expressways, nor to any controlled access arterial street without
permission of the highway agency that has access control jurisdiction. No direct public
or private access shall be permitted to the existing or proposed rights-of-way of
freeways, interstate highways and their interchanges or turning lanes nor to intersecting
or interchanging streets within 1,500 feet of the most remote end of the taper of the
turning lanes (such as exit and entrance ramps). No driveway openings shall be
permitted within one hundred (100) feet of the intersection of an arterial street right-of-
way line.

(b) Access barriers, such as curbing, fencing, ditching, landscaping or other topographic
barriers shall be erected to prevent unauthorized vehicular ingress or egress to the
above specified streets or highways.

(c) Temporary access to the above rights-of-way may be granted by the Zoning
Administrator after review and recommendation by the highway agencies having
jurisdiction. Such access permit shall be temporary, revocable and subject to any
conditions required and shall be issued for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months.

SEC. 13-1-72 TRAFFIC VISIBILITY — VISION CLEARANCE TRIANGLES.

(a) Within vision clearance triangles, no obstructions, such as signs, structures, fences,
parking, earthwork, vegetation, or other obstructions between 30 inches and ten feet in
height shall be permitted, except for tree trunks, mailboxes, and sign poles. The vision
clearance triangle shall apply where public streets intersect, and where private driveway
and alleys intersect with public streets, per the following standards:

(1) Where public streets intersect, or whether a private driveway or alleys intersect with
a public street. To draw the first two lines of the triangle, measures 15 feet from the
point of intersection of the two-street right-of-way along the two right-of-way lines.
Next, draw a third straight line between the ends of the first two lines to form the
vision clearance triangle.

(2) In the case of arterial streets intersecting with other arterial streets or railways, the
corner cut-off distances establishing the triangular vision clearance space shall be
increased to fifty (50) feet.

SEC. 13-1-73 LOADING REQUIREMENTS.
(a) Loading Space Requirements. On every lot on which a business, trade or industrial use is

51| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

hereafter established, space with access to a public street or alley shall be provided as
indicated below for the loading and unloading of vehicles off the public right-of-way:

Fl A . ft. Loading S
Use oor Area (sq. ft.) oading Space(s)
0-1,500 None
Retail, wholesale warehouse, service | 1,500 - 10,000 1
manufacturing, and industrial
establishments 10,000 and greater 2
Each additional 20,000 1

(b) Multiple or Mixed Uses. Where a building is devoted to more than one (1) use or for
different uses and where the floor area for each use is below the minimum required for
a loading space but the aggregate floor area of such uses is above such a minimum, then
off-street loading space shall be provided as if the entire building were devoted to that
use in the building for which the most loading spaces are required.

(c) Location. Required off-street loading spaces shall be located on the same lot with the
principal use requiring such space. No loading space shall be located within thirty (30)
feet of the nearest point of intersection of two (2) streets or require any vehicle to back
into a public street.

(d) Design Standards. Each off-street loading space shall have a width of at least twelve (12)
feet, a length of at least forty-five (45) feet, and a vertical clearance of at least fourteen
(14) feet. Dimensions for loading spaces in connection with funeral homes shall be
reduced to ten (10) feet in width, twenty-five (25) feet in length, and eight (8) feet in
vertical clearance. Every loading space shall be sufficiently screened in the form of a
solid fence or shrubbery to protect neighboring residences.

(e) Surfacing. All open off-street loading berths shall be improved with a compacted
macadam base, not less than seven (7) inches thick, surfaced with not less than two (2)
inches of asphalt or treated with some comparable all-weather dustless material.

(f) Repair and Service. No motor vehicle repair work or service of any kind shall be
permitted in conjunction with loading facilities provided in any Residence District.

(g) Utilization. Space allocated to any off-street loading berth shall not, while so allocated,
be used to satisfy the space requirements for any off-street parking facilities or portions
thereof.

(h) Central Loading. Central loading facilities may be substituted for loading berths on the
individual zoning lots provided the following conditions are fulfilled:

(1) Each zoning lot served shall have direct access to the Central Loading Area without
crossing streets or alleys at grade.

(2) Total berths provided shall meet the requirements based on the sum of the several
types of uses served. (Areas of types of uses may be totaled before computing
number of loading berths.)

52| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(3) No zoning lot served shall be more than three hundred (300) feet removed from the
Central Loading Area.

(4) The tunnel or ramp connecting the Central Loading Area with the zoning lot served
shall be not less than seven (7) feet in width and have a clearance of not less than
seven (7) feet.

SEC. 13-1-74 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS.

All new parking lots and all alterations of existing lots shall be subject to the approval of the
Village Board, after a recommendation from the Plan Commission. Requests for said parking
lots shall be accompanied with detailed plans on landscaping, parking layout, drainage
provisions and driveway locations. In all districts, except those areas which are located within
the fire zone as designated on the Official Map, there shall be provided at the time any use or
building is erected, enlarged, extended, or increased off-street parking stalls for all vehicles in
accordance with the following:

(a) Access. Adequate access to a public street shall be provided for each parking space.

(b) Design Standards. Each required off-street parking space shall be at least one hundred
eighty (180) square feet, have a stall width of at least ten (10) feet and a stall length of
at least eighteen (18) feet. No parking area of more than four (4) spaces shall be
designed as to require any vehicle to back into a public street. Large expanses of
unchanneled parking areas shall be avoided by interior landscaping and safety islands.

(c) Location.

(1) Off-street parking shall be on the same lot as the principal use or not over three
hundred (300) feet from the principal use.

(2) Off-street parking is permitted in all yards of all districts except in the front yards of
single-family and two-family residence districts but shall not be closer than five (5)
feet to a side lot line, right-of-way line or rear lot line or twenty-five (25) feet to a
residential district lot line.

(3) Off-street parking in the single-family residence and two-family residence districts is
permitted in the front yard in the driveway, even though closer than five (5) feet to a
side lot line providing the driveway conforms to the requirements in Section 13-1-
71.

(d) Surfacing. All off-street parking areas, except a single parking space accessory to a
single-family dwelling, shall be surfaced with an all-weather material, such as
compacted stone, gravel or blacktop. All off-street parking areas shall be graded and
surfaced so as to be properly drained. Any parking area for more than five (5) vehicles
shall have the aisles and spaces clearly marked except parking area serving single-family
dwellings.

(e) Additional Requirements.

(1) Special residential requirements. Those parking areas for five (5) or more vehicles if
adjoining a residential use shall be screened from such use by a solid wall, fence,
evergreen planting of equivalent visual density or other effective means, built and
maintained at a minimum height of five (5) feet. Where a solidly constructed
decorative fence is provided along the interior lot line, the minimum setback for the
parking area shall be five (5) feet from said lot line. Said fence shall be located a

53| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

minimum of one (1) foot from the said lot line.

(2) Repair and Service. No motor vehicle repair work or service of any kind shall be
permitted in association with parking facilities provided in Residence Districts.

(3) Lighting. Any lighting used to illuminate off-street parking areas shall be directed
away from residential properties and public streets in such a way as not to create a
nuisance. However, in no case shall such lighting exceed three (3) footcandles

measured at the lot line.

(4) Street Setback Area. No parking shall be permitted between the street right-of-way
line and the building setback line prevailing in the zone in which the proposed
parking area is to be located. The resulting open area shall be planted in grass or
otherwise landscaped to create a permanent green area.

(f) Curbs. Curbs or barriers shall be installed a minimum of four (4) feet from a property
line so as to prevent the parked vehicles from extending over any lot lines.

(g) Number of Parking Stalls Required.

Type of Use

Parking Stalls Required

Single-Family Dwellings, Mobile Homes,
and Tiny Homes

Two (2) stalls for each dwelling unit

Multi-family Dwellings

One and one-half (1-1/2) stall for each
dwelling unit, except in housing for the
elderly this ratio shall be .5 stalls per
dwelling unit.

Hotels, Motels

One (1) stall for each guest room plus one
(1) stall for each three (3) employees

Hospitals, Clubs, Lodges, Dormitories,
Lodging and Boarding Houses

One (1) stall for each two (2) beds plus one
(1) stall for each three (3) employees

Campgrounds and Travel Trailer Parks

One (1) stall per campsite or parking site

Medical and Dental Clinics

Three (3) stalls for each staff members

Churches, Theaters, Auditoriums,
Community Centers, Vocational and Night
Schools and Other Places of Public
Assembly

One (1) stall for each five (5) seats

Secondary and Elementary Schools

One (1) stall per 2 employees plus one (1)
stall per ten (10) students

Restaurants, Bars, Places of Entertainment

Parking stalls equal to thirty percent (30%)
of capacity in persons

Manufacturing and Processing Plants,
Laboratories and Warehouses

One (1) stall for each three (3) employees

Funeral Homes

One (1) stall for each four (4) seats

Bowling Alleys

Five (5) stalls for each alley, plus one (1)
stall per three hundred (300) gross square
feet used for restaurants, bars, etc.

(h) Uses Not listed. In the case of structures or uses not mentioned, the provision for a use

54 |Page




DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

which is similar shall apply. Floor space or area shall mean the gross floor area inside the

exterior walls, where floor space is indicated above as a basis for determining the

amount of off-street parking required.

(i) Combined Uses. Combinations of any of the above uses shall provide the total of the
number of stalls required for each individual use. Two (2) or more uses may provide
required off-street parking spaces in a common parking facility less than the sum of the
spaces required for each use individually, provided such uses are not operated during
the same hours. A written agreement satisfactory to the Village Attorney shall
accompany any joint use arrangement.

(j) Handicapped Parking Requirements. In addition to any other requirements relating to
parking spaces contained in these Ordinances, the provisions contained in Sections
101.13, 346.503 and 346.56, Wis. Stats., and any Wisconsin Administrative Code
sections adopted pursuant thereto are hereby adopted by reference and made
applicable to all parking facilities whenever constructed.

(k) Changes in Buildings or Use. Whenever a building or use is changed, structurally altered
or enlarged to create a need for an increase of twenty-five percent (25%) or more in the
number of existing parking spaces, such spaces shall be provided on the basis of the
enlargement or change. Whenever a building or use is enlarged to the extent of fifty
percent (50%) or more in the floor area, said building or use shall then comply with the
parking requirements set forth in the district in which it is located.

(I) Off-Lot Parking.

(1) Required off-street parking spaces shall be located on the same lot with the principal
use, or when this requirement cannot be met, such parking spaces may be located
off-lot provided the parking spaces are located in the same district. Off-lot parking
spaces shall also be held in fee simple ownership by the owner of the use requiring
such parking or be leased or rented through a written agreement satisfactory to the
Village Attorney.

(2) Off-lot parking spaces for residential uses shall be within two hundred fifty (250)
feet of the principal entrance or the entrance for the individual occupants for whom
the spaces are reserved while the farthest portions of a parking lot for all other uses
shall be within three hundred (300) feet of the entrance of the establishment.

(3) Accessory parking may be located in residential districts provided that said lots or
property are immediately adjacent to a commercial, business or industrial zoning
district.

(4) All off-street parking lots adjoining lots zoned for residential use shall have a
minimum setback of ten (10) feet from any interior lot line, except if the adjoining
lot is used for legally conforming parking purposes.

(m)During Site Plan Review, as described under Section 13-1-27, the Village may reduce the
number of required parking stalls or allow land banking for future parking stalls.

SEC. 13-1-75 FENCING.
(a) Fences Defined. For the purpose of this Section, a "fence" is herein defined as an
enclosed barrier consisting of vegetation, plastic, vinyl, wood, stone or metal intended
to prevent ingress or egress. For the purpose of this Section, the term "fence" shall

55| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

include plantings, such as hedges and shrubbery. No fence shall be constructed of
unsightly or dangerous materials which would constitute a nuisance.

(b) Fences Categorized. Fences shall be categorized into five (5) classifications:

(1) Boundary Fence. A fence placed on or within three (3) feet of the property lines of
adjacent properties.

(2) Protective Fence. A fence constructed to enclose a hazard to the public health,
safety and welfare.

(3) Architectural or Aesthetic Fence. A fence constructed to enhance the appearance of
the structure or the landscape.

(4) Hedge. A row of bushes of small trees planted close together which may form a
barrier, enclosure or boundary.

(5) Picket Fence. A fence having a pointed post, stake, pale or peg laced vertically with
the point or sharp part pointing upward to form a part of the fence.

(c) Height of Fences Regulated. Except for swimming pool fences, a fence or wall may be
erected, placed, maintained or grown along a lot line on residentially zoned property or
adjacent thereto pursuant to Subsection (d) to a height not exceeding six (6) feet above
the ground level, except that no such fence, wall, hedge or shrubbery which is located in
a required front or corner side yard shall exceed a height of four (4) feet. Where such lot
line is adjacent to a non-residential zoned property, there shall be an eight (8) foot limit
on the height of a fence, wall, hedge or shrubbery along such lot line.

(d) Setback for Residential Fences. Fences in or adjacent to a residential property may be
constructed on lot lines within setback areas.

(e) Security Fences. Security fences are permitted on the property lines in all districts
except residential districts but shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height and shall be of an
open type similar to woven wire or wrought iron fencing.

(f) Prohibited Fences. No fence shall be constructed which is of a dangerous type of
construction or which conducts electricity or is designed to electrically shock.

(9) Fences to be Repaired. All fences shall be maintained and kept safe and in a state of
good repair, and the finished side or decorative side of a fence shall face adjoining
property.

(h) Temporary Fences. Fences erected for the protection of planting or to warn of
construction hazard, or for similar purposes, shall be clearly visible or marked with
colored streamers or other such warning devices at four (4) foot intervals. Such fences
shall comply with the setback requirements set forth in this Section. The issuance of a
permit shall not be necessary for temporary fences as described herein, but said fences
shall not be erected for more than forty-five (45) days.

(i) Nonconforming Fences and Hedges. Any fence or hedge existing on the effective date of
this Municipal Code and not in conformance with this Section may be maintained,
unless it would violate vision triangle standards, but no alteration, modification or
improvement of said fence shall comply with this Section.

SEC. 13-1-76 SCREENING.

(a) Mechanical equipment (heating, air conditions and ventilation) that will be readily
visible when viewed from ground level from other properties or from major public ways

56 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

should be softened by screening or covered in a manner that forms an integral part of
the building design. Rooftop equipment may require the use of an extended parapet
wall or other integrated roof form.

(b) External garbage or refuse containers shall be screened by walls, fences, berms, or
effective landscaping, or combinations thereof.

(c) Outdoor storage / display areas shall be limited. The storage of materials, fuel, scrap,
inoperative vehicles and similar objects in places that are readily visible from major
public rights-of-way or parts of neighboring properties where a significant amount of
viewing is expected shall be minimized and, where necessary, shall be effectively
screened.

(d) Approval Required. Any use or conditional use listed in this Chapter requiring screening
or fencing shall be permitted only when authorized by the Village Board, upon the
recommendation of the Plan Commission, and subject to its approval of a screening or
fencing plan for that particular use.

(e) Planting or other suitable screening including fences or freestanding walls shall be
required where deemed necessary for screening or enclosure purposes by the Village
Board, upon the recommendation of the Plan Commission, such as, around outdoor
storage yards and industrial property lines, salvage yards, refuse disposal sites, quarries
and mines, mobile home parks and trailer camps. Such provisions shall be required to
the extent needed to provide for:

(1) Screening of objectionable views.

(2) Adequate shade.

(3) Enclosure of storage materials.

(4) Public health and safety.

(5) A suitable setting for the particular use and other facilities.

(f) Maintenance. All screenings, fences and walls required by this Chapter shall be
maintained so as not to prove an objectionable view by themselves.

SEC. 13-1-77 NOISE.
No operation or activity shall transmit any noise exceeding 75 dBA from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.
and 65 dBA from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. beyond the property line. The following noises are
exempt from the regulations:

(a) Noises not directly under the control of the property owner.

(b) Noises from temporary construction or maintenance activities during daylight hours.

(c) Noises from emergency, safety or warning devices.

SEC. 13-1-78 VIBRATION.

(a) No operation or activity shall transmit any physical vibration that is above the vibration
perception threshold of an individual at or beyond the property line of the source.
Vibration perception threshold means the minimum ground- or structure-borne
vibrational motion necessary to cause a normal person to be aware of the vibration by
such direct means as, but not limited to, sensation by touch or visual observation of
moving objects.

(b) Vibrations not directly under the control of the property user and vibrations from

57| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

temporary construction or maintenance activities shall be exempt from the above
standard.

SEC. 13-1-79 EXTERNAL LIGHTING.
No operation or activity shall produce any intense glare or lighting with the source directly
visible beyond the property boundary.

SEC. 13-1-80 ODOR.

No operation or activity shall emit any substance or combination of substances in such
guantities that create an objectionable odor as defined in Chapter NR 154.18, Wisconsin
Administrative Code.

SEC. 13-1-81 PARTICULATE EMISSIONS.

No operation or activity shall emit into the ambient air from any direct or portable source any
matter that will affect visibility in excess of the limitations established in Chapter NR 154.11,
Wisconsin Administrative Code.

SEC. 13-1-82 VISIBLE EMISSIONS.

No operation or activity shall emit into the ambient air from any direct or portable source any
matter that will affect visibility in excess of the limitations established in Chapter NR 154.11(6),
Wisconsin Administrative Code.

SEC. 13-1-83 HAZARDOUS POLLUTANTS.

No operation or activity shall emit any hazardous substances in such a quantity, concentration
or duration as to be injurious to human health or property, and all emissions of hazardous
substances shall not exceed the limitations established in Chapter NR 154.19, Wisconsin
Administrative Code.

SEC. 13-1-84 STANDARDS FOR THE B-H, D-MU & B-P DISTRICTS
(a) Site Design

(1) An overall site amenities theme and materials palette shall be presented and
approved by the Village as part of the Site Plan Review process required under
Section 13-1-127.

(2) Buildings along with trees and landscaping shall be predominant. Parking lots and
free-standing signs shall be secondary features of a site.

(3) Loading docks or delivery doors shall be placed to reduce visibility from residential
areas or public streets.

(4) To ensure that building entrances are welcoming and easily identifiable from the
street and sidewalks, the principal entry for persons to the building shall be marked
by an architectural element such as a building canopy, large entry doors, or
landscaping with seating.

(5) Pedestrian and bicycle connections into and throughout the site shall be clearly
defined. Pedestrian access to the building shall be visually and functionally clear and
shall offer a convenient access.

58 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(6) Provide accessible and high-quality bicycle parking. Bicycle racks shall be placed
within 50 feet or the primary entrance of the building they are intended to serve.

(7) Parking lots shall have decorative landscape treatment at the perimeter of the lot
and, for larger lots, in island areas within the lot, to provide break-up of the expanse
of paving.

(8) All sites shall be planned and constructed so that surface drainage drains from
structures.

(b) Building Architecture, Mass & Articulation

(1) An overall architectural theme and building materials palette shall be presented and
approved by the Village as part of the site review process.

(2) Buildings shall include articulation along the facades facing and visible from public
rights-of-way; flat blank walls are not allowed.

(3) Building masses and long, straight fronts and sides (relative to the overall length of
the building) that are visually accessible shall be broken up and made more
variegated with staggers and offsets, with landscaping or surficial features or with
accumulation of mass in the form of smaller, related units.

(4) Any side of the building visible from a street or public open space shall be given
architectural treatment utilizing windows, awnings, or other architectural details.

(c) Landscaping and Lighting

(1) The proposed site shall provide landscaping of sufficient height and density to
accomplish positive visual impact and complement the site and building.

(2) Exterior lighting shall be established, directed and maintained so as not to be cast
directly on public right-of-way or occupied structures or neighboring properties or
be lighted in intensity or colors seriously disturbing to neighboring properties.

SEC. 13-1-85 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-89 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

50| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE H
SIGNS

SEC. 13-1-90 PURPOSE AND INTENT.

The purpose and intent of this Article is to establish standards for signage that protect and
preserve the public health, welfare and safety, advance aesthetic and community character
objectives, promote compatible business development and activity, and ensure the effective
and flexible use of signage for commercial, community, and individual expression.

SEC. 13-1-91 COMPLIANCE.

No sign shall hereafter be located, erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged,
converted, or structurally altered without conformance with the provisions of this Article and a
sign permit, unless exempted from sign permit requirements under Section 13-1-94.

SEC. 13-1-92 NONCOMMERCIAL SIGNS.

Any sign authorized by this Article may contain a noncommercial message. Noncommercial
signs shall be subject to the same permit requirements, restrictions on size and type, and other
specifications set forth in this Article.

SEC. 13-1-93 EXISTING NONCONFORMING SIGNS.

(a) Signs lawfully existing at the time of the adoption of this Ordinance may be continued
although the size or location does not conform with the provisions of this Ordinance.
Such signs shall be deemed nonconforming and the nonconforming use and structure
provisions under Article F of this Ordinance shall apply.

(b) No nonconforming sign shall be enlarged, physically altered or replaced by another sign,
relocated, whether on or off of the premises on which it was situated at the time that it
became nonconforming without causing it to become a conforming sign under this
Article. These limitations shall not apply to the changing of messages or the contents of
the sign. All nonconforming signs shall be removed at the time of a change in business
on the premises upon which the sign is located.

(c) Nonconforming signs may be routinely maintained, but no repairs shall be made to
them for the purpose of prolonging its anticipated life beyond what is reasonably
anticipated as of the time such repairs are proposed to be made.

(d) Without the express, written consent of the Village, no new signs, including, but not
limited to, those capable of being permitted under this Article may be erected on any
premises upon which a nonconforming sign is located unless the nonconforming sign is
brought into full compliance with this Article or is removed.

(e) Non-conforming signs which have been abandoned in accord with Section 13-1-95 lose
their nonconforming status and shall be removed from the premises upon which they
are located in accord with the procedures set forth in Section 13-1-95. Thereafter, no
sign may be erected on the same premises that is not in full compliance with the
provisions of this Article.

(f) A change in business or other use that necessitates a new sign message or sign structure

60| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

shall require the sign be brought into conformance with the provisions of this Article,
including an application for a sign permit.

SEC. 13-1-94 EXEMPTIONS.
(a) The following Signs are exempt from the regulations contained in this Ordinance:

(1) A Sign posted by the Village, a County, State, or Federal agency.

(2) A Sign integrated into or on an automatic teller machine, coin-operated machine, or
vending machine.

(3) A Sign carried by a person.

(4) A Sign not visible from any public street, highway, sidewalk, bicycle path, or park.

(5) Street Addresses and Numbers as required by the US Postal Service.

(6) Murals and other work of art that are not related by logo, pictorial depiction, or
other means to the advertisement of any product or service or the identification of
any business.

(7) Holiday lights and decorations containing no commercial message.

(8) Flags of the United States and Wisconsin and other countries or states, up to a
maximum of three flags per parcel. If the flagis displayed on a flagpole, the
maximum dimension of any flag shall be proportional to the flagpole height, and the
hoist side of the flag shall not exceed 20 percent of the vertical height of the pole.
Flags must be flow in accordance with protocol established by U.S. Congress. Any
flag not meeting these requirements shall be considered a Sign subject to the
requirements of this Article and not allowed as an exemption under this Section.

SEC. 13-1-95 ABANDONED AND DILAPIDATED SIGNS.
A sign that is deemed to have been abandoned by the owner or user is subject to the following:

(a) Each sign advertising an on-premises business that has not been conducted upon or
from the premises for six (6) months in succession shall be removed by the owner of the
premises upon which it is located or his or her lessee of said property. All other
abandoned signs shall be removed upon order of the Building Inspector.

(b) Dilapidated signs or signs beyond repair under the provision of Section 66.0413, Wis.
Stats., shall be removed upon order of the Building Inspector. For purposes of this
paragraph, a dilapidated sign is one that is so old and out of repair as to become
dangerous or unsafe, whether to the public at large or merely to guests and invitees on
the premises on which it is located.

(c) In the event that the owner of a premises upon which an abandoned or dilapidated sign
is situated or his or her lessee fails or refuses to remove such sign, the Village may, upon
notice of its intent to remove it, sent by first class mail or personally delivered to the
owner of the premises upon which the sign is located, remove the sign and impose the
cost thereof against the real estate as a special charge under Section 66.0627, Wis.
Stats.

SEC. 13-1-96 SIGN PERMITTING AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES.

(a) General Requirements.
(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to erect, construct, enlarge, modify, or move any

6l|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

sign for which a permit is required under this Article without first obtaining a sign
permit from the Zoning Administrator. In addition to being in compliance with all of
the provisions of this Article, each sign shall meet the structural requirements of the
Village Building Code.

(2) Permits shall not be required for changes in messages, repainting, cleaning, normal
maintenance, or other general refurbishing of any sign.

(3) For purposes of permits, a double-faced sign shall be equivalent of one (1) sign.

(4) Sign permits issued by the Zoning Administrator for the erection, construction,
enlargement, modification, or moving of a sign shall be subject to the following time
limitations: Work permitted by the permit issued shall commence within sixty (60)
days of the date of issue or the permit shall be null and void. Each sign or work on a
sign subject to a permit shall be completed within six (6) months after the date of
the permit of the owner shall be required to apply for and receive another permit
before continuing to work on the sign.

(b) Application. Each application for a sign permit shall be filed with the Zoning
Administrator on a form provided by that office prior to sign installation or modification.
Each complete application shall include the following:

(1) Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant and property owner.

(2) Location of the building, structure, or lot upon which the sign is to be attached or
erected.

(3) Name of the person, firm, corporation, or association erecting the sign.

(4) If located on land not owned by the owner of the sign subject to the application, the
written consent or approval or a lease or other form of contract executed by the
owner of the land on which the sign is to be placed, indicating that permission has
been granted for placement of the sign at the location in question.

(5) A scale drawing of the proposed sign, indicating the design of the sign including
colors to be used, the materials to be used in its construction, the proposed means
of construction or erection, any lighting that is proposed for the sign and a
description of the means by which the sign will be attached to a building or other
structure or to the ground.

(6) A scale site plan showing the location of the building, other structure or site on a
given premises to which the sign is to be attached or affixed, demonstrating the
relationship of the sign to buildings and other structures on the premises and its
property lines.

(7) Electrical permits applied for or obtained for the sign.

(8) Calculations demonstrating that the sign, as it is designed, meets the construction
requirements of this Article for dead load and wind pressure.

(9) A description of any existing signs that will remain on the site.

(10) Fee. At the time an application is submitted to the Zoning Administrator for a sign
permit under this Article, the applicant shall pay the applicable fee in full with the
fee to be determined in accord with the administrative fee schedule adopted
annually by the Village Board and maintained on file with the Zoning Administrator.

(c) Basis for Granting. In deciding whether or not to grant a sign permit, the Zoning
Administrator shall determine whether the proposed sign is in compliance with the

62| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

provisions of this Article; whether the sign is in compliance with all provisions of this

Chapter, including those related to traffic safety, traffic visibility, sign setbacks, and

structural integrity; and whether other required Village approval(s) has or has not been

granted for the sign.
(d) Administration and Enforcement.

(1) The Village Building Inspector shall be responsible for enforcing the requirements of
this Article.

(2) Should any sign be erected or constructed that fails to meet all requirements of this
Article and any applicable building or electrical code, notwithstanding the fact that
the owner thereof was granted a permit with which to construct it or, in other cases,
that no permit was required under this Article, the Building Inspector may provide
notice to the owner of the premises upon which it is located that the sign be rebuilt
to standards and that the owner or his or her agent shall be thirty (3) to ninety (90)
days in which to do so. The failure to do so shall result in the loss of the sign permit
in cases where a sign permit is required. Signs that are subject to this paragraph
shall, if not rebuilt or reconstructed by the owner, be treated by the Village as
abandoned or dilapidated signs, subject to removal by the Village in accord with this
Article.

(3) Violations of this Article, if uncorrected in accord with the requirements of the notice
provided by the Village, shall be subject to imposition of a forfeiture in the amount
of not less than $100 for each day such a violation continues, with each day
constituting a separate violation.

(4) Each violation of the requirements of this Article pertaining to permanent signs is
deemed by the Village to create a public nuisance which endangers the health,
safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the Village. Correspondingly, in
addition to or as a complete alternative to pursuing the imposition of a forfeiture for
violations of this Article, the Village may seek injunctive relief against the continued
maintenance of such signs, requesting of the court that it order removal or authorize
the Village to do so at the expense of the owner of the premises on which the
offending sign is located.

SEC. 13-1-97 MEASUREMENT STANDARDS.

(a) Signable Area. The signable area of a building is designated as the area of the fagade of
the building up to the roof line which is free of windows and doors or major
architectural detail on which signs may be displayed. In computing signable area, any
facade which faces or abuts a public right-of-way may be utilized. Calculations may
include parapet walls but shall exclude door and window openings.

(b) Measuring Sign Face. In calculating the area of a sign to determine whether it meets the
requirements of this Article, the Clerk shall include the sign copy and any border or
frame surrounding that copy. Supporting posts or foundations shall be excluded from
the area calculation. The area of irregularly shaped signs or signs containing two or
more detached elements shall be determined by the area of the smallest regular
polygon that will encompass all elements of the sign.

(c) Measuring Sign Height. The sign height shall be the vertical distance measured from the

63| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

grade at the base of the sign structure to the highest point of such sign or sign structure.
In the case where a sign is to be located in a raised planting bed or berm, the grade shall
be determined by the average of the grades measured at the grade of the planting bed
or the toes of the slope at the front and back of the bed or berm.

SEC. 13-1-98 CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND SIGN MAINTENANCE.

(a) All signs, other than temporary and portable signs, shall comply with all applicable
provisions of state and Village building and electrical codes at all times. Verification of
compliance therewith may be required of the sign owner by the Village.

(b) All free-standing signs or pole signs shall be self-supporting and permanently affixed to
the real estate on foundations adequate to support their superstructures.

(c) Signs that use glass or transparent panels shall be constructed using tempered, safety
glass only.

(d) All signs shall be constructed to withstand wind pressure of not less than thirty (30)
pounds per square foot and shall be constructed so as to support dead loads in accord
with the building code.

(e) Supports and braces shall be integral to the design of a sign. Angle irons, chains, or wire
used for supports or braces shall be hidden from public view to the extent that this is
physically feasible.

(f) No sign shall be suspended in such a fashion or manner that will allow it to swing in an
unrestricted manner, whether due to wind or other causes or to the extent that
swinging may cause damage to the sign superstructure, supports, or foundation.

(9) All signs shall be appropriately maintained so as to present a neat and clean appearance
off of the premises on which they are located.

SEC. 13-1-99 GENERAL PROVISIONS.

(a) No signs are permitted in the triangle formed by the point at the corner of an
intersection and points 15 feet from the corner along each street.

(b) Signs shall not be placed on utility poles, light standards, trees, utility pedestals or boxes
or any similar structure.

(c) Signs shall not be attached or affixed to or adhered to or drawn upon any public street or
sidewalk.

(d) Signs shall not resemble, imitate, or approximate the shape, size, form, or color of
railroad or traffic signs, signals, or devices and shall not obstruct or interfere with the
effectiveness of railroad or traffic signs, signals, or devices.

(e) Color schemes and lettering styles shall be used consistently on all signage used on a
single lot or shopping center.

SEC. 13-1-100 SIGNS PERMITTED IN ALL DISTRICTS WITHOUT A PERMIT.
The following signs are permitted in all zoning districts without a permit, subject to the
specified conditions.
(a) Temporary Freestanding or Wall Signs on properties or buildings for sale, lease, or rent
not exceeding eight (8) square feet in area on one side or sixteen (16) square feet in
area on all sides. If not attached to a wall, such signs shall be set back at least 10 feet

64 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

from a side or rear lot line, shall not be located in a public right-of-way, and shall be

removed within 10 days after the property or building is sold, leased, or rented.

(b) Temporary Freestanding or Wall Signs on properties of buildings with an open house,
grand opening, anniversary or special sale, not exceeding sixteen (16) square feet on
one side, of thirty-two (32) square feet in area on all sides. Side may be placed on the
premises no earlier than seven (7) days prior to the event in questions and shall be
removed no later than at the end of the last day of the event.

(c) Election Campaign Signs. As provided in Section 12.04, Wis. Stats., election campaign
signs are permitted in residential zoning districts subject to the following requirements:
(1) The sign shall not be erected prior to the first day of the “election campaign period”

as defined in Wisconsin Statutes, and shall be removed within 10 days following the
election.

(2) Election signs shall not exceed 11 square feet in area unless the sign is affixed to a
permanent structure; does not extend beyond the perimeter of the structure; and
does not obstruct a window, door, fire escape, ventilation shaft, or other area which
is required by the Village building code to remain unobstructed.

(3) No election campaign sign shall be placed within a public right-of-way nor so close to
a pedestrian way as to hinder or endanger safe passage.

(d) A temporary sign not to exceed 8 square feet and shall not be displayed for more than
30 days in any given 12-month period of time on any given parcel.

SEC. 13-1-101 SIGNS PERMITTED IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS WITH A PERMIT.
The following signs are permitted in all Residential Zoning Districts, with a permit, subject to the
following regulations:

(a) Permanent Ground Sign placed at the entrance to a subdivision or development, which
shall be set back at least 10 feet from a street right-of-way or side or rear lot line. The
sign shall not exceed twenty (20) square feet is size and six (6) feet in height.

(1) The Subdivider, condominium association, or homeowner’s association shall be
responsible for paying all costs for maintenance of the sign and associated
landscaping. Written agreements shall be on file between the Village and the
Subdivider, condominium association, and/or homeowners association as to the
maintenance and care of the sign and landscaping.

(b) Signs associated with a permitted, accessory, or conditionally allowed non-residential
use. Signage shall consist of no more than one (1) monument sign not to exceed twenty
(20) square feet in size and six (6) feet in height, together with one (1) wall sign not
larger than fifteen (15) square feet in size.

SEC. 13-1-102 SIGNS PERMITTED IN ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, OTHER THAN RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICTS, WITH A PERMIT.

The following signs are permitted in all Zoning Districts, other than Residential Districts, with a
permit, subject to the following regulations:
(a) Awning Signs. If an awning sign is used, no other signs may be affixed or attached to the
exterior of the building to which it is joined. The area covered by awning signs shall not
exceed thirty-five percent (35%) of the building face and awnings shall be at least seven

65| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(7) feet above grade and shall not project outward from the building by more than
seven (7) feet. Internally lit awnings are prohibited, and lettering shall only be on the
valance.

(b) Ground and Pole Signs.

(1) Shall not to exceed thirty (30) feet in height above the mean centerline grade of the
street upon which the premises on which they are placed has its only or principal
frontage.

(2) Shall meet all setback requirements for the zoning district in question.

(3) Shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) square feet of total display face area,
with a maximum of 60 square feet per side, including borders.

(4) No more than one (1) ground of pole sign may be erected on a single premise.

(5) There shall be at least ten (10) feet of clearance between each pole sign and the
grade on which it is situated.

(c) Monument Signs not to exceed fifty (50) square feet in size nor to be more than ten (10)
feet in height above grade.

(d) Changeable Copy Signs. Electronic message boards or changeable copy reader boards
may be included as part of on-premise ground or monument signs, subject to the
following additional requirements:

(1) One changeable copy sign per business to be calculated as part of the total sign
square footage.

(2) Segmented messages shall be displayed for not less than on-half (1/2) second and
for no more than ten (10) seconds.

(3) Traveling messages shall be no slower than sixteen (16) light columns per second
and no faster than thirty-two (32) light columns per second.

(e) Projecting Signs fastened to, suspended from, or supported by other structures.

(1) Shall not exceed seven and one-half (7.5) square feet in size.

(2) Shall not be more than five (5) feet from the building face to which it is attached or
affixed.

(3) Shall be located at least ten (1) feet from all side lot lines.

(4) Shall not exceed a height of twenty (2) feet above the mean centerline grade of the
street upon which the premises on which they are placed has its only or principal
frontage.

(5) Each projecting sign shall at its lowest point be not less than ten (1) feet above a
sidewalk or fifteen (15) feet from the edge of any alley or driveway.

(f) Menu Boards, not to exceed two per drive-through or walk-up food establishment.

(9) Wall Signs.

(1) Shall not exceed three times linear frontage plus an additional 25% of said calculated
frontage for corner lots in total size.

(2) Shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in height above the mean centerline grade of the
street upon which the premises on which they are placed has its only principal
frontage, provided that on corner lots such signs are not placed on the front facade
of the building, further defined to mean that side of the building facing the front
yard of the lot on which it is situated.

(h) Window Signs shall be calculated as part of the total sign square footage.

66 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(i)

@)

Roof Signs.

(1) Shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height above the roof of the structure to which they

are attached or affixed.
(2) Shall meet all height restrictions for the zoning district in which the site is located.
(3) Shall be calculated as part of the total sign square footage for any one premises.
Joint Business Signs and Industrial Business Signs. No more than one (1) joint business
sign shall be allowed for the exterior of each building, facing the street or a highway in

the event that there are three or more tenants in a building. As a complete alternative,
separate individual business signs for each tenant or occupant of a building which has a

separate and direct exit to and front the exterior building may be allowed listing the
business by name.

(k) No more than one (1) ground, pole, or roof sign for each business on a given premises.

SEC. 13-1-103 ILLUMINATION RESTRICTIONS — ALL ZONING DISTRICTS.
(a) The following restrictions on illumination of signs shall apply in all zoning districts.

(1) Noilluminated sign shall cause any reflection or glare upon any public street,
highway or sidewalk, nor create glare on adjoining private properties.
(2) Exposed lighting media such as light bulbs and tubes are prohibited. All external

sources of illumination must be hidden from view by the planting of vegetation, such

as shrubbery, or by being camouflaged by non-vegetative means, subject to the
approval of the Village.

(b) No sign which is allowed to be erected or constructed without a permit shall be

illuminated without the express permission of the Village.

SEC. 13-1-104 TEMPORARY AND PORTABLE SIGNS.
(a) In addition to the temporary signage allowed under Section 13-1-94 Exempt Signs and

Section 13-1-100, the following temporary and portable signage may be allowed subject

to review and approval of a sign permit:

(1) Flag Signs or banners may be approved on a temporary basis in any district by the
Plan Commission following a review and recommendation by the Zoning
Administrator. Temporary sign permits shall not be granted for a period of more
than three weeks, and each business or organization shall be limited to two
temporary sign permits for a flag sign or banner in any 12-month period. Banners
displayed above a street shall not exceed 120 square feet in area on each side.

Banners attached to a building or other structure shall not exceed 32 square feet in

area.

(2) Temporary Signs. A temporary sign other than a flag or banner may be allowed in
any district for up to 30 days in any given calendar year provided the sign is not
permanently mounted or affixed to the ground. The sign area shall not exceed 32
square feet on one side or 64 square feet on all sides, and shall be at least 10 feet
from a property line (except in the Downtown-Mixed Use District). Only one
temporary sigh may be located on a lot. Each business or organization shall be
limited to two temporary sign permits in any 12-month period.

(3) Portable Sign Restrictions

67 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

a. To be placed on premises for no more than seven (7) consecutive days at one
time and for not more than three (3) such periods per calendar year.

b. Maximum size to be limited to twenty-five (25) square feet per sign with
double-faced signs each qualifying for this maximum size.

SEC. 13-1-105 OFF-PREMISES SIGNS AND BILLBOARDS.
No billboards shall be allowed at any place in the Village of Turtle Lake. This prohibition does
not include off-premises signs, however, advertising businesses in the Village.

SEC. 13-1-106 PROHIBITED SIGNS.
The following types of signs are prohibited:
(a) Animated signs, signs containing beacons or signs containing moving lights, other than
revolving signs.
(b) Flashing signs.
(c) Signs containing or consisting of bare reflecting bulbs.

SEC. 13-1-107 APPEALS AND SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS.

(a) Appeals. The Board of Appeals shall be authorized to hear appeals from decisions of the
Zoning Administrator or Building Inspector. Appeals may be taken within thirty (30) days
of issuance of written notice of a determination of the Zoning Administrator or Building
Inspector.

(b) Special Exceptions.

(1) Applicability and Procedure. Following submittal of a complete special exception
application, the Plan Commission may grant a special exception to one or more
requirements in this Article. The application requirements and procedure for, and
other requirements associated with, a special exception shall be the same as those
for a conditional use permit under Section 13-1-125, except as follows:

a. The application for special exception shall also include materials required to
obtain a sign permit under Section 13-1-96.

b.  The criteria for consideration of a special exception shall be those in
subsection (2) below.

(2) Criteria. No special exception shall be granted unless the Plan Commission finds that
the sign(s) authorized thereby, as limited by an enforceable condition, will meet all
of the following criteria:

a.  Consistent with the purpose and intent of this Chapter and this Section.

b.  Not negatively affecting the reasonable use and development of nearby
properties of the community.

c. Compatible with existing signage on and visible from the subject site and not
significantly exceeding the height, area, or quantity of such existing signage.

d. Proportional with the scale of the subject site and the building(s) and use(s)
on the subject site to which the sign relates or advertises.

e. Not hazardous, harmful, or otherwise adverse to the natural environment
and aesthetic value of the site, nearby properties, and the community.

f. Not negatively affect the safe and efficient installation, use, and maintenance

68| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

of public facilities serving the area, including but not limited to roadways,
sidewalks and paths, and utilities.

g. Supported by evidence that normally applicable requirements do not provide
for sufficient visibility for the proposed signage or use(s) it advertises, such as
a highway visibility study for freestanding signage that exceeds normally
applicable height or area requirements.

SEC. 13-1-108 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-109 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

69 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE |
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

SEC. 13-1-110 PURPOSE.
The purpose of this Article is to establish regulations for signal received antennas and wireless
telecommunication facilities.

SEC. 13-1-111 SIGNAL RECEIVING ANTENNAS.

(a) Purpose. This Section regulating the placement of signal receiving antennas is adopted
to:

(1) Provide uniform regulation of all signal receiving antenna devices.

(2) Secure placement of such antennas in an aesthetically sensitive manner while
allowing users reasonable reception of signals.

(3) Protect the public from injury from antennas that are inadequately mounted, unduly
susceptible to wind pressure, improperly installed and wired, or are placed on
structures insufficiently designed or constructed to safely support the antenna; and

(4) Provide for placement of such antennas in locations that preserve access to rear
property areas by firefighting apparatus and emergency personnel.

(b) Permit Required. No owner shall, within the Village of Turtle Lake, build, construct, use
or place any type of signal receiving antenna until a permit shall have first been
obtained from the Zoning Administrator.

(c) Definitions.

(1) For purposes of this Section, a "signal receiving antenna" is defined as any apparatus
capable of receiving communications from a transmitter or a transmitter relay
located in a planetary orbit. This definition includes all types of signal receiving
antennas, including, without limitation, parabolic antennas, home earth stations,
satellite television disks, UHF and VHF television antennas, and AM, FM, ham and
short-wave radio antennas, regardless of the method of mounting.

(2) "Owner" means the holder of record of an estate in possession in fee simple, or for
life, in land or real property, or a vendee of record under a land contract for the sale
of an estate in possession in fee simple or for life but does not include the vendor
under a land contract. A tenant in common or joint tenant shall be considered such
owner to the extent of his interest. The personal representative of at least one (1)
owner shall be considered an owner.

(d) Application. Application for a signal receiving antenna permit shall be made in writing to
the Zoning Administrator. With such application, there shall be submitted a fee as set
forth in the Village’s annual fee schedule and a sufficient set of mounting plans and
specifications, including a general plot plan showing the location of the proposed signal
receiving antenna with respect to streets, lot lines and buildings. If such application
meets all requirements of this Section, the application shall be approved.

(e) Installation Standards. Signal receiving antennas installed in any zoning district within
the Village shall comply with the following provisions:

(1) Setbacks.

70| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

a. Anysignal receiving antenna and its mounting post shall be located a
minimum of ten (10) feet from any property line.

b.  Subject to the provisions herein, signal receiving antennas shall only be
located in the rear yard of any lot. If reasonable reception of signals is not
possible with a rear yard placement due to the physical characteristics of the
lot and area, the signal receiving antenna shall be placed in the side yard of
the lot. In the event that reasonable reception of signals is not possible by
locating the signal receiving antenna on the rear or side yard of the property,
such antenna may be placed in the front yard or on the roof of structures on
the property. For corner lots, a side yard is only a yard that does not face a
street.

c. Ifsideyard, front yard or roof mounting is requested, the Zoning
Administrator shall determine where reasonable reception is possible, based
on evidence provided by the person seeking to erect or construct the
antenna.

(2) Mounting. Signal receiving antennas attached to the wall or roof of any principal or
accessory structure shall be permitted only if the structure is properly constructed to
carry all imposed loading and complies with applicable state and local building code
requirements. The Zoning Administrator may require engineering calculations.

(3) Diameter. The diameter of the signal receiving antenna shall not exceed fifteen (15)
feet in diameter, except for systems used to provide community antenna television
services.

(4) Height.

a. A ground-mounted signal receiving antenna, including any platform or
structure upon which said antenna is mounted or affixed, may not exceed
eighteen (18) feet in height, as measured from the ground to the highest
point of the dish.

b.  Aroof-mounted antenna may not exceed fifteen (15) feet in height above
the surrounding roof line as measured from the lowest point of the existing
roof line.

(5) Wind Pressure. All signal receiving antennas shall be permanently mounted in
accordance with the manufacturer's specifications for installation. All such
installations shall meet a minimum wind load design velocity of eighty (80) mph.

(6) Electrical Installations. Electrical installations in connection with signal receiving
antennas, including grounding of the system, shall be in accordance with the
National Electrical Safety Code, Wisconsin State Electrical Code and the instructions
of the manufacturer. In cases of conflict, the stricter requirements shall govern. All
cable used to conduct current or signals from the signal receiving antenna to the
receivers shall be installed underground unless installation site conditions preclude
underground. If a signal receiving antenna is to be used by two (2) or more
residential property owners, all interconnecting electrical connections, cables and
conduits must also be buried. The location of all such underground lines, cables and
conduits shall be shown on the application for a permit. All signal receiving antennas
shall be grounded against direct lightning strikes.

71| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(7) Temporary Placement. No portable or trailer-mounted signal receiving antenna shall
be allowed, except for temporary installation for on-site testing and demonstration
purposes for periods not exceeding five (5) days. However, such trial placement shall
be in accordance with all provisions of this Section. Failure to comply shall result in a
citation being issued for violation of this Section. Any person making such temporary
placement shall first give written notice to the Zoning Administrator of the date
when such placement shall begin and end.

(8) Advertising. No form of advertising or identification, sign or mural is allowed on the
signal receiving antenna other than the customary manufacturer's identification
plates.

(9) Interference with Broadcasting. Signal receiving antennas shall be filtered and/or
shielded so as to prevent the emission or reflection of an electromagnetic radiation
that would cause any harmful interference with the radio and/or television
broadcasting or reception on adjacent properties. In the event that harmful
interference is caused subsequent to its installation, the owner of the signal
receiving antenna shall promptly take steps to eliminate the harmful interference in
accordance with Federal Communications Commission regulations.

(10) Compliance with Federal Regulations. The installation and use of every signal
receiving antenna shall be in conformity with the Federal Cable Communications
Policy Act of 1984 and regulations adopted thereunder.

(11) Aesthetic Considerations. Signal receiving antennas shall be located and designed
to reasonably reduce visual impact from surrounding properties at street level.

(f) Enforcement.

(1) It shall be unlawful to construct, use, build or locate any signal receiving antenna in
violation of any provisions of this Section. In the event of any violation, the Village
Board or any property owner who would be specifically damaged by such violation
may institute appropriate action or proceedings to enjoin a violation of this Section.

(2) Any person, firm or corporation who fails to comply with the provisions of this
Section shall, upon conviction, be subject to the general penalty under the Village’s
forfeiture schedule.

SEC. 13-1-112 WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES.
(a) Purpose and Intent.

(1) The purpose and intent of this section is to strike a balance between the state and
federal interest concerning the construction, modification and siting of mobile
service facilities and mobile service support structures for use in providing personal
wireless services, and the Village’s interest in:

a.  Protecting residential areas and land uses from the potential adverse impacts
of towers and antennas.
Minimizing the total number of towers throughout the community.

C. Encouraging the joint use of new and existing tower sites as a primary siting
option rather than construction of additional single-use towers.

d. Avoiding potential damage to adjacent properties from tower failure through
engineering and careful siting of tower structures.

72 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(2) This Section establishes regulations for:

a.

The siting and construction of any new mobile service support structure and
facilities.

With regard to a Class | collocation, the substantial modification of an
existing support structure and mobile service facilities; and

With regard to a Class Il collocation, collocation on an existing support
structure which does not require the substantial modification of an existing
support structure and mobile service facilities.

(3) The regulations contained in this section shall be interpreted to comply with Section
66.0404, Wis. Stats., and any amendments thereto. Any provisions within the Code
that conflicts with the Village’s authority under Section 66.0404, Wis. Stats., shall
not be applied to new mobile service support structure and facilities, class 1
collocation, or class 2 collocation.

(b) Authority. The Village of Turtle Lake has the specific authority under Sections 61.35,

62.23 and 66.0404, Wis. Stats., to adopt and enforce this Section.

(c) Definitions. Unless expressly indicated, all terms in this Section shall have the meanings
established in Section 66.0404(1), Wis. Stats.
(d) Siting and Construction of Any New Mobile Service Support Structure and Facilities

(1) A Village zoning permit is required for the siting and construction of any new mobile
service structure and facilities. The siting and construction of any new mobile
service support structure and facilities is a conditional use in the Village obtainable
with this permit through the conditional use permit process.

(2) An application for a permit to engage in the siting or construction of a new mobile
service support structure and facilities shall be submitted in writing to the Zoning
Administrator. The Zoning Administrator shall submit a copy of the application to
the Building Inspectors for review and recommendation on all structural
requirements. The application shall contain the following information:

a.

oo

The name and business address of, and the contact individuals for, the
applicant.

The location of the proposed or affected support structure.

The location of the proposed mobile service facility.

If the application is the substantially modify an existing support structure, a
construction plan which describes the proposed modifications to the support
structure and the equipment and network components, including antennas,
transmitters, receivers, base stations, power supplies, cabling, and related
equipment associated with the proposed modifications.

If the application is to construct a new mobile service support structure, a
construction plan which describes the proposed mobile service support
structure and the equipment and network components, including antennas,
transmitters, receivers, base stations, power supplies, cabling, and related
equipment to be placed on or around the new mobile service support
structure.

If the application is to construct a new mobile service support structure, an
explanation as to why the applicant chose the proposed location and why the

73| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

applicant did not choose collocation, including a sworn statement from an
individual who has responsibility over the placement of the mobile service
support structure attesting that collocation within the applicant’s search ring
would not result in the same mobile service functionality, coverage, and
capacity; is technically infeasible; or is economically burdensome to the
mobile service provider.

g. If the application is to construct a new mobile service support structure, the
application shall demonstrate that the structure will be located a distance
from any residential dwelling structure that is equal to the height of the
mobile service support structure plus 10 feet measured from the base of the
support structure to the nearest portion of the residential dwelling structure
(including roof overhangs, porches and patios). Alternatively, the applicant
may demonstrate through submittal of an engineering certification showing
that the mobile service support structure is designed to collapse within a
smaller distance than the height of the structure.

h.  The fee for the permit shall be as established in the Village fee schedule [but
may not exceed Three Thousand Dollard ($3,000) per Sec. 66.0404(4)(d), Wis.
Stats.].

(3) The Zoning Administrator shall inform the applicant within ten (10) days of receipt of
the application if the application is not complete. Notification shall be in writing and
shall specify in detail the information that was incomplete.

(4) Within ninety (90) days of receipt of a completed application, the Zoning
Administrator shall issue a written decision to approve or deny the application. If
the application is denied, the written decision shall set forth the reasons for denial
based upon substantial evidence. The Zoning Administrator and the applicant may
agree in writing to an extension of the ninety-(90) day period.

(5) Decisions to deny an application shall be supported by substantial evidence. Such
evidence shall be included in the written decision.

(6) Pursuant to Section 66.0404 (2)(f), Wis. Stats., the decision of the Zoning
Administrator, or of the Village Board under subsection (c)(4), is a final decision
appealable to circuit court.

(e) Class 1 Collocation.

(1) A Village Zoning Permit is required for a Class 1 collocation. A Class 1 colocation is a
conditional use in the Village obtainable with this permit through the conditional use
permit process of this Chapter.

(2) An application for a permit to engage in a Class | collocation shall be completed by
the applicant and submitted in writing to the Zoning Administrator. The application
must contain, at a minimum, the following information:

a. The name and business address of, and the contact individuals for, the

applicant.

The location of the proposed or affected support structure.

The location of the proposed mobile service facility.

d. If the application is to substantially modify an existing support structure, a
construction plan which describes the proposed modifications to the support

oo

74 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

()

structure and the equipment and network components, including antennas,
transmitters, receivers, base stations, power supplies, cabling, and related
equipment associated with the proposed modifications.

e. The fee for the permit shall be as established in the Village fee schedule [but
may not exceed Three Thousand Dollard ($3,000) per Sec. 66.0404(4)(d), Wis.
Stats.].

(3) The Zoning Administrator shall inform the applicant within ten (10) days of receipt of
the application if the application is not complete. Notification shall be in writing and
shall specify in detail the information that was incomplete.

(4) Within ninety (90) days of receipt of a completed application, the Zoning
Administrator shall issue a written decision to approve or deny the application. If
the application is denied, the written decision shall set forth the reasons for denial
based upon substantial evidence. The Zoning Administrator and the applicant may
agree in writing to an extension of the ninety-(90) day period.

(5) Decisions to deny an application shall be supported by substantial evidence. Such
evidence shall be included in the written decision.

(6) Pursuant to Section 66.0404 (2)(f), Wis. Stats., the decision of the Zoning
Administrator, or of the Village Board under subsection (c)(4), is a final decision
appealable to circuit court.

Class 2 Collocation.

(1) A Village Zoning Permit is required for a Class 2 Collocation. A Class 2 Collocation is
a permitted use in the Village but still requires the issues of a Village building and
zoning permit.

(2) An application for a permit to engage in Class 2 Collocation shall be completed by
the applicant and submitted in writing to the Zoning Administrator. The application
must contain, at a minimum, the following information:

a. The name and business address of, and the contact individuals for, the
applicant.

b. The location of the proposed or affected support structure.

c. The location of the proposed mobile service facility.

(3) The Zoning Administrator shall inform the applicant within five (5) days of receiving
the application if the applicant is not complete. Notification shall be in writing and
shall specify in detail the information that was incomplete.

(4) Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of a completed application, the Building
Inspector shall issue a written decision to approve or deny the application, except
that the Zoning Administrator and the applicant may agree in writing to an
extension.

(5) Decisions to deny an application shall be supported by substantial evidence. Such
evidence shall be included in the written decision.

(6) Pursuant to Section 66.0404 (2)(f), Wis. Stats., the decision of the Zoning
Administrator, or of the Village Board under subsection (c)(4), is a final decision
appealable to circuit court.

(g) Abandonment.

(1) If a mobile service support structure shall cease to be used for a period exceeding

75| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

one year and a day, it shall be considered abandoned. The owner or operator of
said structure shall remove the structure and related improvements upon at no cost
to the Village within ninety (90) days thereafter and return the site to an erosion and
dust free condition. Prior to the issuance of any building or zoning permits to
construct the support structure, a performance bond shall be provided to guarantee
that a support structure that has ceased being used for mobile service facilities
purposes is removed. The bond amount shall be the lesser of twenty thousand
dollars ($20,000) or an amount based on a written estimate of a person qualified to
remove such structures. Responsibility to remove abandoned structured may be
assigned to the owner of property upon which the structure is located of any other
mobile service provider with facilities on the structure upon notice to the Zoning
Administrator that such assigned have been made and accepted and filing of a new
bond for the new responsible party. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the owner of
property upon which the structure sits may be held jointly and severally liability by
the Village for the obligation and cost of removal of any abandoned structure and in
the event the structure is not removed in accordance with this Section, upon sixty
days’ notice, the Village may cause the structure to be removed and assess the cost
thereof to the property under Section 66.0627, Wis. Stats.

(h) Structural Requirements.

(1) Every mobile service support structure and mobile service facility shall be designed
and constructed so as to comply with the requirements of Title 15 of the Village of
Turtle Lake Code of Ordinance, and International Building Code (IBC) 3108, as
amended from time to time. If, upon inspection, the Building Inspector concludes
that a structure of facility fails to comply with such codes in effect at the time of
construction, and constitutes a danger to persons or property, then upon notice
being provided to the owner of the structure or facility, the owner shall have thirty
(30) days or such time as determined by the Building Inspector to bring such tower
into compliance with said codes. Failure to bring such structure or facility into
compliance within said thirty (30) days or such time as determined by the Building
Inspector shall constitute grounds for the removal of the structure or facility at
owner’s expense.

(i) Tower and Building Design. All new mobile service support structures and facilities shall
be designed as follows:

(1) Mobile service facilities and mobile service support structures shall be constructed
out of metal or other nonflammable material.

(2) Mobile service facilities and mobile service support structures shall insure that
sufficient anti-climbing measures have been incorporated into the facility, as
needed, to reduce potential for trespass and injury.

(3) Emergency back-up generators shall be completely enclosed on all sides. Other
efforts to mitigate noise from such generators may be required.

(4) All new mobile service support structures shall be structurally and electrically
designed to accommodate at least three (3) separate antenna arrays, unless credible
evidence is presented that said construction is economically and technologically
unfeasible. Multiple-user mobile service support structures shall be designed to

76 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

allow for future rearrangement of antennas and to accept antennas mounted at
varying heights. Parking areas, access roads, and utility easements shall be shared
by site users.

(5) Mobile service support structures are not subject to the height restrictions
established for any district in which they are located.

(j) Location. A good faith effort in achieving collocation shall be required of the applicant
and host entity, subject to existing collocation contracts, and all of the following
measures shall be implemented for new mobile service support structures and Class 1
collocations:

(1) No mobile service support structure shall be installed closer than one-quarter (1/4)
mile from another mobile service support structure, measured from the base of the
existing structure to the base of the proposed structure, unless the applicant
provides a sworn statement from an individual who has responsibility over the
placement of the mobile service structure attesting that collocation within the
applicant’s search ring:

a. Would not result in the same mobile service functionality, coverage, and

capacity;
b. istechnically infeasible; or
c. iseconomically burdensome to the mobile service provider.

(2) Mobile service support structure(s) may be located on a lot in a residential district,
only if said lot is greater than two (2) acres in area and the principal use is other than
residential.

(3) Mobile service support structures towers, guy wires, appurtenant equipment and
buildings shall comply with the yard and setback requirements of the zoning district
in which they are located.

(4) Mobile service support structures shall be located no closer to any residential
dwelling structure than a distance that is equal to the height of the mobile service
support structure and attached facilities (including possible future collected
facilities) plus 10 feet measured from the base of the support structure to the
nearest portion of the residential dwelling structure (including roof overhangs,
porches and patios) unless the applicant demonstrates through submittal of an
engineering certification showing that the mobile service support structure is
designed to collapse within a smaller distance than the height of the structure and
attached facilities (including possible future collected facilities). Unless the Building
Inspector can demonstrate by substantial evidence that the engineering certification
is flawed, the mobile service support structure shall be located no closer to any
residential dwelling structure than zone of collapse established by the engineering
certification plus 10 feet.

SEC. 13-1-113 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-119 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

77| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE J
ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES

SEC. 13-1-120 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this Article is to establish responsibilities for the administration of this Chapter,
and the enforcement procedures and penalties for non-compliance with the provisions of this
Zoning Ordinance. The purpose of this Article is to establish procedural requirements for
zoning text amendments, zoning map amendments, and various development approvals under
this Chapter, including but not limited to conditional use permits, variances, and site plan
review and approval.

SEC. 13-1-121 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR.

The Village Board shall designate a Village official to serve as the Zoning Administrator and as
the administrative enforcement officer for the provisions of this Chapter. The duty of the
Zoning Administrator shall be to interpret and administer this Chapter and to issue, after on-
site inspection, all permits required by this Chapter. The Zoning Administrator shall further:

(a) Maintain records of all permits issued, inspections made, work approved and other
official actions.

(b) Record the lowest floor elevations of all structures erected, moved, altered or improved
in the floodland districts.

(c) Establish that all necessary permits that are required for floodland uses by state and
federal law have been secured.

(d) Inspect all structures, lands and waters as often as necessary to assure compliance with
this Chapter.

(e) Investigate all complaints made relating to the location of structures and the use of
structures, lands and waters, give notice of all violations of this Chapter to the owner,
resident, agent or occupant of the premises and report uncorrected violations to the
Village Attorney in a manner specified.

(f) Prohibit the use or erection of any structure, land or water until he has inspected and
approved such use or erection.

(g9) Request assistance and cooperation from the Police Department, Village Clerk-
Treasurer, Building Inspector and Village Attorney as deemed necessary.

SEC. 13-1-122 ROLE OF SPECIFIC VILLAGE OFFICIALS IN ZONING ADMINISTRATION.

(a) Plan Commission. The Plan Commission, together with its other statutory duties, shall
make reports and recommendations relating to the plan and development of the Village
to the Village Board, other public officials and other interested organizations and
citizens. In general, the Plan Commission shall have such powers as may be necessary to
enable it to perform its functions and promote municipal planning. Under this Chapter,
its functions are primarily recommendatory to the Village Board pursuant to guidelines
set forth in this Chapter as to various matters and, always, being mindful of the intent
and purposes of this Chapter. Recommendations shall be in writing. A recording thereof
in the Commission's minutes shall constitute the required written recommendation. The

78 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

Commission may, in arriving at its recommendation, on occasion of its own volition,

conduct its own public hearing.

(b) Village Board. The Village Board, the governing body of the Village, subject to
recommendations by the Plan Commission and the holding of public hearings by said
Board, has ultimate authority to grant permitted conditional uses, make changes and
amendments in zoning districts, the zoning map and supplementary floodland zoning
map and to amend the text of this Chapter. The Village Board may delegate to the Plan
Commission the responsibility to hold some or all public hearings as required under this
chapter.

(c) Zoning Board of Appeals. A Zoning Board of Appeals is established to provide an appeal
procedure for persons who deem themselves aggrieved by decisions of administrative
officers in enforcement of this Chapter. The Board of Appeals shall have the following
powers:

(1) Errors. To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order,
requirement, decision or determination made by the Zoning Administrator or
Building Inspector.

(2) Variances. To hear and grant appeals for variances as will not be contrary to the
public interest where, owing to practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that
the spirit and purposes of this Chapter shall be observed and the public safety,
welfare and justice secured. Use variances shall not be granted.

(3) Interpretations. To hear and decide application for interpretations of the zoning
regulations and the boundaries of the zoning districts after the Plan Commission has
made a review and recommendation.

(4) Substitutions. To hear and grant applications for substitution of more restrictive
nonconforming uses for existing nonconforming uses provided no structural
alterations are to be made and the Plan Commission has made a review and
recommendation. Whenever the Board permits such a substitution, the use may not
thereafter be changed without application.

(5) Unclassified Uses. To hear and grant applications for unclassified and unspecified
uses provided that such uses are similar in character to the principal uses permitted
in the district and the Plan Commission has made a review and recommendation.

(6) Temporary Uses. To hear and grant applications for temporary uses, in any district
provided that such uses are of a temporary nature, do not involve the erection of a
substantial structure and are compatible with the neighboring uses and the Plan
Commission has made a review and recommendation. The permit shall be
temporary, revocable, subject to any condition required by the Board of Zoning
Appeals and shall be issued for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months.
Compliance with all other provisions of this Chapter shall be required.

(7) Permits. The Board may reverse, affirm wholly or partly, modify the requirements
appealed from and may issue or direct the issue of a permit.

SEC. 13-1-123 REVIEW AND APPROVAL REQUIRED.

(a) Review procedures vary depending on the type of request; however, procedures within
this Article generally adhere to three common elements:

79| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(1) Submittal of a complete application, including fee payment and appropriate
supplemental information.

(2) Review by appropriate Village staff and/or officials.

(3) Action by appropriate Village official(s) or staff to approve, conditionally approve, or
deny the request.

(b) The table below summarizes the procedures, agencies, and personnel involved in
various procedures authorized by this Chapter. The table is provided as a convenience
for the Village and general public. Where there are conflicts between the text of this
Chapter and the table below, the text shall prevail.

Review and Approval Activities and Bodies

c o ©
S < 5 =
— &= c & 2 3 g
Application Process S L e w W o
7 - kS g S
S = Q°
Zoning Ordinance Amendment RR RR PH, RE, A
Zoning Map Amendment PM*, RR RR RR, RE, A
Conditional Use Permit RR PH, RR RE, A
Zoning Permit RE, IP
Site Plan RR RE, A
Planned Development District PM*, RR PH, RR RE, A
Interpretation RE, A Appeal
Only
Variance RR PH, RE, A
Appeal RR PH, RE, A
Violations and Penalties RE, A
Floodplain Map Amendment Refer to Wisconsin DNR/FEMA
Sign Permit RE,IP | | |
RE = Review and Evaluate IP = Issues Permit RR = Review and Recommend

PH = Public Hearing PM = Public Meeting A = Final Action
*If determined to be necessary by the Zoning Administrator or designee.

Note: This table is not exhaustive. Some procedures may not be covered within this table
including Land Division approvals required under Title 14, Subdivision Regulations.

SEC. 13-1-124 ZONING ORDINANCE (TEXT OR MAP) AMENDMENT.

(a) Authority. Whenever the public necessity, convenience, general welfare or good zoning
practice requires, the Village Board may, by ordinance, change the district boundaries
established by this Chapter and the Zoning Map incorporated herein or amend, change
or supplement the text of the regulations established by this Chapter or amendments
thereto. Such change or amendment shall be subject to the review and
recommendation of the Plan Commission with final action by the Village Board.

(b) Initiation of Changes or Amendments. The Village Board, the Plan Commission, the

80|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

Zoning Board of Appeals and other government bodies and any private petitioners may
apply for an amendment to the text of this Chapter or to the District boundaries hereby
established or by amendments hereto in the accompanying zoning map made a part of
this Chapter.

(c) Procedures for Changes or Amendments.

(1) Application. Petitions for any change to the district boundaries and map(s) or
amendments to the text regulations shall be addressed to the Village Board and shall
be filed with the Zoning Administrator, describe the premises to be rezoned or the
portions of text of regulations to be amended, list the reasons justifying the petition,
specify the proposed use, if applicable, and have attached the following, if petition
be for change of district boundaries:

a. Plot plan, drawn to a scale of one (1) inch equals one hundred (100) feet
showing the area proposed to be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the
location and classification of adjacent zoning districts and the location and
existing use of all properties within three hundred (300) feet of the area
proposed to be rezoned.

b.  Owners' names and addresses of all properties lying within one hundred
(100) feet of the area proposed to be rezoned.

c. Fee. The fee for a rezoning amendment shall be as set forth in the Village’s
annual fee schedule.

d. Together with additional information as may be required by the Plan
Commission or Village Board.

(2) Review Standards. The Zoning Administrator, or designee, and other Village
Departments shall review the complete application and evaluate whether the
proposed amendment:

a. Advances the purposes of this Chapter as outlined in Section 13-1-4.

b.  Advances the purposes of the general Article in which the amendment is
proposed to be located.

c.  Advances the purposes of the specific Section in which the amendment is
proposed to be located.

d. Isin harmony with the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan.

e. Maintains the desired overall consistency of land uses, land use intensities,
and land use impacts within the pertinent zoning districts.

f.  Addresses any of the following factors that may not be addressed in the
current zoning text:

1. Achange in the land market, or other factors which require a new
form of development, a new type of land use, or a new procedure to
meet said change(s). New methods of development or types of
infrastructure.

2. Changing governmental finances to meet the needs of the
government in terms of providing and affording public services.

3. Any other factor deemed appropriate by the Village.

(3) Public Hearing Required.

a.  Within 90 days of filing of a complete application, the Village Board shall hold

81|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

a public hearing to consider the proposed zoning change or amendment,
giving notice of the time, place and the change or amendment proposed by
publication of a Class 2 notice, under Chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes.
At least ten (10) days prior, written notice shall also be given to the clerk of
any municipality within one thousand (1,000) feet of any land to be affected
by the proposed change or amendment.

A public hearing may be held more than 90 days from filing of the complete
application when requested by the applicant in writing.

The Village Board may delegate to the Plan Commission the responsibility to
hold public hearings as required under this Section.

(4) Plan Commission Review and Recommendation.

a.

(5) Village
a.

The Village Board or the Village Administrator shall cause the petition to be
forwarded to the Plan Commission for its consideration and
recommendation.

Within 60 days of the public hearing, the Plan Commission shall make its
recommendations regarding the application. Said recommendation may
include a formal finding of facts developed and approved by the Plan
Commission and whether the public benefits outweigh any and all potential
adverse impacts of the proposed amendment.

The Plan Commission shall review all proposed amendments to the text and
zoning map(s) within the corporate limits and shall recommend in writing
that the petition be granted as requested, modified or denied. A recording of
the recommendation in the Plan Commission's official minutes shall
constitute the required written recommendation. In arriving at its
recommendation, the Commission may on occasion, of its own volition,
conduct its own public hearing on proposed amendment(s).

If the Plan Commission fails to make a recommendation within 60 days of the
public hearing, the Village Board may hold a public hearing within 30 days
after the expiration of said 60-day period. Failure to receive said
recommendation from the Plan Commission shall not invalidate the
proceedings or actions of the Village Board. If a public hearing is necessary,
the Village Board shall provide notice per the requirements of under (c)(3)
above.

Board Review and Action.

Following the required public hearing and after consideration of the Plan
Commission's recommendation, the Village Board shall review the proposed
amendment. The Village Board may request further information and/or
additional reports from the Plan Commission, Zoning Administrator (or
designee), the applicant, and/or any other entity as it sees fit.

The Village Board may refer the matter back to the Plan Commission. In such
cases, the Village Board shall specify the issue(s) to be addressed in further
detail.

The Village Board may take final action (by ordinance) on the application at
the time of its initial meeting or may continue the proceedings by its own

82 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

decision or the applicant’s request. The Village Board may approve the
amendment as originally proposed, may approved the proposed amendment
with modifications, or may deny approval of the proposed amendment. The
Plan Commission's recommendations may only be overruled by three-fourths
(3/4) of the full Board membership.

(d) Effect of Denial. No application which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall be
resubmitted for a period of 365 days from the date of said order of denial, except on
grounds of new evidence or material changes of circumstances.

(e) Protest.

(1) In the event of a protest against amendment to the zoning map, duly signed and
acknowledged by the owners of twenty percent (20%) or more, either of the areas
of the land included in such proposed change, or by the owners of twenty percent
(20%) or more of the land immediately adjacent extending one hundred (100) feet
therefrom, or by the owners of twenty percent (20%) or more of the land directly
opposite thereto extending one hundred (100) feet from the street frontage of such
opposite land, such changes or amendments shall not become effective except by
the favorable vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the full Village Board membership.

(2) In the event of protest against amendment to the text of the regulations of this
Chapter, duly signed and acknowledged by twenty percent (20%) of the number of
persons casting ballots in the last general election, it shall cause a three-fourths
(3/4) vote of the full Village Board membership to adopt such amendment.

SEC. 13-1-125 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCEDURES & STANDARDS

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to provide regulations which govern the
procedure and requirements for the review and approval, or denial, or proposed
conditional uses.

(b) Applicability. There are certain uses, which because of their unique characteristics, may
have a high potential to create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, public
facilities, or the community as a whole. In these cases, specific standards, regulations,
or conditions may be established.

(c) Initiation of Request for Conditional Use. Any person, firm, corporation or organization
having a freehold interest or a possessory interest entitled to exclusive possession, or a
contractual interest which may become a freehold interest, or an exclusive possessory
interest, and which is specifically enforceable in the land for which a conditional use is
sought may file an application to use such land for one (1) or more of the conditional
uses provided for in this Chapter in the zoning district in which such land is located.

(d) Application for Conditional Use.

(1) An application for a conditional use shall be filed on a form prescribed by the Village.
A non-refundable application fee, as set forth in the annual Village fee schedule,
shall be paid at the time of application. The application shall be accompanied by a
plan showing the location, size and shape of the lot(s) involved and of any proposed
structures, the existing and proposed use of each structure and lot, and shall include
a statement in writing by the applicant and adequate evidence showing that the
proposed conditional use shall conform to the standards set forth in Section 13-1-

83| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

125(f) below.

(2) The Plan Commission or Village Board may require such other information as may be
necessary to determine and provide for an enforcement of this Chapter, including a
plan showing contours and soil types; highwater mark and groundwater conditions;
bedrock, vegetative cover, specifications for areas of proposed filling, grading, and
lagooning; location of buildings, parking areas, traffic access, driveways, walkways,
open spaces and landscaping; plans of buildings, sewage disposal facilities, water
supply systems and arrangements of operations. When considering a development
proposal or land use change, the Village may require additional studies, benefits-
costs analysis, or other information, at its discretion and potentially at the
developer’s expense. Such studies or information may be needed to analyze factors
such as: land use compatibility, potential impacts (e.g., transportation, fiscal,
environment, public health, property values), engineering studies or place, and
whether other standards are sufficiently met).

(e) Public Hearing Required.

()

(1) All requests for conditional uses shall be referred to the Plan Commission or the Plan
Commission can, on its own motion, apply conditional uses when applications for
rezoning come before it. Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit the Village Board, on
its own motion, from referring the request for conditional use to the Plan
Commission. Upon receipt of the application and statement referred to in Section
13-1-125(d) above, the Plan Commission shall hold a public hearing on each
application for a conditional use at such time and place as shall be established by
such Commission. The hearing shall be conducted, and a record of the proceedings
shall be preserved in such a manner and according to such procedures as the Plan
Commission shall, by rule, prescribe from time to time.

(2) Notice of Public Hearing. Notice of the time, place and purpose of such hearing shall
be given by publication of a Class 2 Notice under the Wisconsin Statutes in the
official Village newspaper. Notice of the time, place and purpose of such public
hearing shall also be sent to the applicant, the Zoning Administrator, members of
the Village Board and Plan Commission, and the owners of record as listed in the
office of the Village Assessor who are owners of property in whole or in part situated
within one hundred (100) feet of the boundaries of the properties affected. Said
notice to be sent at least ten (10) days prior to the date of such public hearing.

Conditional Use Permit Review Standards. In determining whether to approve, approve

with conditions, or deny a request for issuance of a conditional use permit, the Plan

Commission and the Village Board shall consider all relevant factors specific in other

sections of this Ordinance, including standards for specific requirements for certain land

uses and activities. If an applicant for a conditional use permit meets or agrees to meet
all of the requirements and conditions specific in this Chapter or imposed by the Village,
the Village shall grant the conditional use permit. The applicant must demonstrate by
substantial evidence that the applicant and all requirements and conditions established
by the Village are or shall be satisfied. No application for a conditional use shall be
recommended for approval by the Plan Commission or granted by the Village Board
unless such Commission and Board shall find all of the following conditions are present:

84 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(1) That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will not be
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general
welfare.

(2) That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for
purposes already permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially
impaired or diminished by the establishment, maintenance or operation of the
conditional use and the proposed use is compatible with the use of adjacent land.

(3) That the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and
orderly development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses
permitted in the district.

(4) That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site
improvements have been or are being provided. The Village will consider the
availability and potential impacts to public services, especially sanitary sewer, water
lines, storm sewers, fire protection, parks, transportation networks, and schools,
and ensure that any needed services be available or that such services could be
made available safely and efficiently.

(5) That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

(6) That the conditional use shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in
which it is located.

(7) That the proposed use does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site.

(8) That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building or an
addition to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in mind
the statement of purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed building or
addition at its location does not defeat the purposes and objective of the zoning
district.

(9) That, in addition to passing upon a Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission and
Board shall also evaluate the effect of the proposed use upon:

a. The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions.

b The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation.

C. Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site.

d The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers
and streams.

e. The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope,
soil type and vegetative cover.

f.  The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads.

g. The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location.

h.  Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land.

i.

The amount of liquid wastes to be generated and the adequacy of the
proposed disposal systems.

j.  Potential negative impacts on environmentally sensitive areas or other
critical community services (e.g., schools, nursing care, governmental) are
prevented or mitigated. New development, reconstruction, and
infrastructure projects should consider and apply resource conservation

85| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

techniques and best practices that reduce energy demand and promote air
and water quality improvements.

(10) The use is in harmony with the Village of Turtle Lake Comprehensive Plan.

(11) The conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will
not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or
services provided by public or private agencies serving the subject property.

(9) Plan Commission Review and Recommendation.

(1) Following public hearing, the Plan Commission shall review the proposed
Conditional Use Permit request with the review standards in Section 13-1-125(f).

(2) The Plan Commission shall report its advisory recommendations to the Village Board
within thirty (30) days after a matter has been referred to. If such action has not
been reported by the Plan Commission within thirty (30) days, the Village Board can
act without such recommendation.

(h) Village Board Review and Action.

(1) Within 60 days after the filing of a Conditional Use Permit application, the Village
Board shall make its findings and take final action on the application.

(2) The Village Board may, by resolution, authorize the Zoning Administrator to issue a
conditional use permit after review, public hearing and advisory recommendation
from the Plan Commission, provided that such conditional use and involved
structure(s) are found to be in accordance with the purpose and intent of this Zoning
Code and evaluation of the standards for conditional uses as outlined in Section 13-
1-125(f). Prior to the granting of a conditional use, the Commission shall make
findings based upon the evidence presented that the standards herein prescribed
are being complied with.

(3) Any development within five hundred (500) feet of the existing or proposed rights-
of-way of freeways, expressways and within one-half (4) mile of their existing or
proposed interchange or turning lane rights-of-way shall be specifically reviewed by
the highway agency that has jurisdiction over the traffic way. The Plan Commission
shall request such review and await the highway agency's recommendation for a
period not to exceed twenty (20) days before taking final action.

(4) Conditions, as further described in Section 13-1-125(j) of this Article may be required
by the Village Board upon its finding that these are necessary to fulfill the purpose
and intent of this Chapter.

(5) Compliance with all other provisions of this Chapter, such as lot width and area,
yards, height, parking, loading, traffic, highway access and performance standards
shall be required of all conditional uses.

(i) Action on a Conditional Use Permit

(1) The Village Board may take the final action on the application at the time of the
public hearing or may continue the proceedings at its discretion or at the applicant’s
request. The Board may approve the conditional use as originally proposed, may
approve the proposed conditional use with modifications, or may deny approval of
the proposed conditional use. The requirements and conditions described must be
reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable and may include conditions
such as the permit’s duration or renewal. The applicant and all requirements and

8 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(2)

(3)

(4)

conditions established by the Village relating to the conditional use are or shall be
satisfied, both of which must be supported by substantial evidence.

The Village’s approval of the proposed conditional use shall be considered the
approval of a unique request and shall not be construed as precedent for any other
proposed conditional use.

When an advisory recommendation or determination of denial of a conditional use
application is made, the Plan Commission/Village Board shall furnish the applicant,
in writing when so requested, those standards that are not met and enumerate
reasons the Commission/Board has used in determining that each standard was not
met. Per Section 62.23(7)(de), Wis. Stats., if the Village denies a conditional use
permit application, the applicant may appeal the decision to the circuit court under
the procedures contained in Statute.

Effect of Denial: No application which has been denied (either wholly or in part) shall
be resubmitted for a period of 6 months from the date of denial, except on grounds
of new evidence or proof of change of factors.

(j) Conditions and Guarantees

(1)

Conditions. Prior to the granting of any conditional use, the Village Board may
stipulate such conditions and restrictions upon the establishment, location,
construction, maintenance and operation of the conditional use as deemed
necessary to promote the public health, safety and general welfare of the
community, and to secure compliance with the standards and requirements
specified in Section 13-1-125(f) above. In all cases in which conditional uses are
granted, the Board shall require such evidence and guarantees as it may deem
necessary as proof that the conditions stipulated in connection therewith are being
and will be complied with. Any condition imposed must be related to the purpose of
this Chapter and be based on substantial evidence. The requirements and
conditions must be reasonable and, to the extent practicable, measurable and may
include conditions such as the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal. The applicant
must demonstrate that the application and all requirements and conditions
established by the Village related to the conditional use are or shall be satisfied,
both of which must be supported by substantial evidence. Such conditions may
include specifications for, without limitation because of specific enumeration:
Landscaping.

Type of construction.

Construction commencement and completion dates.

Sureties.

Lighting.

Fencing.

Operational control.

Hours of operation.

Traffic circulation.

Deed restrictions.

Access restrictions.

Setbacks and yards.

Q

— A+ —~70@ 0 Q0 T

87| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

Type of shore cover.

Specified sewage disposal and water supply systems.

Planting screens.

Piers and docks.

Increased parking.

Duration of conditional use; or

Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of this
Chapter.

w -9 T o0 >3

(2) Site Review. In making its recommendation, the Plan Commission shall evaluate

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

each application and may request assistance from any source which can provide
technical assistance. The Commission or Board may review the site, existing and
proposed structures, architectural plans, neighboring uses, parking areas, driveway
locations, highway access, traffic generation and circulation, drainage, sewerage and
water systems and the proposed operation/use.

Alteration of Conditional Use. No alteration of a conditional use shall be permitted
unless approved by the Village Board after recommendation from the Plan
Commission.

Architectural Treatment. Proposed architectural treatment will be in general
harmony with surrounding uses and the landscape. To this end, the Village Board
may require the use of certain general types of exterior construction materials
and/or architectural treatment.

Sloped Sites; Unsuitable Soils. Where slopes exceed six percent (6%) and/or where a
use is proposed to be located on areas indicated as having soils which are unsuitable
or marginal for development, on-site soil tests and/or construction plans shall be
provided which clearly indicate that the soil conditions are adequate to
accommodate the development contemplated and/or that any inherent soil
condition or slope problems will be overcome by special construction

techniques. Such special construction might include, among other techniques,
terracing, retaining walls, oversized foundations and footings, drain tile, etc.
Conditional Uses to Comply with Other Requirements. Conditional uses shall comply
with all other provisions of this Chapter such as lot width and area, yards, height,
parking and loading.

(k) Validity of Conditional Use Permit.

(1)

(2)

Conditional uses authorized by Village Board resolution shall be established for a
period of time to a time certain or until a future happening or event at which the
same shall terminate.

Where the Village Board has approved or conditionally approved an application for a
conditional use, such approval shall become null and void within twelve (12) months
of the date of the Board's action unless the use is commenced, construction is
underway or the current owner possesses a valid building permit under which
construction is commenced within six (6) months of the date of issuance and which
shall not be renewed unless construction has commenced and is being diligently
prosecuted. Approximately forty-five (45) days prior to the automatic revocation of
such permit, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the holder by certified mail of

88| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

such revocation. The Board may extend such permit for a period of ninety (90) days
for justifiable cause, if application is made to the Village Board at least thirty (30)
days before the expiration of said permit.

(3) Once granted, a conditional use permit shall remain in effect as long as the
conditions upon which the permit was issued are followed, but the Village may
impose conditions such as the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal, in addition to
any other conditions specified in the zoning ordinance or by the Village Plan
Commission or Village Board.

(4) Discontinuing an Approved Conditional Use. Any and all conditional uses which have
been discontinued for a period exceeding 365 days shall have their conditional use
invalidated automatically. The burden of proof shall be on the property owner to
conclusively demonstrate that the subject conditional use was operational during
this period.

() Termination. Conditional use(s), when replaced by permitted use(s), shall terminate. In
such case(s), the reestablishment of any previous conditional use(s), or establishment of
a new conditional use(s) shall require review, public hearing and approval by the Village
Board in accordance with Article D of this Chapter.

(m)Substitution. Conditional uses authorized by the Village Board shall not be subject to
substitution with other conditional uses, whether similar type or not, without Village
Board approval and the procedures required in Article J.

(n) Complaints Regarding Conditional Uses. The Village Board shall retain continuing
jurisdiction over all conditional uses for the purpose of resolving complaints against all
previously approved conditional uses. Such authority shall be in addition to the
enforcement authority of the Zoning Administrator to order the removal or
discontinuance of any unauthorized alterations of an approved conditional use, and the
elimination, removal or discontinuance of any violation of a condition imposed prior to
or after approval or violation of any other provision of this Code. Upon written
complaint by any citizen or official and after seeking an advisory recommendation from
the Plan Commission, the Village Board shall initially determine whether said complaint
indicates a reasonable probability that the subject conditional use is in violation of
either one (1) or more of the standards set forth in Section 13-1-125(f) above, a
condition of approval or other requirement imposed hereunder. Upon reaching a
positive initial determination, a hearing shall be held upon notice as provided in Section
13-1-125(e) above. Any person may appear at such hearing and testify in person or
represented by an agent or attorney. The Village Board may, in order to bring the
subject conditional use into compliance with the standards set forth in Section 13-1-
125(f) or conditions previously imposed by the Village Board, modify existing conditions
upon such use and impose additional reasonable conditions upon the subject
conditional use. In the event that no reasonable modification of such conditional use
can be made in order to assure that Standards in Section 13-1-125(f) will be met, the
Village Board may revoke the subject conditional approval and direct the Zoning
Administrator and the Village Attorney to seek elimination of the subject use. Following
any such hearing, the decision of the Village Board shall be furnished to the current
owner of the conditional use in writing stating the reasons therefor. The basis for permit

89 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

termination or revocation must be supported by substantial evidence.
(o) Conditional Use - Sexually Oriented Businesses

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Findings and Purpose. The Village Board finds that due to their nature, the existence
of sexually oriented businesses in the Village have serious objectionable operational
characteristics, such as an effect upon property values, local commerce and crime.
Due to the deleterious combined effect on adjacent areas when such uses are
concentrated, or when located in close proximity to premises which serve alcoholic
beverages, fermented malt beverages, or wine for consumption on site, such uses
should not be permitted to be located in close proximity to each other or to
premises serving such beverages. Special regulation of these uses is necessary to
ensure that these adverse effects will not contribute to the blighting or downgrading
of the surrounding neighborhood. Such regulations are contained in these
standards. These standards are designed to protect the Village's retail trade,
maintain property values, prevent crime, control the spread of disease, and, in
general protect and preserve the quality of the Village's neighborhoods, commercial
districts and the quality of Village life.

Standards. A sexually oriented business is permitted only as a conditional use and
only in the B-H district, provided that:

a.  Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of any
residence or single/multi-family residential district designated within this
Chapter (this includes the R-R, R-L, R-M, R-MF, MHTH, R-T, P-C Districts).

b.  Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of any public
or private school, day care premises, nursery, church, park, or any building
used even upon occasion as such.

c.  Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of another
adult bookstore, adult entertainment establishment, or adult motion picture
theater.

d.  Such use shall not be located within two hundred fifty (250) feet of any
establishment that serves or sells or disperses any alcohol beverages for
consumption on-site.

e.  Such use shall not be located within one thousand (1,000) feet of any
premises which is licensed by the Village of Turtle Lake or any other
governmental body to sell, serve, or dispense alcoholic beverages, fermented
malt beverages or wine for consumption on site.

f.  Such use shall not be located on or in premises which are licensed by the
Village of Turtle Lake to sell, serve, or dispense alcoholic beverages,
fermented malt beverages or wine for consumption on site.

Exemptions. The provisions of this Section do not apply to the following
establishments: theaters, performing arts centers, civic centers, and dinner theaters
where live dance, ballet, music and dramatic performances of serious artistic merit
are offered on a regular basis and in which the predominant business or attraction is
not of the type or nature offered by a sexually oriented business as defined in
Section 13-1-140(a) (4), (5) and (6) of this Code of Ordinances.

Miscellaneous.

0 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

The distances provided in this Section shall be measured by following a
straight line, without regard to intervening buildings, from the nearest point
of the lot upon which the proposed use is to be located, to the nearest point
of the zoning district boundary line or the lot from which the proposed use is
to be separated.

Violation of these provisions is declared to be a public nuisance per se.
Nothing in this Section is intended to authorize, legalize or permit the
establishment, operation of maintenance of any business, building or use
which violates any Village ordinance, county ordinance, or statute of the
State of Wisconsin regarding public nuisances, sexual conduct, lewdness or
obscene or harmful matter or the exhibition or public display thereof.

(p) Conditional Use — Specific Livestock Operations

(1) Generally. This section describes the procedural requirements relating to the
conditional use permit review of a new or expanded livestock operations that will
have 500 or more animal units, as required under 13-1-29(b).

(2) Initiation. The owner of the subject property may submit an application for the
establishment of a livestock operation.

(3) Application and Review Procedure. The general steps outlined below shall be used
in the review of an application for a Conditional use permit for a new or expanded
livestock operations.

a.

Pre-submittal meeting. Before submitting an application, the applicant or
the applicant’s agent may meet with the Zoning Administrator to review
applicable regulations and procedures and the proposed livestock operation.
Submittal of application materials. The applicant shall submit 4 copies of the
completed application form and worksheets prescribed by s. ATCP 51.30,
Wis. Admin Code, to the Zoning Administrator, submission of a nutrient
management plan, along with the application fee as may be established by
the Village Board in the Village’s annual fee schedule.

Determination of completeness. Within 45 days of submittal, the Zoning
Administrator shall determine whether the application is complete or
incomplete. If the Zoning Administrator determines that the application is
incomplete, he or she shall send the applicant a written notice that describes
the reason or reasons why the application is incomplete. If the Zoning
Administrator determines that the application is complete, he or she shall
send a written notice to the applicant within 14 days of such determination.
Notice to adjacent property owners. Within 14 days of a determination of
completeness, the Zoning Administrator shall mail a completed notice as in
ch. ATCP 51, Wis. Admin. Code to the recorded owner of each parcel of land
that is adjacent to the proposed livestock facility. Such notices shall be
mailed by first class mail. Failure to comply with the notice requirement
under this subsection does not invalidate the approval of a proposed
livestock facility, or create a cause of action by a property owned against the
Village of Turtle Lake or any Village committee, Village Board, or employee.
Public Hearing. The Zoning Administrator may schedule a public hearing on

91| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

the application within 90 days after issuing notice of a complete application.

f.  Standards. The standards for issuing a permit are as follows:

1. The state livestock facility siting standards adopted under ATCP 51,
Wis. Adm. Code. These standards are incorporated by reference,
without reproducing them in full.

2. Setbacks authorized by this ordinance.

g.  Criteria for Issuance of a Permit

1. A permit shall be issued if the application for the proposed livestock
facility contains sufficient credible information to show, in the
absence of clear and convincing information to the contrary, that the
proposed livestock facility meets the standards specific in this
ordinance.

2. A permit may be denied if any of the following apply:

i. The application, on its face, fails to meet the standards for
approval.

ii. The Village finds, based on other clear and convincing
information in the record, that the proposed livestock facility
does not comply with applicable standards in this ordinance.

iii. Other grounds authorized by s. 93.90, Stats., that warrant
disapproving the proposed livestock facility.

3. No conditions may be imposed on a permit other than the standards
provided in the ordinance.

h.  Record of Decision.

1. The Village Board shall issue its decision in writing. Its decision shall
be based on written findings of fact supported by evidence in the
record.

2. Inthe event that a permit is approved, the applicant shall receive a
duplicate copy of the approved application, marked “approved.” The
duplicate copy must include worksheets, maps, and other documents
(other than engineering specifications) included in the application.

i.  Notice to the Department. The Village Clerk as required by ATCP 51.36
within 30 days of the Village decision on the application shall do all of the
following:

1. Give the Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
written notice of the town/county decision.

2. File with the Department a copy of the final application granted or
denied, if the Village has granted or denied an application under this
ordinance. (The copy shall include all of the worksheets, maps, and
other attachments included in the application, except that it is not
required to include the engineering design specifications.)

3. If the Village has withdrawn a local approval under this ordinance, file
with the department a copy of the Village final notice or order
withdrawing the local approval.

j. Expiration of Permit. A permit remains in effect regardless of the amount of

92| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

time that elapses before the livestock operator exercises the full authority
granted under the permit, and regardless of whether the livestock operator
exercises the full authority granted by the approval. However, the Village
may treat a permit as lapsed and withdraw the permit if the permit holder
fails to do all of the following within 2 years after issuance of the permit: (1)
Begin populating the new or expanded livestock facility, or (2) Begin
constructing all of the new or expanded livestock housing or waste storage
structures proposed in the permit application.

k.  Permit Modifications. The operator may make reasonable changes that
maintain compliance with the standards in this ordinance, and the Village
shall not withhold authorization for those changes.

I.  Compliance Monitoring. The Village shall monitor compliance with the
ordinance as follows:

1. Upon notice to the livestock facility owner the Village may request
the right of the Zoning Administrator to personally view the
permitted facility at a reasonable time and date to insure that all
commitments of the application as approved are being complied
with.

2. If the livestock facility owner refuses the Zoning Administrator the
right to view the permitted facility, the Zoning Administrator may
request the assistance of the Sheriff or a deputy Sheriff to obtain an
inspection warrant for the circuit court to inspect the permitted
facility for the purpose of protection of the public health and safety
under Sec. 66.0119 of Wis. Statutes.

3. If a permitted facility is found not to be in compliance with the
commitments made in the approved application, the Zoning
Administrator shall issue a written notice to the livestock facility
owner stating the conditions of non-compliance and directing that
compliance of the commitments of the approved application and be
complied with in a reasonable amount of time stated in this written
notice.

4. If non-compliance of the permit conditions as described in the written
notice given by the Zoning Administrator continue past the stated
reasonable time to comply, the Zoning Administrator may take
further action as provided in this ordinance, including but not limited
to issuance of a citation or seeking of injunctive relief.

5. If the livestock facility owner disputes that the conditions of the
permit have not been complied with, the livestock facility owner may
request a hearing in writing within five days of receipt of the notice of
non-compliance. The Village Board shall schedule a hearing within
five days to determine if the conditions of the permit have been
complied with or whether non-compliance of the commitments of the
approved application and local approval exists.

m.  Terms of the Permit. A permit and the privileges granted by a permit issued

93| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

under this ordinance is conditioned on the livestock operator’s compliance
with the standards in this ordinance, and with commitments made in the
application for a permit. The Village is authorized to suspect a permit or seek
other redress provided in this ordinance for non-compliance.

n.  Transferability. A permit and the privileges granted by the permit run with
the land, and remain in effect, despite a change in ownership of the livestock
facility, as long as the new operator does not violate the terms of the local
approval. An applicant may record with the register of deeds, at the
applicant’s expense, the duplicate copy of the approved application.

Upon change of ownership of the livestock facility, the new owner of the
facility shall file information with the Village Clerk providing pertinent
information, including but not limited to such information as the name and
address of the new owner and date of transfer of ownership.

o. Appeal of Decision on Livestock Facilities Conditional Use Permit

1. In addition to other appeal rights provided by law, Sec. 93.90(5), Wis.
Stats., provides that any “aggrieved person” may request review by
the Livestock Facility Siting Review Board and any decision by the
Village Board in connection with a permit application. An “aggrieved
person” may challenge the decision on the grounds that the Village
Board incorrectly applied the standards under this Article or violated
Sec. 93.30, Wis. Stats.

2. An “aggrieved person” under this section as defined in Sec. 93.90(5)
of Wis. Stats. Means a person who applied to the Village for approval
of a livestock siting or expansion, a person who lives within 2 miles of
the livestock facility that is proposed to be sites or expanded, or a
person who owns land within 2 miles of a livestock facility that is
proposed to be sited or expanded.

3. Any appeal to the State Livestock Facility Siting Review Board shall
comply with Sec. 93.90 of Wis. Statutes and administrative rules of
said board.

SEC. 13-1-126 ZONING PERMIT.

(a) Zoning Permit Required. No new structure, new use of land, water or air or change in
the use of land, water or air shall hereafter be permitted and no structure or part
thereof shall hereafter be located, erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged,
converted or structurally altered without a zoning permit.

(b) Applications for a zoning permit shall be made to the Zoning Administrator and shall
include the following where pertinent and necessary for proper review:

(1) Names and addresses of the applicant, owner of the site, architect, professional
engineer and contractor.

(2) Description of the subject site by lot, block and recorded subdivision or by metes
and bounds; address of the subject site; type of structure; existing and proposed
operation or use of the structure or site; number of employees; and the zoning

94 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

district within which the subject site lies.

(3) Plat of survey prepared by a land surveyor registered in the State of Wisconsin or
other map drawn to scale and showing such of the following as may be required by
the Zoning Administrator: the location, boundaries, dimensions, uses, and size of the
following: subject site; existing and proposed structures; existing and proposed
easements, streets and other public ways; public utilities; off-street parking, loading
areas and driveways; existing highway access restrictions; high water; channel,
floodway and floodplain boundaries; and existing and proposed street, side and rear
yards.

(4) Additional information as may be required by the Zoning Administrator or the Plan
Commission and Village Board (if involved).

(c) Action.

(1) A zoning permit shall be granted or denied in writing by the Zoning Administrator
within thirty (30) days of application and the applicant shall post such permitin a
conspicuous place at the site.

(2) The permit shall expire within six (6) months unless substantial work has
commenced or within eighteen (18) months after the issuance of the permit if the
structure for which a permit is issued is not substantially completed, in which case of
expiration, the application shall reapply for a zoning permit before commencing
work on the structure.

(3) Any permit issued in conflict with the provisions of this Chapter shall be null and
void.

SEC. 13-1-127 SITE PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES.

Purpose: The purpose of promoting compatible development, stability of property values,
insuring the attractiveness and functional utility of the community as a place to live and work,
preserving the character and quality of the building environment by retaining the integrity of
those areas which has a discernible character, protecting certain public investments in the area,
and raising the level of community expectations for the quality of its environment.

(a) Site Plan Review and Approval. All applications for Zoning or Building Permits for any
construction, reconstruction, expansion or conversion, except for one (1) and two (2)
family residences in Residential Districts, shall require site plan approval by the Plan
Commission in accordance with the requirements of this Section. This review will
include: existing and proposed structures, neighboring uses, utilization of landscaping
and open space, parking areas, driveway locations, loading and unloading, highway
access, traffic generation and circulation, drainage, sewerage and water systems, and
the proposed operation of the use.

(b) Application. The applicant for a zoning permit shall also submit a site plan and sufficient
plans and specifications of proposed buildings, machinery and operations to enable the
Plan Commission or its expert consultants to determine whether the proposed
application meets all the requirements applicable thereto in this Chapter. This includes
the following materials:

(1) Written Use Description: Description of the intended use described in reasonable

95| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

detail, which may include the following: zoning, land use plan designation, current
land uses, proposed land uses, projected use, proposed development, operations,
operations considerations, building materials, other information.

(2) Location Map: A map of the subject property showing all lands for which the use is
proposed, and all other lands within 200 feet of the boundaries of the subject
property.

(3) Scale Site Plan: A site plan of the subject property as proposed for development
drawn to scale.

(4) Detailed Landscape Plan: At the same scale as the site plan, showing the location of
all required setbacks and landscaping areas, proposed landscaping and any proposed
screening.

(5) Grading Plan: At the same scale as the site plan showing existing and proposed
grades, including retaining walls and related devices, and erosion control measures.

(6) Elevation Drawings: Side views of proposed buildings, structures, or proposed
remodeling of existing buildings showing finished exterior treatment shall also be
submitted, with adequate labels provided to clearly depict exterior materials,
texture, color and overall appearance.

(7) Stormwater Management Plans: At the same scale as the site plan, prepare
stormwater runoff and erosion control plans consistent with Village Ordinances.

(c) Administration. The Zoning Administrator shall make a preliminary review of the
application and plans and refer them, along with a report of his findings, to the Plan
Commission within ten (10) days. The Plan Commission shall review the application and
may refer the application and plans to any expert consultants selected by the Village
Board to advise whether the application and plans meet all the requirements applicable
thereto in this Chapter. Within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the application, the
Commission shall authorize the Zoning Administrator to issue or refuse a Zoning Permit.

(d) Requirements. In acting on any site plan, the Plan Commission shall consider the
following:

(1) The appropriateness of the site plan and buildings in relation to the physical
character of the site and the usage of adjoining land areas.

(2) The layout of the site with regard to entrances and exits to public streets; the
arrangement and improvement of interior roadways; the location, adequacy and
improvement of areas for parking and for loading and unloading and shall, in this
connection, satisfy itself that the traffic pattern generated by the proposed
construction or use shall be developed in a manner consistent with the safety of
residents and the community, and the applicant shall so design the construction or
use as to minimize any traffic hazard created thereby.

(3) The adequacy of the proposed water supply, drainage facilities and sanitary and
waste disposal.

(4) The landscaping and appearance of the completed site. The Plan Commission may
require that those portions of all front, rear and side yards not used for off-street
parking shall be attractively planted with trees, shrubs, plants or grass lawns and

that the site be effectively screened so as not to impair the value of adjacent
properties nor impair the intent or purposes of this Section.

9% |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(5) The architectural design, landscaping, control or lighting, and general site
development within the proposed use will result in an attractive and harmonious
area compatible with and not adversely affecting the aesthetics, enjoyment, or
property values of the surrounding neighborhood.

(6) Potential negative impacts on environmentally sensitive areas and other critical
community services (e.g., schools, nursing care, governmental) are prevented or
mitigated. New development, reconstruction, and infrastructure projects should
consider and apply resource conservation techniques and best practices that reduce
energy demand and promote air and water quality improvements.

(e) Effect on Municipal Services. Before granting any site approval, the Plan Commission
may, besides obtaining advice from consultants, secure such advice as may be deemed
necessary from the Village Engineer or other municipal officials, with special attention
to the effect of such approval upon existing municipal services and utilities. Should
additional facilities be needed, the Plan Commission shall forward its recommendations
to the Village Board and shall not issue final approval until the Village Board has entered
into an agreement with the applicant regarding the development of such facilities.

SEC. 13-1-128 VARIANCES.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to provide regulations which enable the Village
to hear and decide requests for permitted variation from the terms of this Chapter as
will not be contrary to the public interest; where owing to special factors, a literal
enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter would result in practical difficulty or
unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of this Chapter shall be observed, public safety
and welfare secured, and substantial justice done; as provided for by Section
62.23(7)(e)(7), Wis. Stats.

(1) For the purposes of this Section, "unnecessary hardship" shall be defined as an
unusual or extreme decrease in the adaptability of the property to the uses
permitted by the zoning district which is caused by facts, such as rough terrain or
good soil conditions, uniquely applicable to the particular piece of property as
distinguished from those applicable to most or all property in the same zoning
district

(b) Initiation of Request. A request for a variance may be made when an aggrieved party
can submit proof that strict adherence to the provisions of this Zoning Code would
cause him undue hardship or create conditions causing greater harmful effects than the
initial condition. A variance granted to a nonconforming use brings that use into
conformance with the district and zoning requirements.

(c) Application for Variance. The application for a variance shall be filed with the Zoning
Administrator, with a fee as established in the Village’s annual fee schedule plus
publication and report costs. Applications may be made by the owner or lessee of the
structure, land or water to be affected. The application shall contain the following
information:

(1) Name and address of applicant and all abutting and opposite property owners of
record.

(2) Statement that the applicant is the owner or the authorized agent of the owner of

97 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

the property.

(3) Address and description of the property.

(4) A site plan showing an accurate depiction of the property.

(5) Additional information required by the Plan Commission, Village Engineer, Board of
Zoning Appeals or Zoning Administrator.

(6) Application fee as set forth in the Village’s annual fee schedule.

(d) Public Hearing of Variance application. Within sixty (60) days of filing of a complete
application, The Board of Appeals shall conduct at least one (1) public hearing on the
proposed variance. Notice of such hearing shall be given not more than thirty (30) days
and not less than ten (10) days before the hearing in one (1) or more of the newspapers
in general circulation in the Village, and shall give due notice to the parties in interest,
the Zoning Administrator and the Plan Commission. At the hearing the appellant or
applicant may appear in person, by agent or by attorney. The Board shall thereafter
reach its decision within thirty (30) days after the final hearing and shall transmit a
written copy of its decision to the appellant or applicant, Zoning Administrator, Plan
Commission and Village Board.

(e) Action of the Board of Appeals. For the Board to grant a variance, it must find that:

(1) Denial of variation may result in hardship to the property owner due to
physiographical consideration. There must be exceptional, extraordinary or unusual
circumstances or conditions applying to the lot or parcel, structure, use or intended
use that do not apply generally to other properties or uses in the same district and
the granting of the variance would not be of so general or recurrent nature as to
suggest that the Zoning Code should be changed.

(2) The conditions upon which a petition for a variance is based are unique to the
property for which variance is being sought and that such variance is necessary for
the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights possessed by other
properties in the same district and same vicinity.

(3) The purpose of the variance is not based exclusively upon a desire to increase the
value or income potential of the property.

(4) The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious
to the other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is
located.

(5) The proposed variance will not undermine the spirit and general and specific
purposes of the Zoning Code.

(f) Conditions. The Board of Appeals may impose such conditions and restrictions upon the
premises benefitted by a variance as may be necessary to comply with the standards
established in this Section.

(g) Effect of Denial. No application for a variance which has been denied (either wholly or
in part) shall be resubmitted for a period of 365 days from the date of said order of
denial, except on grounds of new evidence or material change of circumstances found
valid by the Zoning Administrator, or designee.

(h) Review by Court of Record. Any person or persons aggrieved by any decision of the
Board of Appeals may present to a court of record a petition, duly verified, setting forth
that such decision is illegal and specifying the grounds of the illegality. Such petition

98| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

shall be presented to the court within thirty (30) days after the filing of the decision in
the offices of the Board of Appeals.

SEC. 13-1-129 APPEALS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS.

(a) Scope of Appeals. Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be taken by any person
aggrieved or by any officer, department, board or bureau of the Village affected by any
decision of the administrative officer. Such appeal shall be taken within reasonable
thirty (30) days of the alleged grievance or judgment in question by filing with the
officer(s) from whom the appeal is taken and with the Board of appeals a notice of
appeal specifying the grounds thereof, together with payment of a filing fee as may be
established by the Village Board. The officer(s) from whom the appeal is taken shall
forthwith transmit to the Board of Appeals all papers constituting the record of appeals
upon which the action appeals from was taken.

(b) Stay of Proceedings. An appeal shall stay all legal proceedings in furtherance of the
action appealed from, unless the officer from whom the appeal is taken certified to the
Board of Appeals that, by reason of facts stated in the certificate, a stay would, in his
opinion, cause immediate peril to life or property. In such cases, proceedings shall not
be stayed otherwise than by a restraining order which may be granted by the Board of
Appeals or by a court of record on application, on notice to the officer from whom the
appeal is taken and on due cause shown.

(c) Hearing on Appeals. Within 60 days after the filing of a complete application the Board
of Appeals shall fix a reasonable time for a public hearing, cause notice thereof to be
published in the official newspaper not less than seven (7) days prior thereto, cause
notice to be given to the appellant or applicant and the administrative officer(s)
appealed from by regular mail or by personal service not less than five (5) days prior to
the date of hearing. In every case involving a variance, notice shall also be mailed not
less than five (5) days prior to the hearing of the fee owners of records of all land within
one hundred (100) feet of any part of the subject building or premises involved in the
appeal.

(d) Decision of the Board of Appeals.

(1) Timeframe. The Board of Appeals shall decide all appeals and applications within
thirty (30) days after the public hearing and shall transmit a signed copy of the
Board's decision to the appellant or applicant and the Zoning Administrator.

(2) Conditions. Conditions may be placed upon any zoning permit ordered or authorized
by this Board.

(3) Validity. Variances, substitutions or use permits granted by the Board shall expire
within six (6) months unless substantial work has commenced pursuant to such
grant.

(e) Effect of Denial. No application for an appeal which has been denied (either wholly or in
part) shall be resubmitted for a period of 365 days from the date of said order of denial,
except on grounds of new evidence or material change of circumstances found valid by
the Zoning Administrator, or designee.

SEC. 13-1-130 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.

9 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(a) Violations. It shall be unlawful to use or improve any structure or land, or to use water
or air in violation of any of the provisions of this Chapter. In case of any violation, the
Village Board, the Zoning Administrator, the Plan Commission or any property owner
who would be specifically damaged by such violation may cause appropriate action or
proceeding to be instituted to enjoin a violation of this Chapter or cause a structure to
be vacated or removed.

(b) Remedial Action. Whenever an order of the Zoning Administrator has not been
complied with within thirty (30) days after written notice has been mailed to the owner,
resident agent or occupant of the premises, the Village Board, the Zoning Administrator
or the Village Attorney may institute appropriate legal action or proceedings.

(c) Penalties. Any person, firm or corporation who fails to comply with the provisions of this
Chapter or any order of the Zoning Administrator issued in accordance with this Chapter
or resists enforcement shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a forfeiture and such
additional penalties as provided for in this Code of Ordinances.

SEC. 13-1-131 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-139 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

100 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE K
DEFINITIONS

SEC. 13-1-140 DEFINITIONS.

(a) For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall be used, unless a
different definition is specifically provided for a section. Words used in the present
tense include the future; the singular number includes the plural number; and the plural
number includes the singular number. The word "shall" is mandatory and not
permissive.

(1) Abutting. Have a common property line or district line.

(2) Accessory Use or Structure. A use or detached structure subordinate to the principal
use of a structure, parcel of land or water and located on the same lot or parcel
serving a purpose incidental to the principal use or the principal structure.

(3) Acre, Net. The actual land devoted to the land use, excluding public streets, public
lands or unusable lands, and school sites contained within 43,560 square feet.

(4) Adult Book Store. An establishment having as a predominant portion of its stock in
trade, books, magazines and other periodicals, or video cassettes, which are
distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matter depicting, describing or
relating to "Specified Sexual Activities" (as defined herein) or "Specified Anatomical
Areas" (as defined herein).

(5) Adult Entertainment Establishment. An establishment having as a predominant
portion of its business live acts, demonstrations, dances or exhibitions which are
distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matter depicting, describing or
relating to "Specified Sexual Activities" (as defined herein) or "Specified Anatomical
Areas" (as defined herein).

(6) Adult Motion Picture Theater. An enclosed building which is significantly or
substantially used for presenting motion picture films, video cassettes, cable
television, or any other such visual media, which are distinguished or characterized
by their emphasis on matter depicting, describing or relating to "Specified Sexual
Activities" (as defined herein) or "Specified Anatomical Areas" (as defined herein).

(7) Agricultural use. Any agricultural activity or use conducted for the purpose of
producing an income or livelihood such as: crop or forage production, keeping
livestock, beekeeping, nursery, sod, or Christmas tree production, floriculture,
aquaculture, fur farming, forest management, enrolling in a federal agricultural
commodity payment program or a federal or state agricultural land conservation
payment program or any other activity or use permitted under Chapter 91 or
identified by rule of the Wisconsin DATCP.

(8) Alley. A public way not more than twenty-one (21) feet wide which affords only a
secondary means of access to abutting property.

(9) Apartment. A room or suite of rooms in a multiple-family structure which is
arranged, designed, used or intended to be used as a single housekeeping unit.
Complete kitchen facilities, permanently installed, must always be included for each
apartment.

101 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(10) Arterial Street. A public street or highway used or intended to be used primarily for
large volume or heavy through traffic. Arterial streets shall include freeways and
expressways as well as arterial streets, highways and parkways.

(11) A Zones. Areas of potential flooding shown on the Village's "Flood Insurance Rate
Map" which would be inundated by the regional flood as defined herein. These
zones may be numbered as AO, Al to A99, or be unnumbered A Zones. The A Zones
may or may not be reflective of flood profiles, depending on the availability of data
for a given area.

(12) Basement. That portion of any structure located partly below the average
adjoining lot grade which is not designed or used primarily for year-around living
accommodations. Space partly below grade which is designed and finished as
habitable space is not defined as basement space.

(13) Bed and Breakfast Establishment: any place of lodging that provides four (4) or
fewer rooms for rent for more than ten (10) nights in a twelve (12) month period, is
the owner's personal residence, is occupied by the owner at the time of rental and in
which the only meal served to guests is breakfast.

(14) Block. A tract of land bounded by streets or by a combination of streets and public
parks or other recognized lines of demarcation.

(15) Boarding House. A building other than a hotel or restaurant where meals or lodging
are regularly furnished by prearrangement for compensation for three (3) or more
persons not members of a family, but not exceeding twelve (12) persons and not
open to transient customers.

(16) Bailable Lot Area. The portion of a lot remaining after required yards have been
provided.

(17) Building. Any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls used or
intended to be used for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, equipment,
machinery or materials. When a building is divided into separate parts by unpierced
walls extending from the ground up, each part shall be deemed a separate building.

(18) Building, Detached. A building surrounded by open space on the same lot.

(19) Building, Heights of. The vertical distance from the average curb level in front of
the lot or the finished grade at the building line, whichever is higher, to the highest
point of the coping of a flat roof, to the deck line of a mansard roof or to the average
height of the highest gable of a gambrel, hip or pitch roof.

(20) Building Setback Line. A line parallel to the lot line at a distance parallel to it,
regulated by the yard requirements set up in this Code.

(21) Building, Principal. A building in which the principal use of the lot on which it is
located is conducted.

(22) Business. An occupation, employment or enterprise which occupies time, labor and
materials, or wherein merchandise is exhibited or sold, or where services are
offered.

(23) Camping Ground. A parcel of land used or intended to be used, let or rented or
occupancy by campers or for occupancy by or of trailers, tents or movable or
temporary dwellings, rooms or sleeping quarters of any kind.

(24) Camping Unit: Any portable device, no more than 400 square feet in area, used as

102 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

a temporary shelter including, but not limited to, a camping trailer, motor home,
bus, van, pick-up truck or tent, that is fully licensed if required, and ready for
highway use.

(25) Channel. Those floodlands normally occupied by a stream of water under average
annual high-water flow conditions while confined within generally well-established
banks.

(26) Community Living Arrangement. The following facilities licensed or operated or
permitted under the authority of the Wisconsin State Statutes: Child welfare
agencies under Section 48.60, group foster homes for children under Section
48.02(7m) and community-based residential facilities under Section 50.01, but does
not include day care centers, nursing homes, general hospitals, special hospitals,
prisons and jails. The establishment of a community living arrangement shall be in
conformance with applicable Sections of the Wisconsin State Statutes, including
Sections 46.03(22),

(27) 69.97(15), 62.23(7)(i) and 62.23(7a), and amendments thereto, and also the
Wisconsin Administrative Code.

(28) Conditional Uses. Uses of a special nature as to make impractical their
predetermination as a principal use in a district.

(29) Controlled Access Arterial Street. The condition in which the right of owners or
occupants of abutting land or other persons to access, light, air or view in
connection with an arterial street is fully or partially controlled by public authority.

(30) Corner Lot. On corner lots, the setback shall be measured from the street right-of-
way line on which the lot fronts. The setback from the side street shall be equal to
seventy-five percent (75%) of the setback required on residences fronting on the
side street but the side yard setback shall in no case restrict the buildable width to
less than thirty (30) feet. Said corner lots shall be consisting of a parcel of property
abutting on two (2) or more streets at their intersection providing that the interior
angle of such intersection is less than one hundred thirty-five degrees (135°).

(31) Conservation Standards. Guidelines and specifications for soil and water
conservation practices and management enumerated in the Technical Guide,
prepared by the USDA Soil Conservation Service for Barron and Polk Counties,
adopted by the County Soil and Water Conservation District Supervisors, and
containing suitable alternatives for the use and treatment of land based upon its
capabilities from which the landowner selects that alternative which best meets his
needs in developing his soil and water conservation.

(32) Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate,
including but not limited to construction of or additions or substantial improvements
to buildings, other structures, or accessory uses, mining, dredging, filling, grading,
paving, excavation or drilling operations or disposition of materials.

(33) District, Basic. A part or parts of the Village for which the regulations of this Chapter
governing the use and location of land and building are uniform.

(34) District, Overlay. Overlay districts, also referred to herein as regulatory areas,
provide for the possibility of superimposing certain additional requirements upon a
basic zoning district without disturbing the requirements of the basic district. In the

103 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

instance of conflicting requirements, the more strict of the conflicting requirements
shall apply.

(35) Dwelling. A building designed or used exclusively as a residence or sleeping place,
but does not include boarding or lodging houses, motels, hotels, tents, cabins or
mobile homes.

(36) Dwelling Unit. A group of rooms constituting all or part of a dwelling, which are
arranged, designed, used or intended for use exclusively as living quarters for one
(2) family.

(37) Dwelling, Efficiency. A dwelling unit consisting of one (1) principal room with no
separate sleeping rooms.

(38) Dwelling, Single-Family. A detached building designed for or occupied by one (1)
family.

(39) Dwelling, Two-Family. A detached building containing two (2) separate dwelling (or
living) units, designed for occupancy by not more than two (2) families.

(40) Dwelling, Multiple-Family. A residential building designed for or occupied by three
(3) or more families, with the number of families in residence not to exceed the
number of dwelling units provided.

(41) Equal Degree of Hydraulic Encroachment. The effect of any encroachment into the
floodway is to be computed by assuming an equal degree of hydraulic
encroachment on the opposite side of a river or stream for a significant hydraulic
reach, in order to compute the effect of the encroachment upon hydraulic
conveyance. This computation assures that the property owners up, down or across
the river or stream will have the same rights of hydraulic encroachment.

(42) Essential Services. Services provided by public and private utilities, necessary for
the exercise of the principal use or service of the principal structure. These services
include underground, surface or overhead gas, electrical, steam, water, sanitary
sewerage, storm water drainage, and communication systems and accessories
thereto, such as poles, towers, wires, mains, drains, vaults, culverts, laterals, sewers,
pipes, catch basins, water storage tanks, conduits, cables, fire alarm boxes, police
call boxes, traffic signals, pumps, lift stations and hydrants, but not including
buildings.

(43) Family. One (1) or more persons immediately related by blood, marriage or
adoption and living as a single housekeeping unit in one (1) dwelling unit shall
constitute a family. A family may include in addition thereto two (2) but not more
than two (2) persons not related by blood, marriage or adoption. A person shall be
considered to be related for the purpose of this Section if he is dwelling for the
purpose of adoption or for a foster care program.

(44) Exceptions: Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit, under the definition of "Family,’
priests, lay brothers, nurses or such other collective body of persons living either in
one (1) house under the same management and care, subsisting in common, and
directing their attention to a common object or the promotion of their mutual
interest and social happiness as set forth by the Wisconsin Supreme Court in
Missionaries of Our Lady of LaSallette vs. Village of Whitefish Board of Zoning
Appeals, 267 Wis. 609, which is hereby incorporated by reference.

104 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(45) Farmstead. A single-family residential structure located on a parcel of land, which
primary land use is associated with agriculture.

(46) Flood. A temporary rise in streamflow or stage in lake level that results in water
overtopping the banks and inundating the areas adjacent to the steam channel or
lake bed.

(47) Flood Insurance Study. An examination, evaluation and determination of flood
hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations; or an
examination, evaluation and determination of mudslide (i.e., mud flow) and/or
floor-related erosion hazards. Such studies shall result in the publication of a Flood
Insurance Rate Map showing the intensity of flood hazards in either numbered or
unnumbered A Zones.

(48) Flood Profile. A graph showing the relationship of the floodwater surface elevation
of a flood event of a specified recurrence interval to the stream bed and other
significant natural and man-made features along a stream.

(49) Flood Protection Elevation. A point two (2) feet above the water surface elevation
of the 100-year recurrence interval flood. This safety factor, also called "freeboard,"
is intended to compensate for the many unknown factors that contribute to flood
heights greater than those computed. Such unknown factors may include ice jams,
debris accumulation, wave action and obstructions of bridge openings.

(50) Flood Stage. The elevation of the floodwater surface above an officially established
datum plane, which is Mean Sea Level, 1929 Adjustment, on the Supplementary
Floodland Zoning Map.

(51) Floodlands. For the purpose of this Code, the floodlands are all lands contained in
the "regional flood" or 100-year recurrence interval flood. For the purpose of zoning
regulation, the floodlands are divided into the floodway district, the floodplain
conservancy district and the floodplain fringe overlay district.

(52) Floodplain Fringe. Those floodlands, outside the floodway, subject to inundation by
the 100-year recurrence interval flood. For the purpose of this Code, the floodplain
fringe includes the floodplain conservancy district and the floodplain fringe overlay
district.

(53) Floodproofing. Measures designed to prevent and reduce flood damage for those
uses which cannot be removed from, or which, of necessity, must be erected in the
floodplain, ranging from structural modifications through installation of special
equipment or materials, to operation and management safeguards, such as the
following: reinforcing the basement walls; underpinning of floors; permanent sealing
of all exterior openings; use of masonry construction; erection of permanent
watertight bulkheads, shutters and doors; treatment of exposed timbers; elevation
of flood-vulnerable utilities; use of waterproof cement; adequate fuse protection;
sealing of basement walls; installation of sump pumps; placement of automatic
swing check valves; installation of seal-tight windows and doors; installation of wire
reinforced glass; location and elevation of valuable items; waterproofing,
disconnecting, elevation or removal of all electric equipment; avoidance of the use
of flood-vulnerable areas; temporary removal of waterproofing of merchandise;
operation of emergency pump equipment; closing of backwater sewer valve;

105 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

placement of plugs and food drain pipes; placement of movable watertight
bulkheads; erection of sand bag levees; and the shoring of weak walls or structures.
Floodproofing of structures shall be extended at least to a point two (2) feet above
the elevation of the regional flood. Any structure that is located entirely or partially
below the flood protection elevation shall be anchored to protect it from larger
floods.

(54) Floodway. A designated portion of the 100-year flood area that will safely convey
the regulatory flood discharge with small, acceptable upstream and downstream
stage increases, limited in Wisconsin to 0.1 foot unless special legal measures are
provided. The floodway, which includes the channel, is that portion of the floodplain
not suited for human habitation. All fill, structures and other development that
would impair floodwater conveyance by adversely increasing flood stages or
velocities or would itself be subject to flood damage should be prohibited in the
floodway.

(55) Floor Area -- Business and Manufacturing Buildings. For the purpose of determining
off-street parking and off-street loading requirements, the sum of the gross
horizontal areas of the floors of the building, or portion thereof, devoted to a use
requiring off-street parking or loading. This area shall include accessory storage
areas located within selling or working space occupied by counters, racks or closets
and any basement floor area devoted to retailing activities, to the production or
processing of goods, or to business or professional offices. However, floor area, for
the purposes of determining off-street parking spaces, shall not include floor area
devoted primarily to storage purposes except as otherwise noted herein.

(56) Foster Family Home. The primary domicile of a foster parent which is four (4) or
fewer foster children and which is licensed under Section 48.62 of the Wisconsin
State Statutes and amendments thereto.

(57) Frontage. All the property butting on one (1) side of a street between two (2)
intersecting streets or all of the property abutting on one (1) side of a street
between an intersecting street and the dead end of a street.

(58) Garage -- Private. A detached accessory building or portion of the principal building
designed, arranged, used or intended to be used for storage of automobiles of the
occupant of the premises.

(59) Garage -- Public. Any building or portion thereof, not accessory to a residential
building or structure, used for equipping, servicing, repairing, leasing or public
parking of motor vehicles.

(60) Group Foster Home. Any facility operated by a person required to be licensed by
the State of Wisconsin under State Statute Section 48.62 for the care and
maintenance of five (5) to eight (8) foster children.

(61) Home Occupation. An occupation, profession or trade conducted on a regular basis
within or from an approved residential dwelling and/or accessory buildings (if
permitted) by one or more occupants residing in the dwelling that is clearly
incidental and subordinate to the primary or principal use of the dwelling and
property.

(62) Hotel. A building in which lodging, with or without meals, is offered to transient

106 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

guests for compensation and in which there are more than five (5) sleeping rooms
with no cooking facilities in any individual room or apartment.

(63) Loading Area. A completely off-street space or berth on the same lot for the loading
or unloading of freight earners, having adequate ingress and egress to a public street
or alley.

(64) Lodging House. A building where lodging only is provided for compensation for not
more than three (3) persons not members of the family.

(65) Lot. A parcel of land having frontage on a public street, or other officially approved
means of access, occupied or intended to be occupied by a principal structure or use
and sufficient in size to meet the lot width, lot frontage, lot area and other open
space provisions of this Code as pertaining to the district wherein located.

(66) Lot, Corner. A lot abutting two (2) or more streets at their intersection provided
that the corner of such intersection shall have an angle of one hundred thirty-five
degrees (135°) or less, measured on the lot side.

(67) Lot, Interior. A lot situated on a single street which is bounded by adjacent lots
along each of its other lines and is not a corner lot.

(68) Lot, Through. A lot which has a pair of opposite lot lines along two (2) substantially
parallel streets and which is not a corner lot. On a through lot, both street lines shall
be deemed front lot lines.

(69) Lot, Substandard. A parcel of land held in separate ownership having frontage on a
public street, or other approved means of access, occupied or intended to be
occupied by a principal building or structure, together with accessory buildings and
uses, having insufficient size to meet the lot width, lot area, yard, off-street parking
areas or other open space provisions of this Code as pertaining to the district
wherein located.

(70) Lot Coverage (residential). The area of a lot occupied by the principal building or
buildings and accessory building.

(71) Lot Coverage (except residential). The area of a lot occupied by the principal
building or buildings and accessory buildings including any driveways, parking areas,
loading areas, storage areas and walkways.

(72) Lot Line. A property boundary line of any lot held in single or separate ownership,
except that where any portion of the lot extends into the abutting street or alley,
the lot line shall be deemed to be the abutting street or alley right-of-way line.

(73) Lot Lines and Area. The peripheral boundaries of a parcel of land and the total area
lying within such boundaries.

(74) Lot Width. The horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured at the
building setback line.

(75) Minor Structures. Any small, movable accessory erection or construction such as
birdhouses, tool houses, pet houses, play equipment, arbors and walls and fences
under four (4) feet in height.

(76) Mobile Home. A manufactured home that is HUD certified and labeled under the
National Mobile Home Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974. A mobile
home is a transportable structure, being eight (8) feet or more in width (not
including the overhang of the roof), built on a chassis and designed to be used as a

107 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

dwelling with or without permanent foundation when connected to the required
utilities.

(77) Mobile Home Lot. A parcel of land for the placement of a single mobile home and
the exclusive use of its occupants.

(78) Mobile Home Park. A parcel of land which has been developed for the placement of
mobile homes and is owned by an individual, a firm, trust, partnership, public or
private association, or corporation. Individual lots within a mobile home park are
rented to individual mobile home users.

(79) Mobile Home Subdivision. A land subdivision, as defined by Chapter 236 of the
Wisconsin Statutes and any Village Land Division Ordinance, with lots intended for
the placement of individual mobile home units. Individual homesites are in separate
ownership as opposed to the rental arrangements in mobile home parks.

(80) Modular Unit. A modular unit is a factor fabricated transportable building unit
designed to be used by itself or to be incorporated with similar units at a building
site into a modular structure to be used for residential, commercial, educational or
industrial purposes.

(81) Nonconforming Uses. Any structure, use of land, use of land and structure in
combination or characteristic of use (such as yard requirement or lot size) which was
existing at the time of the effective date of this Code or amendments thereto and
which is not in conformance with this Code. Any such structure conforming in
respect to use but not in respect to frontage, width, height, area, yard, parking,
loading or distance requirements shall not be considered a nonconforming use, but
shall be considered nonconforming with respect to those characteristics.

(82) Official Letter of Map Amendment. Official notification from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) that a Flood Hazard Boundary Map or Flood Insurance
Rate Map has been amended.

(83) Parking Lot. A structure or premises containing five (5) or more parking spaces open
to the public.

(84) Parking Space. A graded and surfaced area of not less than one hundred eighty
(180) square feet in area, either enclosed or open, for the parking of a motor
vehicle, having adequate ingress and egress to a public street or alley.

(85) Parties in Interest. Includes all abutting property owners, all property owners within
one hundred (100) feet, and all property owners of opposite frontages.

(86) Principal Use: The primary purposes for which a lot or parcel is used.

(87) Professional Office. The office of a doctor, practitioner, dentist, minister, architect,
landscape architect, engineer, lawyer, author, musician or other recognized trade.
When established in a residential district, a professional office shall be incidental to
the residential occupation, not more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the floor
area of one (1) story of a dwelling unit shall be occupied by such office and only one
(1) unlighted nameplate, not exceeding one (1) square foot in area, containing the
name and profession of the occupant of the premises shall be exhibited.

(88) Public Airport. Any airport which complies with the definition contained in Section
114.013(3), Wisconsin Statutes, or any airport which serves or offers to serve
common carriers engaged in air transport.

108 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(89) Rear Yard. A yard extending across the full width of the lot, the depth of which shall
be the minimum horizontal distance between the rear lot line and a line parallel
thereto through the nearest point of the principal structure. This yard shall be
opposite the street yard or one (1) of the street yards on a corner lot.

(90) Regional Flood. This regional flood is a flood determined to be representative of
large floods known to have generally occurred in Wisconsin and which may be
expected to occur on a particular stream because of like physical characteristics. The
flood frequency of the regional flood is once in every one hundred (100) years; this
means that in any given year, there is a one percent (1%) chance that the regional
flood may occur or be exceeded. During a typical thirty (30) year mortgage period,
the regional flood has a twenty-six percent (26%) chance of occurrence.

(91) Retail. The sale of goods or merchandise in small quantities to the consumer.

(92) Setback. The minimum horizontal distance between the front lot line and the
nearest point of the foundation of that portion of the building to be enclosed. The
overhang cornices shall not exceed twenty-four (24) inches. Any overhang of the
cornice in excess of twenty-four (24) inches shall be compensated by increasing the
setback by an amount equal to the excess of cornice over twenty-four (24) inches.
Uncovered steps shall not be included in measuring the setback.

(93) Side Yard. A yard extending from the street yard to the rear yard of the lot, the
width of which shall be the minimum horizontal distance between the side lot line
and a line parallel thereto through the nearest point of the principal structure.

(94) Signs. Any medium, including its structure, words, letters, figures, numerals,
phrases, sentences, emblems, devices, designs, trade names or trademarks by which
anything is made known and which are used to advertise or promote an individual,
firm, association, corporation, profession, business, commodity or product and
which is visible from any public street or highway.

(95) Specified Anatomical Areas. Less than completely and opaquely covered human
genitals, pubic region, buttock, perineum, anal region or female breast at or below
the areola or human male genitals in a discernable turgid state even if completely
and opaquely covered.

(96) Specified Sexual Activities.

a. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal; or

b.  Acts of human masturbation, sexual intercourse or sodomy; or

c.  Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttock,
perineum, anal region or the female breast.

(97) Story. That portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the
surface of the next floor above it, or if there is no floor above it, then the space
between the floor and the ceiling next above it. Any portion of a story exceeding
fourteen (14) feet in height shall be considered as an additional story for each
fourteen (14) feet or fraction thereof. A basement having one-half (%) or more of its
height above grade shall be deemed a story for purposes of height regulation.

(98) Story, Half. That portion of a building under a gable, hip or mansard roof, the wall
plates of which, on at least two (2) opposite exterior walls, are not more than four
and one-half (4-1/2) feet above the finished floor of such story. In the case of one (1)

109 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

family dwellings, two (2) family dwellings and multi-family dwellings less than three
(3) stories in height, a half (}4) story in a sloping roof shall not be counted as a story
for the purposes of this Code.

(99) Street. Property other than an alley or private thoroughfare or travelway which is
subject to public easement or right-of-way for use as a thoroughfare and which is
twenty-one (21) feet or more in width.

(100) Street Yard. A yard extending across the full width of the lot, the depot of which
shall be the minimum horizontal distance between the existing street or highway
right-of-way line and a line parallel thereto through the nearest point of the
principal structure. Corner lots shall have two (2) street yards.

(101) Structure. Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a
permanent location on the ground or attached to something having a permanent
location on the ground.

(102) Structural Alterations. Any change in the supporting members of a structure, such
as foundations, bearing walls, columns, beams or girders.

(103) Substantial Evidence: means facts and information, other than merely personal
preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements and conditions
an applicant must meet to obtain a conditional use and that reasonable persons
would accept in support of a conclusion.

(104) Temporary Structure. A movable structure not designed for human occupancy
nor for the protection of goods or chattels and not forming an enclosure, such as
billboards.

(105) Tiny House: A Single-Family Dwelling that is 400 square feet or less in Floor Area,
excluding Lofts.

(106) Tiny House on Wheels: A Tiny Housing that is mounted on a wheeled trailer
chassis.

(107) Use. The purpose or activity for which the land or building thereof is designed,
arranged or intended, or for which it is occupied or maintained.

(108) Use, Accessory. A subordinate building or use which is located on the same lot on
which the principal building or use is situated and which is reasonably necessary and
incidental to the conduct of the primary use of such building or main use, when
permitted by district regulations.

(109) Use, Principal. The main use of land or building as distinguished from subordinate
or accessory use.

(110) Utilities. Public and private facilities, such as water wells, water and sewage
pumping stations, water storage tanks, electrical power substations, static
transformer stations, telephone and telegraph exchanges, microwave radio relays
and gas regulation stations, inclusive of associated transmission facilities, but not
including sewage disposal plants, municipal incinerators, warehouses, shops, storage
yards and power plants.

(111) Vision Clearance. An unoccupied triangular space at the street corner of a corner
lot which is bounded by the street lines and a setback line connecting points
specified by measurement from the corner on each street line.

(112) Yard. An open space on the same lot with a structure, unoccupied and

110 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

unobstructed from the ground upward except the vegetation. The street and rear
yards extend the full width of the lot.

(113) Zero Lot Line. The concept whereby two (2) respective dwelling units within a
building shall be on separate and abutting lots and shall meet on the common
property line between them, thereby having zero space between said units.

(114) Zoning Permit. A permit issued by the Zoning Administrator to certify that the use
of lands, structures, air and waters subject to this Chapter are or shall be used in
accordance with the provisions of said Chapter.

SEC. 13-1-141 MOBILE HOME DEFINITIONS.

(a) For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall be used specific to
Section 13-1-27 and Article E, unless a different definition is specifically provided for a
section. Words used in the present tense include the future; the singular number
includes the plural number; and the plural number includes the singular number. The
word "shall" is mandatory and not permissive.

(1) Complete Bathroom Facilities. A flush toilet, lavatory, bath and kitchen sink.

(2) Foundation Siding. A fire and weather resistant, pre-finished material surrounding
the entire perimeter of a home and completely enclosing a space between the
exterior wall of such home and the ground. Foundation siding shall be properly
vented, harmonious, and compatible with the house and installed within sixty (60)
days from the date of placement on site.

(3) Licensee. Any person, firm or corporation licensed to operate and maintain a mobile
home park under this Article.

(4) Mobile Home Communities (Parks). Mobile home communities/parks are
distinguished from subdivisions lacking common facilities and continuing
management services. The latter would be controlled by general subdivision
regulations, which would apply also to mobile home subdivisions without common
open space or continuing management.

(5) Mobile Home on Tiny Home Neighborhood. A plot or plots of ground upon which
two (2) or more units, occupied for dwelling or sleeping purposes are located,
regardless of whether or not a charge is made for such accommodations. As used in
this Article mobile home park is limited to plots on which are located two (2) or
more nondependent mobile homes.

(6) Mobile Home Stand. That part of an individual space which has been reserved and
improved for the placement of one mobile home unit.

(7) Mobile Home or Tiny Home Subdivision. A parcel of land platted for subdivision
according to all requirements of the comprehensive plan, designed or intended for
lots to be conveyed by deed to individual owners for residential occupancy primarily
by mobile homes.

(8) Nondependent Mobile Home. A mobile home equipped with complete bath and
toilet facilities, all furniture, cooking, heating, appliances and complete year-round
facilities.

(9) Occupied Area. That portion of an individual mobile home space which is covered by
a mobile home and its accessory structures.

111 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(10) Person. Any natural individual, firm, trust, partnership, association or corporation.

(12) Primary Exposure. Open areas adjacent to the front wall (or main entrance) of a
dwelling unit.

(12) Residential Mobile Home. A single-family dwelling built on or after October 1, 1974,
in accordance with the ANSI Code (American National Standards Institute) or in
accordance with the HUD Code (Housing & Urban Development), both of which
govern the heating and cooling systems, electrical systems, fire safety, body and
frame construction, thermal protections and plumbing systems. All said homes shall
bear the proper approved Wisconsin insignia as required by the Wisconsin
Administrative Code, ILHR 20.12-20.17. "Mobile home" also means a dwelling which
is, or was as originally constructed, designed to be transported by any motor vehicle
upon a public highway and designed, equipped and used primarily for sleeping,
eating and living quarters, or is intended to be so used; and includes any additions,
attachments, annexes, foundations and appurtenances, except that a mobile home
is not deemed a mobile home if the assessable value of such additions, attachments,
annexes, foundations and appurtenances equals or exceed fifty percent (50%) of the
assessable value of the mobile home. The term "mobile home" shall not include a
factory-built structure meeting the following requirements:

a. Intended to be set on a foundation by virtue of its construction.

b. Which is normally transported only once, from the factory to the
construction site.

c. Which, from its very beginning, is designed to be permanently affixed to
land.

(13) Secondary Exposure. Open areas adjacent to side and rear walls of a dwelling unit.

(14) Space. A plot of ground within a mobile home park, designed for the
accommodation of one mobile home unit.

(15) Statutory Definitions. In addition to the above definitions, definitions contained in
Section 66.058 of the Wisconsin Statutes shall also be applicable.

SEC. 13-1-142 LARGE LIVESTOCK DEFINITIONS.

(a) For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall be used specific to
Section 13-1-29 and Section 13-1-125(p), related to Large Livestock Facilities. Words
used in the present tense include the future; the singular number includes the plural
number; and the plural number includes the singular number. The word "shall" is
mandatory and not permissive.

(1) Adjacent: located on land parcels that touch each other, or on land parcels that are
separated only by a river, stream, or transportation or utility right-of-way.

(2) Animal Unit: Has the meaning that was given in s. NR 243.03(3) as of April 27, 2004.

(3) Expanded Livestock Facility: The entire livestock facility that is created by the
expansion, after May 1, 2006. “Expanded livestock facility” includes all livestock
structures in the expanded facility, regardless of whether those structures are new,
existing or altered.

(4) Expansion: An increase in the largest number of animal units kept at a livestock
facility on at least 90 days in any 12-month period. The acquisition of an existing

112 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

livestock facility, by the operator of an adjacent livestock facility, does not constitute
an “expansion” unless that operator increases the largest number of animal units
kept at the combined livestock facilities on at least 90 days in any 12-month period.

(5) Livestock: Domestic animals traditionally used in this state in the production of food,
fiber or other animal products. “Livestock” includes cattle, swine, poultry, sheep
and goats. “Livestock” does not include equine animals, farm-raised deer, fish,
captive game birds, ratites, camelids or mink.

(6) Livestock facility: A feedlot, dairy farm or other operation where livestock area of
will be fed, confined, maintained or stabled for a total of 45 days or more in any 12-
month period. A “livestock facility” includes all of the tax parcels of land on which
the facility is located but does not include a pasture or winter grazing area. Related
livestock facilities are collectively treated as a single “livestock facility” for purposes
of this chapter, except that an operator may elect to treat a separate species facility
as a separate “livestock facility.”

(7) Livestock structure: A building or other structure used to house or feed livestock, to
confine livestock for milking, to confine livestock for feeding other than grazing, to
store livestock feed, or to collect or store waste generated at a livestock facility.
“Livestock structure” includes a barn, milking parlor, feed storage facility, feeding
facility, animal lot or waste storage facility. “Livestock structure” does not include a
pasture or winter grazing area, a fence surrounding a pasture or winter grazing are,
a livestock watering or feeding facility in a pasture or winter grazing area, or a
machine shed or like facility that is not used for livestock.

(8) New livestock facility: A livestock facility that will be used as a livestock facility for
the first time, or for the first time in at least 5 years. “New livestock facility” does
not include an expanded livestock facility if any portion of that facility has been used
as a livestock facility in the preceding 5 years.

(9) Operator: A person who applied for or holds a local approval for a livestock facility.

(10)  Property line: A line that separates parcels of land owned by different persons.

(11) Roadside Stand: A building or part of a building no more than 500 square feet
used for the retail sale of agricultural and related incidental products, excluding
livestock, produced on the farm where the stand is located.

(12) Waste: Manure, milking center waste and other organic waste generated by a
livestock facility.

(13) Waste storage structure: A waste storage impoundment made by constructing
embankments, excavating a pit or dugout, or fabricating a structure. “Waste storage
structure” does not include equipment used to apply waste to land. For purposes of
ss. ATCP 51.12(2) and 51.14, “waste storage structure” does not include any of the
following:

a. Astructure used to collect and store waste under a livestock housing facility.
b. A manure digester consisting of a sealed structure in which manure is
subjected to managed biological decomposition.

113 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-1-143 SIGN DEFINITIONS.

(a) For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall be used specific to
Article H, Signs. Words used in the present tense include the future; the singular
number includes the plural number; and the plural number includes the singular
number. The word "shall" is mandatory and not permissive.

(1) Abandoned Sign: A sign which is in disrepair or which no longer identifies a bonafide
business or current service, owner, product, or activity carried out on or off of the
premises upon which the sign is located or whose message is for an event whose
time has passed or whose object or subject no longer exist or for which sign the
owner cannot be located. It shall also include any sign which no longer supports or
contains the medium of communication for which it was designated.

(2) Awning Sign: A non-illuminated sign painted on or attached to a fabric or vinyl cover
on a rigid frame which is affixed as a projection from or extension of a building or
other structure, erected in such a manner as to provide shelter or cover over the
approach to the entrance of any building or other structure or place of assembly.
Awning signs shall contain only the names of businesses, logos and address and no
other or further information or message.

(3) Banner: Any sign of lightweight fabric or similar material that is mounted to a pole or
a building at one or more edges. National flags, state, or municipal flags or the
official flag of any institution or business shall not be considered a banner.

(4) Billboard: An outdoor advertising sign which directs attention to a business, product,
service, activity, or solicits patronage of a business not conducted upon or offered
on the premises where the sign is located.

(5) Business Sign: A sign which directs attention to a business, profession, service, or
entertainment sold from or offered upon the premises where such sign is located,
which contains no other or further messages.

(6) Changeable Copy Sign: A manual, electronic sign, or electronic time or temperature
sign, or reader board whose message is electronically or mechanically changed.

(7) Commercial Message: Any message advertising a particular business or identifying
goods, services, recreational activities, or other public or private services made
available to the public at large.

(8) Display Face: The entire surface area of a sign upon which information copy can be
placed. Display face shall not be interpreted to include the super structure or
supports of a sign outside of the display face area contained thereupon. One side of
a double-faced sign shall be used to determine the surface area of the display face of
that sign.

(9) Flag Sign: Devices generally made of flexible materials, such as cloth, paper, or
plastic, and supported by a single vertical pole mounted into the ground or on a
portable structure. They may or may not contain sign copy.

(10) Flashing Sign: An illuminated sign, whose lighting is not constant in intensity or
color at all times and whose message is displayed by means of those changes.
[lluminated signs that indicate the time, temperature, weather, or similar public
service information are not flashing signs.

114 |Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(11) Freestanding Sign: Any sign which is supported by structures or supports in or upon
the ground and independent from any building. Freestanding signs include ground
signs, pylon signs, and signs less than four feet in height supported by a single pole
or post.

(12) (g) Ground Sign: A sign that rests upon or is affixed to the grade or is supported
by posts or pillars on the sides and/or a structural base. (r) Illuminated Sign: Any
sign which emanates light by means of exposed or recessed artificial lighting devices.
It shall not include a "flashing sign."

(13) Joint Business Sign: A ground sign which serves as a collective means of identifying
three (3) or more businesses or occupations operated on the same premises upon
which the sign is located including, but not limited to, sign advertising a retail mall,
shopping center, or office complex. The messages on such signs shall be limited to
the name and telephone number of the business.

(14) Menu Board: A permanently mounted sign displaying the foods, products, or
services for a drive-through or walk-up facility.

(15) Message: Communication consisting of numbers, letters, characters, or pictorial
descriptions or representations designed to attract the attention of the public.

(16) Monument Sign: A sign made of brick, masonry, stone, or other materials, the
bottom of which is attached directly to and permanently affixed to the ground and
physically separated from any other structure located on the same premises as is the
sign.

(17) Mural: A picture painted on an exterior surface of a structure.

(18) Noncommercial Sign: Sign expressing personal, political, religious, or other
opinions, and not advertising any product, service, or event.

(19) Non-Conforming Sign: A sign legally in existence and actively in use as of the
effective date of this article or any amendment thereto which does not comply with
all of the requirements of this article.

(20) On-Premises Sign: A sign identifying or advertising a business, person, activity,
goods, or services located upon or doing business from the same premises upon
which the sign is located.

(21) Off-Premise Sign: A sign which is not related to a product sold, a service offered, or
identity of the property on which the sign is located. This definition does not include
noncommercial signs that meet all applicable requirements of this Article.

(22) Portable Sign: Any sign including, but not limited to, a reader board sign, not
permanently affixed to or attached to the ground that is designed to be easily
moved from one location to another, with or without wheels, including, but not
limited to, signs in or upon trailers and trucks.

(23) Premises: A legally-described and recorded lot, parcel, or other tract of land.

(24) Projecting Sign: A sign attached to the wall of a building or any other structure that
projects horizontally more than twelve (12) inches from the face of the wall or
structure. This definition does not include "marquee."

(25) Roof Sign: Any sign erected or constructed wholly upon and over the roof of any
building or other structure, supported by the roof or other structure and extending
vertically above the highest portion of said roof or structure at its highest point

115 | Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

above grade.

(26) Shopping Center: A group of commercial establishments planned, constructed, and
managed as a unified entity that share a common on-site parking area for customers
and employees, with provision for goods delivery separated from customer access,
and with aesthetic considerations and protection from the elements.

(27) Sign: An object, device, display, placard, or other form of structure or part thereof,
displayed out of doors and visible from any street or highway right-of-way, adjoining
premises or navigable water which contains a display face which, in turn, contains a
message whose purpose it is to display a message to persons through visual means.

(28) Sign Copy: The message or advertisement, and any other symbols on the face of a
sign.

(29) Temporary Sign: Any sign which is erected or constructed and is portable including,
but not limited to, portable poster-type signs, banners, flags, pennants, and
inflatable signs. Said definition shall include, as well, A-frame sandwich boards and
reader board signs.

(30) Wall Sign: A business sign permanently attached to and constructed of rigid
material, erected upon, or painted on or applied to the wall of a building or other
structure, projecting not more than eight (8) inches from the wall.

(31) Window Sign: Any advertising sign affixed to an exterior window of a building or
other structure.

116 |Page



Draft December 7, 2020

Chapter 3
Shoreland-Wetland Zoning

Contents

ARTICLE A STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND TITLE ....... 1
SEC.13-3-1  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION. .....oveoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseesseesseesse s essesesesese s se s seenes 1
SEC.13-3-2  FINDINGS OF FACT. w.oovereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseesseessesseseseseseeseess e sseesseeesess s ss e seessesese s s senesesses 1
SEC. 13-3-3  TITLE OF CHAPTER......cveveeeeeeeeeteeeeiesees s sssessese s ssess s ssss s ssssssssssssssssnsssnsesessens 1
SEC. 13-3-4 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-9  RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.......oorvveeveereeereseeienessesseesssessssseenens 1

ARTICLE B: GENERAL PROVISIONS AND ZONING MAPS .......oooervreeseeseeesiseesseeseessesseesessesseessssesseesessessenns 1
SEC. 13-3-10  COMPLIANCE. ......eiveeeeeeeeeeeeeeees e ss e ss s snessaoe 1
SEC.13-3-11  MUNICIPALIZIED AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED. .....ovuveeeeeeeseeseeeseeseeseeesesneenons 1
SEC.13-3-12  ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS. ......couveervereeeeeeeeeiesseessessesssesssessseenssnens 2
SEC.13-3-13  INTERPRETATION. w..ooveueeeeeceeeeeeeeeseeseesssessseesesssesssesssesssssssssess e sssssssssesssssnsssssessssssens 2
SEC. 13-3-14  SEVERABILITY. oooeoieeeeceeeeeeeeeeeee s ss s s s s 2
SEC.13-3-15  WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY......ooverreeeeeeeeeeseeseesseesessesssessessesseessesnessoos 2
SEC. 13-3-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.........vvevreeereeereeseesnesesesssesssessssnens 2

ARTICLE C: SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING DISTRICT. .....covureeeereeeseessessssseesesseesseesssesssssssssesssesssesssesneas 3
SEC.13-3-20  PURPOSE OF SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING. .....ceuverreereeeeeeeesseessesseesesssesssesssesnees 3
SEC.13-3-21  OFFICIAL SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING MAPS. .......covrvereeeeeeseeseesssessessssessesseenees 3
SEC.13-3-22  DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.......c.oveieeieeeeereieesseeseeseossessessessessesssssessesssessessessssssssessesssassens 3
SEC.13-3-23  FILLED WETLANDS. ......oooveeeeeeeeeseeseeesseeesees s sssssssssesssessssssssssssssssse s s ssseseeses 4
SEC.13-3-24  WETLANDS LANDWARD OF A BULKHEAD LINE..........ovveveeeerreeeeessssseesseessesssesssesneenees 4
SEC.13-3-25  PERMITTED USES.......ovuiveeeeeeeseeeeeseeesssesssssesssesssssssesssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 4
SEC.13-3-26  PROHIBITED USES.....ooueeiiveieeceeeeeeseessesesessessees s sesssss s ssess s ssesssssessesssessessesssassassens 6

SEC. 13-3-27 NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES AND USES WITHIN THE SHORELAND-WETLAND
DISTRICT. 6

SEC. 13-3-28 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiicnecceeen 7
ARTICLE D: ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS. ....ociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin ittt 7
SEC. 13-3-30 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR. ....ttiiiiiiiii ittt 7
SEC. 13-3-31 ZONING PERMITS. ..ottt sra e 7
SEC. 13-3-32 CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE. ....cooouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt srn e 8
SEC. 13-3-33 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR WETLAND AREAS. ......ooociiiiiiiiiiiiniiciecs 8



Draft December 7, 2020

SEC. 13-3-34 FEES. e s 9
SEC. 13-3-35 RECORDING. ...ttt e 9
SEC. 13-3-36 REVOCATION. ..ttt 9
SEC. 13-3-37 BOARD OF APPEALS. ....coiiiiiiiic ittt s 9
SEC. 13-3-38 AMENDING SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING REGULATIONS. .......cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiieenee, 10
SEC. 13-3-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE. ...ttt 11
ARTICLE E: PENALTIES; DEFINITIONS ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiicii i 11
SEC. 13-3-40 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES. ...ocoiiiiiiiiiiii i 11
SEC. 13-3-41 DEFINITIONS. .ottt 11

2|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

ARTICLE A
STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
AND TITLE

SEC. 13-3-1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.
This Chapter is adopted pursuant to authorization in Sections 61.35 and 61.351, Wis. Stats.

SEC. 13-3-2  FINDINGS OF FACT.

(a) Uncontrolled use of the shoreland-wetlands and the pollution of the navigable waters of the
Village of Turtle Lake would adversely affect the public health, safety, convenience, general
welfare and impair the tax base. The Legislature of Wisconsin has delegated responsibility to all
municipalities to:

(1) Promote the public health, safety, convenience and general welfare;

(2) Maintain the storm and flood water storage capacity of wetlands;

(3) Prevent and control water pollution by preserving wetlands which filter or store sediments,
nutrients, heavy metals or organic compounds that would otherwise drain into navigable
waters;

(4) Protect fish, their spawning grounds, other aquatic life and wildlife by preserving wetlands
and other aquatic habitat;

(5) Prohibit certain uses detrimental to the shoreland-wetland area; and

(6) Preserve shore cover and natural beauty by restricting the removal of natural shoreland
cover and controlling shoreland-wetland excavation, filling and other earth moving
activities.

SEC. 13-3-3  TITLE OF CHAPTER.

(a) This Chapter is the Shoreland-Wetland Zoning Ordinance for the Village of Turtle Lake,
Wisconsin.

SEC. 13-3-4 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-9 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE B:
GENERAL PROVISIONS AND ZONING MAPS

SEC. 13-3-10 COMPLIANCE.

(a) The use of wetlands and the alteration of wetlands within the shoreland area of the Village of
Turtle Lake shall be in full compliance with the terms of this Chapter and other applicable local,
state or federal regulations. (However, see Section 13-3-23 of this Chapter for the standards
applicable to nonconforming uses within the shoreland-wetlands district.) All permitted
development shall require the issuance of a zoning permit unless otherwise expressly excluded
by a provision of this Chapter.

SEC. 13-3-11 MUNICIPALIZIED AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED.

(a) Unless specifically exempted by law, all cities, villages, town and counties are required to comply
with this Chapter and obtain all necessary permits. State agencies are required to comply if
Section 13.48(13), Wis. Stats., applies. The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair

l|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

of state highways and bridges by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation are exempt when
Section 30.2022(1), Wis. Stats., applies.

SEC. 13-3-12 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.

(a) This Chapter supersedes all the provisions of any municipal zoning ordinance enacted under
Section 61.35, 62.23 or 87.30, Wis. Stats., which relates to floodplains and shoreland-wetlands,
except that where another municipal zoning ordinance is more restrictive than the provisions
contained in this Chapter, that ordinance shall continue in full force and effect to the extent of
the greater restrictions, but not otherwise.

(b) This Chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing deed restrictions,
covenants or easements. However, where this Chapter imposes greater restrictions, the
provisions of this Chapter shall prevail.

SEC. 13-3-13 INTERPRETATION.

(a) In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Chapter shall be held to be
minimum requirements and shall be liberally construed in favor of the municipality and shall not
be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes. Where
a provision of this Chapter is required by a standard in Chapter NR 117, Wis. Adm. Code, and
where the Chapter provision is unclear, the provision shall be interpreted in light of the Chapter
NR 117 standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this Chapter or in effect on the date of
the most recent text amendment to this Chapter.

SEC. 13-3-14 SEVERABILITY.
(a) Should any portion of this Chapter be declared invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Chapter shall not be affected.

SEC. 13-3-15 WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY.

(a) The degree of flood protection based upon a once per one hundred (100) year flood frequency
and a once per five hundred (500) year flood frequency for Critical Use Facilities as defined in NR
116, Wis. Adm. Code, and erosion hazard protection (based on a fifty (50) year period) intended
to be provided by this ordinance is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based
on rare occasions, larger floods may occur or the flood height may be increased by manmade or
natural causes such as ice jams or bridge openings restricted by debris. Therefore, this Chapter
does not imply that areas outside of the delineated floodplain or erosion hazard areas or land
uses permitted within the floodplain will be totally free from flooding or erosion and associated
damages. Nor shall this action against the Village of Turtle Lake or any officer or employee
thereof for any flood, erosion, or other water-related damages that may result from reliance on
this Chapter.

SEC. 13-3-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

2|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

ARTICLE C:
SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING DISTRICT.

SEC. 13-3-20 PURPOSE OF SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING.

(a) This Chapter is adopted to maintain safe and healthful conditions, to prevent and control water
pollution, to protect fish spawning grounds, fish and aquatic life and wildlife habitation, to
preserve shore cover and natural beauty and to control building and development in wetlands
whenever possible. When development is permitted in a wetland, the development should
occur in a manner which minimizes adverse impacts upon the wetland.

SEC. 13-3-21 OFFICIAL SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING MAPS.
(a) The following maps are hereby adopted and made a part of this Chapter and are on file in the
office of the Village Administrator:

(1) The most recent version of the Wisconsin Wetland Inventory as depicted on the Department
of Natural Resources Surface Water Data Viewer is made part of this ordinance. The maps
can be viewed at: https://dnrmaps.wi.gov/H5/?Viewer=SWDV.

(2) United States Geological Survey maps dated June and July, 1978.

(3) Zoning map for the Village of Turtle Lake, dated DATE OF ADOPTION and as updated.

SEC. 13-3-22 DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.

(a) Boundaries. The shoreland-wetland zoning district includes all wetlands in the Village of Turtle
Lake, Wisconsin, which are five (5) acres or more and are shown on the most recent version of
the Wisconsin Wetland Inventory as depicted on the Department of Natural Resources Surface
Water Data Viewer and made a part of this Chapter in Section 13-3-21 and which are:

(1) Within one thousand (1,000) feet of the ordinary high-water mark of navigable lakes, ponds
or flowages. Lakes, ponds or flowages in the Village of Turtle Lake shall be presumed to be
navigable if they are shown on the United States Geological Survey quadrangle maps or
other zoning base maps which have been incorporated by reference and made a part of this
Chapter in Section 13-3-21 of this Chapter.

(2) Within three hundred (300) feet of the ordinary high-water mark of navigable rivers or
streams, or to the landward side of the floodplain, whichever distance is greater. Rivers and
streams shall be presumed to be navigable if they are designated as either continuous or
intermittent waterways on the United States Geological Survey quadrangle maps or other
zoning base maps which have been incorporated by reference and made a part of this
Chapter in Section 13-3-21.

(b) Farm Drainage Ditches. Under Sec. 281.31(2m), Wis. Stats., the shoreland jurisdiction to which
the shoreland-wetland district applies, does not include lands adjacent to farm drainage ditches
if:

(1) Such lands are not adjacent to a natural navigable stream or river.

(2) Those parts of such drainage ditches, adjacent to such lands were nonnavigable streams
before ditching.

(3) Lands adjacent to artificially constructed drainage ditches, ponds, or storm water retention
basis that are not hydrologically connected to a natural navigable water body.

(c) Determinations of Navigability. The Zoning Administrator shall initially make a determination of
navigability and ordinary high-water mark. When questions arise, the Zoning Administrator shall

3|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

contact the appropriate office of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for the final
determination of navigability or ordinary high-water mark.

(d) Discrepancies. When an apparent discrepancy exists between the shoreland-wetland district
boundary shown on the official shoreland-wetland zoning maps and the actual field conditions
at the time the maps were adopted, the Zoning Administrator shall contact the appropriate
office of the Department of Natural Resources to determine if the shoreland/wetland district
boundary as mapped is in error. If the DNR staff concur with the Zoning Administrator that a
particular area was incorrectly mapped as a wetland, the Zoning Administrator shall have the
authority to immediately grant or deny a land use or building permit in accordance with the
regulations applicable to the correct zoning district. In order to correct wetland mapping errors
shown on the official shoreland-wetland zoning maps, or acknowledge exempted wetlands
designated in sections 13-3-23 and 13-3-24, the Zoning Administrator shall be responsible for
initiating a shoreland-wetland map amendment within a reasonable period.

SEC. 13-3-23 FILLED WETLANDS.

(a) Wetlands which are filled prior to the effective date of the municipality’s original
implementation of shoreland-wetland zoning, in a manner which affects their wetland
characteristics to the extent that the area can no longer be defined as wetland, are not subject
to this ordinance.

SEC. 13-3-24 WETLANDS LANDWARD OF A BULKHEAD LINE.

(a) Wetlands located between the original ordinance high water mark and a bulkhead line
established prior to May 7, 1982 under s. 30.11, Stats. Are not subject to this ordinance.

SEC. 13-3-25 PERMITTED USES.

(a) The following uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Chapters 30 and 31, Wis. Stats.,
and the provisions of other local, state and federal laws, if applicable:

(1) Activities and uses which do not require the issuance of a zoning permit, provided that no
wetland alteration occurs:

(2) Hiking, fishing, trapping, hunting, swimming, snowmobiling and boating;

(3) The harvesting of wild crops, such as marsh hay, ferns, moss, wild rice, berries, tree fruits
and tree seeds, in a manner that is not injurious to the natural reproduction of such crops;

(4) The practice of silviculture, including the planting, thinning and harvesting of timber;

(5) The pasturing of livestock;

(6) The cultivation of agricultural crops; and

(7) The construction and maintenance of duck blinds.

(b) Uses which do not require the issuance of a zoning permit and which may involve wetland
alterations only to the extent specifically provided below:

(1) The practice of silviculture, including limited temporary water level stabilization measures
which are necessary to alleviate abnormally wet or dry conditions that would have an
adverse impact on the conduct of silvicultural activities if not corrected;

(2) The cultivation of cranberries, including limited wetland alterations necessary for the
purpose of growing and harvesting cranberries;

(3) The maintenance and repair of existing drainage systems to restore pre-existing levels of
drainage, including the minimum amount of filling necessary to dispose of dredged spoil,
provided that the filling is otherwise permissible and that dredged spoil is placed on existing
spoil banks where possible;

4|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

(4) The construction and maintenance of fences for the pasturing of livestock, including limited
excavating and filling necessary for such construction or maintenance;

(5) The construction and maintenance of piers, docks and walkways, observation decks and trail
bridges built on pilings, including limited excavating and filling necessary for such
construction or maintenance;

(6) The installation and maintenance of sealed tiles for the purpose of draining lands outside
the shoreland-wetland zoning district provided that such installation or maintenance is done
in a manner designed to minimize the adverse impact upon the natural functions of the
shoreland-wetland listed in Section 13-3-37(c) of this Chapter; and

(7) The maintenance, repair, replacement and reconstruction of existing highways and bridges,
including limited excavating and filling necessary for such maintenance, repair, replacement
or reconstruction.

(c) Uses which are allowed upon the issuance of a building permit and which may include wetland
alterations only to the extent specifically provided below:

(1) The construction and maintenance of roads which are necessary for the continuity of the
municipal street system, the provision of essential utility and emergency services or to
provide access to uses permitted in this Section, provided that:

a. The road cannot, as a practical matter, be located outside the wetland;

b.  Theroad is designed and constructed to minimize the adverse impact upon the
natural functions of the wetland listed in Section 13-3-37(c) of this Chapter;

c. Theroad is designed and constructed with the minimum cross-sectional area
practical to serve the intended use;

d. Road construction activities are carried out in the immediate area of the roadbed
only; and

e. Any wetland alteration must be necessary for the construction or maintenance of
the road.

(2) The construction and maintenance of nonresidential buildings provided that:

a.  The building is used solely in conjunction with a use permitted in the shoreland-
wetland district or for the raising of waterfowl, minnows or other wetland or
aquatic animals;

The building cannot, as a practical matter, be located outside the wetland;

The building does not exceed five hundred (500) square feet in floor area; and

d.  Only limited filling and excavating necessary to provide structural support for the
building is allowed.

(3) The establishment and development of public and private parks and recreation areas,
outdoor education areas, historic, natural and scientific areas, game refuges and closed
areas, fish and wildlife habitat improvement projects, game bird and animal farms, wildlife
preserves and public boat launching ramps, provided that:

a. Any private development allowed under this paragraph shall be used exclusively for
the permitted purpose;

b.  Only limited filling and excavating necessary for the development of public boat
launching ramps, swimming beaches or the construction of park shelters or similar
structures is allowed;

c. The construction and maintenance of roads necessary for the uses permitted under
this paragraph are allowed only where such construction and maintenance meets
the criteria in Subsection (c)(1) of this Section; and

o T

5|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

d.  Wetland alterations in game refuges and closed areas, fish and wildlife habitat
improvement projects, game bird and animal farms, wildlife preserves shall be for
the purpose of improving wildlife habitat or to otherwise enhance wetland values.

(4) The construction and maintenance of electric and telephone transmission lines and water,
gas and sewer distribution lines, and related facilities and the construction and maintenance
of railroad lines provided that:

a. The utility transmission and distribution facilities and railroad lines cannot, as a
practical matter, be located outside the wetland;

b. Only limited filling or excavating necessary for such construction or maintenance is
allowed; and

C. Such construction or maintenance is done in a manner designed to minimize the
adverse impacts upon the natural functions of the wetland listed in Section 13-3-
37(c) of this Chapter.

SEC. 13-3-26 PROHIBITED USES.

(a) Any use not listed in section 13-3-23 of this Chapter is prohibited, unless the wetland or a
portion of the wetland has been rezoned by an amendment of this ordinance in accordance with
section 13-3-37.

(b) The use of a boathouse for human habitation and the construction or placement of a boathouse
or fixed houseboat below the ordinary high-water mark of any navigable waters are prohibited.

SEC. 13-3-27 NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES AND USES WITHIN THE SHORELAND-
WETLAND DISTRICT.

(a) The lawful use of a building, structure or property which existed at the time this Chapter, or an
applicable amendment to this Chapter, took effect and which is not in conformity with the
provisions of the Chapter, including the routine maintenance of such a building or structure,
may be continued, subject to the following conditions:

(1) The shoreland-wetland provisions of this ordinance authorized by s. 61.351, Wis. Stats., shall
not limit the repair, reconstruction, renovation, remodeling or expansion of a
nonconforming structure or of any environmental control facility related to such a structure
in existence on the effective date of the shoreland-wetland provisions. All other
modifications to nonconforming structures are subject to s. 62.23(7)(hb), Wis. Stats.

(b) If a nonconforming use of the use of a nonconforming structure is discontinued for twelve (12)
consecutive months, any future use of the building, structure or property shall conform to this
Chapter.

(c) Any legal nonconforming use of property which does not involve the use of a structure and
which existed at the time of the adoption or subsequent amendment of this ordinance adopted
under sections 61.351 or 62.231, Wis. Stats., may be continued although such use does not
conform with the provisions of this Chapter. However, such nonconforming use may not be
extended.

(d) The maintenance and repair of nonconforming boathouses which are located below the
ordinance high-water mark of any navigable waters shall comply with the requirements of
section 30.121, Wis. Stats.

(e) Uses which are nuisances under common law shall not be permitted to continue as
nonconforming uses.

6|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

SEC. 13-3-28 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE D:
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.

SEC. 13-3-30 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR.

(a) The Village Administrator is appointed zoning administrator for the purpose of administering
and enforcing this Chapter. The Zoning Administrator shall have the following duties and
powers:

(1) Advise applicants as to the provisions of this Chapter and assist them in preparing permit
applications and appeal forms.

(2) Issue permits and certificates of compliance and inspect properties for compliance with this
Chapter.

(3) Keep records of all permits issued, inspections made, work approved and other official
actions.

(4) Have access to any structure or premises between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. for
the purpose of performing these duties.

(5) Submit copies of decisions on variances, conditional use permits, appeals for a map or text
interpretation and map or text amendments within ten (10) days after they are granted or
denied to the appropriate office of the Department of Natural Resources.

(6) Investigate and report violations of this Chapter to the appropriate Village planning agency
and the District Attorney, corporation counsel or Village Attorney.

SEC. 13-3-31 ZONING PERMITS.

(a) When Required. Unless another Section of this Chapter specifically exempts certain types of
development from this requirement, a zoning permit shall be obtained from the Zoning
Administrator before any new development, as defined in Section 13-3-41(b)(4) of this Chapter,
or any change in the use of an existing building or structure is initiated.

(b) Application. An application for a zoning permit shall be made to the Zoning Administrator upon
forms furnished by the Village and shall include, for the purpose of proper enforcement of these
regulations, the following information:

(1) General Information.

a. Name, address and telephone number of the applicant, property owner and
contractor, where applicable.

b. Legal description of the property and a general description of the proposed use or
development.

c.  Whether or not a private water or sewage system is to be installed.

(2) Site Development Plan. The site development plan shall be drawn to scale and submitted as
a part of the permit application form and shall contain the following information drawn to
scale:

a. Dimensions and area of the lot;

b. Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot lines and centerline
of all abutting streets or highways;

C. Description of any existing or proposed on site sewage systems or private water
supply systems;

d. Location of the ordinary high-water mark of any abutting navigable waterways;

7|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

e. Boundaries of all wetlands;
Existing and proposed topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover;

g. Location of floodplain and floodway limits on the property as determined from
floodplain zoning maps;

h. Location of existing or future access roads; and

i Specifications and dimensions for areas of proposed wetland alteration.

(c) Expiration. All permits issued under the authority of this Chapter shall expire one (1) year from
the date of issuance.

SEC. 13-3-32 CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE.

(a) Except where no zoning permit or conditional use permit is required, no land shall be occupied
or used, and no building which is hereafter constructed, altered, added to, modified, rebuilt or
replaced shall be occupied, until a certificate of compliance is issued by the zoning administrator
subject to the following provisions:

(1) The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part thereof, and
the proposed use thereof, conform to the provisions of this Chapter.

(2) Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a zoning or
conditional use permit.

(3) The certificate of compliance shall be issued within 10 days after notification of the
completion of the work specified in the zoning or conditional use permit, providing the
building or premises and proposed use thereof conform with all the provisions of this
Chapter.

(b) The zoning administrator may issue a temporary certificate of compliance for a building,
premises or part thereof pursuant to rules and regulations established by the municipal
governing body.

(c) Upon written request from the owner, the zoning administrator shall issue a certificate of
compliance for any building or premises existing at the time of ordinance adoption, certifying
after inspection, the extent and type of use made of the building or premises and whether or
not such use conforms to the provisions of this Chapter.

SEC. 13-3-33 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR WETLAND AREAS.

(a) Application. Any use listed as a conditional use in this Chapter shall be permitted only after an
application has been submitted to the Zoning Administrator and a conditional use permit has
been granted by the Board of Appeals, following the procedures in Sections 13-3-36(c), (d) and
(e) for hearing and deciding appeals.

(b) Conditions. Upon consideration of the permit application and the standards applicable to the
permitted uses in Section 13-3-23(c) of the Chapter, the Board of Appeals shall attach such
conditions to a conditional use permit in addition to those required elsewhere in this Chapter, as
are necessary to further the purposes of this Chapter as listed in Section 13-3-2 of this Chapter.
Such conditions may include specifications for, without limitation because of specific
enumeration: type of shore cover; erosion potential; increased side setbacks; specific sewage
disposal and water supply facilities; landscaping and planting screens; period of operation;
operational control; sureties; deed restrictions; location of piers, docks, parking areas and signs;
and type of construction. To secure information upon which to base its determination, the
Board of Appeals may require the applicant to furnish, in addition to the information required
for a zoning permit, other pertinent information which is necessary to determine if the
proposed use is consistent with the purpose of this Chapter.

8|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

SEC. 13-3-34 FEES.
(a) The Village Board, by resolution, shall establish fees for the following:

(1) Zoning permits.
(2) Certificates of compliance.
(3) Public hearings.
(4) Legal notice publications.
(5) Conditional use permits.
(6) Rezoning petitions.

SEC. 13-3-35 RECORDING.
(a) Where a zoning permit or conditional use permit is approved, an appropriate record shall be
made by the Zoning Administrator of the land use and structures permitted.

SEC. 13-3-36 REVOCATION.
(a) Where the conditions of a zoning permit or conditional use permit are violated, the permit shall
be revoked by the Board of Appeals.

SEC. 13-3-37 BOARD OF APPEALS.

(a) Appointment. The Village President shall appoint a Board of Appeals under Title 2, Chapter 4 of
this Code of Ordinances and Section 62.23(7)(e), Wis. Stats., consisting of five (5) members
subject to confirmation by the Village Board. The Board of Appeals shall adopt rules for the
conduct of the business of the Board of Appeals as required by Section 62.23(7)(e)3, Wis. Stats.

(b) Powers and Duties. The Board of Appeals shall:

(1) Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement,
decision or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement or
administration of this Chapter.

(2) Hear and decide applications for conditional use permits under this Chapter.

(3) May authorize, upon appeal, a variance from the dimensional standards of this Chapter
where an applicant convincingly demonstrates:

a.  That literal enforcement of the terms of the Chapter will result in unnecessary
hardship for the applicant.

b.  That the hardship is due to special conditions unique to the property; and is not self-
created or based solely on economic gain or loss.

c.  That such variance is not contrary to the public interest as expressed by the purpose
of this Chapter.

d.  That such variance will not grant or increase any use of property which is prohibited
in the zoning district.

(c) Appeals to the Board. Appeals to the Board of Appeals may be taken by any person aggrieved or
by an officer, department, board or bureau of the community affected by any order,
requirement, decision or determination of the Zoning Administrator or other administrative
official. Such appeals shall be taken within a reasonable time, as provided by the rules of the
Board, by filing with the official from whom the appeal is taken and with the Board of Appeals, a
notice of appeal specifying the reasons therefor. The Zoning Administrator or other official from
whom the appeal is taken shall transmit to the Board all the papers constituting the record on
the matter appealed.

(d) Public Hearings.

9|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

(1)

(2)

Before making a decision on an appeal, the Board of Appeals shall, within a reasonable
period of time, hold a public hearing. The Board shall give public notice of the hearing by
publishing a Class 2 notice under Ch. 985, Wis. Stats., specifying the date, time and place of
the hearing and the matters to come before the Board. At the public hearing, any party may
appear in person, by agent or by attorney and present testimony.

A copy of such notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the appropriate district
office of the Department at least ten (10) days prior to all public hearings on issues involving
shoreland-wetland zoning.

(e) Decisions.

(1)

(2)

The final disposition of an appeal, or application for a conditional use permit, to the Board of
Appeals shall be in the form of a written decision, made within a reasonable time after the
public hearing, signed by the Board chairperson. Such decision shall state the specific facts
which are the basis of the Board's determination and shall either affirm, reverse or modify
the order, requirement, decision or determination appealed, in whole or in part, dismiss the
appeal for lack of jurisdiction or persecution, or grant the application for a conditional use.

A copy of such decision shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the appropriate district
office of the Department within ten (10) days after the decision is issued.

SEC. 13-3-38 AMENDING SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING REGULATIONS.

The Village Board may, from time to time, alter, supplement or change the district boundaries and the
regulations contained in this Chapter in accordance with the requirements of Section 62.23(7)(d)2, Wis.
Stats., Ch. NR 117, Wis. Adm. Code, and the following:

(a) A copy of each proposed text or map amendment shall be submitted to the appropriate office of
the Department of Natural Resources within five (5) days of the submission of the proposed
amendment to the Village planning agency.

(b) All proposed text and map amendments to the shoreland-wetland zoning regulations shall be
referred to the municipal planning agency, and a public hearing shall be held after class 2 notice
as required by Section 62.23(7)(d)2, Wis. Stats. The appropriate office of the Department of
Natural Resources shall be provided with written notice of the public hearing at least ten (10)
days prior to such hearing.

In order to insure that this Chapter will remain consistent with the shoreland protection
objectives in Section 281.31, Wis. Stats., the Village Board may not rezone a wetland in a
shoreland-wetland zoning district, or any portion thereof, where the proposed rezoning may
result in a significant adverse impact upon any of the following:

(c)

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Storm and flood water storage capacity;

Maintenance of dry season stream flow or the discharge of groundwater to a wetland, the
recharge of groundwater from a wetland to another area or the flow of groundwater
through a wetland;

Filtering or storage of sediments, nutrients, heavy metals or organic compounds that would
otherwise drain into navigable waters;

Shoreline protection against soil erosion;

Fish spawning, breeding, nursery or feeding grounds;

Wildlife habitat; or

Areas of special recreational scenic or scientific interest, including scarce wetland types and
habitat of endangered species.

(d) Where the appropriate office of the DNR determines that a proposed rezoning may have a
significant adverse impact upon any of the criteria listed in Subsection (c) of this Section, the

10| Page



Draft December 7, 2020

DNR shall so notify the Village of its determination either prior to or during the public hearing
held on the proposed amendment.

(e) The appropriate district office of the Department shall be provided with:

(1) A copy of the recommendations and report, if any, of the municipal planning agency
on the proposed text or map amendment within ten (10) days after the submission of
those recommendations to the Village Board; and

(2) Written notice of the Village Board's action on the proposed text or map amendment
within ten (10) days after the action is taken.

(f) If the Department notifies the municipal planning agency in writing that a proposed amendment
may have a significant adverse impact upon any of the criteria listed in Subsection (c) of this
Section, that proposed amendment, if approved by the Village Board, may not become effective
until more than thirty (30) days have elapsed since written notice of the Village Board approval
was mailed to the Department, as required by Subsection (e) of this Section. If, within the thirty
(30) day period, the Department notifies the Village Board that the Department intends to adopt
a superseding shoreland-wetland zoning ordinance for the Village under Section 62.231(6) and
61.351(6), Wis. Stats., the proposed amendment may not become effective until the ordinance
adoption procedure under Section 62.231(6) and 61.351(6), Wis. Stats., is completed or
otherwise terminated.

SEC. 13-3-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE E:
PENALTIES; DEFINITIONS

SEC. 13-3-40 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES.

(a) Any development, building or structure or accessory building or structure constructed, altered,
added to, modified, rebuilt or replaced, or any use or accessory use established after the
effective date of this Chapter in violation of the provisions of this Chapter, by any person, firm,
association, corporation (including building contractors or their agents) shall be deemed a
violation. The Zoning Administrator shall refer violations to the Village Board and the Village
Attorney who shall prosecute such violations. Any person, firm, association or corporation who
violates or refuses to comply with any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be subject to a
forfeiture as specified in Section 1-1-6, "General Penalties," of this Code of Ordinances, together
with the taxable costs of such action. Each day of continued violation shall constitute a separate
offense. Every violation of this Chapter is a public nuisance and the creation thereof may be
enjoined and the maintenance thereof may be abated by action at suit of the Village, the State
or any citizen thereof pursuant to Section 87.30(2), Wis. Stats.

SEC. 13-3-41 DEFINITIONS.

(a) For the purpose of administering and enforcing this Chapter, the terms or words used herein
shall be interpreted as follows: Words used in the present tense include the future; words in the
singular number include the plural number; words in the plural number include the singular
number. The word "shall" is mandatory, not permissive. All distances unless otherwise specified
shall be measured horizontally.

(b) The following terms used in this Chapter mean:

1l1|Page



Draft December 7, 2020

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(7)
(8)

Accessory Structure or Use. A detached subordinate structure or a use which is clearly
incidental to, and customarily found in connection with, the principal structure or use to
which it is related and which is located on the same lot as that of the principal structure or
use.

Boathouse. As defined in Section 30.121(1), Wis. Stats., a permanent structure used for the
storage of watercraft and associated materials and includes all structures which are totally
enclosed, have roofs or walls or any combination of structural parts.

Class 2 Public Notice. Publication of a public hearing notice under Chapter 985, Wis. Stats.,
in a newspaper of circulation in the affected area. Publication is required on two (2)
consecutive weeks, the last at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing.

Conditional Use. A use which is permitted by this Chapter provided that certain conditions
specified in the Chapter are met and that a permit is granted by the Board of Appeals or,
where appropriate, the planning agency designated by the municipal governing body.

) Department. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.

Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but
not limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures; the
construction of additions or substantial alterations to buildings, structures or accessory
structures; the placement of buildings or structures; ditching, lagooning, dredging, filling,
grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations; and the deposition or extraction of
earthen materials.

Drainage System. One (1) or more artificial ditches, tile drains or similar devices which
collect surface runoff or groundwater and convey it to a point of discharge.

Environmental Control Facility. Any facility, temporary or permanent, which is reasonably
expected to abate, reduce or aid in the prevention, measurement, control or monitoring of
noise, air or water pollutants, solid waste and thermal pollution, radiation or other
pollutants, including facilities installed principally to supplement or to replace existing
property or equipment not meeting or allegedly not meeting acceptable pollution control
standards or which are to be supplemented or replaced by other pollution control facilities.
Fixed Houseboat. As defined in Section 30.121(1), Wis. Stats., a structure not actually used
for navigation which extends beyond the ordinary high-water mark of a navigable waterway
and is retained in place either by cables to the shoreline or by anchors or spudpoles
attached to the bed of the waterway.

(10)Navigable Waters. Lake Superior, Lake Michigan, all natural inland lakes within Wisconsin,

and all streams, ponds, sloughs, flowages and other waters within the territorial limits of
this State, including the Wisconsin portion of boundary waters, which are navigable under
the laws of this State. Under Section 144.26(2)(d), Wis. Stats., notwithstanding any other
provision of law or administrative rule promulgated thereunder, shoreland ordinances
required under Sections 61.351 and 62.231, Wis. Stats., and Chapter NR 117, Wis. Adm.
Code, do not apply to lands adjacent to farm drainage ditches if:

a. Such lands are not adjacent to a natural navigable stream or river;

b.  Those parts of such drainage ditches adjacent to such lands were not navigable

streams before ditching; and
C. Such lands are maintained in nonstructural agricultural use.

(11)“Wisconsin’s Supreme Court has declared navigable bodies of water that have a bed

differentiated from adjacent uplands and levels of flow sufficient to support navigation by a
recreational craft of the shallowest draft on an annually recurring basis [Muench v. Public
Service Commissions, 261 Wis. 492 (1952) and DeGaynor and Co., Inc., v. Department of
Natural Resources, 70 Wis. 2d 936 (1975)]. For example, a stream which is navigable by skiff

12| Page



Draft December 7, 2020

or canoe during normal spring high water is navigable, in fact, under the laws of this state
though it may be dry during other seasons.”

(12)Ordinary High-Water Mark. The point on the bank or shore up to which the presence and
action of surface water is so continuous so as to leave a distinctive mark such as by erosion,
destruction or prevention of terrestrial vegetation, predominance of aquatic vegetation or
other easily recognized characteristic.

(13)Planning Agency. The Plan Commission created under Section 62.23(1), Wis. Stats.

(14)Shorelands. Lands within the following distances from the ordinary high-water mark of
navigable waters; one thousand (1,000) feet from a lake, pond or flowage; and three
hundred (300) feet from a river or stream or to the landward side of the floodplain,
whichever distance is greater.

(15)Shoreland-Wetland District. The zoning district, created in this shoreland-wetland zoning
ordinance, comprised of shorelands that are designated as wetlands on the wetlands
inventory maps which have been adopted and made a part of this Chapter as described in
Section 13-3-21 of this Chapter.

(16)Unnecessary Hardship. That circumstance where special conditions, which were not self-
created, affect a particular property and make strict conformity with the restrictions
governing area, setbacks, frontage, height or density unnecessarily burdensome or
unreasonable in light of the purpose of this Chapter.

(17)Variance. An authorization granted by the Board of Appeals to construct, alter or use a
building or structure in a manner that deviates from the dimensional standards of this
Chapter.

(18)Wetlands. Those areas where water is at, near or above the land surface long enough to
support aquatic or hydrophytic vegetation and which have soils indicative of wet conditions.

(19)Wetland Alteration. Any filling, flooding, draining, dredging, ditching, tiling, excavating,
temporary water level stabilization measures or dike and dam construction in a wetland
area.

13| Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

Chapter 6
Shoreland Zoning

Contents

ARTICLE A STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND TITLE ........ 1
SEC.13-6-1  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION. ....oooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesee e sseessees s ssessesesesese s sneeees 1
SEC.13-6-2  FINDINGS OF FACT AND PURPOSE. .........coveeeeeeeeeeseeeseeessesseeesesseess e ssessesesesssesseessnsseesses 1
SEC. 13-6-2 THROUGH 13-6-9 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE..........ovuivieeeeeeeeeeesseseeseesseesessess s 1

ARTICLE B GENERAL PROVISIONS .....oooveeeeriveeeeesessessesssessssssssssssessssssssssssesessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsens 1
SEC.13-6-10  COMPLIANCE. .........ovoiveeeeeeeseeeeeseeeeseesseesss s sess s ss e s sess s ss s ssssse s snssesseneesens 1
SEC.13-6-11  MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED. ....covuveneeeeeseeseeeeeseeseeeee s 1
SEC.13-6-12  ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS. ......ovuveeeeereeeeeeeesseseessesssessessesssssessessnns 1
SEC.13-6-13  INTERPRETATION. w..oooeuieeeeceeeeeeeeseesssesssessseesessssss s sesssssssssess s sssssessssssssssssessssnens 2
SEC.13-6-14  SEVERABILITY. ooooooieieeeeeeeeeeveeeeseeseees s ssesessss e ss s ss s ss s ssesesesnsssssesnsseneas 2
SEC.13-6-15  APPLICABILITY OF SHORELAND REGULATIONS. ....covvoverrereeeeeiesseessessesssesssesssesesesnens 2
SEC. 13-6-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-19  RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE. ....c...vuveeeeeeeeseeseeeeseese s 2

ARTICLE C SETBACKS FROM THE WATER ..ot sse s sess s s s sss s sesnesnaans 2
SEC.13-6-20  BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURE SETBACKS. .......covvueereerereeressessesssesssesssssesesesssesssesssssnens 2
SEC.13-6-21  EXEMPT STRUCTURES. ......oeoveeveceeeeseeseeesseesesssesssesssessssssssess e sssesesssesssesssssnnns 3
SEC. 13-6-22 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE. .........ovuveieeeeeeeseeseeeeessess e 4

ARTICLE D NONCONFORMING STRCUTURES .......vvuivrieeeeeseeeseessessessess s sesse s sessesssesssssessssssssess s ssessesneans 4
SEC.13-6-30  MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR VERTICAL EXPANSION OF
NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES. ........ooveereeeeeeeseesseesssssessesssesssesseessssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssesnes 4
SEC.13-6-31  MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR VERTICAL EXPANSION OF STRCUTRUES
THAT WERE AUTHORIZED BY VARIANCE (559.692(1k)(a)2. ANd (8)4.) cvveveeveeeeeeeeeereeeeseeeseeessneeneessesnenn. 4
SEC. 13-6-32 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE. .......oovvueeeriereeseeenessesssesssessssensnnes 4

ARTICLE E ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS .....coovoveeeeieieseeseesseesseessesssesssssssesesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssens 4
SEC. 13-6-40  ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS..........oouivevereseeseesseesesseessessesssssessesssssessesssessessesssssessens 4
SEC. 13-6-41  DEFINITIONS .....c.oeiveieeieeeeeeeeessessesses s ees s ees s s ssess s sse s ssssessesesassasnens 4

l|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

ARTICLE A
STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
AND TITLE

SEC. 13-6-1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.
This Chapter is adopted pursuant to authorization in Wisconsin Statutes Sections 61.35 and 61.353.

SEC. 13-6-2  FINDINGS OF FACT AND PURPOSE.

(a) Uncontrolled use of shorelands and pollution of the navigable waters of the municipality would
adversely affect the public health, safety, convenience, and general welfare and impair the tax
base. The Legislature of Wisconsin has delegated responsibility to all municipalities to:

(1) Promote the public health, safety, convenience and general welfare;

(2) Limit certain land use activities detrimental to shorelands; and

(3) Preserve shore cover and natural beauty by controlling the location of structures in
shoreland areas.

SEC. 13-6-2 THROUGH 13-6-9 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE B
GENERAL PROVISIONS

SEC. 13-6-10 COMPLIANCE.

(a) The use of shorelands within the shoreland area of the municipality shall be in full compliance
with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable local, state or federal regulations. All
permitted development shall require the issuance of a zoning permit unless otherwise expressly
excluded by a provision of this ordinance.

SEC. 13-6-11 MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED.
(a) Unless specifically exempted by law, all cities, villages, towns, and counties are required to
comply with this Chapter and obtain all necessary permits. State agencies are required to
comply if Wis. Stat. sec. 13.48(13) applies.

SEC. 13-6-12 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.

(a) This Chapter supersedes all the provisions of any other municipal ordinance except that where
another municipal ordinance is more restrictive than this Chapter, that ordinance shall continue
in full force and effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but not otherwise.

(b) This Chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing deed restrictions,
covenants, or easements. However, where this Chapter imposes greater restrictions, the
provisions of this ordinance shall prevail.

l|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-6-13 INTERPRETATION.

(a) In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this ordinance shall be held to be
minimum requirements and shall be liberally construed in favor of the municipality and shall not
be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes or
Wisconsin Constitution.

SEC. 13-6-14 SEVERABILITY.

(a) Should any portion of this ordinance be declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected.

SEC. 13-6-15 APPLICABILITY OF SHORELAND REGULATIONS.

(a) The Shoreland Zoning regulations shall apply only to the following shorelands:

(1) Ashoreland that was annexed by the Village of Turtle Lake after May 7, 1982, and that prior
to annexation was subject to a county shoreland zoning ordinance under Wis. Stat. sec.
59.692; and

(2) A shoreland that before incorporation by the Village of Turtle Lake was part of a town that
was subject to a county shoreland zoning ordinance under Wis. Stat. sec. 59.692 if the data
of incorporation was after April 30, 1994.

(b) Determinations of the ordinary highwater mark location shall initially be made by the Zoning
Administrator. When questions arise, the Zoning Administrator shall contact the appropriate
district office of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for a final determination of
ordinance highwater mark.

(c) Effect of Existing Land Division, Sanitary, Zoning and Other Regulations. The lands regulated by
this Chapter are subject to all applicable provisions of the Village of Turtle Lake Municipal Code.
Where the provisions of this Chapter are more restrictive than other regulations in the
Municipal Code, the provisions of this Chapter shall apply.

SEC. 13-6-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE C
SETBACKS FROM THE WATER

SEC. 13-6-20 BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURE SETBACKS.

(a) All buildings and structures shall be set back at least 50 feet from the ordinance high-water
market.

(b) Reduced Principal building setback: A setback less than 50’ setback required from the
ordinary high water mark shall be permitted for a proposal Principal structure and shall be
determined as follows:

(1) Where there are existing principal buildings on each adjacent lot, the setback shall equal
the average of the distances the two existing principal buildings are setback from the
ordinance high water mark of 35’ from the ordinance high water mark, whichever
distance is greater.

2|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-6-21 EXEMPT STRUCTURES.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

Open Structures. As required, the construction or placement of open structures within the

shoreland setback area shall be permitted if it meets the following conditions:

(1) The part of the structure that is nearest to the water is located at least thirty-five (35) feet
from the ordinary high-water mark.

(2) The structure shall be located within the view corridor described in Subsection 13-3-24(a)(l).

(3) The total floor area of all structures in the shoreland setback area on the property will not
exceed two hundred (200) square feet. This calculation shall include the area of any deck,
patio, hard surfaced walkway, stairway, the portion of any pier landward of the ordinary
high-water mark and any such structures, but boathouses shall be excluded.

(4) The open structure shall have open or screened sides, which would include any structure
that either has no roof or has a roof and support posts without walls. The structure shall not
be attached to any other structure, unless the side of such structure at the point of
attachment is open or screened.

(5) The structure shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height.

(6) The side yard setback shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet.

(7) The color of the structure shall blend with native or restored vegetation at the site during
the growing season.

(8) The vegetative buffer area between such structures and the ordinary high water mark shall
cover at least seventy percent (70%) of the half of the shoreland setback area that is nearest
to the water and shall include a tree canopy, a shrub layer and ground cover

Driveways, walkways, platforms, terraces or patios are not allowed without a variance and are

considered a structure subject to setback requirements. No part of any such structures shall

extend more than twelve (12) inches above the ground level, and all structures shall be
constructed so as to control erosion and comply within the tree cutting and related standards of

Section 13-3-24(a). A four foot by four foot (4' x 4') landing in conjunction with steps, which shall

not exceed four (4) feet in width, is allowed within the respective setback from the lake. No part

of the steps are to extend more than three (3) feet above the ground level. One single rail above
that three (3) foot high step may be constructed on each side of the walkway or steps. Steps,
landings, and railings shall be constructed so as to maintain the natural appearance of the
shoreland.

Piers, boathouses, docks, sea walls, marinas, and similar marine service or shoreline facilities

shall be governed by these standards:

(1) Boathouses shall be used solely for the storage of aquatic equipment and shall not be used
for human habitation.

(2) Boathouses shall be set back ten (10) feet from the ordinary high water mark and five (5)
feet from side lot lines.

(3) Eaves shall not exceed one (1) foot.

(4) Boathouses shall not exceed eight (8) feet in height and ninety-six (96) square feet in floor
area.

(5) Boathouses shall be of such color as not to detract from the natural appearance of the
shoreland.

Piers, Decks and Boat Hoists. Piers, docks, and boat hoists may be located within the water

setback area, provided that such facilities are capable of seasonal removal.

Seawalls. Seawalls may be located within the water setback area, provided that any permits

required from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources are first obtained.

3|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

SEC. 13-6-22 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE D
NONCONFORMING STRCUTURES

SEC. 13-6-30 MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR VERTICAL EXPANSION OF
NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.

(a) An existing structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but that does not comply with
the required shoreland setback may be maintained, repaired, replaced, restored, rebuilt or
remodeled if the activity does not expand the footprint of the nonconforming structure. Further,
an existing structure that was lawfully placed when constructed but that does not comply with
the required shoreland setback may be vertically expanded unless the vertical expansion would
extend more than 35 feet above grade level. The Village of Turtle Lake may allow expansion of a
structure beyond the existing footprint if the expansion is necessary to comply with applicable
state or federal requirements.

SEC. 13-6-31 MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR VERTICAL EXPANSION OF
STRCUTRUES THAT WERE AUTHORIZED BY VARIANCE (s59.692(1k)(a)2. And (a)4.)

(a) A structure of which any part has been authorized to be located within the shoreland setback
area by a variance granted before July 13, 2015 may be maintained, repaired, replaced,
restored, rebuilt or remodeled if the activity does not expand the footprint of the authorized
structure. Additionally, the structure may be vertically expanded unless the vertical expansion
would extend more than 35 feet above grade level. The Village of Turtle Lake may allow
expansion of a structure beyond the existing footprint if the expansion is necessary to comply
with applicable state or federal requirements.

SEC. 13-6-32 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

ARTICLE E
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

SEC. 13-6-40 ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.
(a) Administrative provisions, including required permits, determinations, and appeals, shall follow
the provisions under Chapter 3, Shoreland-Wetland Zoning.

SEC. 13-6-41 DEFINITIONS
(a) For the purpose of administering and enforcing this Chapter, the terms or words used herein
shall be interpreted as follows: Words used in the present tense include the future; words in the
singular number include the plural number; words in the plural number include the singular
number. The word "shall" is mandatory, not permissive. All distances unless otherwise specified
shall be measured horizontally.
(b) The following terms used in this Chapter mean:

4|Page



DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2020

(1) Principal building means the main building or structure on a single lot or parcel of land and
includes any attached garage or attached porch.

(2) Shorelands means lands within the following distances from the ordinary highwater mark of
navigable waters: 1,000 feet from a lake, pond or flowage; and 300 feet from a river or
stream or to the landward side of the floodplain, whichever distance is greater.

(3) Shoreland setback area means an area in a shoreland that is within a certain distance of the
ordinary high-water mark in which the construction or placement of structure has been
limited or prohibited.

5|Page



Village of Turtle Lake Zoning District - Dimensional Standards
Note: This table is provided as a convenience for the Village and general public. Where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and this table, the text shall prevail.

Draft December 7, 2020

L Comparable . . . Min. Lot Min. Street Min. Side Min. Rear - . Max. Building
Abb t Min. Lot A Min. Lot Width Max. Build Height
Proposed District Name reviation Current District in. Lot Area 'n. Lot Wi Depth Setback Setback Setback ax. Bullding Tielg Coverage
Unplatted: 200 ft 3 stories, not includin
Rural Residential R-R R-2 Estate 1.5ac Platted: 160 ft 200 ft 50 ft 25 ft 50 ft ! 8 35%
basement
Cul-de-sacs: 80 ft at setback
Low Density Single-Family Residential R-L R-1 &R-2 12,000 sf 90 ft - 30 ft 10 ft 30 ft 35 ft -
Medium Density Single-Family Residential R-M R-3 8,000 sf 70 ft - 20 ft 8 ft 20 ft 35 ft -
45 ft or 4 stori
Multi-Family Residential R-4 9,600 sf 80 ft ; 20ft 6 ft 20ft > Ttorastories, .
whichever is the least
Multl—Fan.1|Iy Residential R4 5,000 f 10t . 20 ft 0 ft for shared 20 ft 45 ft or§ stories, .
Zero-lot line lots setback whichever is the least
Mobile Home - Tiny Home Neighborhood MHTH MH-1 See section 13-1-27 and Article E of Zoning Ordinance.
35 ft except for barns,
Rural Transitional R-T R-D 2 ac 270 ft - 50 ft 50 ft 50 ft silos, and other -
buildings and structures
Intensive Agriculture New See section 13-1-29 of Zoning Ordinance.
General Business B-1 No min. - - No min. No min. No min. 4 stories or 45 ft. -
80 ft t
Highway Business B-2 1/2 ac 80 ft . (excep 20 ft 20 ft 35 ft :
parking)
B 1T, EXCEPT T "
45 ft or 4 st
Downtown Mixed-Use New No min. No min. - 15 ft case of common 15 ft . or . stories, -
o whichever is the least
Business Park -1 10,000 sf 80 ft - 10 ft 10 ft 30 ft No max. -
Park & Conservancy C-1
The dimensional standards in PDD are those approved as part of the general or detailed plan for particular sites that are placed in the Planned
Planned Development New

Development District.




Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Districts & Uses
P = permitted
C = conditional

Draft December 7, 2020

| RR | R-L | R-M -MHTHl RT

RESIDENTIAL USES

Note: This table is provided as a convenience for the Village and general public.
Where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and this table, the text shall prevail.

PDD

Single-Family dwelling & accessory structures

P P P P P

Single-family, detached, non-farm dwelling, in
unplatted areas subject to standards

Single-family mobile home or tiny home

Two-family residential structures

Zero-Lot Line attached dwelling units

First floor residential unit

Accessory Dwelling Unit

Up to 4 residential dwellings in one residential structure

Group of not more than 5 unrelated persons
maintaining common household

Multi-Family up to 8 units

Multi-Family more than 8 units

Residential above sidewalk level

Accessory structures other than those permitted

Licensed residential facility - 6 or fewer

Community Living Arrangement - 8 or fewer persons
served

Licensed residential facility - 7-16 persons

Community Living Arrangement - 9 or more

Community Living Arrangement - 15 or fewer

Community Living Arrangement - 16 or more

Group Homes

Nursing Homes

(g}

(g}

(g}
oOo|jo|o|o

INSTITUTIONAL USES

Churches

Cemeteries

Schools

Government & community buildings

el isl il kel
el isl il kel
el isl il kel
el isl il el

COMMERCIAL USES

Licensed day care facility - 12 or fewer

o
(g}
(g}

Dog kennels

Medical and dental clinics

Bed and Breakfast

Professional Office

Organization headquarters

Personal or Professional Service

Indoor Sales or Services

Funeral Parlor

Restaurants; cafes

Taverns, Bars, Cocktail lounges

Hotel, Motel, Rooming House

Auto-related sales and service

Radio (w/o antenna)

Public passenger transportation terminals

Indoor Theater

Newspaper and magazine publishers

Catalogue order stores

Bowling alleys

Wholesale outlets

Second hand stores

Professional laundry and dry cleaning establishments

Gas stations

Implement sales

Contractor's offices

Automobile sales and services

Commercial storage

ololofojlol o |o|lo|v|v|o|v|o|w|9|o|o|o|v|o|w|o|w

Automobile repair

Implement sales and service

Drive-in establishments serving food and beverages for
consumption on premises

Drive-in theaters

Gift stores

Mobile home sales

Retail sales and services that exclusively or
predominantly serve businesses and employees of the
business park area and are a minor part of the total
parcel usages by area, volume, or similar measures

The uses allowable in PDD are the uses approved as part of the general or detailed plan for particular sites that are placed in the Planned Development District.




Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Districts & Uses
P = permitted
C = conditional

Note: This table is provided as a convenience for the Village and general public.
Where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and this table, the text shall prevail.

Draft December 7, 2020

| RR | R-L | R-M -MHTHl RT

AGRICULTURAL USES

Agricultural Uses

C C C C

Agriculture and general farming...

New or existing livestock operations - fewer than 500
animal units

Quarries

New or existing livestock operations - 500 or more
animal units.

Cranberry bogs

General far mining provided no drainage, filling or
dredging takes place and no farm buildings are
constructed

Farm structures

Harvesting of wild crops, etc.

TELECOMMUNICATION / UTILITY USES

Siting of Class 1 collocation of new mobile service

Public utility infrastructure & offices

Dams, power plants, flowages, ponds, relocation of
water courses, removal of top soil or peat

RECREATIONAL USES

Golf courses

Fairgrounds

Shooting clubs and preserves

Campgrounds

Nightclubs

Amusement parks and parking

Casino & gaming establishments

INDUSTRIAL USES

Freight terminals and trans-shipment depots

Trans-shipment depots

Automotive upholstery

Cleaning

Pressing and dyeing establishments

Commercial bakeries

Commercial greenhouses

Distributors

Farm machinery

Feed mills

Dairy plants

Equipment repairs and storage

Railroad depots

Cooperative

Laboratories

Machine stops

Printing; publishing

Storage and sale of lumber

Machinery and equipment sales

Warehousing and wholesaling

w|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|O|O|O|w|O|O|O|O|w®

Manufacturing, fabrication, processing, packaging and
packing of: confections, cosmetics, electrical
appliances, electronic devices; food except cabbage,
fish and fish products, meat products and pea vining;
instruments, jewelry, pharmaceuticals, tobacco and
toiletries

Packaging and assembly of products from furs, glass,
leather, metals, paper, plaster, plastics, textiles and
wood

Freight yards

Inside storage

Breweries

Research and development facilities

Dumps and Disposal Areas

Manufacture and processing of more heavy-industrial
related items

Outside storage and manufacturing areas

ol o [o]o|lw|o|w

Filling, drainage, dredging

PDD

The uses allowable in PDD are the uses approved as part of the general or detailed plan for particular sites that are placed in the Planned Development District.




Village of Turtle Lake Zoning Districts & Uses Note: This table is provided as a convenience for the Village and general public.

P = permitted Where there are conflicts between the text of this Chapter and this table, the text shall prevail.
C = conditional Draft December 7, 2020

[ | v [ ow [ e | e e oo N o
OUTDOOR RECREATION USES
Fishing, scenic, historic, scientific, wildlife preserve P
Non-resident buildings used solely in conjunction with P

the raising of water fowl or fish
Hiking trails and bridle paths P
public and private parks and picnic areas, greenways

P
and open spaces
. - P
Recreational related structures not requiring basements
Piers, docks C
Boathouses C

OTHER USES
Mixed-Use Building p




Niemann,Dry

Industrial Ave

Western,Blvd,

Swede'Ave!

yfamarack,St;

JLakeiAve
m GrandfAve
\dnev: (S o 2
SO! Ry =
=3
[
Prosarshue 7 o MartinfAve
S &
oo . s G
(0 ‘2 Induscrial BIVd mes ;{’ g §
%\ c & o, 'ArthuFAve
o 2
Y A
I © Blaine/Ave;
. K
Ellza\b,eth' Cvs
&
&
@
£
]

\

R i e

i

R-R Rural Residential

R-L Low Density Single-Family

R-M Medium Density Single-Family
- R-MF Multi-Family Residential

MHTH Mobile Home - Tiny Home Neighborhood

B-G General Business
- B-H Highway Business
D-MU Downtown Mixed-Use
- B-P Business Park

TLE LAKE, WISCONSIN

R-T Rural Transitional

- I-A Intensive Agriculture
- P-C Park and Conservancy

- Waterbody

Planned Development

DRAFT NOVEMBER 18,2020

Adopted 12/XX/2020

0 0.125 0.25 0.5 Miles

Y Y TN I I T N |

Data Sources:Wisconsin Department of Administration,
Wisconsin Information System for Local Road (WISLR),
West Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission,
2018 USDA Aerial Image

m
WEST CENTRAL WISCONSIN
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION




	3 - 2020Dec7_Draft_TurtleLakeZoningOrdinance_CleanFormatted.pdf
	ARTICLE A INTRODUCTION
	SEC. 13-1-1 AUTHORITY.
	SEC. 13-1-2 TITLE.
	SEC. 13-1-3 GENERAL PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-4 INTENT AND PURPOSES IN VIEW.
	SEC. 13-1-5 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-6 RULES OF INTERPRETATION.
	SEC. 13-1-7 SEVERABILITY AND NON-LIABILITY.
	SEC. 13-1-8 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.
	SEC. 13-1-9 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ADOPTED.
	SEC. 13-1-10 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE B  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	SEC. 13-1-11 JURISDICTION AND GENERAL PROVISION.
	SEC. 13-1-12 GENERAL USE REGULATIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-13 SITE REGULATIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-14 HEIGHT AND AREA EXCEPTIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-15 BULK STANDARDS.
	SEC. 13-1-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE C ZONING DISTRICTS
	SEC. 13-1-20 PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-21 DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED.
	SEC. 13-1-22 R-R RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-23 R-L LOW-DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-24 R-M MEDIUM DENSITY SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-25 R-MF MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-26 CONDITIONAL USES APPLICABLE TO ALL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS.
	SEC. 13-1-27 MHTH MOBILE HOME – TINY HOME NEIGHBORHOOD DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-28 R-T RURAL TRANSITIONAL DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-29 I-A INTENSIVE AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-30 B-G GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-31 B-H HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-32 D-MU DOWNTOWN MIXED-USE DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-33 B-P BUSINESS PARK DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-34 P-C PARK AND CONSERVANCY DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-35 PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-1-36 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-39      RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE D ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES
	SEC. 13-1-40 ACCESSORY USES OR STRUCTURES.
	SEC. 13-1-41 OUTSIDE STORAGE OF FIREWOOD.
	SEC. 13-1-42 SWIMMING POOLS.
	SEC. 13-1-43 HOME OCCUPATIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-44 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-50    RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE E  MANUFACTURED HOME, MOBILE HOME & TINY HOME STANDARDS
	SEC. 13-1-51 PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-52 MANUFACTURED HOMES IN RESIDENTIALLY ZONED AREAS.
	SEC. 13-1-53 MOBILE HOMES
	SEC. 13-1-54 TINY HOMES.
	SEC. 13-1-55 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-59      RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE F NONCONFORMING USES, STRUCTURES AND LOTS
	SEC. 13-1-60 PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-61 EXISTING NONCONFORMING USES.
	SEC. 13-1-62 EXISTING NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.
	SEC. 13-1-63 CHANGES AND SUBSTITUTIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-64 NONCONFORMING AND SUBSTANDARD LOTS.
	SEC. 13-1-65 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-69     RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE G PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	SEC. 13-1-70 PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-71 HIGHWAY ACCESS.
	SEC. 13-1-72 TRAFFIC VISIBILITY – VISION CLEARANCE TRIANGLES.
	SEC. 13-1-73 LOADING REQUIREMENTS.
	SEC. 13-1-74 OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS.
	SEC. 13-1-75 FENCING.
	SEC. 13-1-76 SCREENING.
	SEC. 13-1-77 NOISE.
	SEC. 13-1-78 VIBRATION.
	SEC. 13-1-79 EXTERNAL LIGHTING.
	SEC. 13-1-80 ODOR.
	SEC. 13-1-81 PARTICULATE EMISSIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-82 VISIBLE EMISSIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-83 HAZARDOUS POLLUTANTS.
	SEC. 13-1-84 STANDARDS FOR THE B-H, D-MU & B-P DISTRICTS
	SEC. 13-1-85 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-89 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE H SIGNS
	SEC. 13-1-90 PURPOSE AND INTENT.
	SEC. 13-1-91 COMPLIANCE.
	SEC. 13-1-92 NONCOMMERCIAL SIGNS.
	SEC. 13-1-93 EXISTING NONCONFORMING SIGNS.
	SEC. 13-1-94 EXEMPTIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-95 ABANDONED AND DILAPIDATED SIGNS.
	SEC. 13-1-96 SIGN PERMITTING AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES.
	SEC. 13-1-97 MEASUREMENT STANDARDS.
	SEC. 13-1-98 CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND SIGN MAINTENANCE.
	SEC. 13-1-99 GENERAL PROVISIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-100 SIGNS PERMITTED IN ALL DISTRICTS WITHOUT A PERMIT.
	SEC. 13-1-101 SIGNS PERMITTED IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS WITH A PERMIT.
	SEC. 13-1-102 SIGNS PERMITTED IN ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, OTHER THAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS, WITH A PERMIT.
	SEC. 13-1-103 ILLUMINATION RESTRICTIONS – ALL ZONING DISTRICTS.
	SEC. 13-1-104 TEMPORARY AND PORTABLE SIGNS.
	SEC. 13-1-105  OFF-PREMISES SIGNS AND BILLBOARDS.
	SEC. 13-1-106 PROHIBITED SIGNS.
	SEC. 13-1-107 APPEALS AND SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-108 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-109 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE I  TELECOMMUNICATIONS
	SEC. 13-1-110 PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-111 SIGNAL RECEIVING ANTENNAS.
	SEC. 13-1-112 WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES.
	SEC. 13-1-113 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-119 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE J  ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES
	SEC. 13-1-120 PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-1-121 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR.
	SEC. 13-1-122 ROLE OF SPECIFIC VILLAGE OFFICIALS IN ZONING ADMINISTRATION.
	SEC. 13-1-123 REVIEW AND APPROVAL REQUIRED.
	SEC. 13-1-124 ZONING ORDINANCE (TEXT OR MAP) AMENDMENT.
	SEC. 13-1-125 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCEDURES & STANDARDS
	SEC. 13-1-126 ZONING PERMIT.
	SEC. 13-1-127 SITE PLAN REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES.
	SEC. 13-1-128 VARIANCES.
	SEC. 13-1-129 APPEALS TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS.
	SEC. 13-1-130 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.
	SEC. 13-1-131 THROUGH SEC. 13-1-139 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE K DEFINITIONS
	SEC. 13-1-140 DEFINITIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-141 MOBILE HOME DEFINITIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-142 LARGE LIVESTOCK DEFINITIONS.
	SEC. 13-1-143 SIGN DEFINITIONS.

	Chapter 3 - VTL_ShorelandWetland_Formatted_Draft.pdf
	ARTICLE A STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND TITLE
	SEC. 13-3-1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.
	SEC. 13-3-2 FINDINGS OF FACT.
	SEC. 13-3-3 TITLE OF CHAPTER.
	SEC. 13-3-4 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-9 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE B: GENERAL PROVISIONS AND ZONING MAPS
	SEC. 13-3-10 COMPLIANCE.
	SEC. 13-3-11 MUNICIPALIZIED AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED.
	SEC. 13-3-12 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.
	SEC. 13-3-13 INTERPRETATION.
	SEC. 13-3-14 SEVERABILITY.
	SEC. 13-3-15 WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY.
	SEC. 13-3-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-19 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE C: SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-3-20 PURPOSE OF SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING.
	SEC. 13-3-21 OFFICIAL SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING MAPS.
	SEC. 13-3-22 DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.
	SEC. 13-3-23 FILLED WETLANDS.
	SEC. 13-3-24 WETLANDS LANDWARD OF A BULKHEAD LINE.
	SEC. 13-3-25 PERMITTED USES.
	SEC. 13-3-26 PROHIBITED USES.
	SEC. 13-3-27 NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES AND USES WITHIN THE SHORELAND-WETLAND DISTRICT.
	SEC. 13-3-28 THROUGH SEC. 13-3-29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE D: ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.
	SEC. 13-3-30 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR.
	SEC. 13-3-31 ZONING PERMITS.
	SEC. 13-3-32 CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE.
	SEC. 13-3-33 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR WETLAND AREAS.
	SEC. 13-3-34 FEES.
	SEC. 13-3-35 RECORDING.
	SEC. 13-3-36 REVOCATION.
	SEC. 13-3-37 BOARD OF APPEALS.
	SEC. 13-3-38 AMENDING SHORELAND-WETLAND ZONING REGULATIONS.
	SEC. 13-3-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE E: PENALTIES; DEFINITIONS
	SEC. 13-3-40 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES.
	SEC. 13-3-41 DEFINITIONS.


	Chapter 6 - VTL_ShorelandZoning_Formatted_Draft.pdf
	ARTICLE A STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND TITLE
	SEC. 13-6-1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.
	SEC. 13-6-2 FINDINGS OF FACT AND PURPOSE.
	SEC. 13-6-2 THROUGH 13-6-9  RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE B GENERAL PROVISIONS
	SEC. 13-6-10 COMPLIANCE.
	SEC. 13-6-11 MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED.
	SEC. 13-6-12 ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.
	SEC. 13-6-13 INTERPRETATION.
	SEC. 13-6-14 SEVERABILITY.
	SEC. 13-6-15 APPLICABILITY OF SHORELAND REGULATIONS.
	SEC. 13-6-16 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-19  RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE C SETBACKS FROM THE WATER
	SEC. 13-6-20 BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURE SETBACKS.
	SEC. 13-6-21 EXEMPT STRUCTURES.
	SEC. 13-6-22 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE D NONCONFORMING STRCUTURES
	SEC. 13-6-30 MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR VERTICAL EXPANSION OF NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES.
	SEC. 13-6-31 MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, REPLACEMENT OR VERTICAL EXPANSION OF STRCUTRUES THAT WERE AUTHORIZED BY VARIANCE (s59.692(1k)(a)2. And (a)4.)
	SEC. 13-6-32 THROUGH SEC. 13-6-39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE.

	ARTICLE E ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS
	SEC. 13-6-40 ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.
	SEC. 13-6-41 DEFINITIONS




